19th September, 2016 q
LIBERTY

The Manager

Listing Department

Bombay Stock Exchange Ltd.

Phiroza Jeejeebhoy Towers,

Dalal Street

MUMBAI - 400 001

Tel.: 022-22722375 Fax.: 022- 22722037,39,41,61

Sub: 30" Annual General Meeting (‘AGM’) and Voting results.

Reg : Compliance with the provisions of Regulations 30, 34 and 44 of SEBI ( Listing
Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015.

Compliance Officer: Munish Kakra (CFO & Company Secretary)

Contact Address: Libertypuram, 13" Milestone, G.T. Karnal Road, Kutail, P. O. Bastara, Distt.
Karnal 132114 (Haryana) '
Ph. 01748 — 251101 — 03, 9313601387

Scrip Code . 526596 ISIN No.: INE 557B01019

Dear Sir/Madam

With reference to the above subject, we would like to inform you that the 30" Annual General
Meeting of the Company convened today i.e Monday, 19th September, 2016 at 11:00 A.M.at the
Registered office of the Company, have transacted the business mentioned in the Notice dated
30th May, 2016.

In this regard, Please find enclosed the following-
(1) Summary of proceedings as required under Regulation 30, Part A of Part-A of Schedule -l
of the SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations as Annexure — |

(2) Voting results as required under Regulation 44 of the SEBI (Listing Obligations and
Disclosure Requirements) Regulations as Annexure — II.

(3) Scrutinizers’ Report on remote e-voting and poll conducted at AGM of the Company as
Annexure lll.

(4) Annual Report for the financial year 2015-16 as required under Regulation 34 of the SEBI
(Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations duly approved and adopted by
the members in the AGM.

Please take the above information on your records and acknowledge the receipt of the same.

Thanking you
Sincerely yours
For Liberty Shoes Ltd.

Munish Kakra
CFO & Company Secretary

Liberty Shoes Ltd.

Corporate Office : Building No. 8, Tower-B, 2nd Floar, DLF Cyber Citi, Phase-Il, Gurgaon-122 002, Haryana, India

Tel.: +91-124-4616200, 3856200 Fax: +91-124-4616222, E-mail: mail@libertyshoes com www.liberty.in
Registered Office: Libertypuram, 13th Milestone, G TKarnal Road, PO. Bastara, Distt Karnal-132 114, Haryana (India)
Tel +91-1748-251101~3 Fax : +91-1748-251100. E-mall: Ipm@libertyshoes com

CIN No L19201HR1986PLC033185
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extra mile to ensure customer

-sﬁtisfaction worldwide. To remain
.l.aj.tmé'.cqsmopolitan to the spirit.
"'-*rﬁ remain a great corporation
o associate with, to work for. To

nnw that “We are about people”.
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From
The CEOQ's Desk

Dear friends,

The “Achhey Din" are here. For the footwear Industry as a
whole as the new initiatives of the government have allowed
the industry to be recognized as o dynamsic sector with the
highest potential 1o buiki the dream of a strong India by
providing employment te the needy and baing a source of
foreign exchange eamings for the exchequer, The Indian
Government has taken various measures to support the
growth of footwear industry by giving recognition to tha
Industry through the formation of Council for Footwear
Leather and Accessories (CFLA).

Your Gompany hag been excited by this recognition and i
investing in the business to grow its presence across the
courtry and also working on newer inlerational markets that
are |noking for high quality praducts. You may have noticed an
increased visibility of the brand as our retail team has been on
an expangian mode, The Company managed stares and the
franchise stores have been opening at some key markets
across nol just she metro towns but also on the Hi strests of
Class 1 cities. These expanded distribution advantage will
show results in the coming yedrs. The contact with & new set
of consumers has been encouraging and has apened up hewer

business opportunities for your Company, The Company owned

stores afe delivering o new standard of service whicl‘1 ]
helping the brand get a betler image and raiging the equity
amongst consumers. What's more, the speciality shoes
division has built newer markels and has established itself not
just @s leaders of the segrent but also as a significant revenue

souree in the Company.

We have introduced & incorporated  modemn business
technigues to ensute that the business beeomes more
sustainable i the long run. By making rewer partnerships &
building unon the ofd tried and tested obes to enswe the
profits will Ipok better over the years.

With the prospects of good monscon and the sustained efforts
of the Government the Indian econamy i all sel to grow at
tapid pace. We believe that we have sef up a sustainable path
of growth for the future and we are ready with alt our hard
work 1o explait the emerging opportunities present for this

sector and economy as o whole,

We are most grateful 10 vou for continuing to shaw your {aith in
the policies and helping us lead to betier days ahead.

Adesh Kumar Gupts
Chiet Executive Officer
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Notice

Natice is hereby given that the 30th [Thirtieth) Annual General
Meeting of the Members of Liberty Shoes Ltd, ("the Company”)
will be held an Monday, 19" September, 2616 at 11.00 A.M at
the Registered Office of the Company situated at Libertypuram,
13th Milestone, 6.1, Karnal Road, Kutail, PC. Bastara, Dist,
Karnal 132114, Haryana to transact the following businesses;-

GHDINARY BUSINESESS:
ltem no. 1-Adaption of Financial Statements
To 1eceive, consider and adapt:

al  the Audited Financial Statement of the Company for the
Finangial year gnded March 31, 2016 together with the
Reparts of the Beard of Directors and the Auditors thgrson.

bl ke Audited Consclidated Financial Statements of the
Company Tor the Financial year ended March 31, 2016
topether with the Aeports of the Auditors thereon,

Item no. 2-Appointmont of Directors

{a}  To appoint a Director in place of Sh, Adeesh Kumar Gupta
(DIN -~ DB137612), who retires by rotation and being eligible
pHers himsell o re-gppointment.

{b) To eppoint a Directer in place of Sh, Aghok Kumar
(DIN - DBBB3514), who ratirgs by rotation and being eligible
offers himse!f for re-appointment,

Item no., 3-Ratification of appointment of Auditors

To tslify the appointment of Auditors of the Company, and to fix
their remuneration and to pass the fellowing resolition as an
ORDINARY RESOLUTION thereof;

“RESOLVED THAT, pursuamt 1o Section 139, 142 and other
applicable provisions af the Companies Act, 2013 and the Rules
made there under and purstant to the recommendation of the
Audit Commitige of the Board of Directoss, and putsuant to the
resolution passed by the mambers al their 268" Annual General
Meeting held on 29" September, 2014, appaintment of h/s
Pardeep Tayal & Co., Chartered Accountants {Firm Registration Na,
002733N) as the Auditors of the Cempany to hold office till the
contlusion of the Annual General Meeting to be hold in the
calendar year 2017 ha and is hereby ratified and that the Board of
Directovs of the Company be and are harehy authorized to fix the
temuneration payable to them for the financial year ending March
31, 2017 a5 mutually zgroed botwean the Board of Directors of
the Company and the Auditors.”

SPECIAL BUSINESS:

ltem no. 4« Re-appointment of Sh. Adeesh Kumar Gupta
(DIN: 00137612} as an Executive Director

To consider and if thought fit, to pass, the following
resolution as a SPECIAL RESOLUTION:

“RESOLVED THAT pursuant to the provisions of Section 186,
197, 203 read with the Schedule V of the Companies Act, 2013
(heveinatier refered 1o as “the Acl” including any modificationis)
o re-enactment{s) theraof for the time being in force) and all
other applicabla provisions of the Act, il any, and in sccordance
wilh provisions of Artictes of Association of the Company, the
consent of the Members of the Company be and is hereby
accarded for the re-appointment of Sh. Adeesh Kumar Gupla
(DIN: 00%37612) as an "Executive Dirsclor” of the Company for a
further perfod of 2 years w.e.t, 1st Outober, 2018 o the tetns and
conditions inciuding the emuneration, payable as  minimum
temuneraticn as enumerated in he draft Service Agresment
whici i 10 be entered irto between the Company and 5h. Adeesh
Kumar Gupta, salient features of which are gpecified in the
Explanatory Statement undar Section 102 of the Companies Acl,
2013 annexed to this Notice, with aplion o the Board of Direclors
10 vary the terms including increase in remuoneration within 1he
limils prescribed under the Acl or any re-enactment thereof, and
as may be mutually agreed belween Sh. Adeesh Kumar Gupta and
the Company from time to time.

RESDLVED FURTHER THAT the Board of Directors of the
Company or Cormimittee thereof be and is hereby authorized io do
all such acts, deeds and things a8 may be necessary in respect of
aforesaid matten”

By prder of the Beard
For Liberty Shoes Ld,

funish Kakra
CFD & Carpany Secretary
M. No.ACS G262

Plage; Gurugram, Haryana
Dated: Monday, 30" May, 2016

Register i

Libertypurarm, 13" Mifostone, G.T. Kamnal Road, Kutail,
RO. Bastars, Distl. Karnal - 132114, Haryana

Tal: (91) « 17AR-251101- 03 Fax: (91) - 1748-251300
E-rail:lprdplibartyshoas.com

Wehsile : wwwiberyshons,com

CIM: L1820 HRSB6PLCO33 185




NOTES:

1.

A MEMBER ENTITLED YO ATTEND AND VOTE AT THE
AFORESAID ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING 1§ ENTITLED
TG APFOINT A PROXY TO ATTEND AND VOYE ON
HIS/HER BEHALF, ONLY ON A POLL. A PROXY NEED
NOT BE A MEMBER OF THE COMPANY.

THE INSTRUMENT APPOINTING THE PROXY, DULY
COMPLETED AND SIGNED, SHOULD BE DEPOSITED AY
THE AEGISTERED OFFICE OF THE COMPANY NOT
LESS THAN FORTY-EIGHT HOURS BEFORE THE
COMMENCEMENT OF THE ANNUAL GENERAL
MEETING, A PROXY FORM |5 ANNEXED TG THIS
RERQRT,

Pursuant to the provisiins of Section 105 of the Companies
Act, 2013, a person can act as a proxy on behalf of not more
than fifty members and helding in aggregate not maore than ten
percent of the totad Share capital of the Company, Memners
holding more than ten percent of total Share capital of the
Company may appoint a single person as proxy, who shall not
acl as a proxy for any ather Member,

An Explanatory Statement pursuant 1o Section 102 of the
Companies Act, 2013 and Rules framed thers under, in
respect of the Special Busingss under item no. 4 of the
accompanying Notice 15 annexed hereto,

fursuant o Section 113 of the Companins Act, 2013 and
Aules framed thereunder, Corporate Members imtending to
send their autharized representative(st 1o attand thre Annual
General Meeting ore requested to send a duly certified copy of
their Board Besclution and PFower of Attomey, i any,
authorizing their representativels) to aitend and vote at the
Annual General Meeting.

[uring the peried beginning 24 hours hefore the time fixed for
the commencement of the meeting and ending with the
conclusion of 1he meeting, a member would be entitled 10
inspect the proxies lodged at any time during the business
hours of the Company, provided that not fess than three days
nolice in writing i given Lo the Company.

Puisuant 1o Section 81 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with
Rubes framed there under and Regulation 42 {5) of the SCBI
{tiating Obligations and Disclosure Reyuirements] Regulations,
20115, the Register of Members and Share Transfer Books shall
ramain closed from Tuesday, 13" September, 2016 10 Manday,
19" Septamber, 2016 {both days inclusive),

Mermbers are requested to produce the Attendance Siip duly
signed as per the specimen signature recarded wish the
Company/Depositary Pasticipants for admission to the Mesting
hall,

Mermbers, whe held shares in domatenialized form, are
requested 10 ing their Bepository Participant (LM, 1.0, and
Ctiant 1.0. Notg). far ensier identification to record attendanne
at the Meeting.

g

10.

13,

. The lnvestors/Shareholders  arg

B I e LA

Mambers holding shares in electronic Tarm are requested to
infimate: immediately any change in their address or bank
mandates to their Depository Participants with whom they are
maintairing their dernat accounts. Members holding shares in
physical form are reguested lo advise any change in thei
address or Bank mandates immediately 1o the Registrar and
Share Transfer Agent, M/s Link Intime India Pvt, L1d, 44,
Community Centre, Naraina industial Area Fhase-, New
Dedhi-110028.

Members holding shares m electionic form may note that bank
particulars registered  againsl their respective depository
accounts will be used by the Cormpany for payment of
dividend, il any. The Company or its Registrar and Share
Transfer Agenl, M/s Link Intime India Pvt, L1d. cannot act an
any reguest received directly from the Members holding
shares in electronic form far any change of bank particulars or
bank mandates. Such changes arc 10 be advised only 10 the
Depasitory Fartcipants by the Members,

. As per Regulation 40(7) of the SERI (Listing Obfigations

and Oisclosure Requiroments) Regulations, 2015 read with
Schedute Vi 1o the said Regulations, for registration of trangfer
of shares, the transferee(s) as well as transferor(s) shall
mandatorily fumnish copy of their Income Tax Permanent
Account Number (PAN). Adcitionadly, for secorites rmarket
transactions and / or for off market / private transactions
invilving  transfer of shares in physical form o listed
Companies, it shall be mandatory for the transferee(s) as well
as transferor{s) to fumish copy of PAN Card to the Cormpany /
Registrar and Share Transfer Agents for registration of such
transter of shares. In case of transmission of shares haeld in
physical made, it is mandatary to fumnish a copy of the PAN
Card of the legal heirs) / Nominee{s),

1o be cavtious whilp
submitting the physical docurnents viz, Demat Request Forms
{ORF) and shore certificates, i, with their Depository
Participant(s) and should engure thit they (DPs) do not delay in
sending the DRF and Share Certificatels) to the Registrar and
Share Tiansfer Agents (RTA) after generating the Demat
Request Number [RN). Kindly note that if DRF and sharg
certificates, etc. are nol received fram their Deposilory
Participant{s) by the ATA within a period of 5 days from the
date: of generation of the DRN for dematerialization, the DRN
will be treated as rejected Joancelled. This step s being
laken on lhe advice of Depositonies, viz., National Securities
Depasitory Limited and Central Deposttory Services {India)
Lirriled 5o that no demat request femains pending beyond a
period of 21 days, Upon rejection / cancellation of the DRN, a
{resh DAF with new ORN has 1o be forwarded along with share
cenificate(s) by the Depository Paicipant(s) ta the RTA,

Unpaid / Unclaimed Rividend:

i, Pursuant to Section 205 and Section 2054 of the
Companies Act, 1956 read wilth the Companies Unpaid
Dividend (Transfer 1o General Revenwe Account of the
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Central  Government]  Rules, 1978 and  amended
provisions of Section 206A read with Section 2056 of the
Companies Act, 1956, all unctaimed/unpaid amount of
dividends have been transfered to the Genersl Ravenue
ActounAnvestor Cducation and Prolection Fond (IR
gstablished by the Central Governinenl, as the case may
be, 1 may be noted that once the unpaid/  unckimed
amaunt of Dividend is transferred to the IEPE the same
cannot be claimed by the members there from in terms of
the provisions Section 2058 of the Companios Act, 1956,

ii.  The members, wha have not yet claimed their dividends
wartrants for the financial year ended 31" March, 2014
and 31" Mareh, 2015, are requested to claim the amount
of Dividend frorm the Company immediately by submitting
a request letter wilh the Cempany of Registrar and Share
Transter Agant M/s Link Intime india Pvl, Ltd, #1 the above
rentioned addiesses before the due date of transter of
respective amount of unpaid/unclaimed dividend 1o IEFT
Unclrimednpaid amount of dividend for the financial
vear anded 31" March, 2014 and 317 March, 2015 will
b transferred 1o the IEFF on 3" November, 2021 &
3" Novernber, 2022 respectively,

The Secwities and Exchange Board of India (SEBI) has

mandated the submission of Permanent Accoum Numbet

(PAN) by every participant in securities markel, Members

holding shares in electronic farm are, theretore, requested to

subimit their FAN to their Depository Participants with whaons
they are mainlaining their demat aceounts, Mombers holding
shiargs in physical form can submit their PAN 10 the Registra

and Share Transler Agen!, M/s Link Intime India Pwt, Lid.

Pursuant lo Section 72 of the Companies Acl, 2013 read with
Rute 19 {1] of the Companies (Share Capital and Debentures)
Rutes, 2014, the facility for making nomination is available for
the Members in tespect of the shares held by tham. Members
who have not et registered their nomination are requested to
register the same by submitting Form No. SM4-13. The said
form can be downloaded fram the Company's website
wwwilibertyshoes.com under section “lnvestor Relations”,
Meamhbers holding shares in single name and physical form are
advised to make normination in respect of their shareholding in
the Cornpany by submitting duly completed Form No SH, 13
with the Company's RTA in case of shares in physical form and
their respective depository in cage of shares in glectronic Torm,
In case of any cancellation or variation in Nomination in
respect of their Shareholding in the Company, in this regard
Members may downtoad Form SH-14 from the website of the
Company wwwliberlyshoes.com and submit duly completed
Form 8H. 14 with the Company's RTA in case of shares in
physicat form and their respective depositary in case of shares
in alactronic form,

. Merbers holding shares in multiple folins in identical names

of joint holding in the same order of names are requested Lo
send the share cenificates to Registrar and Share Transter

17.

.

21,

Agent, M/s Link Intime India P, Ltd,, {or consalidation in to a
single folio,

Non-Resident Indian Members ate reguested o nform
Registrat and Share Transfer Agent, M/s Link Intime India Pul.
Ltd,, immediately of:

(a} Change in their residential status on return 1o India for
pernignent seitlement.

[t Particulars of thelr bank account maintained in India with
complete name, branch, account typa, account number
and address of the bank with pin code number, if not
{urnished earier,

A briel profile along with necessary information of the
Diectors seeking their appointment/fe-appointment i the
forthcoming  Annual  General  Meeting in pursuance  of
Regulation 36 (3] of the SEBI {listing Obligations and
Niscinsure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 is anoexed to the
Notice of this Annual General Meeting as Annexure A of
Annexure ta the notice.

Members arg reguested to:-

8. Bring their copy of the Annual Report and Attendance S
ot the venue of the Mesting.

b, Cuote their Folio/DP G & Client 10 No. i all conespondernce
with Company/Magistrar B Share Transfer Agent,

c.  Note thal no gift shalt be distibwted at the Annual
General Meeting.

d. Note that Members present in person or through
registared proxy/suthorized reprosentativels) shall only be
enteraned,

g Update their e-mail 10 with their Depositosy, in case
shargs holds in Qematarialized form snd with RTA in case
shares holds in physicat form, il not provided sardiar,

As per Section 101 and Section 136 of the Companies
Act, 2013 read with relevant provisions of Companies
(Management and Administration) Rulgs, 2014, Companies
can serve Annual Reports and other communications through
plectroniv mode (6 those Members whe have registered theit
e-mall addiess either with the Company/RTA or with their
respective Depository participants. Members, who have not
registerzd their e-mail address with the Company/RTA, can
now register the same by submitting a duly filled in
E-communication Registration form annexed 1o this Annual
Beport which is also available on the website of the Company
wwwilihertyshoes.com, to Company/RTA of the Company.
Members holding shargs in demat form are reguasted 1o
register their g-mail address with their respective Depository
Participants only. Members of the Company. who have
registered thoir e-mail address, are entitled to receive
such cammunication in physicat Tarm upon requesl

The Nolice of Annual General Meeting, Annual Report and
Artendanca slip are being sent in eleciranic moda 10 Mambeors
whose e-mal D me registersd with the Cormpany or




22,

23

24,

26,

depository Participant(s) unless the Members have registered
their request for a hard copy of 1he same. Physical copies of
the above documents are being sent to those Members who
have not registered their e-mail (3 with the Company ar
Depository Participant(s). Members, who have 1aceived the
Notice of Annual General Meeting, Annual Report and
Attandance Slip in electronic mede, are requested to print the
Atendance Ship and submit o duly filed in Atlendance Slip at
the registration counter at tha venue of the AGM to attend the
s8ine.

Mernbers, desiting any information relating to the accounts,
are requestad o wiite to the Company at an eatly date 80 as
tn enable the managemant to keep the information ready.

All the docurnents referred to in the Notice and Explanatory
Statement including Register of Directors and Key Managerial
Personnel and their shareholding, maintained under Section
170 af the Companins Act, 2013 and Register of Contracts or
Anrangernents in which Diteclors are interested, meintained
under Section 189 of the Companies Act, 2013 are open far
inspection a1 the Repistered Office of the Company on all
waorking days between 10.00 AM. and 1.00 BM. up 1o the
date of the afeesaid Annual Geroral Meeting or any
adjournment thersof, except on Sundays and other holidays,
The Minigtry of Corporate Affairs (MCA), Govermnmant of India
has introduced a 'Green initiative in Corporate Govemnanee' by
allowing paperless compliances by the Companies for setvice
of documents 1o their Members through elettronic mode,
which will be in compliance with Section 20 of the Companies
Act, 2013 and Rules framed thereunder, In case you have not
registered your corect e-mal M, please communicate the
same 1o our Registrar and Share Transfer Agents (RTA) - M/s,
Link Intime India Pvt. Ltd, 8¢ their above address in respact of
the shares held by you in physical mode or communicate to
your Depositary Participant{s] congernad in raspact of shares
held by you in demat / electronic mode. Although you are
entitled to receive physical copy of the Notices, Annual
Reports, etc. from the Company, we sincerely seek your
suppor 1o enable us 1o forward these decuments 1o you only
by e-mail, which will halp ug in participating in tha Green
[nitatives of the MEA and protect our environment. I view of
the abaove, the Company has already dispatched earlier written
communicatinns to its Members requesting them to register
thesir designated emall 1D with the Company / RTA. However,
Members who are desirous of oblaining physical copy of ke
Notices, Annual Reports and other documentls may forward
their wiitten request 1o the Company / RTA for the same.

As reguired under the Secretanal Standards o General
Meetings {S5-2) issued by the Instiute of Company
Secretaries of India, a route map, including a prominent
landmark, showing directions to rgach the AGM venue is
annexed herelo.

Pursuant to Section 108 of the Companies Act, 2013, read
with Rule 20 of the Companies (Managememt  and
Administration) Rules, 2014 as substituted by the Compames

(Manmagement and Administration) Amendment Rules, 2015
ant Regulation 44 of the SERI (Listing Cbligations ard
Disclosure Requirementst Regulations, 2015, the Company is
pleased to offer remate e-voling and ballet form facility to the
Membins to cast their votes electonically on all resolutions
sel forth in this Notice. This remote e voling facility is in
addition to voling thal may take place at the meeting venue on
Monday 18" September, 2016, Yhe process and peneral
instructions for remote e-voting are given as follows:

{A) In case of membars recoiving o-mait (for those
memhers whoso a-mail addrosses are registered
with the Company):

(i} The shareholders should log on to the e voting website
www, evotingindia, corn,

{i}  Click on “Shareholders tab.

{iiiy Now Enter your Uset 10
4, For CDSL: 16 digits beneficiary 1D,

b, For NSDL § Character DP 1D followed by 8 Digits
Cliert 10,

¢ Members holding shares in Physical Farm should
enter Folio Number registered with the Company.

{iv)] Next enter the Image Verification as displaved and Click
an Login,

(v}t you ara holding shares in demat form and had lagged on
1o www.evatingindia.corn and voted on an sarier vating
of any company, then your existing passward is to be
sed,

Vi) 1 you are & first tirne user follow the steps given Dedow:

For Members holding shares in Demat
Form and Physical Form

PAN

Enter your 10 digit alpha-numeric PAN issuer

by Income Tax Department (Applicable far hoth

dermal shateholders as well as physical

shargholdars)

= Members who have not spdated thedr PAN
witlh the Company/Depository Participant
arg I’EQUESTBU 10 use the sequenca nurmbey
whigh is printed an Attendance Slip indicatad
in the PAN field.

Dividend Bank
Dotsils OR Date of
firth {DOB)

Enter the Dividend Bank Details or Date of Birtk (in
dd/mmy/yyyy Tormat) as recarded in your demat
accourt o in the Company racords i order 1o legin,

* M both the details are not recorded with the
deposilory or Company please snter the
member id / folio numbaer in the Dividend Bank
details field 45 mentioned in instruction (i),




fwii

(vili)

fix)

(x)

(il

{xii)

(xiii)

(%iv}

{xv]

(xvi)

{xvii]

After antaring these details approprintely, chick on
“SUBMIT" tai,

Members halding shares in physical form will then
directly reach the Company selection  screen,
However, members holding shares in demat farm
will row reach 'Password Creation’ menu whevein
they are reguired 1o mandatorily enter their login
password in the new password ligld. Kindly nite
that this password is 1o be @lso used by the dermat
hotders for veting for resolutions of any other
company on which they are cligitie 1o vote,
provided that company opts for e-voting through
COSL. platferm, 1t is strongly recommendad nat 1o
share your password with any other person and
take utmost care 1o keep your  password
confidential,

For Members holding shares in physicat form, the
details can be used only for e-voting on the
resolutions contained in this Notice.

Chek on the EVEN (160823011} for LIBERTY
SHOES LIMITED on which you choose to vate.

On the voling page, you will see "RESOLUTION
DESCRIPTION" and agaiinst the same he option
"YES/NO” for voling. Select Lthe oplion YES or NO
a4 desied. The option YES implies that you assent
1o the Regalution and option NO anplies that you
dissent 1o the Resalution,

Click on the "RESGLUTIONS FILE LINK" if you
wish 1o view the entire Resolulion details.

After selecting the resplution you have decided 1o
vole on, chok on “SUBMIT", A confirmation box
will be gisplayed, If you wish to confirm your vote,
click on “0K", else to change your vote, click on
“GANLEL" and accordingly modify your vote,

Once you "GONFIRM" your vote on the resolutian,
yaou will not be allowed to modify your vote,

You can also take a print of the votes cast by
clicking on “Glick here to print” option on the
Voting page.

If & dernal account holder has forgotten thi login
password then Brter the User 10 and the image
vetification code and click on Forgol Fassword &
enter the details as prornpted by the system.

Shareholders can also cast their vote using CDSL's
mohile app m-Voling available for android based
moviles. The mVoling app can be downloaded
from Google Play Store. Please follow  the
insttuetions as prempled by the mobile app while
voting on your mobile.

{xviii] Note for Non - Individual Shareholders and

Custodians

(wix)

» Nor-ndividual shareholders (i.e. other than
Individuals, HUE NRE etc.) and Custodian are
reaquired 1o Doy on 1o www.evatingindia.com
and register thermselvies as Corporates.

« A scanned copy of the Repistation Form
hearing the starmp and sign of the entity shoutd
bee emailed to helpdesk evoting@ixedsindia.com,

«  Aftor receiving the fegin detals 3 Compliance
User showld be crealed using the admin fogin
and password. The Compliance User would he
able to dink the accountts for which they wish
to vote an,

« The list of accounts linked in the login should be
maitad 10 helpdesk.avoting&aedslindia,com and
on approval of the accounts thay would be able
10 cast their vate,

« A scanned copy of the Board Resolution and
Power of Aftorney {POA) which they have
issued in favour of the Custodian, if any, should
be uploadad in PRI format in the system for e
strutinizer 1o verify the same.

In case you have any queries of issues regarding e
voting, you may refer the Frequently  Asked
Questions {“FAQS") and e-vating manual available at
www.evetingindia.com, under help section or write
an email 1o helpdesk.evoting@cdslindia.com,

(it Any person, who acquires shares of the
Company and hecome Membar of the Campany
after dispatch of the Notice and holding shares
as on the cu-off date ie. as or close of
business houts of Monday, 12" September,
2016 may follow he samé ostructions as
mentiongdd above {ir e-Voting,

fi) I case you have any QUElies or ssues
regarding e-voting, you may refer the Frequently
Asked Questions  ("FADS™) and  ewoling
manual available ot www.ovotingindia.com,
under help section or wiite an omail tc
helpdesk,evatingEodshndia.com

(B) In casc of members receiving the physical copy of
Notice of Annual General Maating {for membars
whose e-mail 1Ds are not registered with the
Campany/depository participant(s) or requosting
physicat copy):

Flease follow all steps from 81 ne. (I} to S na. (XVH)
above to cast vole

Goneral Instructipns:

1

The remote e-voling petiod beging on Thursday,
15" September, 2016 at (09.00 am. ang ends on
Saturday, 17" September, 2016 at 5.00 p.m. Ouring
this period shareholders' of the Company, helding




I

)

V)

V)

V)

Vi

vill

shares either in physical form o i dematerialized
form, os on close of business hours of Monday, 12"
Septamber, 2016, may cast their vate electronically.
The remaote e-voting module shall be disabled by
CDSE for voting thereafter. Once the vole on a
resolution i casl by the  shaeholders, the
Shareholder shall not be allowed to change it
subsequently.

b case you have any gueties o issues reparding e
voling, you may refer the Frequently Asked Question
["FAQs™ and  ewvoting manual  available At
www avatingindia,.com under help section or wiite
an erait 1o helpdesk.evatingdcdslindia.com,

The wvoting rights of sharcholders shall be in
proporion 10 their shares of paid-up equity shame
capital of the Company as on clese of business
hours of Morsday, 12" September, 2016,

Member can also download the notice of the
meeting from the website of the Company available
at wwwilibertyshoes.com for exercising their e
Voting rights.

Members desiting to exercise vole by Physical Ballot
forrm are requested 1o carefully read (he instructions
printed on the Balfot form and retum the form daly
compieted & signed in the atlached  pre-paid
postage Sell addressed envelope so 8s Lo reach the
serutinizer not later than close of working hours fe
Satrday, 17" Septembaer, 2016 a1 8,00 pam,

The Board of Directors has appointed GA Sukash
Gupta, partner of M/s Pardeep Tayal & Co,
(Chartersd  Accountants), Fanipal, Haryana as
Scrutinizer for conducting the remote e-voting,
voting through baflot form and voling at the 30"
Annual General Meeting in a fair and transparent
marmer. The pre-paid postage sell  addressed
envelope sttaghed Lo this Notice bears the address
tt which duly completed Ballot form is to be sent.

At the end of the remote e-voting periad, Sciutinizet
will download the entirg voting dita {sing it
Serutinizer fogin,

The Serutinizer  shall,  immedistely  after  the
conclusion of vating at the 30" Annuat General
Meeting, first count the votes cast al the 30"
Annual General Meeting, thereafter unblock the
votes cast lhvough remote e-voling and through
bafot forrn in the presesce of Al jeast lwo
wilnesses nol in the employmant of the Company
and make, not letter than three days of cenclusion of
the meeting, & consolidated serutinizers' repont of
the: total voles cast in favour o against, if any Lo the
chairman or & person authorized by him in wiiting
whe shall countersign the same,

D AT e

B The Chainman of he Meeting or any person of the
Company, duly authoiised by him, in witing, shall
anrounce the tesall of emole e-voting, ballet form
and voting &t the 30" Annual General Meeting
through  poll  after  receiving  of  consolidated
gorutinizer's report from tha serotinizer,

X} The consolidnied Results of the above wvoting
alony with the consolidated Scrutinizer's Report
shall be placed on the Compamy's  websile
vwwi iiheryshors.com within threr days of passing
af the resolutions at the 30th Annual General
Meeting of the Company to be held on Monday,
14" Septenther, 2016 and communicated 1o
National Stock Exchange of India |td. and BSE Lid,

Xl The resolution shall be desmed (o bo passed on the
date of 30"Anndal Genetal Meeting, subject 1o the
receipt of sufficient votes through a compilation of
vating results fi.c. remote o-vating ard ballat form
faciities along with the veting hetd at the Annual
General Meeting through Foll).

Those members, who do not have access to ramote
geviting facifity, may send their assent or dissent in
wiiting on the Ballor Form attached witl: this Annual
General Meeting Notice in the enclosed  sell
addressed postape pre-paid envelope st as to reack
the Sorutinizer at 4742, Punjabi Bagh (West),
New Dehi-110026 on or before close of husiness
hours of Saturday, 17" September, 2016 at 5.00
p.m. Any Ballot Form received after this date will be
treated as if the reply from the members has not
received. The Scrutinizar's detision on the Vakidity of
a Ballot form faciliting will e final,

IMPORTANT NOTE:

Lberty Shoes Ltd., being a #isted Company and
having more than 1000 shargholders, is computsorily
egquired 1o provide Remote ewoting faciity to
members in terms of Seclion 108 of the Act read
wilh Rule 20 of the Rules and Regulation 44 of the
Listing Regulations, voting by shaw of hands will not
b avallable to the members at the 30" Annual
General Meating in view of the further provisions of
Seetion 107 read with Section 114 of the Act.

Annexurg to the Notice

{Explanatory Statement pursuant to Section 102 (1) of the
Companies Act, 2013}

ITEM NG, 4

Sh. Adeesh Kurmar Gupta (DIN: 00137612} aged 52 yearg, has been
associaled with the Company for last several years in different
canacities and considering his past condtibution sowards the
Company, was appainted a5 an Exacutive Director for 8 pariod of b
years wied, 15t October, 2031 by members of the Company in their




26th Anmual General Meeting held on 28th September, 2011, Ha has
been contiibading to operations of the Company with his vast
EXPERENCE,

A brief profile of Sh, Adeesh Kumar Gupla detailing the natue of his
expertise, qualification, exporience, name of Comparias in which he
holds  Obectorship  and  Mermbership/Chairmanship  of  Board
Committees ele. has been provided in Annexure A to the Annaxure
10 the Notice of this Annuat General Meeting.

In view of s valuable contribution and considering his expertise, the
Board of Direglors on the recommendation of Nomination and
Reruneration Committee in their Maeting hald on 30" May, 2016
have proposed the re-appointment of Sh. Adeesh Kumar Gupla as
an Expculive Director for a fuither pariod of 2 years wef, isl
October, 2076 subject to the approval of the Members of the
Cornpany in the 30" Annual General Meeting or the below
mantionad teims and conditions including remureration, payablo as
minimum remunetation in terms of the provisions of Schedule V of
the Companies Act, 2013 and as a6t out in the drafl Service
Agreement 1o be executed with Sh, Adeesh Kumar Gupta. The
ahove sppointmerd has also been approved by the Nomination and
Rernunetation Commmttee of the Board, pursuant to Section 178 aof
the Companies Act, 2013 and Rules framed Lhere under and also in
terms of the Nomination and Remuneration Policy of the Compiany.

The Company has obtained from 8h. Adeesh Xumar Gupia his
consent ig e re-appoirded as an Executive Director of the Company
ang also received declaration in Form DIR-8 1o the effect \hat he is
net disqualified to be appointed as a Director in any Company,.

The Board censiders thal the cantinung association of Sh, Adessh
Kumar Supta an the Roard of Directors of the Company will be of
immense benefit to the Company and it wauld be prudeat 10 re-
appaint Sh. Adeesh Kumar Gupta as an Executive Director of the
Cornpany and he has requisite qualification and experience for tha
positicn ho is halding. As a Director of the Company, bis office shall
be liable to retire by rotation at Annual Gengral Mesting. Accardingly,
the Board recommends the resolution no. 4 for the mernbers’
approval.

The respective abstract of the terms and conditions of the re-
appoiniment of 5h. Adeesh Kumar Gupta as an Cxeoutive Dircclor
along with Mermorandum of their interest o concern is set out as
befow:

Abstract of the terms and conditions of the ra-appointment of
Sh, Adeesh Kumar Gupta as an Executive Diroctor:

{I}  Petiod: For a peniod of Z years wet 1"0ctober, 2016,

fi}  Neturg of Dwnies: Sh, Adeesh Kumar Gupta shall devote bis
whole time and attention 1o the husiness of the Company and
carty out such dities as may be entrusted to him by the Board
freem lime 1o time and separately communicated to him and
such powers a3 may be assigned 0 him, subject to the
superintendence, control and directions of the Board in
connection with and in the best interest of the Company,

(i) Bemuneration:

al Salary, TA00,0004 per monlh subject W the Board
reviewing any incroase or variatior: in such sakary.

B Perquisites: As per the rules of the Company as applicable
for the Uirector for the time being in Torge. In view of the
inadequate  prafits of the Company, the proposed
remuneration payable 1o $h, Adeesh Kumar Gupta is the
mmikmum remuneration ard e total remuneration, of
salary, perquisites, and any olher allowances shalb nol
exceed the ceifing as provided in Section It of the Part of
Schedule V of the Companies Act, 2013 including any
amendnent thereof from e to time,

No commission of whatsoever neture shall be paid 1o the
Executive Direetor apart from the aforesaid remuneration.

{iv) Othar terms of re-appointment;

a) The fems and condilions of the re- appointment of
&h. Adeesh Kumar Gupta a5 Executive Direclor may be
varied or altered from time to time hy the Board of
Directors or Cormmiittee thereof in its discretion, if deemed
fit bul subject 1o the provisions of the Companies Act,
2013 or any regulations/ rules made there under,

b The Office of 8h, Adessh Kumar Gupta as Executive
Rirectar shall be liable to retire by rotation,

¢} No sitting fee shall be paid to Sh. Adeesh Kumar Gupta for
altending the Board or Committoe Mectings)

d}  Sh. Adpesh Kurnar Gupla shatl abide by the Company's
Code of Conduct or any other Code of Sonduct as laid
down i terms of Corporate Governance and  Insidor
Trading Regulatiens, 2015,

Draft of the respective Service Agreement 10 be exented
with the above Executive [irector and other relevant
docurnerts are available for inspection at the Cormpany's
rogistered office on any working day between 10:00 AM.
to 1:00 PM. up to the date of forthcarming AGM.

Nane of the Directors, Key managerial Parsonnel of the Company or
their relativas of the Company may be deemed 1o be concermed or
inerested in the proposed resolltion no, 4, except Sh. Adessh
Kumar Gupta 1o the extent of his shareholding in the Company.,

By order of the Board
For Liberty Shoes Ltg,

Munish Kalra
Cr0 & Company Secretary
M. No. ACS 6262

{ace; Gurugram, Haryana
Dated: Maonday, 30" May, 2016




Annexure-A

A BRIEF PROFILE ALONGWITH THE NECESSARY INFORMATION OF THE DIRECTCRS SEEKING APPOINTMENT / RE-
APPOINTMENT THEREOF iN THE FORTHCOMING ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING SCHEDULED TO BE HELD ON MONDAY,
19TH SEPTEMBER, 2016 IN PURSUANCE OF REGULATION 36(3) OF THE SEBI (LISTING OBLIGATIONS AND
DISCLOSURE REQIHREMENTS) REGULATIONS, 2015

Name of tha Director

Sh. Ashok Kumar

Sh ‘ A dwsﬁ gumﬂrqupta

Apu

A7 Years

B2 Yoars

Date of Appointmant as Director

23 Janyary, 2015

12th Auust, 2011

Mualification

iLA

Graduate

Helationship with other Directors inter se

Nane

None

Expariance / Expsrtise in spacific
Functional Areas

He is a law Graduate and has heen advising
Company on vatious legal matters of the
Company for last several years. He possesses
a vast wealll of legal knowledge and bas a
proven record of providing indispensable legal
atvice: 4o the Company and defivering of
positive gutcomes for the Company.

Has been assaciated with the Company
in differant capacity for last several years
and having vasi experfence in the tield of
Hurnan Resource Managemant and
suparvision of laathar finishing unit, He
has been contributing 1o operations of the
Cornpany with his vast experience.

dirsctor(s)

List of diractarship held in ather Nong = Geofin rvestments (P) LLd,
Companies
= Little world Constructions private
Lirnited
List of membership in committees of other | None None
Companies
Sharaholding of Executive/ Non-Executive |  Nil 1,89,360 Equity Sharas




s
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information in terms of Schedule V to the Companies Act, 2013

I General Information;

a)

b}

c)

d)

4]

Nature of Industry: The Company is engaped in the
busginess of manulactuting snd Uading of footwear snd
acerssories through its resall and wholesale netwaork,

Date or expectad date of commancemant of
commercial production: The commercial produclion of the
Company was started in Decernber, 1293,

Expected date of commencement of activitios os per
project approved by financtal institutions appearing in
the prospactus: The  commarcial production of e
Gompany has aleady commenced in Decomber 1993,
therefore not Applicable.

Financial performance based on given indicators:
(For 1the Financiat year ended Margh 31, 2016)

«  Profit/iLoss) before depreciation, interest, tex and
excaptional items; $43.44 Cr,

« Profit after tax and Exceptional item: $10.20 Cr.

o Net Warth {excluding Capital reserve); T105,11 Gr,

» Book Value per share of 10 cach: T91.03.

Forelgn tnvestments and  Collaboration as  on
3 March 2006 The Company has no  foein
collaboration but has done farsign investment in its wholly
owned overseas subsidiary namely Liberty Foot Fashion
Middle Cast, FZE and invested a sum of AED 25,39,376 by
way of its pquity contribution.

H. Information about the Appointee/Director:

1.

Background Detailz and expertise and exporionce in
specific functional areas:

ah, Adeash Kumar Gupte, aged 52 years, is having
axparionce of aver two and hall decades in the field of
Human Resource Maragement a5 well as of leather finishing
unit, He was eadier associated with the Company as
irecte during the peried of 1990 to 2001 snd then joined
the Board as {isector in the year 2011 and then was
appointed as an Executive Director for & period of five years
wel 1% October, 2017 which was approved Dy the
members in lheir 25" Arnusl Geperal Meeting of the
Company held on 28" September, 2011, Ha has been
contributing to operations of the Company with his vast
BApERiEnGE.

Fast Remuneration:

Initialy  he  was  heing  paid  Remuneration of
12000004 pa. plus all the perquisiies in tems of the
Palicy of the Company for the time being applicable or in
foiee, The Board of Direciors, considering the manifold
responsibilitics assigned 10 Sh. Adeesh Kumar Gupta, his
diversilied expenence snd keeping in view the remuneration
biing sid in the Industry 10 the person(s) holding the simity

position and on the recommandation of Remoneration
Committee o the Beard, approved the increass in 1he
remuneration of Sh, Adessh Kumar Gupta from #192,00,000/
10 TA8,00.0004 pa., inclusivie of all the perquisiles as per
the Policy of the Company for the tima being appitcalile o in
force, Tha members in theis 27" Annual General Meeting held
on 20" Sepiember, 2013 approved the above increase in
remuneration paid wed. 1" April, 2013 a5 minimum
rermoneration in view of imedeguate profit o terms of
pravisions of Schedute XI 1o the Companies Act, 1858,

3484 Racopnition or awards/Jdob Profila and his suitability;

&h, Adeesh Kumar Gupta has buen associsted with the
Comgany in differem capacity for last several years and
contributing to the aperations of the Company with his vist
experience.  He s looking  after  Human  Hesouree
Manapement of tha Company and also supeivising the
Leatner finishing unit of the Gompany, The Roard of Directors
ar of the opinion that the continuing assaciaticn of Sh,
Adeesh Kurnar Gupta on the Board of Directors of the
Cormpany will be of immense benefit 10 the Sompany and it
wordd be prudent 1o re-appoint Sh. Adresh Kumar Gupla as
Executive Oirector of the Compary on the same terms and
canditions including remungration 1o be payable to him and
he has requisite qualification and experience tor the position
he i holding. He has submitted a declaration in form {IR-5
under Section 187 of the Companies Act, 2013 to the eflect
that he is not disqualified to be appointed a3 a Director in any
Company.

5.  Romuneration proposed;

The remuneration proposed to be paid 1o Sh. Adessh Kumar
Gupla for the position of Executive Director is #48,00,006/
. including perquisites as per the sules of U Comipany
within limitg of Schedule V of the Companias Act, 2013 and
other applicable provisions of the Companies Act, 2013, if
any.




LIBERTY

& Comparative remuneration profile as per published information with respect to industry, size of the Company, profile of the
position and purson:

St.No, | Particulars {1 {2} (3)
1 Name of the Company | Hatn India Ltd. [ielaxo Footwear Ltd. Mirza Intarnational (10,
2 Type of Industey Footwear Footwear Footwesat
3 Yoar Endod | March, 2016 March, 2016 March, 2006 e
4 Annual Turnover T2451.25 Crores T1715.27 Crores T925.74 Crones
{Nat of Excize Duty} st
b Designation, Personal (it CEQ & Managing Director, (ir Managing Directon, Graduate, | i) Managing Cirecloy, diplena in
and Romungoration B.L {Mechanicall, 51 years old {8.Corn Licentiate of LPRI Leather technolagy, Landon,
Profils {2016) having 25 years of axperienco Landon, B2 years oli, having G0 years ofd, having 40 v
in similar field/industry at a more than 38 years of of experience in similar field/
fo'"F“"f‘ml“ﬂ" ﬂﬂmpffﬁglﬂ experience in simbar fioky/ industry at a rernuneration
diary, Allowances an industry a1 & remuneration isi T —
Perquisites totaling 1o ¥446.2 comonising of Salary § compreng salary & 'qums‘lmb
Likh 1. prising ary totating 10 T146.36 Lakh p.a.
akh p.a. Commiggion wtaling to . o _
(i} Direcior Finanes, Cormmerce $1710.66 Lakh p.a. it Whole Time Director, diploma
Graduate, Charterad - Time irnctar. Gr in Leather Goods Technologies
Accountants, 57 years old. i Yglg? é&igrznﬁmeg';\?ﬁ: ¢ K., 58 yrars ofd having
having marg than 3 years of than 43 years ()‘I eyparianca in 37 years of expatiance in
EXperiance in similar . similar field/industry at a similat fieldfAndustry 4t
fieldAndugty at & remuneration i coindustyata nuneration cornorisian Sal
comprising Selary § allowances | (EmUNeration comprsing Salary| - JEMUNETANN CaISIRg Salary
and Perquisites totaling to & Commission tataling 1o b Porquisitcs totaling to
F167.0 Lakh p.a. 2B79.88, Lakh p.a, TI18.27 Lakh pa,
7. Pecuniary relationship directly or indirectly with the couple of yeosrs affects consumer sentiments.

Gompany of rolationship  with the managerial

personnel;

5h, Adensh Kuma Gupta, Executive Director is representing the
peoenaters group of the Company. Hea is drvwing emunaration of
248,00,000/- p.a. for the position of Executive Mirectar as pe
iy Policy of the Comprany and eadiee approval by the memba s
in their 27" Annual Genersl Meeting held an 20" September,
20%3. By ond hig ralativeg have interest s parnes in Liberty
Footwear Co., Liberty Group Marketing Division and Libatly
Ertgrpisas, Partnership frms ot Karnal which have assigned
sxclusive rights to the Company to use thei Tsdamatks, Sub
firands, Manufacturing facilities, Sale and Distribution Networks
and other assets of the firmg on payment of Tranchist/icensing
fees, Sh. Adeesh Kumar Gupta is holding 189,360 Equity Shares
i the Gompany. M bifongs 1o the Promoter group of the
Gompany and he is not relative of any Managerial Pargonnel of
the Gompany in terms of the provisions of Companies Act, 2013
and Listing Requlations,

. Other Information:

A

Rausans of boss or Inadeguate profits:

«  The Institutional sales seament, being migjor conlibidar in
tolat sales, could nat succeed in bagging repetitive big
Instisutional orders which bas irnpa[:l_ed thu Cr)r}‘u)mjy'u top
line and resulting in to marginal decling i profitability. The

+ Increase in the finance cost due to higher utilization of
binownd funds.

Stops takan or proposod to be taken for improvement;

+  Expanding tha reach in untapped areas/cities for increasing
the sates for domestic growth.

v To furtho stangthen tho brand peoeption B pass on
impiact of hightr Gos1s 1o conguma.

«  Exploting new export markal and with fogused approzch
on qualitative products.

«  Gffective utilisation of working capital tosss o st
the Interest Costs,

= Restructuring of operations of the Company Dy cosl
reduction of Adminisiration and other expenses.

Expected increase in productivity and profits in

moasurable tarms:

It iz difficult a1 this stage to quantify the effect of the measures

laken/being takeh by tha Gompany to improve the ovedall

performance in financial tenms, Mowever, the measures baing

takenfio be taken hy the Company will add nn o the oveall

value of the Company whicl will be reflecting through the

inproase in the profitability of the Company.

IV, Disclosure:
Disclosure in the Beard of Oirector's repont under the heading
Cotpotate Govaenance' Report attached to the financial statements;
The requisite detadls, as required o be disclosed under Corporate
Governancs Ropor! attached 1o the Annual Reporl 1o the exient
appicabla W th Company and the Directors, have boen disclosad
theran,

axparts dus 12 stowdown in global aconcmy and steep fall
in oil prices world over has majarly tmpacted thea Expan
performance of the Gompany.

o Reqular increase in minimum wages @ Hargana where
three planis of the Compary operates, has impactst
bettam fing of the Company.

o fflationiny prassing gravailing in Domestis markat Tor st




Directors' Report

Dear Shareholdars,

Your Directors teve pleasure in presenting the 30th Annual Report of
the Company together with the Audited Financial Statemants for the
financial yvear ended 31" March, 2016,

In addition 1o the Audiled Financial Slatements for the fingncial yesr
onded 31° March, M8, your Company has also presented its
consodidated financial  statements alter considering the  Audited

Annuad results of its overseas whally ownad subsidiary Liberty Foot
Fashion Middle Cast FZE in aceordance with the maquirements of the
applicable  Accounting Standads and provisions of the  Listing
Agreement/Regulations with the Stock Exchanges,

Financial Highlights {Standafone):

The highlights of the financial statements are as under-

Review of the operations of the Company:

Doriryg the financisl year anded 3150 March 2016, your Company has
recorded a tunover of ¥47,066 Lakh as against TH4,646 Lakh during
the corresponding provinus vear, The Ned Profit of your Company, for
the year under considaration, lemained al $1,020.74 Lakh as against
T1,706.20 Lakh during the corresponding previous vesl. The Net Profit
of your Gampany for the financial year anded 31581 March, 7016 is after
congidering sffect of Exeaptional iterns of 197,68 Lakty (Pravious year
71,365 Lakh) (a5 per details mentioned in noles note 2.26 of the noles
to Financial Statements of the Company astached with this Annual
Raport).

Your Company, an consolidation basis with its wholly owned subsidiary
Company Liberly Foot Fashion Middle Cast FZE, Dubsi, recorded &
turnaver of $47,066 Lakh and achicved a Consalidated Net profits of
T1,005.53 Lakh as the WOS has not yet commenced its operations,

Your Company's performance for the curent financial year ended 3151
Mareh, 2016 in temms of iy overall turnover and profitability fas
witnessed decling as against the previous year byt has registered
growth of around 20% in Sales at the Company Gwned Gompany
Operated (GOCK) showicoms, whereas same slores sales, your
Company has wilnessed aroond 11% growth, This shows (he
satisfaction level of the customers in Libarty Brand. Your Company's
institutional Sales segments, baing major contriutnr in salas o the
Company, could not succead in bagging repetitive big institutional
orders which hag majmly impacted tha top line of the Company, For The

(% In Lakh)
Particulars 201516 2014154

Gross Sales 4706586 | S464696 |
Less: Excise Duty 1.817.7% 225715
Net Seles 45,208.11 52,380.01
Add: Otker Income 202,67 228,30
fevenue Trom Operations and Other Income 45,416.53 63'?,617.3'1
Profi belore Depreciation, Finance Costs and Tax (EBITOA) 4,344.84 442043
Less: Fimance Costs 1,639.21 'IhUh['Jﬂ
Loss: Depraciation & Amartisation 1,349.79 1,242.38

Profit Before Exceptional ttems (P1) 135680 | 157137 |
Less: Exceplionsl lems 11?69 71.34
1,238,20 $,500.03
Less: Tax Dxpenses 217.47 (206,17)
Net Profit for the year {NP) 1,020.73 $.706.20

Proposed Dividend {Inctuding frovision for Gorporate Dividend Tax) 407.83

respective lasl 2 years, your Gomgany bag executed this Institionsl
orders worth 50 Crores in each year, The exports, due o stow down in
ginbal eoonomies & sieep fall in oil prices world over, hsg atso impacted
your Company's parformence in overssas market and witnessed
dleclining end during (he year under consideration,

The Commoddy prices and irdlation of India during the year
congideration remaingd under condrol but dur to poor consecutive
fronsoon and drought in major statas of the Country deprived the
penple living in rural areas from using their available resources for
spending on footwear which has adversely affected the Company's
performance on the domastic front,

Your Directors sve concetned with the Company's perfonnance doring
ther year under consideration and believing that this phase would be
temporary and with all raund measures for efficiency improvements will
tesults inimproved performance in future,

Your Cornpany, 1o regain its earlier position amongst the organized
footwear players, has been cortinuously focusing by improving its
collections in categories for Men, Women and Children by providing
good quality products with lalest and advanced designs at aspiational
prices to cater the customers’ value for money products. Your
Company, as its pursuit of retail expansion, has been very conservative
in opening of new retail stores during the year and kept focusing on
same stores growth by improving efficiency in terms of replenishment
and feed the stores alresh with atest merchandise. Your Company, in
order 1o expand its retail network, his been facusing on e -1 and trr-




2 cities of India which will improve its feach 1o the untapped marked
and Rope that focus on same stores growth with selective expansions
will give biatter results Tor the Company in thi years 1o came,

As intormed earier, the respective amangaments with M/s. Liberty
Enmerprises (L] and Likerty Group Marketing Oivision (LGMO), the twe
partnarship firms in which fow diregiors are interested, through which
tights 10 use their manotacturing facilities and intangible assets of the
saicl firmg againgt minirum guaranteed annual foes, were available
with the Company until 31st March, 2015, Your Gompany had entgred
i 10 Memarandum of Understanding with M/s Libarty Entarprises (LE)
§ M/s Liberty Group Marketing Division (LGMIY for purchase or
alherwise takeover the Foolwes Busingss (including, smongst others,
thiz Sub Brancs ane Distibution Networkst of the said Fing and were
proposed 1o be completed by 315t Match, 2016 subject te the approval
of the shareholders and the requisite statutory approvals required, if
any, However, due tag some technicel and legal issues, the same could
not be consummated till 31st rmarch 2005 and considering the enduring
benefits and requirernents of the business of the Company, the earkior
atrangements have been again renewad afiash for further period of 1
vear e Gl 31st March, 2017 on the same terms and congitions
includieg feas, Your directors are in talks with the cancened partnars/
person for acquisition of the assets of the above partnership firms
before the end of the existing arvangemants subject o sharehgidars
and statutory approvals wherever tegoired,

Your Direetors are pleased to inform you that your Company has been
awarded with Make in India swards 2015 {for exeellence in Leather
Footwear during the year under consideiation besides receiving of
recoghitions by leading business and industniab mapazines/news
papers,

Cradit Rating:

[wring the yesr under review, Care Analysis and Research Limited
[CARL), the leading rating agrnoy has 1e-atfirmed its rating CARE A" [-)
pranoungad as CARE A" Minus for the Long Term banking facities and
CARE "A2" (4} prongunced as CARE “A" (Two Plug) for Shert Term
Ixanking facilities sanctioned tn the Company.

Subsidinty Company & Consolidated financial statement:

Libetty Foor Fashion Middle EFast FZE (LFF), Dubai (Wholly
Owned Oversoas Subsidiary)

The Wholly Owned Overseas Subsidiary of the Company Mfs Liberty
Faot Fashion Middle East FZE {LFF), Dubai has not yel starled s
operation and has incurred nomingl routine expenses during the yvear
under consideration which has been accounted while consolidating its
financial statements with the Company. Your Company 1ill 31st March,
2046 has invested a sum of T302.42 Lakh (Previous Year 302,42 Lakh)
in LFF as its capina contribution. The financial results of LFF have been
consolidated with the Company in compliance with Accournting
Standards-21 of the Accounting Standards issued by the Institute of
Charlared Accountants of india.

In sceordance with Section 129 of the Companias Act, 2013,
consalidated financial stalaments of the Company and its subsidiary
Company is attached, The consolidated financiat statements hava been
prepared in aocordance with the relovanl accounting standards a5
areseribed under section 1249 of thy Companies Act, 2013,

The consofidated financial stalements disclose the assets, labilities,
income, expenses and other detaits of the Company and its subsiciany,

Pursant to provisions of first poviso of Section 1203) of the
Comgpinies Act, o statgment containing salient featuies of the financiak
statements of the Gompany's wholly owned subsidiary are given in
Annexure | i Form ADC-1 and the same forms part of this report.

Parsuani 1o the third proviso 1o Section 136 {1) uf the Companies Act,
2013, the financial Stataments of the Company, consolidated financial
slatereents along with refevant documents and separate audited
accounts in 1espect of wholly owned subsidiary, are avaitable on the
website of the Company st wwwlibertyshoss.com, The annual
accounts of the wholly owned subsidiary and the refated information
will bo madn avallable 1o any member of the Companyis wholly
owned sulsidiary seeking such information and are available for
inspection by any marmber of the Gompasy/ its wholly ewned subsidiary
at the Registered Office of the Company.

Appropriations:

Dividend

Your Directors, considering the financial requirgment to the Gompany,
have rol recommended any dividend Tor the financial yeat endad 317
March 2014,

Transfer to Reserves

Your Directors proposed 1o transfer ¥600.00 Lakh (Previous Year
600,00 Lakh) to the General Reserves out of the profits avadsble with
the Company for appropriations. Accordingly, an amount of ¥420.74
Lakh (Previous Yai T338.94 Lokh) has been proposed o be retainad in
the Profit & Loss Account of the Company,

Employaes Stock Option Schemeis)

During the year ended 3151 Manch, 2016, your Company has not Hoated
ary scheme i relation 10 Dmployess Stock Optionis) and no sueh
further plans have been intigled al present in Whis regurd,

Nomiaation and Remunoration Policy

Your Board of Directors, on the recormmendation of the Normmstion and
Remungration Commitiee, framed and adopled & policy for selection,
appointment ang remuneration of Directors and Senior Management
Parsonnel. The contents of the Policy and pvaluation criteria have
been stated in the Corporate Governance Raporl. The  above
Nomination and Rermuneration Policy is set owl in Annexuie-il of this
Aepart, The Policy is also available on the website of the Company Le,
wiww,linoryshogs.com.

Policy on Prevention of Insider Trading

Your Corpany has adoptad a code of Conduet for Prevention of Insider
Trading with a view to requlate trading in Equity Shares of the Company
by the Direclors and designated amployees of thi Company, The said
Code of Conduct ig avaitable on the website of the Company al
wwwilipertyshoes.com, The Code requires pre-clesrance for desfing in
Cormpany's shares and prohibits purehase or ssle of shares in your
Cormpany by the Directors and designated employees, while they are in
possession of unpublished price sensitive information and also during
the periog when the Trading Window remaing closed.

Familiarization Program

Itr ordder to encouragl active participation of Indapendent Dirmctars and
in order o understand the businss enviranmant, your Company hag
been familiastizing he Independant Dirsctors on its Board with dotailod
presentattons by it business functiongd haads on the Company




operations, strategic business plans, aew products and technologies,
including significant aspects of the Industry and its e autlook. Gnoe
appointnd, the Non Exerotive & indepondent Directors underge the
{amiliarization program of the Company, The Nono executive &
independent Directors are also provided with Tinancial results, interoal
aodit findisgy and other speclic documents as sought rom time to
time. They sre also made aware of the various polivies and code of
conduct and business elkics adopted by the Beard. Details of
tamiliarization programs cxiended 1o the Non Executive & Indapandan
[Hrectors duing the yem urder consideration are disclosed on the
Company website al wwwliberyshoes.com,

Risk Management Policy & Risk Mamagement

The Management of the Company has slways beer consciously
reviewing its business operations in accordance with set ules and
procedure and if any devialion or risk is {found, remedial and effective
steps are heing taken 1o mimmize the deviation and risk. In line with the
provisions of Section 134 (3) {0} of the Companies Ari, 2013, the
Company has devaloperd a Risk Management Policy to bwild ang
establish the process and procedurs for denlifving, assessing,
guantilying, minimized, mittgating and tanaging the essociated tisk M
garly stage. Folicy s aimed (o develop an spprosch to imake
assessment and management of the risks in financial, operational and
project based areas in timely manner. The main cbjectives of the Risk
Management Policy is inter-alia, to ensure that afl the curent and future
material risk exposures of the Company are identified, assnssed,
quantified, approprtely mitigatod, sinimized and managed, to protect
the brand valug through strategic control and operational policies and to
gnable complance with appropriate regulations wherever applicable,
ttrough the adoption of best practices. The Board of Direclors of the
Company assesses several types of nsks which include Business
Environment Risks, Strategic Business Risks, and Operational Risks etc.
The Board of Direclors periodically reviews and evaluales the risk
managemert systam of the Company s that the management controls
the risks through proprrly defingd netwiorks, Head of the Depatmants
ata sesponsinle for implementation of the sk managament system as
may be applicable t their tespective atess of Tunctioning and repart o
the Boord and Audit Committes, No risks threatening the existence of
the organization have been identilied. However Lhere are othet risks
against which adequate mitigation plans are prepared.

The Risk Managemert palicy is available on the Company's
wahsita of the Company at http:2investor bartyshoes.com/don/Risk_
Management_Policy,

Whistle Blawer Palicy {Vigil Mechanism}

Ag par the provisions of Section 177 (9) & (10) of the Companios Act,
2013 read with Regulatian 22 of Listing Regulations, your Gompany has
an ffective mechanism of reporting flegal or unethical behaviar, The
Company has a Whistle Blowr Policy (vigit machanism) whargin the
dirpctors, gmployees, eonsultants and contractors wro free to repornt
viplations of laws, rules and regulations or ungthical conducts, actual or
suspreted fravd or vielation of the Company's code of conduct or ethics
pokicy tn the nodal officer. The mechanism followad is appropriately
communicated within the Company across all levels and has heen
posted on the Notice Board of the Compary. The confidentiality of
these reporting Violations ete. is maintained and they 8re not subjected
to any disctiminatory pracuce. The concemn can be reported by
sending  an  e-mail message at (he  dedicated  address iz

e P

ethicscounsellorslibertyshoes.com . Individuals can slso ssise their
concems directly to the CEO or the Chairmiin of the Audit Committee of
the Company. Any allegation falling within the scope of the concerns
are identified, investigaled and desh with appropristely. The Audit
Committee perindically reviews the funclioning of this mechanism, The
Vigil meshanism established in the Company provides adequate
safgguards against wvictimization of director(s) or employeels) ar any
athar person who avail the mechanism. During the vear, no persanngl of
the Company was denied scoess 1o the Audit Commitiee. The details
of ostablishment of Vigil mechanism/ Whistle Blower Folicy of the
Company A available ot the website of the Company  vis.
wwww lilertyshoes.com.

Buy Back of Equity Shares:

Your Company has not undertaken any oxercise to buy back its Equity
Sharas from the shareholders during the year under review.

Fublic Depasit{s):
Thi Gompany has not accepted/renewed any public depasits and ag

such, no ampunt on account of principal or interest on deposits from
pulilic. was oulstanding as on date of the balante shest.

Board of Diractors and Key Managerial Parsonnel:
Ratiramont by rotation of the Directors

Sh. Adeesh Kumsr Gupta & 8h. Ashok Kumar, Directors of the Company

wiill retite: by renstion at the 30" Annual General Maating in pursuance

of the provisions of Saction 152 of the Companies Act, 2013 and Leing

gligibfe have offeied themselves for the m-appointmant at fhe 30"

Azl General Mesting,

Appointmant{s) and Ceszation of office of Directors

{4] Appaintmant /Re-appointment of Directors
[uging tha year under consideration, there is no appointment/i;
appointrmant of any Diector in the Company, Pursuant 10 1he
recommendation of Nomination and Remuneration Committae,
your Board of Directors, considering experience, qualiigation and
valuable contribution in the Company, in their magting hekd on
30" May, 2016 approved, suldecl to mambers' approval, re
appointmant o 3h, Adeesh Kumar Gupta as Executive Diracior of
the Cormpany w.ed. 1" October, 2006 for a further peviod of 2
years on the same terms and conditions including minimum
remuneration, payable to him for e position of Executive
Director, The previous tenure of & years of Sh, Adeesh Kurnar
Gupta will expire on 306" Septembar, 2016 which was approved by
tha mombers in thair 25" Annusl General Meetng held on
28" Septembar, 2011, Accordingly, necessary rasokition is being
placad for the approval of the members at the 30" Annual Generat
Meeting of the Company.
A brief profils along with necessary details of Divector seeking
theit re-appaintroent iss been provided in 1he Antexure-A of the
Annexure Lo the Notice of the 30" Aonual Genersl Meeting s
required wnder the provisions of Regulation 36 (3) of Listing
Repuiations,

{b) Cussation of Directors

During the yest under consideration, Sh, Adarsh Gupta, Crecutive
Dirgctor of the Cormpany, due 1o his pre-occupation, has resigned
ftom the position of Frecutive Directar of the Company w.a.t
18" August, 2005, The Board members acknowledged the




valualle services rendered by Sh. Adarsh Gupta during his tenurg
as Lxecutive Director of the Company and cxprossed its
appecition and gratilode for the same. Sh. Adarsh Gupta served
the Company for more than 25 yaars in different capacitios with
his valuable knowledge and rich experience. He belongs o the
proimaoter groug of the Compsny.

Koy Managerial Personnel

The following persons are the Key Managarial Personng) {KMFPs) of the
Company us per the provisions of the Sompanies Act, 2013 -

S, Adesh Kumar Gupta o CED B Exacutive ioctor
Sh. Sharmmi Banzal Executive Director

Shi. Sunil Bansal « Execitive Director
Sh. Adeesh Kumnar Gupta « Execiive Director
Sh, Ashok Kurmar = Exncutive Qirscior
Sh, Munish Kakra < CFQ B Company Setretary

Committeas of the Board
The Company's Board has constituted the following Commitiees:

1. Audit Committee

2. Managemem Committon

3. Stakeholders Relationship Commitien

4. Nomination and Remunaration Commitiae
5 Corporale Social Responsilitity Comemitbee

The detail of terms of reference of the Sommittess, Commitiee
compusition, meetings held during the year ang altendance &l e
meetings of the Committees are provided in the Corporate Govetnance
Report.

Number of meetings of the board

Five meetings of the board ware held during tho year, The detail of the
camposition, board meetings held during the ya and attgndance a8
the meetings sre provided in Corporate Governance Report, Thi
maximum time gap between two megtings did not exceend 120 days.

Annugl Evaluation of Directerz and Board as 3 whola

Pursuant lo the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 and Listing
Regulations the Board is required 10 maonitor and review the Board
evaluation framewark. In line with the Corporate  Govemnance
Guidelings, the Annual Parformance Fvaluation is conducted for all
members as well as the working of the Board and its Committeas. This
evaluation is with specific toras on the petormance and effective
functioning of the Board aher speking inputs Trom all the directors on
ther bagis of the critenia such as the Bomd compogition and structure,
effectiveness of board processes, information and functioning, etc.
The evaluation process alsn considers the time spert by each of
the Board Members, core compatencies, personal chatacienistics,
secomplishment of specific responsibilities and expertise, In addition,
the: Chairmin i alsn evatusted on the kay aspetts of his rolg, The Board
evaluation is conducted through  questionnaite  having  qualilative
parameters and feedback based on ratings, The perfutmance of the
cormmitlees was evalusted by the board after seeking inputs fram the
committee members on the basis of the criterin such as the
composition of committess, effectiveness of commitlee mertings, slc,

The outcome of the Board evaluation for the financial yoar under
consideralion was discussed by the Nomination and Remunaration

Commiltes and Bodrd a1 their meeting held on 31" March, 2016,
axcluding Uhe directon being evaiuated. ‘

In fines with the provisions of Companies Act, 2013 and Ligting
Regulation, separate meeling of the independem Directors of the
Campany was hald on 31" March, 2016 in the absence of non-
independent director and members of management o evaluals Lhe
performance of the non-ndependent Directors and Board as o whole of
the Company.

Attributes, Qualifications & Independence of Directors and their
Bppointment

The criterin for determining qualifications, posilive attribules and
indepesdonce of (iractars in terms of the Act and the Rules Lhere
under, both in respect of Independent Dirsciors and other Bireclors as
applicable, Fas heen approved by the Nomination and Remuneration
Committee during the financid year 2014-16. The Policy of the
Company also provides that Non-Indepsndent Independent Direclors be
drawrs from amongst aminent professionals with  experience in
businossfinance law/public administration & enterprises. The Bosrd
DBiversity Poficy of the Company regquires the Boatd Lo have balance of
skifls, expetipnee and diversity of perspectives appropriate o the
Gompany, Diractors arg appointad/re-appointed with the approval of the
Members for o shorter period say, two to five years oy, M Dieectors,
other than Indepandent Directors, are liable 1o retita by rolation and are
eligible for re-glection in terms of the provisions of Articles of
Association, tho  Independant Direciors of your Company  have
corfirmed that they mert the griteria of independsnce as presuibed
uner section 149 of the Compantas, Act, 2013 and Regulation 16 of
Listing Regulations.

Tha Nomination and Remunaration Palicy a5 approved by the Board of
Diractors of the Company has beon attached 20 this report and also
accessitde on the website of the Sompany o wwwlibenyshoes.com

Events Subsequant 1o the Date of Financial Statemonts

As per the provisions of Spetion 13403 (1) of the Carnpanies Act,
2013, no material changes or commitmonts affecting the financial
position have occurred between the gnd of financial year of the
Company to which the financial statements relates to the date of the
rapart,

The Ministry of Corporate Affairs, Government of India vide its
Netification dated Fabruary 16, 2015 has issued the Companies (Indian
Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015 which lays down a rosdmap of
Companigs for implementation of Indian Accounting Standards {Ind
AS), Every listed Company and their holding and subsidiary Companies
[other than banking Gompanias, insurance Corapanies and non-banking
finanial Companies) are reguirad to comply with Ind AS in preparation
of their financial statements for accounting peviods beginning on or
after April 1, 2016, with the comparatives for the periods ending Margh
31, 26, The provisions of above Rules will be applicable on your
Company wief, Apsil 1, 2017 considering the Net worths of your
Company as on March 31, 2004 s less then %500 Crores. Your
Company will adopt the ind A8 for accounting periods beginning on ar
after April 1, 2017 in pregiaration of #ts financial statements for the said
perinds. Further, since the provistong of said Rules is not applicable on
overseas subsidiaries, therefore the ovarseas wholly owned subsidiary
of your Comipany M/s Liberly Foat Fashion Middle Fast #2E i Dubai is
not required to comply with tnd AS in preparation of their financial
staternents,




Change in the nature of Business, if any

There was no change @ the mature of business of the Company during
thie year under review,

Internat finangial control systoms and their adoguacy

Liberly's inlernul fnancizl controls are adequste and operate eflectively
and ensuie orderly and efficienl condurt of ity business including
adherence o ds policies, ssfeguard its assets, prevent and detect
frauds ang erors, maistain accuracy and  completeness of s
accounting records and further enable it in timely praparation of refiable
financial information. During Lhe year, such controls were 1ested and no
reporlatile material weskness in the design or operation was nhserved.

Tha Company has in place an independent Interaal Audit Gepartment
which is ragponsible for assessing and improving the efectiveness of
internad financial control and governance. To rmaintain ity abjectivity and
pdepandence, the teral Audit function reports 10 the Chairman of
the Audit Commitiee,

Deaclaration by Independent irectors

The Company has received necessary  declaations  from wach
independent divector under Section 149(7) of the Compsnies Act,
2013, that shehe meets the oitena of independence laid down in
Section 148 {6) of the Companies Act, 2013 snd Hegulation 16 of the
SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirernents) Regulations,
2015,

Directors' Respensibility statamant

Pursuant to Section 134 {3) {¢) of the Companies Act, 2013, yours
Dirgctors, hased on the representilions received from  the
managament, confirm that;

i, in the preparation of the annual accounis, the applicable
accouiting slandards have been Iollowsd and there are no
material departures;

i they have selected such accounting policies and applied them
consistently and made jedgments and  estimates that ane
tgasonabla and prudent so as W give o liue and far view of the
state of affairs of the Company st the end of the financial yesr and
of the profit of the Company for thal perod:

i, they have taken proper and sufficient cars for the maintenance of
arnquatn accaunting records in accordance with tha provisions of
the Act for safaguarding the assets of the Company and for
preventing and detacting fravd and other inegulanities;

iv.  they have prepared the annual secounts on 2 going concern basis;

v, they have lict déwn internal financial contiols to be followsd by
the Company and such internal financial controls are adequate
and operating etfactivaly,

vi,  ihey have devised proper systems to ensure compliance with the
provisions of &ll applicable daws &nd that such syslems wara
ddequale and operating effectively.

lased on the iramewark of internal financial controls and
complinnce systems established and maintained by the Company,
wark parinrmad by the [ntemal, Statory and Seceetarial Auditors
and external consultants  and the teviews  pedormed by
management and the relevant board committess, including the
audit commitier, the board is of the opinion that the Gompany's
interral financial controts ware adequate and efiggtive during the

L1d,

financial year 201518,

Audit Committee and their Recommendations/ Observations

Your Board has & duly constituled Audit Committer in ternts of Section
177 of the GCompanins Act, 2013 read with the Rules framed thare
nder and Regutation 18 of the SEBL (Listing Sagulations and Disclosurs
Hequirements) Hegulations, 2015, The term of referance of the Audi
Commitier has been approved by the Board. The detaits pertaining to
composition of Audit Committee, no. of mootings held during the year
under raview, tiied term of referance and other dotails have Been
inchiced in the Corparste Governance Report, which forms part of this
eport, The ecomimendations/oliservations of the Aodit Committes
placed biefore the Boasd during the financial year anded 315t March,
2016 in respect of mattars pariaining to the financiat managemeant of
any other matier related thereto, were congidered and duly accepled
by the Roard of Directors of the Company.

Statutory Avditors amd their Rpport

Pursuant 1o the provisions of Seetion 138 of the Companies Act, 2013
and the Rules framad there under, M/s Pardeep Tayal § Co,, Chartered
Accountants (Repistration No. 002733N), were appointad as (e
Statutory Auditors of the Cnmpany from the canclusion of the Twanty
Eight (2Ath) Annual fieneral Meeting held on 29th September, 2014 1l
the conclusion of the Thirty First (315t) Annuat Gengral Moeting of the
fompany to ba held in the year 2017, subject to the ratification of thair
appointrent by the Members of the Company in their avary Annugd
inneral Meeting. A rasolution to that effect forms part of notice of the
30" Arnual General Meating sent along with this Annual Report,

Auditors' Rapont

Your Gompany's Directers havee examined the Statutary Auditors' Repon
on Annual Accounts of the Company for the financial year ended 317"
Match, 2016, There are no resorvation, qualifiation o adverse ramark
made Gy the Statutary Auditors in thair Repor and their clanifications,
wieraver necessary, have bean includad in the Notes to the Accournts
section ng mentionad plsswhera in this Annual Report,

Secretorial Awditors and their Report

Your Dirgstors have appointed M/s Sanjay Grover i Assotiales, a
Practicing Company Secratarios, in accordance with the provisions of
Section 204 read with Section 179 of the Companias Act, 2033 and
fule B of the Companies (Meatings of Board and e Powers), Rules,
2004 for the financial year 20156 for conducting the Audit of
secratarial records of the Company and issue thair report,

The Secretarizl Audit Report in respeet of secostarial mcords of the
Company for the Firancial Year ended March 31, 2016 has been
submitted by M/s Sanjay Grover & Associates and taken on record by
e Beard of Directors of the Company, The Repert of the Secretarial
Audit in Form MB-3 for the financial Year ended 31" March, 2016 is
gnclosed o the Repoit, The Board members have examined the sbove
said report and observed that there is ne raservation, gualification and
adverse remark rmade by the Secietarial Auditors,

Intornal Auditors and their Raport

Yow Directors have appointad M/s Bakash Kanwar B Co. Kamal,
Harysnm, Ghartored Ancountants, in aceordance with teemns of the
provisions of Section 138 read with Section 179 of the Companigs Act,
2013 and rule 8 of the Companies (Meetings of Board and its Powers),
Rubes, 2014 and rule 13 of the Companies [Accounts) Rules, 2014 for




the financisl year 201518 for conducting the Audit of the books of
gceounts and Internal Control system of the Company and (o issue their
repurl.

The Internal Audit Report in respect of books of accounts and Internal
Conteol systerm of the Company for the Financial Year ended March 317,
2016 has been submitled by M/s Rakesh Kanwar & Co. Kamal,
Haryana, Chantered Avcountants which has been duly considered and
reguisite dclions were taken by Autit Commitlee and repons thereon
weeta also takery on recotd by the Board of Ditectors of the Company,
The Board membeg bave examined the above said repert and
observad thin there is no reservation, qualification and adverse remark
rrde by the Imernal Auditors,

Particulars of Loans, Advances, Guarantees and tnvestinants

The Company has nol gramed any loan, guzrantee o made any
inveslments during the year ended 31" March, 2016 under Section 186
of the Cormpanigs Act, 2013 and Rule made there under. Pussuant io
Section 186 (4} read with Rule 11 of the Companies {(Meetings of Board
and its Powers) Rules, 2014 and Schedule V of the Securities and
Exchange  Boamd of Indi {Listing Obfigations  and  Digclogure
Raguirements) Regulations, 2015 (“Listing Regulatinns”), disclosure on
particulars refating to Loans, advances and investments are provided as
part of the finencial satements.

Significant and material prifers

futing the year under considaration, thete am no significan and
radenial orders passed by the regulators or courts or tribunals
impacting the going concem status and Gompany's operations in future.

Transactions with Bolatod Partios

During the year 2015-16, all transactions entered by the Company with
retated Parties as defined under the Companies Act, 2003, Rulss made
thare undir, wite in the Ordinary Couese of Busingss and @ Aom's
Length basis, The Audit Gommittoe granted omnibug appoval for the
transactions (which are repetitive in nature} and the same was
reviewed by the Audit Comimittee and the Board of irectors. During
the year under consideration, all relsted party tangactions, non
repetitive in nature far which omnibus aporoval was granted, are [faced
betare the Audit Gommittes for its approval, Your Company does not
have a material unlistad subsidiary as defined under Regulation 16 {1)
{c) of the SCB (Listing Obligations ard Disclosurs Reguirements)
Requlatinns, 2015.

Thene ware no materially significant trangactions with related parting
during the financial yrar 201516 which ware in gonflict with interest of
the Company. Your Company during the year, did oot have any related
party transactions which required prior approval of the Shareholders,
However, the Company hay been undertakeng transactions for last so
many years in respect of payment of Royally’ Fianchise fees to few of
the elated parties after obtaining the prioe approval of sharebalders and
Central Sovernment urder the provisions of the Companies Act, 1358,
All the related party transactions have boan disclosed in the Noteg to
financial statements as required under AS-18 of Accounting Standard.

I fing with the provisions of the Gompanies Act, 2013 and the Listing
Regutations, the Brard had approved and adopted policies on Related
Party Transactions which has been uploarded on the Carmpany's website
www.liberlyshoes.coni under the "investor relations seelion”,

Particulars of Employees
Ther information raguired undor Section 197(12) of the Gompanies Act,

2013 read with rale 511} of e Companiss [Appointment and
Remuneration of Managerial Parsonnel) Rules, 2014 i given in
Annexure I snd the same forms pait of this repon,

During the financial year 2015-16, no employes, whether employed for
wile of part of the yoar, wag drawing remunaation exceading the
Fimils mentioned under Section 187012) of the Act resd with Rule 5(2)
of the Companigs (Appointment gnd Remunaration of Mananerial
Personnel) Rules, 2014,

Extract of Annual Raturn

As provided under Section 92{3) of the Companies Act, 2013, the
gxtract of annual return s given in Annexure IV in the prescribed Form
MGT-4, whigh [orms par of this repont,

Gorporate Social Responsibitity (GSH)

Your Company has been involved in social initatives for last threo
decades and engaged in vanous activities in the figld of education,
primary healthoare, communities, ecolopgy and envionment ete, It
belisves in long lasting impsct (owards creating a just, eguitable,
humane and sustainable society, In Libesty, CSR initigtives were being
undertaken, loig before the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 and
with the implernentation of new provisions of Section 135 of the
Cormparies Act, 2033, Liberty is committed to further strangthen its
gffort and activitips by demanstrating care for the community through
itz focus on edocation and development of skills, health and wellngss
including treatment for poor, needy & uninsured people, Bnvironment
sustainability inckuding promoting of green initiatives and improvement
of the living conditions of inhalitants and suppor to disaster relief
effons etc. The vadous CSR initiatives undartaken by your Company
during the year undar consideration are as undar:-

1. Promoting Education and Skill development

Liberty has identified  schools and  instilubions  around s
Mant/Offices and made contiibutions/spansorships for providing
grucation 10 childran who can't afford it, 11 has sponsored qualily
education and healthcars, providing of balancad nutrition to under
privileged chitdren tor their holistic development so that thoy can
iead better life and can contribute (o the sociely as responsible
citizens etc. In addition o this, il haes provided free of cost
fonlwear o various school/inslitutions for distribution smongst
the children/students who can'l afford i,

2. Promoting Preventive and other Health Cara

Libarty has provided fren of cost/ concessional medical gids and
1gsting facilties 10 the poor and needy people by making its
suitahle contribution 1o Hospital elo.at Ksmal,

3. Rural Rovelopmont
With due permission of State Govermment Liberly has adepted
village/rrat areas in Kamal for their development and uplifting the
lite of the villagers residing thore by fltilting the necessary and
pasential requirements of survival including providing of working
ronditions and opportunities for gainful, employment of women
and skiff developmenl. |t has also contribuled in the Karnal Vikas
Nidhi Scherre initiated by State Government for the develupment
af Kamal and its rural areas and villeges tike “to undertake sl work
related 1o improvermant of socicty, promotion of communal and
societal harmony and brothethood, to create awareness and
addrassing social evils, promotion and progress of agliculiuie and
animial hustandry, promotion of small scale industies, o take up




s

programs in which seience and technolegy have major mlo,
mirimizing wiemployment among youth of wenaker section of
S0CIBLY, WOMEN Brmpowe mem elc."”

4. Promoting of Sports
Liberty haos made contribution 1o registered Spons Assockiions at
Karngl which provides trzining 1o youth/young athletes of Haryara
to prepare ang make them ready to panicipate in Naticnat Gameas/
{Olympics.

5 Envirgpmental sustainabifity

Liberly 5 ensuong enviconmental sustainability, conservalion of
natueal resources, ammal wellse and maintaining of quality of
soit, air and water though pantation and installation of solit
plants & our Pams/ Offices, Besides this the Company has also
donated free of cost footwear to World Wild life Fund (WWF) for
the pratection of wild animals in India.

6 Dther CSR activities and initiatives:
Liberty has contiibuted for the promuotion of refigious sclivities by
contributing  te ternplesfPoojasvarious  registered  Kalvankar
Sabhas and societios and also contibuted te the Association
incorporated with the objective of development of trade to which
your Company belongs.
{uring the yoar under consideration the Gamypany has complisd with
the provisions of Companies Act, 2013 by making the required
contribution on the activities as stated in Schedute VI of the Act. The
annual raport on Corporate Social Responssility acuvities as required
under Sections 134 and Section 135 of the Companies Act, 2013 read
with Rula § of the Companies (Corporate Socil Responsibiity Policy)
Rudes, 2014 and Rule 9 of the Companias (Accourts) Ruleg, 2014 is
provided in Annexure V of this report. The policy is also available on the
website uf the Company al wwwilibertyshoss.com.

Disclosure undor tha Sexval harassmemt of Woman at
Workplace (Frevention, Prohthition and Redrassal} Act, 2013

Your Gompany has always believed in providing a see and harassmant
free workplacn for every individual working in Liberty's premises
through various intervenlions and practices. The Company always
pndeavors Lo create and provide an environment that is free from
discrimination and harassment including sexual harassment,

The Company has in plece a robust policy on pievention of sexual
harassment at workplace, The policy ams at prevention of harassment
of employees as well as contractors and lays down the guwdelines for
identification, reporting and prevention of sexual fsasstment, There is
an [steral Gomplaints Committes which is responsible for redrassal of
complaints refated to sexual harassmant and follows the guidelings
provided in the policy. Tho said Committer has its presence at
corporate office as well as at plants.

[uring the year onded 315t March, 2016 the Commitice did not
receive any complaint periaining to sexual harassment.

Corporate Governanes and Ethics

Your Cornpany befevas in adopting bast practices of corporite
governance. Corporale Governance principles are enshrined in the
spirit of Libery, whick form the core values of Liberly. These guiding
principles are atso articulatad through the Company's Code of Conduct,
Corporate Governange guidefines, Charter of various Sub-Gommittees
and disclosure policy.

As par requlation 34 of the Listing Regulations, & separate section on
colporate govirnance practices followed by your Company, together
with a certificate from Stawtory Auditors MYs Pardeep Tayal B Go,
Chartered Accountants, on comphince with corpirale povemance
norms under the Listing Reguiations, is given sl page no, 3910 page no,
b7 of this Annua! repont.

Management Discussion and Analysis Report

In terms of Regulation 34 of the Listing Regulations, the Management
Discussion ard Analysis report on your Company's pefonmance,
industry trends and other matenal changes with respect to your
Company and its wholly owned sobsidiary, wherever applicable, are
presented al page no. BY 1o page no, 61 of this Ammual report. The
Managermen Disclosure and Anadysis Reporl provides a consolidated
prospective of aconomic, social and environmental aspecls maleral to
our sirmlegy and our abilty to creale and sustain value to our key
stakeholdars,

Consarvation of Enargy and Tachnology Absorption and Foreign
Exchanga Earnings and outgo.

Infairnation in ascordance with the provisions of Section 134 (1) () of
he Compinios Acl, 2013 read wish Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014
in relation to conservation of Energy and Tachnology Absortion and
Foreign Exchange Esmings and Oulgo is given in the “Annexur: VI7,
which forms parl of this report.

Gutstanding Share Capital and its Listing:

Your Compsny has ounstanding Share Capitab of %17,04,00,000/
(Mravings Year T17,04,00,000/4) consisting of 1,700,000 (Previous
Year 1,70,40,000) Equity Shares of $10/- each and these Equity Shares
are presently fisted and avsilable (or trading 81 Nationat Stock Exchangn
of Indiz Lid, (NSE) and BSE Ltd, (BSE).

Acknowledgments and Appreciation:

Your Nirgclors take this opporiunity 10 place on racord their gincers
appreciation for the consistent cooperation and suppor received
from the sharcholders, Bankers, Channe! Partrers and the Govarnment
Authoritios,

Your Directors also place on record their deep appreciation to thae
amplovees at all levels for heir hard work and dedication.

For and an hahalf of the
Board of Diractors

Adesh Kumar Gupta
Chaitman of the Meeting
DIN: 00143192

Place: Gurugram, Hatyana
Dated: Manday, 36" May, 2016




Annexure-l to Directors' Report

Statement containing the salient Jeatures of the financial statements of subsidiaries/associate companies/joint ventures,
[Pursuant to first proviso to sub-section (3) of Section 129 of the Companies Act, 2013, read with Rule 5 of the Companies

{Accounts) Rules, 2014-A0C-1)

(Armount in ¥ except % of shareholding)

1 Mame of the Subsidiary Company

|iberty Foot Fashion Middie East, FZE®

2 Firanciat period ended 315t March, 2016
3 feporting Currency/ Exchange rale o 1 AED =« R3.18.02
4 Share capital 1,80,20,000
2 Share Application Money 2.17,39,556
6 hesoves® Supis | {B0,63,968)
7

B Total Liabililies 4,36,10,238
4 esmens 1

10 Turngver* .

1 Prafit (Loss) betare taxation {15,21,060)
12| Povision for taxation o

Profil (Loss) after taxation

Proposed Dividend

15 % of sharcholding

*The Whally owned subsidiary Company has not commenced its operations,

PMace: Guragram, Haryana
Dated; Monday, 30" May, 2016

100

For and on behall of the
Board of Diregtors

Adash Kumar Gupta
Chairman of the Meeting
DIN: 00143182
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Annexure-H to Birectors’ Report
Nomination and Remuneration Policy

DRJECTIVE AND GUIDING PRINGIPLES

Thi objective of Liberty Shoes Limited's {the Company) temuneration

pokicy is 10 ensure that;

+  the level and compositian of remunérstion is reasonable to atuac,
motivate and retain qualified and expert individuals that the
Company needs in order to achieve its strategic and operational
objectives;

«  the relationship of remungiation to perfonnance s clear and
mects appropiate performance benchmark; and

& the remuneration to Direclors, Key Managensl Personnel (KMP)
and Senior Management Personne! (SMP) and other employees
involves a balance belween fixed and incenlive pay and slso
teflects the shorl and long term performance  objectives
appropriate 1o the weking of the Company 2nd ity goals.,

+« lhe Company has a compensation mix of fixed pay, hensfits,
allowances, perguisites, performance linked  incentives  and
ietirement benefits for s Executive Directors, KME SMIT and
other Employees,

+» the remuneration and payment of advancosdoans 1o the
amployees other than Directors/KMPs/SMPs,

THE NOMINATION AND REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

In terms of Section 178 of the Companies Act, 2013 and tules made

thete undes, i fisted Company is requited 1o constittie a Nomination &

Ramunaration Committes which is responsible for formulating a policy

felaled 10 the remuneration for the ditectorn, key manapelisl personnel

and other emptoyees and recommand the same 1o the Board Tor their
approval and making (he necessary amendments o he above policy
from ime 1o time,

DEFINITIONS

+  "Board” masns Board of Directoss of the Campany,

+  “Gompany” meang “Libgrly Shoes Bimited,”

«  C“Bmployess' Stock Option” means the oplion given to the
dirgetors, officers or amployess of o Company o of its bolding
Compary or subsifiary Company or Comparies, i any, which
gives such dicectors, officers or employees, the benefil or tight to
purchase, or to sulscribe for, the shares of Uw Company 4l a
futurg date o1 a pre-tetenmined prics,

«  Clndependent Director” means 8 director referred to in Section
144 (6) of the Companies Act, 2013,

¢+ "Key Managerial Personnel” (KMP} means
i) Chigt Exgoutive Oficer or the Managing Director or the

Manager,
it} Company Secratary,
(i) Whole-tme Director,
(iv) Chigf Financiat Officer; and
(vi Such other officer as may e prescribed,

+  "Nomination and Remuneration Committee”  shall mean a
Comenittes of Board of Directors of the Company, constituted in
accordance with the provisions of Section 178 of the Cormpanies
Act, 2013 and the Listing Agresnant,

«  "Policy o This Policy™ means, "Nomination and Semuneration
Palicy.”

+  "Remuneration” means #ny money or s eguivalent given or

pissed to any parsen Tor services renderad by birm aned ingludes
ponguisites as detingd under the Income-tix Act, 1963,

+  “Beniot Management Personnel” (SMP means personmel of the
Carnpany who are memhers of 15 core management 1esm
extluding Board of Direciors, This would include all members of
management one level below the exacotive dirgctons, including all
1ise functional heads,

+  “Other Employees” means Empleyee of the Company other than
Nirectors/KMP/SMP

INTERPRETATION

Terms that have not been defined in Wis Policy shiall heve the same

meaning assigned W themn in the Compsnies Act, 2013, Listing

Agreement and/or any other BEBI Regulations) as amended from fime

to e,

ROLE OF THE COMMITTEE

Thie role of the Committea inter ala will be the following:

al To formalate a criters Tor determining qualifications, posilive
atlribules and indapendenc of & Dirgcton

b} Formulale critena for evaluation of Independent Directors and the
Board.

¢]  identify persons who are gualified 1o become Directors and who
mzy be appointed in Senior Management i1 accordance with the
criltéria laid down in this policy.

) o cary ou evalugtion of every Director's/KMIs prrformanca,

g To recammand to the Boasd the appointment and remaval of
Cirectors &nd Senior Management,

fi To recommend to the Board policy ielating o remuneration
for Directors, Key Managerial Persornel, Senior Management
Personnel and other Tmployees of the Cormpany.

p)  Ensure that level and composition of rersuneration is reasonable
and suffisent, relationship of remuneration 1o performance is claar
and meets appropriate performance benchmarks,

h) o dovise a policy on Board diversity.

il o carry out any ather function as is mandated by the Bosrd from
time to time and / or enforcad by apy statutary notification,
amendrment or modificatin, as may be applicahle,

it To peforr such other functions ag may be necessary or
appropriate for the parformance of 18 duties,

K)  To define the Policy and criteris for payment of advanges/ inans
to Directors/ KMPs/SMPs/ other employees.

MEMBERSHIP

#)  The Commitlee shall comprise at least thee {3) Directors, all of
whom sholl be non-executive Dectars and at lesst ball shall be
Independent,

b)  The Boatd shall reconstitute the Commillge as and when
required to comply with the provisions of the Companies Act,
2013 and applicable statutory requitament,

¢} Minmum two {2) members shall constitule a quorum for the
Committee meeling.

d)  Membership of the Commitiee shall be disclosed in tho Annyat
Repart.

gp  lerm of the Committes shall be continued unless terminated
by thi Board of Diroctors.




CHAIRMAN

A, Chairman of the Committee shall be an Independent Directar.

B Chairperson of the Gompeny may be appointed as & member
of the Committea but shall not Chair the Committes.

L. Inthe absence of the Chaitman, the members of the Sommittee
present al 1he meating shalf choose ohe amongst tham o acl as
Chairman,

D, Clrainman of the Nomination end Remuneration Conmmities could
be prasent i the Annual General Meeting or may nominate some
olher member Lo answer the shareholders' quenes,

FREQUENCY OF MEETINGS

The maeting of the Committes shalf be held st such reqular intervals as

may he required.

COMMITTEE MEMBERS' INTERESTS

A A member of the Commiltes is net entitled to be prasent when
hig o her own semunerstion is discussed at a moeoting o when
hig or har performance is being evaluated,

B, The Commiltee may invile such executives, a8 it cansiders
appropriate, 10 be present al the meetings of the Gommintes,

VOTING

a)  Malters ansing for deterranztion al Cormmillee meetings shall e
decided by a majorily of voles of Members prasent and voling and
any such decision shalf for all purposes be deemed & decision of
the Commitles,

b)  Inthe case of equality of votes, the Chairman of the meeting will
have a casting vole.

Divorsity

The Company recagnizes and embraces the benefits of having & diverse

Board, and sees ingreasing diversity ot Board level as an essential

glement in maintaining @ competitive advantage A taly diverse Board

will include and make good use of differences in the skills, regional and
industry experience, background, race, gender and other distinctions
among Oirectors. Tho Committes will periodically review board diversity
to lring in expertise and experience n diverse argas and disciplines

w improve the standards of corporate povernance, dansparency,

operatinnal efficiency ard risk maragement. All Board appointmenls

arg made on merit, in the pontext of the skills, experence,

independence and knowledge which the Board as a whole requites 1o

bo ettective, The Committae wilf discuss sucression planning and board

diversity at the time of rominating Directors. |t will be the Committee's
anrdeavor te have Board members from diverse backgraunds/disciplines
inchuding the following:

«  Arcounting;

Corporate Finance,

Legal;

Corporate laws;

[nformation Techmology

Business Strateyy;

Engingering;

Adminigtration;

And any other background/discipline as deemed necessary by the

Commitiza.

APFOINTMENT AND REMOVAL OF fHRECTOR, KMP AND

SENIOR MANAGEMENT PERSONNEL

v Appointrent critena and qualifications:

L I )

ERTY,

i

1.. The Committes shall identify and ascertain the integrity,
gualification, expertise and experience of the person for
appointment as Oirecter, KMP or gt Senicr Management evel
anid recommend 1o the Soard bis / her appantment.

20 A peison showld possess adequate qualification, oxpertise
and experienee for tho position he / she is considered (or
appointment. The Commitiee has discrelion 1o deeide
whether qualificaton, expenise end expetience possessed by
a person are sufficient / satsfactory for the concemed
position.

3. The Company shall not appoint or continue the employment
of any person as Managing DirectorAWhole-time Director/
Manager whe has allained the age of seventy vyears,
provided {hat the tetm of the person holding this position: may
he extended beyond lhe age of seventy years wilh Lhg
approval of shareholders by passing & spoecial resolution
based on e explanatory statemant anngxetd to the notice
for such metion indicating the justificarion for extension of
appuirtment boyond soventy years,

Term / Tenure:

1. Managing Director/Whole-time  Director/Manager
(Managesial Persan);

«  The Corpany shall apphint or re-appoint any person as it
Mangagetial Parson for a term nat exceeding five years at a
timn. No re-appointmerd shall be made earlier (hian one year
hefare the expiry of 1erm.

7. Indepandent Dirgctor:

+  An Independent Director shall hold office for a tanm up to five
consecutive years an the Board of the Company and will be
eligil#e for 1 appointmant on passing of & special msnkution
[y the Company and disclosure of such appointment in the
Board's report,

«  Noindependent Director shali hold office for mara than two
congepive tarms, tut such indepondert Director shall ha
gligibde: Tov appointment after expiry of thiee years of coasing
to hecome an Independent Direclor. Provided that an
Independent Director shall not, during the ssid period of three
years, be appointed in or be associsted with the Company in
any other capacily, aither divectly of inditectly, Mowever, if a
porson who has aleady served as an Indepandent Director
for B years or more in the Company a3 on 1 October, 2014 o
such other date as may he determined by the Committes as
per reguatory requirement, he / she shall be eligible for
appointment for one more term of b yaars anly.

v At the time of appaintment of Indepsndent Directar, it should
fie ensured that number of Boards on which such
Indapandem Direntor serves, is restricted 10 soven listed
companies as an Independent Director and three histed
companies 8s an Independent Divector in case sueh person is
serving as 4 Whaole-tima Ditactor of a fistad company,

Evatugtion:

The Committes shall carry out evaluation of performance of every

Director, KM and Senior Management at ragular intarval {yearly),

Rermoval:

Due to reasons for any disgualification mentioned i the

Comnpanies Act, 2013, rules made thers ender or under any ot hat




applicalde Act, rules and regulations, the Committee may
recommend, to the Bosrd with ressons recorded in writing,
removal of o Director, KMP or Senior Manggemant sabject o the
provisions and compliance of the said Act, iles and regelations.
Retiretrient:

Tre Director, KMP and Senior Management shill retire a5 per the
anplicable  provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 and the
pravafing policy of the Company. The Board will have the
dizcretion to ietain the Direstor, KME Senior Managernent in U
same position / rerounetation of otherwise cvan after attaining tho
retirementt age, for the benefit of the Gormpany.

PROVISIONS RELATING TO REMUNERATION OF MANAGERIAL
PERSON, KMP AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT

General:

1. The emuneration / compensalion / commission ele, 1o
Managerial Person, KMP and Senior Management Personng]
will be determingd by the Committee and recommended 1o
the Buard for appoval, The remuneration / compengation /
commission gle, shall b subjeet to the prior/post approval of
the shareholders of the Company and Gentral Government,
wheraver taquined,

2. The remuneration and commission 1o be paid 1o Managurial
Parsor shall be as par tho statutory provisions of the
Companies Act, 2013, and the rules made theve under for the
fime being in force,

3 Inoements to the axisling remuneration [/ compensation
stucture may be rocommended by tho Committee to the
Board which should be within the slabs approved by the
Sharehaldars in the case of Managarl Person, Increments
will be effective from the date of re-appointment in respect of
Managerial Person and 15t April in respect of other KM and
Senior Management of the Company.

4. Whene any insuiance is 1aken by the Company on behal! of its
Managerial Person, €MP and any other employees for
indesmnifying them againgt any liability, the premiura paid on
such insurance shall ant be treated a5 part of the
temunetalion payable Lo any such personnel, Provided that if
such person is praved 10 be guilty, this premium paid on such
insurance shalt be treated as parl of the remunezation,

Remuneration to Managorial Person, KMP and Senior

Manapemant:

1. Fixad pay;

Managenal Person, KMP and Senior Managenmsnt shall he
nligibln for & monthly remuneration a5 may be approved by
the Board on the recommendalion of the Committeg in
aecordance with the statutory provisions of the Companies
Act, 2013, and the rules made there under for the tmy being
in force, The break-up of the pay scale and guantum of
perquisites including, employer's contribution to PR pension
seheme, medical expenses, club Tees etc. shall be decided
and approved by the Board on ke recommendation of the
Commitler and approved by the shareholders and Central
Government, wharaver reguired.

2. Mirimun Bemuneration:

If, in any financial vear, the Company has no profits or its
profits are inadequate, the Compary shall pay remuneration
to its Managarial Person in accordanco with the provisions of

Schedule V of the Companies Act, 2013 and if it is not able to
cormply with such povigions, with the prion approval of the
Cential Governiment,

3. Frovisions Tor excess remuneration;
If any Managenal Person draws or receives, directly o
indireclly by way of remuneration any such sums in gxcess o
the limits preseibed under the Companins Act, 2013 or
without the prior sanction of the Gentral Government, wherg
raquired, he / she shall 1efund such sums to the Company and
until such suim is refunded, hald i in trust Tor the Company,
The Company shaf not waive recovery of such sum
refuridable to it unless permitied by the Central Government,
+« Hemuneration to Non-Executive / indepandent Director:
1. Rernuneration / Comrisgion:
The temuneraticn / cormmigsion shall b in accordance with
the statutory provisions of the Sompanies Act, 2013, and the
tules made there under for the tine bamg in force.
2. Gitting Fons:
Thie Non- Cxaculive / Independant [irector may receive
jemunaration by way of fees for attending meetings of Board
or Committee thereof. Provided that the amount of such fees
sha mot exceed the maximur amount as provided in the
Companins  Aci, 2013, per mogting of the Hoard or
Committee or such amourd as may be prescrbed by the
Central Government Ttom fime to tinme,
3. Limit of Remuneration /Qommigsion;
Remuneration Lomrmssion may be paid within the monetary
limit approved by shareholders, subjeet o the limil not
excesding 1% of U net profits of e Company computed as
prr this applicable provisions of the Companies Act, 2013,
4, Stock Options;
An Independent Director shall nol be entitled 1o any slock
option of the Company.
»  REMUNERATION TO OTHER EMPLOYEES
The ARemynerstion ncluding joans  and  advances to  other
eroplovess will be degided as per remuneration policy of the
Company,
MINUTES OF COMMITTEE MEETING
Proceedings of all meetings must be mingted and signed by the
Chairman of the said mesting o 1he Chairvan of the next succeading
meseting. Minwtes of the Committor mosting wift be tabled ot the
subsaguert Board and Committes meeting,
DEVIATIONS FROM THIS POLICY
Deviations on elements of this policy in extraordinary Gircumstancss,
when desmed necessary in the imerests of the Company, will be made
it thara are spaciic reasons to do so in an individual case.

For and on behalf of the
Board of Ditecttrs

Adosh Kumar Gupta
Chairman of the Meeting
DIN: 00143192

Place: Gurugram, Haryana
Dated: Monday, 30" May, 2016
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Annexure-ll to Directors’ Report

Particulars of smployees

Information as por Soction 197 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with nide 5(1) of Companies (Appointment and Hemuneration of
Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014

a)  The ratio of the remuneration of oach director to the median remunoeation of the employees of the Company for the finencial

your:
Exacutive Directors Ratio to modian Remuneration
Sh. Adesh Kumar Gupta 48,69

Sh, Adarsh Gepta -

Sh. Sharomi Banzal 49.69

&h. Sunit Bangat 44.64

Sh. Adrash Kumar Gupli 19,69

Sh. Aghok Kumar 13.66

*Sh. Adarsh Gupta has not drawn cemunceation doring the financiol vear 2015-16. jup to the date of resignation Le, 18" August, 2015)

Non- Executive Directors: No remunasation has hren paid to the None Executive directorns, except payment of sitling fee for attending the Boa:d

Meating or Cormmittes thersol,

b) The percentage increase in remuneration of each Director, Chief Executive Officar, Chiof Financial Officar, Company Secratary in
the financial yoar;

Diractors, Chiaf Exacutiva officer, Chief Financial Officer and % increase in remuneration
Cnmpanv Sm:rmary in the Financial year (%)
th Arjﬁsh Kum i {Jupla (,i_l) f] Lxmmmvn Duecmr I NIt
MSh Ad.:lr';h Fljp l:xncmwa Ijun{;tnr T MIL**
w‘:h Shamml Barfélal lKPl"UtNU Dlmrrm NIL
She Sunri Hnnqﬂi anruuvp Uirgetor ML
'.“:h Adamh Kumnr huph i:xarunvn l)lractor NIL
bh A"hnk Kumaf Exvﬁmvn lJmH"*}mr NA
% Munmh Kakrd [‘HJ itlnmpmw ‘:.urmtasy NIL

" wirs appointed as Feculive fllrr-‘(‘{ur wal 1" .Juna .J{J‘hcm(f worked pat of thi fnangiad year 2015-16, therefore increase is noat reported .
* “Sh. Artarsh Gupto has not cswn temunaration during the financial vear 2015-16. (up to the date of resignstion i.e. 18" August, 2015)

¢} The percentage increase in the madian remungration of gmployees in the financial year : 15%
d} The nhumber of permmanent employees on the rolls of the Company : 2355
8} Tha explanation on the relationship betwean average increase in remunaration and Company Performance:

On an average, employess received an annual increase of B% in the Company. The indwvidual increments varied from 8% to 15%, based on
indivigual performanca, In order 1 ensura that emeneration toflects Company perfarmance, the performance pay is also finked to organization
performance, apart from an Individual perormanca,

1)  Comparison of the remuneration of the Key Managerial personnel apainst the performance of the Company!

Aggr.éqme remuneration of Key Managerial | 236.00
personnels (KMPs) in financial year 2016 {F in Lakh)

 Revenun (€ in Lakh) 47, 065.096
Remuneration of KMPs ( &5 3 % of revenus) 0.50
Profit befora Tax {FBT) (T In Lakh) 1.4 i!i 21
Remuneration of KMPs {as a % of FBT) 19 Db
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b

i

g} Variations in the market capitalization of the Company, price sarmings ratio as st the closing date of the current financial year
and pravious financial yoar:
Particulars March 3%, 2016 | March 31, 2015 % Change
Market Capitalization (T in Lakh) 74,358,608 4717400 [4??4)
frige Eaming Ratio (FE Ratio} 23.86 2473

(3.52)

h} Porcontagn incroase over decrease in the market guntations of the shares of tha Company comparison to the rate at which the
Company came out with the last public offer:

Particulars March 31, 2016 August 9, 1994 (IPD) July 18, 2005 {IPO}* % Change
Market Price (BSE) 142,00 99,00 4950 108,78
Market Frice (NSE) 1472.95 99,00 49450 18078

* Adjusted for 17 bonus issue in 2005

T

i) Average percentils increase slready made in the salaries of employses other than the managorial povsonnel in the kst financial
yoar and its comparison with the percentile increass in the managerial remunerstion and justification thereof and point out il thera
any oxcoptional circumstances Tor increaso in the managorial remunaration:

The avetsge Annual increase was around 8%, Howesvel, duting the course of the year, the 1otal increnss is approximately 3%, after aecounting for
promations and other gvent based compensation revisions,
There was no increase in the managadzl remuneration for the clrment year in comparison 1o the last year.
jt  Cemparison of each remuneration of the key manggerial personngl against the performance of the Company:

Particulars Sh, Adesh Kumar | Sh, Adarsh | Sh, Shammi | 5h, Sunil Sh, Adeesh | Sh, Ashok | 5h, Munish
Gupta, Gupta, Bansal Bansal Kumar Gupta |  Kumar Kakra
CEQ & Expoutive Exanutive Euerutive [xecutive Executive Executive CrFO &
Birector Director Director Director Direcior Director* Compsny
Secrelary
Remunerationin Y 16 4800 48.00 48.00 48.00 11.00 33.00
{7 In Lakhy
Revenue (T in Lakh) 47,065,086
[fermuneration as % of revenup 0,10 l - 0.0 | 0.0 I 010 I 0.02 l .07
Profit before Tax (PET) 1,238.20
(@indaky 4
Remuneration as % of PRT 3.88 | . 388 | a8 | 3 | 0B | 28

*5h, Aduigh Gupta has noi rawn remuneradion during the Ty, 2015-16, (up ta the date of cagignation iLa. 18" August, 201%)
**He was appointed as Executive Director wee.f. 17 June, 2015,

k

The Key paramoters for any variable componont of romunoration availod by the directors:

During fiscal 2016, ro director of the Company has received remuneration with variable component.

I}  Tha ratip of the remuneration of the highest pald director to that of the amployoss who ara not directors but rocoiva remuneration
in axcess of the highest paid director during the year:

During fiscal 2016, no employee of the GCompany has received remunaration in excess af the highest - paid disettor.

m)

Affirmation that the remuneration is as per tha remuneration policy of the Company:

The Goreany sffirms that remuneration is as per the remuneration palicy of thi Company,

Place: Gurugram, Haryana
Dated: Monday, 30" May, 2016

For and on behalf of the
Board of Directors

Adesh Kumar Gupta
Chairman of the Maeting
DiN: 143182



Annexure- IV te Directors’ Report

Form Ne. MGT-9
EXTRACT OF ANNUAL RETURN
as on the financial year ended on March 31, 2016

[Pursuant to Section 92 (3) of the Campanies Act, 2013 and rule 12 {1} of the Companies
{(Management and Administration} Rules, 2014}

1. REGISTRATION AND OTHER DETAILS:

i. GIN: ‘ d £19201HR1986PLCD33 &5

il | Rogistration Daty: Sepramber 3, 1986

i, | Name of the Company: Liberty Shoes Limied

iv. | Category/Sub Category of tha Company: Cornpany Limited by shares/ndian Non-Government Company

v. | Address of the Repistered office and Libertypuram, 13th Mitestons, 3.1, Karnal Road, Kutail, PG, Bastara,
contact details: Distt, Karnal-132114, Haryana

Tel.: (91)-1748-251101-03.

Fax: (91)-1748-251100

E-mail; [pm@itiberyshoss.com
Wabsite: www libertyshoes.com

vi. | Whather fisted Company: Yos
vii. | Name, Address and contact detatls of Link Intime India Pvt. Ltd,
Registrar and Transfer Agent, if any 44, Community Centre, Naraina Industrial Area Phase-l,

New Delhi-110028

Tel: (91)-11-41410592-04,
Fax: (97)-11-41410591

E-mail: delhigdlinktime.codn
Website: www linkintima.co.in

i, PRINCIPAL BUSINESS ACTIVITIES OF THE COMPANY

(AR} the business activities contributing 0% or more of the 1otal turnovar of the Company shall ba stated)

Sr. | Namu and Description of main NIG Code of the Pmduct/sarvicas‘ ' % of total turnover of
No. | products/serviess tha Company
1 Manufacturing and Trading of Footwear 2510 100
and Footwear Accessories

HI, PARTICULARS OF HOLDING, SUBSIDIARY AND ASSOCIATE COMPANIES

5 | Name and Address of the Gompany CIN/GLN Holding/Subsidiary/ % of shares hald Applicable Soction
No. Associate
1§ Liberty Fool Fashion Middhe East Mot Applicatie Subsidiary 100 2(87)
FZF. R0, Box 505453, Qubai, UAE
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IV. SHAREHOLDING PATTERN lE(lUlTY SHAHE CAPITAL BREAKUP AS PERCENTAGE OF TDTAL EQUITVJ

I Citngory-wise Shave Hul(jrnu
Gotegory of Shasreholdets

N, of Shares beld at the beguimng of 1he year
La. 01.04.201%

No, sf Siares hulid a1 thes o of the yaa
i 31 (H ?{Hh

% chanige
digring
U yuinr

Demat | Physical Total % of Total Demat | Physical Total | % of Total
Shares Shaes
A. | Pramnters
9, | individuals/Hindw Undivided Fansly HhUG3 BI3G0 | GHEYY0 JRG6Y | BaBAzED 83360 | 60478249 g {318
b, | Central Government/State Govornmentis) . . . . . . . . -
. | Boding Corporate 4472517 4472817 26,25 | 4472517 4472517 26.25
d. ] Fiancil Jstitutioss/ Banks - - - - - - -
¢ | Dthers - - -
Sub-Total (A} {1) 10436786 {518}
& Forgipgn
a4 individuzals {Noa-Resident Individuals/ -
Fonsiggn Inclivieduals
b | Bodios Corporate - - - - -
¢ | Institutions -
d. | Chasiified Foraign Jnvestor
6. | Ohars -
Sub-Total (A} {2) X . . . . . X N .
“Tota! Shareholding of Promoter and 16579147 | 83360 |11062507 |  64.92 [10436786 |  £3360 10520046 | 6114 | (3.18)
Promoter Group (A)
B. } Public Shershplding
1§ Institutions
d | Mutual Fundgs/UTI . . B . . . . . .
b. 1 Financial Institutions/ Bunks 12644 700 13544 0.08 10304 700 11008 0.06 0.02}
c. § Cenlral Govemmant/Stale Govermnmanl {x) . - - - - - - - .
d. | Venture Capital Funds - -
& | Insurance Companies - - - -
{. | Forsign Instinational hvestors 21000 21000 012 012
.| Forign Vit Capital lnvestors - - - - -
| Quaktied Foreigr Investol
i, | Fursign Portiolic Investors (Corporate)
i | Any Other {spacily) - - - - .
Sub-Total {B) (1) 3844 “yaban | D20 | ngs | f0.id)
7| Non-Institutions
. | Bodies Corporate 830085 2700 513285 4,77 526843 2100 531543 312 {1.65)
b | individuals
i | Individual Sharaholders holding aominal
share capital upto T2 Lakh 20042781 D328 | 247016 AR | 27817 2108 | 2994325 17457 #.09
it | Indwidust Shareholdors holding nominal
sharc capital in excess of £2 Lakh 2605908 24180 | 2630089 1h43 | 1146426 1746426 10.2% {5.18)
. | Qualitied Foreign Investar : : . . : . . .
o | Any Othar {spociy)
i | Trusts A0 4()[)
i, | Foraign Companics . - . . . -
i, } Charing MembgrsAGlesing Houses 126567 1265 B? 0.74 116457 116457 0.68 (0.06)
iv, | HMindu Undiidizd Fanaligs - - - el 4167 a.81 581
v, | Non-Rosident indians {Non Repat) 4252 200 'mrmz {44 6834 200 Br03d 0.349 (0,04)
Non-Regident indians(Repat) . . . G2495 (2435
vi. | Diractors and thain jelativis (i) - Bo0 - - - - . .
 Sub-Total (B) {2) 5712631 | 230318 | 5342049 34.88 | 6283338 | 215508 | G50BBAG 38,20 3,32
Total Public Shareholding {8)=(B){1) + (B) {2) | 5746475 | 231018 | 59Y7493 35.08 | 6303646 | 216208 | 6519854 3826 | 4.8
Total (A} + (B) 16725627 | 314378 (17040000 $00.00 16740432 | 299568 |1 7040000 160001 -
C. | Sharas hold by Custodians and apainst
which Depository Rocaipts have
betn tssund " " » 4 u u " » -
GRAND TOTAL (A} +(8}+(E) 16725622 | 314378 17040000 06,06 16240432 | 2958568 17040000 1060.00 000
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i. | Shereholding of Promoters |

&r. | Shareholder's Name Sharoholding at the beginning Shamhuldlﬁg atthoand - % change B
No, of the year 01.04.2015 of the yaar 31.03.2016 in tha
Mo, of Y% ol tatal | % of Sli'almfclis 1 No.of % of total | % of Shares sha;nhluldmn
Sharns Sharas of Pladgad/ Sharns Shares of Plodged/ h"""u
the Company | encumbered the Gompany | encumbered the year
to total to totai
shares thares

1 3h, SHAMMI BANSAL 260640 1.41 - ?55{‘40 1.62 - 0.4

7 Sl KAMLAWATI 13600 .08 - 13600 0.08

3| Sh ANMOL GURTA 677500 397 - 3% 0.01 - (3,96}
4 | Sh, PRANAV GLIFTA 242810 1.43 - 24910 1.43

5 | Sh, ARPAN GUITA 480000 287 - ABOODG . ?:,HZ

6 | ShOINESH KUMAR GURTA 72400 G427 - 72400 0.42

7| Smi, REHTIDEV B3360 A4 - B3460 .49 - -
B | ABFESH KUMAR GURTA (KARTA) GH00N 3.87 - GRODO0 387 . -
9 | Sh ADEESH KUMAR GUPTA 150360 .88 - 183360 1.1 . 0.23
10 | 3h, AKSHAT GLPTA 1650 147 - 21660 1.42 . -
11 [ DINESH KUMAR GLIPTA {RARTA) 640000 3 - 40000 3.76 . .
12 { ADDCSH KUMAR CUI"T/\ [KARTA} BAGGOD 398 - [ a0] .99 . .
13 b:ll ADE‘)H KUMAR 3LPTA "I"\UU() 056 - 95000 0.56

14 Sh ADARSIH GURTA 1 1000 0.08 u 11000 0.06

15 | &h, SUNIL BANSAL 213640 1,25 . 232640 1.37 . D1
16 | Sh. RAMAN BANSAL 213640 1.25 v 232640 1.37 . D11
17 1 Sh. VIVEK BANSAL 214540 1,26 - 233640 1.37 “ D.11
18 | Sh. ANUPAM BANSAL AHAGAL 270 . 478640 2.8 . 0.11
18 Sh AYUSH EANSAi 00000 1,76 - 300000 1.76 . -
20 | 5h. MANAN BANSAL 150000 (.88 . 150000 0.88
il Sh. RJLKIT BANSAL 300000 1,76 . 300000 1.76 . -
22 | Sh. VAIBHAY BANSAL 150000 f1.H8 . 150000 0.B8 v B
23 | 8h. RUGIIR BANSAL 300000 1.76 . 300000 1.76
24 1 MY/s GEDFIN INVESTMENTS 4472517 26,25 . A43 7 26,75

PVIL LTI,

Total 11062507 64.02 - 10520146 61,74 “ (3.14)




fii, Chango in Promotors' Sharehobding (please specify, if thavo 1s no change)

Sr. No | Sharehoider's Name Shareholding at the heginning Cumulative Shareholding
of tho year 01.04.2015 during the yaar 31.63.2016
o No ' % of total ghares Neo. % of total shares
of Shares of tha Gomps: of Sharues of the Company
$h. Shammi Bansal
1 Al the buginning ol the e 740640 1.41 0640 141
2 | Opon Mokl Puichascon 22072015 | 19000 011 259640 e
3 At the end of the year R 260640 1.52
8h. Adeash Kumar Gupta
1 A b begioning of the year 160360 Qog 150360 0.066
7 Gipen Market Furchase an 22.07.2015 35000 023 | 189360 11
3 At the end of the year 180360 .1
G e
1 | A the beginning f 1 yean 713640 125 om0 125
7 Open Market Purchase on 22.07 2015 19600 011 - 232640 137

3 end of the year ?3?()’10 137
. Raman Bansal .
_____________ 1., ho beginging oftha yam a0 |1 213640 1.28
2 Upen Market Purchase on 22.07.2015 18000 0.13 232640 1.37
3 At the end of the year - 232640 o
Sh, Vivek Bangaf o
1 At the brginning of the year S 14640 1.26 214640 1.26
? (pen Markey Purchiase on 22.07.2015% 18000 0.11 233640 137
K] Al the end of 1he year ‘ 233640 1.37
T _Sh. J?mupam Bangal . I
"1 At the begianing of the year aseEa0 | 2R 450640
? Opan Markel Purchase o 22072015 19000 AL 478640
3 AL the gnd of the yedl ‘ A7BBAC
Sh. Anmn! (mp_m ‘
1 At the beﬂlnnlnnnf the yes 677500 3‘1.’ G77500 SEII
Vi Dpen Mianke Sale on 16,07, 2015 3B500 23 AIR000 175
3 Open Market Sala on 16.07.2015 38500 0.23 600500 152
4 Open Market Sale on 20.07.2015 - 52000 0.31 #8500 3.22
5 | Open Merkel Sale on 72.07.2 R ) 080 2677 242
"6 | Open Markst Sale on 23.07.2005 L (.07 400972 235

7 Open Mivket Sale on 24.07.2015 37000 0.22 3603872 214
vket Sale on 27.07.2015 23000 0.8 340472 2.00

pen Market Sele on 28.07.2015 14472 0.08 326000 1.41

101 Opuen Market Salee on 29,07, 2015 00 .01 324000 1.90
11| Opan Market Saie on 30.07.2015 48600 0,27 277400 163
12 Dpen Marketl Sale on 33.07.2015 127400 N 50000 .88
13 Dpen Market Safs on 03.08.2015 148561 047 1139 0.0
14 Al the end of the year 1139 0.0

*Lxeapt above thire is no change in Prenoters’ shargholding et 01,00, 201516 31.03,2006




Shareholding Pattern of top ten Sharehalders {athor than Diesctors, Promoters and Hedders of GRAs and ADRs):
T e v
No. %ot total shares No, % of total shures
of Shares | of the Gompany | of Shares | of the Company
1| sATISH KUMAR GFTA BE3584 65,0680 soez0? | s0RR
2| HARISH KUMAR GUFTA TANE | 44853 764296 44768
3| 0OLIY KHANNA PR320 16620 270739 1.5888
4 | DHEERAJ GUPTA 178500 30475 171500 10085
§ | AKARSH GUPTA TH0000 | 0.9490 150000 0.8603
G | SHAMBHU KUMAR FODDAR 000 | 0.2347 140000 0.6216
7| KANISHK GUPIA 105000 05162 195000 06162
8 | DINESH KUMAR GUPTA 72400 0.4249 w2600 | 0429
9 SHAMBHU KUMAR BODDAR {1000 {0,380
10 DIGVIJAY COMMERCE AND TRADING VT, 1TD, 8848 {),3454

“The shares of the Company are waded on a daily bagls and heagn the date wise increase/ decrease i sharsholding is sat indicated, Shargholding is
eongolinatad based on Parmancnt Account Number (PAN) of the sharehofder,

v. | Shareholding of Directors and Key Managerial Parsonnal:

CEQ & Executive Director

s, Follo/Bunaficiary Name of the Director/ Data Reason Sharsholding at Cumulativa
No. | Account no. Kay Managarial Personnol the heginning of Sharghalding
the year during the year
01.04.2015 11,03.2016
No.of | % of total| No.of | % of total
Sharas | shares | Shares | shares
of the of the
Company Company
1 IN3I1HT2786542¢ | Sh. Adesh Kumiar Gupta - 01.04.2015 At the beginning 95000 0.56 85000 (.06

of the yeat

F103.2006

At the end of the year 05000 0.58

2| NS BAD1B0D0IGE

Sh. Sharnmi Bangal -
Executive Director

01042015

At the beginning 240640 14 250640 1.52

af tha yeal

759540 | 152

032096 | Atthe end of the year
31 INJOMLI2R1G7207 1 Gh, Sunil Bansal - 01.04.2015 At the beginning 213610 1,45 232640 1.37
Executive Director of the year
NOLIMG | Althe end of the year 232640 137
4 1 INIDVIBI27866ER2 | Sh, Adwosh Kumil Gupta « 01.04.2015 At the beginning 150360 0.68 186360 1.1
Executive Director of the year
31.03.2098 | Atthe end of thy ye 189360 1.1
G| IN301SADT7U62368 | Sh, Adarsh Gupta - 01.04.2015 At the baginning 11000 0.06 NAK MA
Executive Directm” of the year
IROGE0IE | AU wrd of thg it NA® N.A*
G IN3OT313720186971 | Sh. Remesh Chandia Palhan » 01.04.2015 At e heginning 200 0.001 200 0.001
indepentdent Diractor of thi year
fiointly wilh wite) BLOAZ0I6 | ALthe and of the year 200 a.0om

*Resigned from the posiion of Directorship we.( 18,08,.2015.

Nate: Except above, vther Dirpciors/KMPs do oot holf Egoity Shares in thy Conpany




M]NDEBTEDNESS
Indabtednass of the Company including interest outstanding/accrued but not due for payment

Secored Loans | Unsocured Loans]  Deposits Total
excluding Indebtobngss:
daposits
Indebtedness at the buginningﬁlﬁf fhu inang
i Prlnrrpal Amaunt 1335 13,884,891
i Interest due bt not paid | 748 T o 748
B Interest acerued but net due -
Total {4 i -+ i) 13,879.04 13.3% - 13.852;39
Change in indehtedness during the ffnanrlalyem
] Additon 24268 118831 \. 343100
it Reduction 1.030.71 2,782.1 . ‘. '3[31 282
Neat Changa (188.02) 406.20 - {381.82)
Indebledness at 1he closing of the Tinancial year
i | Principal Anount 13,070.11 414,55 - 13,4B4.66
i fntereat due bit not paid .0 - - 0.9
H Intergga‘;’crtled but nat dug . . -
Total (+ii+) 13,081.02 21955 - rastes

VI, REMUNERATION OF DIRECTORS AND KEY MANAGERIAL PERSONNEL

A. | Romungration to Maoaging Director, Whaole-tima Directors and/or Manager: (Per Aanum)
8r. | Particulars of Remuneration Name of MD/WTD/Manager
No. S (% in Lakh)
5h. Adesh Kumar | Sh. Adarsh | Sh, Shanini | Sh, Sunil | Sh. Adessh Sh. Ashok Total
Gupta Gupta® Bansal Bansal | Kumar Gupta Kumar Amount

1 | Grass salaty N
(o) Saslary s par provisions containgd 48,00 18.00 48.00 48,00 48.00 13.20 253.20
# Section 17(1) of the Income Tax

1961
(b} Value of parquisites uis 17(2) of - - - - 8 B
lhe Incnme -Iax ACI' 1951 PPN R PR SRS RS PR Iy Ipp— "
fu) Profits in lieu of setary under . . . . . - -
saction 17(3) of the Inpome Tax
Act, 1861

Z | Stock Option

3| Sweal Louity " . . s

4 Gun\rhissiuu;ﬂg Y% of profit "

& 1 Qthoarg, Allowsnoes " . . “ . R .
Total (A) ) 48.00 48.00 4B.04 48.00 48.00 13.20 253.20
Cailing ag per the Aet (§210% o 156.16
profits calculated under Bection 150
of the Cormpisias Agt, 7014)

" Resigned w.e.d, 181h August, 2016




(% in Lakhy

H Ramuneration te other Directors
Sr. | Particulars of Remuneration Foo for attending board/ Commission Othars, Total
Nao, eotnmittas maatings piease spocifly Amount
t | Independent Ditectors- Sitting Fee 270 E - 270
Total (1) 210 . - 270
# | (thor Non-Exncutive Diroctors - - - -
Total (2} . - - -
Total (B)= {(1+2) 1 . . 270
Tatal Managarial Ramuneration (B) 2.70 - u 270
(eiling as per the Act (G Y% of prafits 15,61
caleulated under Section 198 of the
Companies Act, 2013)

C. | Remunaration ta Koy Managarial Porsonnol {KMP) ollﬂlli;hrwi’lhmn MbD/Manager/ WTD (Per Annum) (% in Lakh)
Sr.No.| Particulars of Remuneration Mame of KMP Total Amount

5h, Munish Kakra,
CFO & Company Secretary

1 | Gross salary

i) Satary ag per provisions contained in Section 1701) of the Income Tax Act, 1963 43.00 3300

{b} Value of perquisites ufs 1712 of the tncome Tax Act, 1961

i) Profitg in i of salary under Section 17(3) of tha Income Tax Act, 1961 - -

? | Btock Option

3 [ Sweal Equity e : | :
0| Commission. 25 % of profit : :
5 | Others, Mlowances : :

. Total Ji.00 33,00

vil, PENALTIES/PUNISHMENT/COMPOUNDING OF OEFENSES:
There were no pengities, punishment or compounding of offances duting th year ended March 32, 2016

For gnd on behalf of the
Board of Directors

Adesh Kumar Gupla
Chairman of the Meeting
DiN: 00143132

Place; Guregram, Haryana
Dated: Monday, 30" May, 2016




Annexure- V to BDirectors' Report
Annual Report on Corporate Social Responsibility (C5R) activities:

1. A brief outline of the Company's GCSR policy, including
ovarview of projects or programs proposed to be undertaken
and a reforence to tho wak-link to the CSR policy and projects
and programs:

Litety has ahways besn 3 franttunner in costiibuting 1o the society al
larpge considening 1 as responsibility and has identilied varous areas
to make the contribution. In Libery, CSR initiatives are being
undartaken long beforn the provisions of 1he Companies Act, 2013
and with the implementation of new provisions of Section 135 of the
Companies Act, 2013, H is committed to further strengthen its =ffort
and activitios by demenstrating care for the community through its
focus on egucation aod development of skills, bealth and wellhess
including treatment for poor, needy & uninsured people, environment
sustainability  inclading  promoting of  green  initiatives  and
Inprovement of the fiving conditions of inhabitanis and support to
disaster refief efforts ete. The CER Committes constituted under the
Act provides oversight of CSR policy execution o ensure that the CSR
abjective of the Gompany arg met and it reviews and looks aftar the

A 3
(¢) Manner in which the amount is spent during the financial year ié':’?méﬂ%‘&"l‘:&'& :

activities of CSR including idertifying the areas of CSA a5 per the
provisions of the Acl. The projects o be underlaken are within the
broad framework of schedule Vi of the Companies Act, 2013, Details
of the TSR palicy and projects or programs proposed to b undertaken
by the Company are available on the website of the Company viz.
wwwlipertyshogs.com.

2. Compesitian of CSR Committee:

Ag reported earlinn the Beard of Directors of the Company tonstituted
its CSA Committee on 29" May, 2014 and further seconstituled on
0" May, 2016 which comprises of Sh. Shammi Bansal, xocutive
Ditector ag Chaitman and Sh, Adeesh Kumar Gupta, Executive
Director Sh. Raghubar Dayal, Sh, Ramesh Chandra Palhan and St
L.ovelena Mogy, (ndependent Directors 25 members of the Committec,
3. Detail of the CSH spant during the financial year:

{a) Total amount to be spent for the financial year: 2718 Lakh
iBaing 2% of the Avarage nel profit of last theee financial veass viz
£1393.00 Lakh).

wat: Not Applicable,

Amount spent | Comulative Amount

uplifting the life of the
villagers in rural areas

by fullilling (hi nessssry
and essential requircraents
af survival ineluding
providing of wisrking
conditions and
oppoItunities tor gairdul,
rmplaymient i wamim
and skill development,

{b) Contributed in the
"Karnal Vikas Nidhi Yojna”
launched by Haryara Statyg
Gavarnmant Tar the
ijeveloprent of rural
argas in Kamal (n
undattaka oll work

rolated ta improvement

of spriety, pramation

nf communal and sacial
hatmony snd brotharhood,
{n creato awarness and
addiassing sacial avils,
Jromotion and progress
of agriculiurg and animal
husbandry, promotion of
small scale industries, to
take W) programs in which
seisnce and wehnology

JrogImng
(b} Promoting
education, including
special education nnd
employment enhancing
vocation skills especialy

amang ghildrer, wamen,

aldarly, and the
differantly abiad and
livalihpoa pahangament
ArojRGLE

|6} Promatian of Sports
[d] Cnsuning
unvironmortal
sustaimability, coofogical
balanee, protection of
flora and fauna, animal
welfare, agro foresty,
conservation of natuial
TBS0UICES ANG
maintaining of quality of
&0il, air and walgr

Sr. | GSR Projocts o Sector which Projacts or Amount Qutiay
No. | Activity the project is program (1] Logad | (budget) projost | on tho projests | Expanditurs spont:
idantifiad covorod Aroa or othor {2) | or projgrams of programs up to the Direct o
gpecify the state | wise (TinLakh) [ Subheads: roporting through
ard district whore {1) Direct pericd implamantig
projects or Expanditure |¥ in Lakh} agency
Proprams wWas {2) Ovethoads
undortaken {7 in Lakh)
1| a) Davelopmegnt ang {ta) Rural dvetiopuent | Lecal Area 11.00 1.00 $1.00 Direct




it

v

have majar tole, minimizing | (el Bradicating hungar,
ljl'![}l?'l])tnyl'l'}l’_‘.’m -E'II'I'IDI'!["] |)CIVI,"}J"|\¢‘ B#'Id I'l'liill'll,l"ilinlL
youth of weaker section #nd sanitation and
af saciety, women making available safe
ampOwWernent ete, drinking walgr
7. | Congeibustedd to reqistared Prarnotion af Spons Lanal A 280 1.7 1.7 {irect
Snors Aszociations in
Karnal, for providing (raining
1o ysth/youny athlates of
Haryana 10 pieparg angd
miake thens weady 10
paricipate in Natipnal
Games/Ohympics.
A | () Toee Prantation and Ertsuting mavironmenal | Loca) Aves/Delkif .00 L] 2.09 Direct
devalapmuon of gioen atea | sustainability, scological | NCR/Other Atea
inand sround the gt/ balance, protoction of
llicos. flora and fauna, snimal
(b} Provided fiee of cost wellare, agro orosty,
footwe: 1o World Witd il | consorvation of aitus
Fursd (WWVF) for the (RS0l CaS o
promution of wlfare of risinaining of guiality of
animals. sol, air and wator
4, | [al Contrbutions/ Trromuoting cducation, Local Avea/0elhif 4,00 130 3.30 Dirar
sponsorships te Scheols for | including spocial NCE/OUwr Aros
providing education/ education and
healtheare 1o children who | employment enhancing
can't attord it and 10 grsure | vocation skills especially
{he holistic developmont of | among children, women,
underprivilegad childien by ¢ elderdy, and the
pioviding tham quakily ditterenly ahiar and
aducation, hamhhcarg and | Bvelibond enhansement
biskainced putiition. RIOjELLE,
b} Donatad free of cost
footwoeal to varous schoal/
institutions 1¢: further
provide to the chiltreny
students who can't afford it,
5. | Provided Fee of cost/ Fromaotion ¢f Preventive | Loual Area 10.00 10,00 10.00 Divet
concessional madical health cose
widg and testing faciliies
1y the poar and needy
penpln through Sanjeny
Bansal Gygnus Hospilal,
Karnal,
Sub-Totat 0,00 28.10 28.10
{verhgad . . -
Total £5R Sprm 78.10 28.10

4. Reason for not spending the prescribed amount of 2% of the threo years' avaragw ot profit in torms of the provisions of Companios Act,
2013 and Rules mada there undar; Not Applicahle,

5. A responsibility statement of the GSR committan that the implomentation and monitoring of CSA policy, is in compliance with CSR
objectives and policy of the Gompany: Wi hareby dectare that implamentatien and monitoring of the CSH pulicy are in copyliance wilh CSRB oljoclives
andd policy of the Sompany.

Shammi Bansal
Exseutive Digclar & Chaitman- C8R Committre
{BIN; DD1318792)

Adesh Kumar Gupta
{:E0 & Executive Director
{DIN: 00143192




Uhers

Annexure Vi te Directors’ Report

Annexure'A’

Disclosure of patticulars under Section 134 1) {m) of the Companies
Act, 2013 read with the Companies |Accounts] Ruies, 2014 and
tarming part of Directors' Bepart for the financial year sndisl 31t
Manrch, 2016, are given as undet;

A} CONSERVATION OF ENERGY:

i)

L)

1]

v}

v

Energy Conservation measures taken

Liberty remained focused for power and fuel cossumption

reduction & dts Al monufactuning  units, The  encrgy

ronversation measueas implamented during the firancial yem
ended 313t March, 2016 are given below,

i.  Conlinuing  arangement for purchase of  electicily
through a dedicated feeder by Torming 2 consortium of
Companies. Third parly power purchase to ratiomalize the
glechicity roquirement angd its cost,

il. Replacement with LED dighting at the plants B
administrative offices also wherever teasible,

fii. Taking steps to enhance the efficiency of the equipment
and machines by ogotting its regular check up,
Reptacemant  lower  efficiency Molors  with  high
efficiency rmotors wherever required in the plant.

Additional Invostmonts and proposals, if any, being

implamantad for reduction of consumption of energy

Liborty weuld continag with g effors towards effective

Wilization of engtgy across its manukactoning units, Besides

this Company has also implemented during the year various

water conservative maasures resulted in roduction of watnr
consumption.

Impact of the moeasures a1 {Ij and (I3} ahova for

raduction of enorgy consumption and consoquont

impact in the cost of production of goods

The measures listed abova have wezulled in saving in

cOnsUTtIon without hampaeting the process.

The savings arn as under:

I Total energy saving in the year 201516: TH,15,42%/,

il Cnergy saving pes pail during the yeer 200156-16: 20,10
per pair

Hi, Cnergy saving against total cost of consumption of
erergy in the year 2015-16: 0.904%

Staps takon by the Company for utilizing alternate

sources of energy

The Company has tialed e process of fleasibility of

identifying the allernative source of energy i.8 installation of

solar power al its plants.

Capital Inveztnent on energy conservation equipment

Thi Company has net made any major capial investment

excepl routing repfacements in the energy consumption

gquipment.

B] TECHNOLOGY ABSORPTION:

Etforts made in tachnology absorption

In Liberty, efforts were made by identifying naw processes/
adaplation of mxisting processes to pvercome thi genaral
shallgngas in commercial production, product davelopment

)

.
.

Vi.

and absorption of technologies.

Specific areas in which B & D carried out by the

Company and Benefits derived as a result of R&E D

1. R 8D efforls were direcied mainly lowatds care areas
of footwear and innavations relating to manufacturing &
packaging etc,

2. Launch of new design with innovative concepts offering

valut for mongy 107 its consumers,

Introduction of process for qualty and  dorshility

anhancemant,

Technology Imported during last three years: Nong

Tha future plan of action

Distinetive  efforts will be  implemented v innovation

capabililty development and improving process for product

dovelopments. Further efforts will also e implomentod 1o

develop naw products aftet undersanding  consumers’

insightls ang align processes across the Company's busingss

BCtivities.

Expenditure in R & D

The Company has not incuned any capital expendituie

towards its research and development activities, however,

hay spent ¥38.65 Lakh as recuring expenditures towards its

dovelopmeant astivities.

This expemditure constitutes 0.10% of the {urmover of the

Company for the year under consideration,

Tochnolopgy absorption, adaptation and innovation

Efforts & bensfits to the Company

The implementation of innovatlive tecimologies @ varous

mandfacluring processes has helped Uberty o improve

quality of footwsar and development competence amongst

s grmployees,

L

FOREIGN EXCHANGE EARNINGS AND QUTGO:

I

i

Efforts and initiative in relation to the exports:

The Company has further strengthened #s efforts o
understand (he overseas customer's requiremnents and to
bring in Liberty footwear in untapped Countries and also
improve the businoss rofations with its existing custome:s,
Total foreign oxchange used and earned:

During the year, the Company has eamed foreign exchange of
¥3.603.74 Lakh (previous year ¥4.850.73 takh) and used
foreign  exchange of T1,6BB.07 lakh (wevious  yesr
T1,814.10 Lakh).

For and on behalf of the
Board of Directors

Adesh Xumar Gupta
Chairrman of the Metting
(DiN: 00143162}

Flace: Gurugram, Haryana
{atod; Manday, 30" May, 216
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Form NG. B3

SECRETARIAL AUDIT REPORT
FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED 31" MARCH, 2016

[Pursuant to Section 204(1} of the Companies Act, 2013 and
fule No. 9 of the Companies {Appointment and Remuneration
of Managerial Personnet} Rules, 2014}

Te,

The Members

Liberty Shoes Limited

{CIN; L19Z201HR14REPLCO33185)
Libarty Puram, 13 Milestone,

&Y Kamnal Road, Kutail,

PO, Bastara, Karnal, Haryani

Wa have conducted the secretarial audit of the campliance of
applicable statutory provisions and the adherence to good
porparate practices by Liberty Shows Limited {hereinafier calied
the Company). Secretarial Audit was conducted in a manner that
provided us @ reasonable basis for evaluating the corporate
conducts/statutory complionces and  expressing our gpinian
theteon,

Wo roport that-

al  Maintenance of secretarial records is the responsibility of
the management of the Company. Our respansibility is to
express an opinion on these secrelarial records based on aur
audit.

bl Wa have followed the audit praclices and processes as were
appropriate to oblain reasonable asstrance  aboul the
correctness of the ontents of the secretarial records, The
varification was dong on (est basis 1o ensure that correct
facts are reflecled in secrelarial records. We believe that the
mrocesses and practices, we follewed, provide 2 reasonable
basis for our opinian.

gl We have not veritied the correctness and appropriateniss of
the financal statements of the Company.

d)  Wherever required, we have obtsined lhe Mansgemenl
representation about the compliarces of laws, rudes and
regulations and happoning of events ste.

@ The compliance of the provisions of the corporate and other
applicable laws, rules, regulation and standards is the
respongibility of the management, Qur examination was
lirmiled to the verification of procedures on test basis,

) The Secretarial Audit report is neither an agsutance a5 1o
tha futuse viability of the Gompany nor of the efficacy or
effectivoness with which the management has conducied
tho affairs of the Compiny.

Bazed on our verification of the Company's books, papers, minute
books, forms and returns filed and other tecerds maintained by the
Comnpany and aise the information provided by ke Cormpany, ity
officers, agents and authorized representatives during the conduct
of Secetariat Audit, we horeby teport thal in our apinion, the
Company has, dwing the audit period covering the financial year
gnded on 31" March, 2016 ("Audit Period”) complied with the
stalutory pravisions ksted hereunder and also 1hat the Company Ras
proper Boacd processes and compliance mechanism in place to the
pxtent, in the manner and subject to the reporting made
hereinaiier

We have axaminad the books, papers, minute books, forms and
returns filed and other records maintainad by the Company far the
financial yoar anded on 31" Mareh, 2016 according 1o the provisicns
of:

(il The Companies Act, D13 {the Act) and the riles made

thereunder/Companies Act, 1956 (whergver applicable);

(i) The Securities Contracts (Regulation] Act, 1956 ('SCRAY and
Lhe rules made thereunder;

{i} The Depasitories Act, 1996 and the Regulaticns and Bye-
laws framad thereunder;

(iv} Foreign Exchange Managemnent Act, 1999 and rules and
regulations  made thereunder 1o the extemt of Foreign
Direct Investmont, Owersess Direct Investment and Extemal
Commercial Borrowings (wherever applicable);

{v) The folowing Requlations prescribed under the Secorities
and Exchange Board of India Agt, 1992 (SERI Act'):-

(@) The Securities and Exchange Board of India {Substantial
Acquisition of Shares and Takeoverst Regulations, 2011;

bl The Sequrities and Exchange Board of India (Prohitition
of Insider Trading) Regulations, 2015/ the Securities and
Exchange Board of India {Prohibition of Insider Trading)
Regulations, 1892

{¢)  *The Securities and Exchange Board of India {lssue of
Capital and Disclesure Requirements) Regulations, 2008;

() *The Secunities and Exchange Board of India (Share
based Employes Banafita] Regulations, 2014;

e} *The Securilies ard Cxchange Board of India {ssue
and Ligting of Debt Securities) Regulations, 2008;

{fy  The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Registrars
10 an lssue and Share Transfer Agents) Regulations,
10493

{0} *The Securitivs and Exchange Board of India (Delisting




(vi)

" Ww.: 5

A

of Fquity Shares) Requlations, 2008;

(N "The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Buyback
of Securities] Regulations, 1998; and

i The Securities and Exchange Roard of India
(Listing obligations and Oisclosues  requitements)
Regulations, 2015 applicable w.e.f. December 1, 2015;

* No evenl ook place under theso reguiations during 1he
Audit pariad.

We have also examined compliance with the applicable
clnsas of the following-

{il  Secretarial Standards on Meatings of the Board of
Oirectors and General Meetings issugd by the Institute
of Company Secretaries of India tapphicable wie.f. July
0%, 2015) which the Company has generally compliad
with,

[iy  lListing Agreements {applicable upto Novermber 30,
2015) entered info by the Company with 8SE Limiled
and the National Stack Exchange of Ingia |imiteg,

During the Audit Pernd, the Company has complied with
the provisions of the Act, Rules, Regutations and Guidelines,
iy the extent applicable and as per the Management's
represontation & explanation provided, the Company is in
process of filing of e-form in tespect of resolution for approval
of the Annual Financial Slatamerds along with the Board's
Heport under section 179(31g) of the Act and afse Tar filing e
forrn under seclion 170 of the Act for reguiarization of a
diractar in the tast Annval General Mesting of the Company.

The Company is engaged in the business of manufacturing
and wrading of footwear and accessorias through its retad
and wholesale network and is having s plents at Kamal,
Libertypuram & Gharaunds in Haryana, Debradun & Roorkee
in Uttrakhand and Panta Sahib in Himachal Pradesh, As
informed by the Management, there is no sector specific Jaw
applicable to the Company,

Wa further report that the Board of Directors of the
Company is duly constituted with proper balance of
Extcutive Dirpctors, Nor-Executive Directors and Independent
Directors. The changes in the composition of the Board of
Directors that took place during the sudit period under review
were carried aut in compliznce with the provisions of the Act,

Adequate nrolices were given to all directors of the Board
Meetings: agenda and detailed notes on agerala avg sent in
advance of the meetings and a system exists for seeking and
obtaising furthar information and clarifications an the agendsa
iterns before the meeting for meaningful parlicipation at ihe
mecting,

Board decisions ara caried out with ynanimous consent and
therefore, nio dissenting views were required to be caplured
and recorded as part of the minutgs,

Woe furthor report that thare are systems and processes in
ke Company commenstvate with the size and operations of
the Company to monitor and gnsura complisnce with
applicable laws, rules, requlations and quidelings which
needs to he strengthened,

For Sanjay Grover & Associates
Company Secrelanss
Firm Registration No. P20 TE0SZ900

Sanjay Grover
-Managing Partner
CP o, 3850

Place: Naw Dalhi
[ated: May 30, 2016




Corporate Governance Report

fn terms of Requiation 34 of the SERI (Listing Obligations and Digelnsure
Requirements) Regulations, 2015 tead with Schedule Vo to the said
finguintinng)
1, Company's phitozophy on Code of Governance
Liberty's piiosophy of Cotposte Govermance is 10 achieve the
business excellence and iy dedication for enbancing shaieholdis
value through promoting accountability, transparency & comporale
{airnass in all its flansactions.
Liberly understands that the complisnces of applicable statutes and
imely distlosures enhance the perception of the Company and also
the trust ¢f all stakeholders,
“Liberty™ continuausly strive at impraving and sthering 1o the good
govanance practice.
2. Board of Diractars
(a) Compasition and Calegary of Dirastors

The Board of Direciars is entiusied with the ovarall respansilifity
of the management, sffeirs and performance of e Company
and hos been authorised with the requisite powers,

Liberty Board is o balanced Board, comprsing Execulive and
Nois Executiv Ditgeigrs, The Non-Executive Directors include
independen  professionals sl entigprensurs  having
understanding  of  diversified  Industries  and e overal
administration. Your Company slso bas 3 waman Disclor which

As on date of this report, thy Beard of Ditectog of the Company
comprises of 31 {Eleven) Dieclos including (3 o waméan
Director, out of which 5 (Five) are Execulive Directors ang
B (Sint e Non Executive Independeat Directors, Out of 1he sad
% Cxncutiva Directors, 4 are representing Promoter group of the
Company,

We have Audit, Nomination ang Remuneration, Managament,
Stakeholders Relationstip and Corporate Social Besponsibility
Commitiees, which comprse  Mon Rxecutive-indapendant
Diractors and Executive Directors in compliance with apylicable
provigions  of  SEBU (Listing  Obfigations  and  Discloswe
Riztquitermants) Regalations, 20145 and Companies Act, 2003,

Sh. Adesh Kumin Gupta, CEQ 8 Exccutive irector of the
Company, scted as Chaitman of alt the Bowd moetings hoid
turing the financial year 201516,

Cxiputive Divectors perlorm their dities within the powers and
kiry role areas fixed under respective Service Gontracls and
dischirge thidt tesponsibilitics in the manner approved by the
Muambers of the Company in torms of the Corporate Governance
praclices followed by the Company to condugt the authorized
business, Acsatdingly, Bead of the Company draws the anmial
cperating plans, budgels / policies in accordance with the
Company's vision Lo its productivity and profitalility,

Mone of the Directors of the Company has any other malens

brings diversity on the Board.

pecuniary relationship with the Company or it subsidiary,

The name and categories of the Directors, thekr attendance at Board Mestings held during the year and &t the last Annval Genaral Meating
{AGM} together with particulars of thair Divectorship and Chairmanship / Membership of Board Committess in various othor Companios s on

31st March, 2016 are given a5 under;

Sr. | Name of the Directar(x) Direcior Na. of Board Attendance No. of other No. of Cormmilles
Na. Identitication No. & Meetings held & | ai the last AGM | Diroctorship 2s 00 [""pember | Chalrman-
Category of Directorship attendad 3t March, 2016 ship ship
1. | Sh. Adesh Kumar Gupta 00143192 (5 Yo T - -
. PFromoter & ED
2. | 5h, Shammi Bansal 00138792 it Yes 1
Promoter 8 ED
3.1 Sh, Sunil Banal Q0142123 54 Yag 1
Promols: BED
4, 1 5k, Adoosh Kumar Gupla 00137612 G5} Yo 2
) Fromoten & EO
5. | Sh. Adarsh Gupta® 161143 e No z -
ED
6. 1 Sh, Ashok Kurmar (6463514 9(5) Yey - -
ED
7 sk Reaghubiar Dayal 00413803 ) Yoy
NED (1)
fi. | Sh Amitabh Tancja 00031257 & No b 1 ?
NEOQ) ]
4. {1 &h. Vivek Bansal N0g30732 G(2} Na 1
NED 1)
10, { &h. Ramash Chandra Palhan 05241019 il Yoy
llllll NED {1)
11. 1 Sh, Pushpinder Singh Grewal 063564474 h{4} Yos -
NED {I)
17 1 S, Lowsleng Midy 01279148 5(2) Ya 7
NED {I]

* Resiaed weel, 16082015
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{b} Board's Process

[ty gecodance with the legal requirements and {o review / analyze
the performance of the Company at reqular inteérvals, the Board of
Nirectors frequently meet for 3 minimum of four pre schoduled
Meetings during each yom a5 per the directions of the
managament of the Company.

Agdditienat Meetings of the Board are held when deemed
necessary by the Board to address the specific needs of the
Company, if any, Apart Trom the Boord of Directors, the vatious
Heads of Departments, Intemal  Auditors  and Statutory
Auditors of the Company sre also inviled at the Bosid Meeling o
oversee the related matters reguinng  discussion/ approval/
decision of the Board.

Detailed agends papers slong with explanstory notes and
necessary documents and information, in defined Agenda format,
are timely circulated 10 the Board of Directors in advange for
facilitating meaningful and focused decision at the Maeting of thi
Board and Committees (hereof, Al material information is
incorporated in the Aganda papers in crder 10 have an averview of
thi dugingss proposed 1o be considered at the Mesatingls), it s
not Jeasible 10 send the each and every document along with the
Angenda, the same are placed before Membars present at the
Meeting with specific reference to this effect in Agenda. Al the
additional or supplementary iteri{s), nat referred in Agenda, are
cansidered after ohtaining the due pormission at the Menting,
Howover, in case of busiegss exigencies or urgoncies, the
resotutions are passed by way of circulation, except those which
are raguired 10 be passed only &l & Seard meeting(s) in terms of
the provisions of Companies Acl, 2013,

Apart fram statutory matters, all miajor pokey decisions, rvalustion
of imtemal  management  procedures,  budgetary  decisions,
business strateies and ssk managerent pactices arg placed
before the Board, Fuher, the formation as reguired under
Regulation +7 {7) read with Schedule-ll, Part-A of SEBI [Listing
Oblpations and Disclosure Requirements), Reguistions, 201% s
periodically placed before the Board / Hoard Committens. The
Board has also constituted 5 (five) standing committeas namely
Audit Committeg, Management Committes, Nominstion angd
Romuneration Gornmittes, Stakeholders Relationship Committis
and Carporate Social Responsibility Comimittes which funclion gs
pet 1he terms of references decided by the Board from time to
time.

Company  Secetary & Campliance Officer of the Company
conducts all the Mestings of Board Aoard Committees and
records the Minutes of the proceedings of each Board and
Committes Meoting and final Minutes e enterad i {he
respactive Minutes Book(s) wilhin the stipulated period, i any, in
complisnee with the provisions of the Companies Acl, 20§13
Secretarial - Standards-3 on Board Mastings  and  gther
regulatory eractments. In addition to anove, &l the actions takean
in respect of impordant matler(s) discussed in the previous
Meetings are placed at the immediately sugceeding Meetings for
the purpose of follow up and reviews, The draft mingtes are
cireulated W0 the Directors for their comments, i any ot e same
and aftet copeiating theit comments, copy of signed minutes
date provided (o the direclors for their confirmation in cormpliance

{c)

{d)

with applicable provisions of Secretanal Standards on Beard
rogetings.
Board Meetings

During the financial year 2015-16, & {Five) Bosrd Meetings were
held viz, on 28" May, 34" August, 8" Nevember 2015 and
11" February & 31" March 2016, The maximum interval between
any two Board Macting{s) was not more than 120 Days
prescribed undar the Listing Regulaions. The anouel calendsr of
meetings is broadly determined at the beginring of the year. The
Hoard prriodically roviews the compliance teports of all lws
applicable to the Gompany,

Nona of the directors on the board hald directorships in more than
ten public Companes. Further, none of therm is & member of more
than ten Board level commitiees or chairman of more than five
committees across Al tho lndian public limited Companies in
which he is a director, Further none of the Independent Directors
sefves as an Independent Ditgclor in more thar seven listed
Comparies. Necessary disclosures regarding commattee positions
in other public: Companies as on March 31, 2016 have heen made
by the direclors.

The Board periodically reviews compliance repons of all applicabls
laws to the Company, prepared by the Company.

Post » Meoting Fallow up systom

After the Board meating, we have formal system of follow up,

reviews snd reporting on actions taken by the managerment on the
decisions of the Board and sub-commitises of the Board,

Indepundent Divectors and Familiarization Programmae

All th Independent Directors of the Company are satisfying the
tequirements as specified in the Regulation 25 and Regulation 16
(1) (b) of SEB (Listing Obligations and Hsclosure Beguirements)
Reguiations, 2015 to qualify to act as indepandent Diractors of the
Company and actively participate in the Maetings held from time
to ume for providing the necessary guidance/ supgestions for
protecting the interest of investors/stakeholders, The suggestions
received from the Independent Directors arg suitably chserved by
the management lor s baneficial implementation, AR the Non
Executive Independert Directors propose to be appointed/existing
on the Board have given a declaration under Section 149 (7) that
T meats this critenia of Independence a5 provided in Section 149
(6) of the Companies Acl, 2013 and also under Regulation 16 (1)
(o} of SEBI {Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requiremems)
Negulrtions, 2015,

The Nonfxecutive Independent Ditectors do not have any
pacuniaty relalionships or transactions eithar with the Sompany,
other than sitting fees drawn by the Non-Executive Independent
Director {or atiending the meetings of the Board and its
Camrittees with the Promoters/ Directors/ Senior Managemant
that ray atlect their judgrment in any manner,

Tha tarms and conditions of sppointmant of the Independant
directors are disciosed on the website of the Campany.

[uring the year undm consideration a separate maeting of the
Incependant diractors wag held on 3151 March, 2016 inter-glia 10
gvalugte the perormance of the Bomd, its Committees, Chairman
and the individuzl Ditectors of the Compsny. The meeting was



attended Ty all the independent Directors except Sh, Amitalh
Tanej and Sh, Vivek Bansal,

Familiarization Programme for Indepandont Biractors

Iri orgir to eneourane active participation of independant Directors
and i order 1o understand the business enviiomment, The
Company has been familianzing the Independert Directors on ity
Board with detailed prosentations by its business functionat heads
on the Company operations, sUalegic business plans, new
pretucts and technologies, incloding sipnificant aspects of the
Industry and its future outleok. Once appeinted, the Non Exerative
& Incepandent Direetons wndergo the Tamilianzation progiam of
the Company. The Non executive & Independent Directors are also
provided with financial results, imaemal sudit findings and other
specific documants as sought frem time to time, They are also
made aware of the vanous Policies and Code of Conduct and
business ethics adopted by the Board, Details of familiarization
programs extended to the Non Executive § Indepandent Birggtors
duing the yesr ae disclosed on the Company  waelisite
wwwilibertyshoes.com. Further at the time of appointment of an
Independent Director, the Company issues a formal detier of
appuintment  outining  hisMer  role,  fusction,  duties  and
tespangibifties a8 a duecton, The lemplate of e letter of
appointment  is  &vailsble on  Company's  websiie  al
www.libertyshoes.com,

{6) Non - Executive Directors' compensation and disclosures

)

Non - Executive indopendent Direclors are eligible for sitting fees
& commission not oxeopding the fimits preseribed unde 1he
Companies Act 2013, Duwing the financial year 2015-16,
T2,70.000/ has been paid ss sitling fees 10 Non-sxenotive
Independent Directers for atiending the Meeting of the Board
and Audit Committee Meoting, Furthar, no sitting fees has
hean peid to Executive Directors for aftending the Board /
GCommittea thareof, in accordance with the respective Service
Agreement entered in to with tham, Further, the Company till
date has nol offered Equily Shares under slock oplion scheme
10 the Qitectors/Employees of the Company.

Cotig nf Gonduct

The Board of Qirectors of the Company has adepled the ‘Code
of Conduct' for all the Bomd Members and dasignated
members of Senior Management of the Company. Al the
membrrs of the Board and designated members of Senior
Management have compliad with the Gode of Conduct, the
duties of ndependent  Direstors of the  Company  wats
incorporated in the Code Lo make it more robust.

Details of the Code are avasilable on the website of the
Company viz, www libertyshoes.com.

Annual Daclaration by the Chief Executive Officer {CEQ) pursuant to Regulation 34 of the SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure
Requirements) Regulations, 201% read with $cheduls V to the said Regulations:-

To.

The Mambars
Liberly Shoes Lid,
As tha Chinf Exgeutive Officer {CEO) of Liberty Shoes Lid, and as roquired under Begulation 34 of the SEBL (Listing Obligations and Disclosure
Requirements) Regulations, 2015 tead with Sthodulie V of the said Regulations, | haieby declas that ail the Beard Members and Senior Managemeant
Persornet of the Cormpany have affimed compliance with the Comipany's Code of Conduct Tor the financial year endet March 31, 2018.

(e}

Briof particulars of the Directors, whose candidature
are proposed for appointmont/re appointment in the
forthcoming Annual Genaral Meeting:

&h. Adeesh Kumar Gupla and Sh. Ashok Kumar Relires by
rodation in the ensuing Annual Gereral Meetisg and being eligible,
have offered themselves {or 16 -appoimment,

Bh. Adersh Kumar Gupta, Executive Directors of the Company
was appointed as Executive Directors by the members of the
Company in their 25" Annual Genesal Meeting for & petiod of
5 years waef, 17 October, 2011 and his tenwre as an Executive
Director is expiring on 30" September, 2016 in terms of theil
appointment. Pursuznt e the recommendation of Nomination and
Remuncration Committee, Board of Dirgctors of the Gompany,
consideting expetience, cualification and valuable contribution in
the Company, in their meeting held on 30" May, 2016 appraved,
subject to membars' approval, re-appointment of Sh, Adeesh
Kamar Gupta as Executive Direclor of the Company wel.
1" October, 2016 for a further period of 2 years on the 1erms and

Adesh Kumar Gupta
Chiefl Executive Officer (CED)
DIN: 00143152

conditions get forth in the draft Service Agreament inclucing
iU remuneration, payable 1o him for the position of
Executive Director, Sh. Adeesh Kumar Gupta represents Promoter
group of the Sompany and halds 1,89,360 Equity Shares in the
Company.

Bl. Ashok XKumar, Executive Director of the Company was
appointed a5 Additional Directar of the Company wief 23rd
January. 2015, Tho Board of Directors in their meeting held on
291 May, 2015 considering his exparience, qualification and
vatuabde contribution Lo the Cormpany and on the reeommendation
of Nomination and Remuneration Cormeniliee of the Beard,
approved hig appointraent 8 Director fiable to retire oy rotation
and further as Executive Diregtor of the Company for a petiod of
3 yoears waef 150 June, 2016, subject to the approval of the
mambers of the Company in their Geners! Meeting. The Members
of the Company in their 28th Anrual Srneral Meeting hold on
29tk Septlerber, 2015 approved the appeitment of Sh, Ashok
Kumar as Dieclor Fable to retire by rotation and further as




(a)

ee

Executive Dirgctor of the Company for a period of 3 years weed
151 June, 2015, Since then he is continuing on thi Board of the
Comypany a8 Frecitive Digcio),
Sh, Ashiok Kumar is & law Graduate and has been sdvising
Company on vanious legal matters of the Compeny for last several
yaars. He possessas a vast wealth of legal knowledge and has a
proven record of providing indispensabla legal advice 1o the
Company and delivering of positive owtcomes for the Compiny.
He does not belong 10 the Promater group of the Company and
doed not hold Couity Shares of the Company. A brief profile along
with necessaty delaits of Oveclors seeking thell re-appointment
has been provided in the Annexure-A of the Annexure to the
Nitice of the 30" Annual General Megting &3 required under the
pravisions of Regulation 36 (3) of Listing Regulations.
Committea(s) of the Board
The Board of the Company has constituted different Committens
of the Board 10 have the Tocused attention on the busingss of
pach aspect of the Company's working, The Minules of the
Meetings of respeetive Commitlees are timely placed before the
Membars of the Committees and before the Members of the
Roard of Directors of the Company for thee information and
consideration, The terms of reference of the Board committees
are determined by the Board from lime to tme. The role and
camposition of these Committaes. including the number of
rraatings hefd during the financial year 2015-16 and the relaled
aitendance, are presciibed below:

Audit Committae

The Board of Directors of the Company has constiluted an Audi

Gommittas in yoar 2007 in compliance with the provisions of

Listing Agresrment & Section 292A of the Companies Act, 1956

and recenstituted from time 10 tire. The Audit Committee and its

composition meets the requirement of Section 177 of the

Gompanies Act, 2003 and Regulation 18 of SERE (Listing

Obdigations and Disclosure Requirerents) Reguiations, 2015, The

briel description of the (erms of relerence of the Audit Commilies

as approved by the Board fram time to time is as under:

+  Review the annual financial statements with the management
with primary focus on matters raquived to be included in the
Directors' Responsibdlity  Statement, changes, if any in
acrounting policies and practices and reasons thereof,
compliance with accounting slandards and guidelines of stock
exchangels), major asccounting entrivs & related  patty
transactions,

« Review of the quarerdy and annus financial results/
statgments batora submission to the Board for thair approval
lngather with guarterlly and annual financial resulls of the
subsidiary corpany.

+ Review and assessment of the effectivenass of systems of
intgrnal financial contal, figk managamaent and compliance
control with management and auditors,

«  Recommendation  of  appoimtment,  re-gppaintment,
replacement and removal of the inlemal suditors, cost
guditors and stattory auditors of the Company, fixation of
audit fers and approving payments tor any other services,

« Assessment of the ingependance and performance of the
auditors and effectiveness of audit process.

Review of the managament discussions and anslysis of
financial conditions and results of the aperations.
Valuation of underlakings or assets of (he Cormparny, wherever

nicessary.

Scrutiny of intet-torporate loans and invesiments,

Ravinwing the adequacy of internal audit function including
the stigchre of intemal auddt departmant, stafling and
seniority of the official heading 1he department, 1eporting
structure coverage and frequency of inlernal audit.

Reviewing, with the management, performance of Lhe
statutory snd internel audilors, adequscy of the internat
control systoms.

[Reviewing, with the managemen, the statemert of uses/
application of funds rsised through an issue {public issue,
rights issue, preferantial issue, eto.), the statement of funds
vlilized for purposes othin then those stated in the offer
document/ prospectus/ notice and the seport submitted by
the monitoring agency monitoring the utilization of procecds
of o public or nghts issue, and making appropriale
recammendstions 1o the Board to take tp steps in this tstier.
Review of tho repants of statutory and intemal auditors and
discussion about their findings with the management and
sunuesting consotive measures whersvel necessany.
Reviewing the findings of any intemal investigations Dy the
internal auditors in to malters where thera is sugpetted flaud
or megularty or & failure of intetsal conttol systems of a
material nature and reporting the matter to the Board.

Louk into the reasons Tor substantial defaults,  any, n the
paymenl of creditors of the Company snd ary substantial
dafaults, il any, made by the debtors of the Company slong
wilh 1he reasons theraof,

Review of prevailing sceounting policies and compliances
with regard 10 statutory requiremenis.

Periodicat review of telsted parly tansactions cartied ot by
the Company and spproval o7 any subsequent modification of
transactions of the Company with related party,

Approving the appaintment of the CFO before finalization of
the same by the managerient. Further while approving the
appointment, it shall assess the qualifications, experience and
background efe. of the candidate,

{Qverseaing he Company's financial raporting process and
disclosure of g financial information 10 ensure that the
financial statements are correct, sulficient and credible,
Ensuring the compliance of the provisions of isting agresrmsnt
laid down by the Stock exchangeds] and lenal requirements
concerning financial statements,

Ciscugsing with external auditors, bedore audit commences
the nature and scope of audit as well as having post-audit
discussions 10 ascerlain areas of concern, if any.

To review the functioning of the Whistle Blower mechanisim,
o approve and review the related party transsctions of the
Company and 10 maka critera for approving 1he same.

Any other matler referred o the Audil Commitlee by the
Board of Directors of the Company.




=

Compesition, Name of Members and Chaivman and
Attendanca during the year

The Members of Audil Committes of the Board comprise of ong
Executive Director and  three Non Executive  Independsin
Pirgctors, 5h, Raghubar Payal, Independent Director, dcts a8
Chaitmars of the Augdit Cormittee Meetings held dusing the year,
Sh. Munish Kakea, CFO & Company Secretary has been appointed
a% Secretary of tha Audit Commitiee in pursuanee 1o provisions of

Regulation 18 of SEBE (listing Dbligations and Disclosurn
Requirements) Regulations, 2015, All the Members of the Audit
Comritter are “financially fiterate” as defmed under Regufstion
18 1) {¢) of SEBI (Lsting Obligntions and  Disclosurg
Requirements) Regulations, 2015,

Prasent compasition of the Audit Committes and
attendance at the mesting{s) held during the yoar are
as wnder:-

& No Namesofthe | Position Category No. of Meating(s) Held
Committee Member {Attondad)
1. Sh. Raghubar Dayal Chairman NEDW} {h)
2. | sh.SunilBansal T Member ] 5(5)
3 5h, Ramesh Changra Palhan Member NEQ) 5(5)
4 Sh Vivek Banzal Muenber - NEDU]’ 5(2)
5 ShIVIunlsh Kakra Company Secretary ” Sﬂcrétary 5(2)

Moetings held during the yoar

During the financial year 2015-16, 5 {Five | Audit Committee
rpetings were held on 29" May, 14" August, 6" November 2015,
11" February and 31% March 2016, The pgap between two
commiliee meetings was nat more than one hundred and twenly
days. The Annual Audited Financial Results of the Gompany for the
year ended 3tst March, 2016 were mviewed by the Audi
Commitiee in ils Meeting held on 30" May, 2016, Necessary
Quarurm was present in the Audit Committes Mestings.

The Statutory Auditors and Internal Audilors nf the Compiny were
invariably invitad to sitend the Meetings and also to participate in

its Chairmar,

The terms of reference: of the Nomination and Remuneration
Committee are stated as under 2nd In lines with Regulation 18
{A) read with Schedule.ll, Part-B of SEBI {Listing Obligations
and disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015

(1) formulaticn of the criteria for determining qualifications,
positve allibutes and independence of a director and
recommend to the Board of directors a policy refating to,
the remuneration of the directors, key managerial
parsonne! and other employess:

the deliberation(s) on the erucial issuss wherever required i2) Tormulation of criteria for evaluation of perdormance of
16 ARG JHanis} on e L ; Gelired. independent divectors and the board of directors;
th) Nomination and Remunaration Committee . ) . . _
(3) devising a policy on diversity of Boasd of directars;

The Company has a duly constituted Nomination &
Remuneration Committee, which among othars is responsible
for identifying and recommending persons who arg qualified to
becorna Directors or appeinted as part of senior management
of the Company and laying down 1emuneration paficy.

Further, the Company seaks the expertise of the outside
consultants a5 and when ngeded for anatyzing the policies of
the Company in relation to appointment and payment of
remunesation 1o Senier Level Executivels) and Staft,

Sh. Raghubar Dayal, Independent Director, has been heading
the Nomination and Bemuneration Committes of the Board s

(A} identifying parsons who are qualified to become directors
and who may be appointed 0 senior managernent in
aceordance with the criteria laid down and recommend to
the Board of Directars their appointmant and remaoval;
recommend that whether 10 extead or continue the Lerm
of appointment of the independent dirgctorn on the biss
of the repart of performance evaluation of independent
diretors.

Composition, Name of Members & Chairman and
Attondance during the year

(5

The following is the Constitution of the Nomiration and Rermuneration Committes:-

Sr. No Name of the Position Gategm\lr Meustinys Held
Committee Member ‘ (Attanded)
1. | Sh.Raghubar Dayel Chaiman Independent
2 Sh. Rarmash Chandra Palhan Member Independent
3. Sh. Pushpindar Singh Grawal Member Indepandent
4, Sh. Munish Kakra Secretary Company Secretary




Meeatings held duving the year: During the financial year 2015
16, the members of the Nemingtion and Remuncration Commitiee
ware held on 28" May, 2015 and 31" March, 2016

Porformance Evaluation of Directors and Performance
Evaluation critaria for Independsent Directors.

The details of methadology and criteria adopted for the evaluation
of Board, Cormmitiees thereof, [ndividual Directors  including
Independent Directors have been pravided in the Board's Beport on
page ng. 17,

Nomination and Kemuneration policy

The Board of Directors, on the recommendation of Nomination and
Remuneration Connnitles of the Board, has approved and adoptedd
a Nomination and Bermuneration Policy for Directors, KMPs and
other employess, The Remuneration and Nomination Policy of the
Company is reviewed by Nomtination and Remuneration Commities
of the Bomrd as and when the need arises. Rermuneration and
Norminatian Policy has been formulated by the Committes by taking
inta accourt the financial position of the Company, trend in the
Footwear Industry, appointee's qualification & experience including
past performance & remuneration paid to the appoiniee(s). The
ahave said Nomination and Remuneration Policy are avaitable on
the weebsite of the Company viz. www libertyshoes.com and set out
in Annexure |l of the Direclor's Report and is forming par of this
rgport, The  brief terms ot reference for  appointment/e-
appoiniment,  evaluation of performence  and  fixation of
remuneration of directors, senior management and KMPs are as
LM

i) The appointmemt and remuneration of new Direclors on Board,
Kay Managesial Personnet and senior management employess
shall be made on the basis of core competency, expertise,
experience, gualification ete.

Evaluation of the performance of the Executive Bireclors shall b

based an the parameters such as accomplishment of assigned

floals, their professional contributions towards the Gompany and
the overall performance. On the basks of the evsluation, the
remuneration of the Executive Directors will ba detarmined,

iii} Evaluation of the averall performance of the Non-axenutive &
independent Directors of the Company shall be deternined by
the tarms of the policy.

v} Bemunoration of the Senior Management employees and Key
Managerial Personne! will be fixed annually considering
performance of the Company as well as their individuat
perdormance and achievernents correspanding to their goals sc
during the year.

Remunaration to Diractors

+ Criteria for payment to Non-Executive Directors (NEDs)

The Nen-axecutive Directors receives remuneration by way of
sitting fee for sltending meetings of the Board and Audit
Committes thereof. The sitting Tee to Non-Executive Directors
a5 determined by the Board is presently 10,000~ for
stending each meeting of the Board and Audit Coramittee
therent. The Board of Diregtors may review the amount of sitting
fee and decide the same from time 1o time i lenng of the

A
R

S

provisions of Companies Act, 2013 and Listing Regulations. In
lemis of the provisions of Section 197 of the Companies Act,
2013 a Company may pay remuneration to its NEDS either by
way of a morthly payment or &l a specified percentage of the
net profits of the Company ot partly by one way and partly by
other 10 the maximuim of 1% or 3% of the net profits, as the
case may be, Thus the basis of payment to the NEDs is the net
jwolit of the Company, The Company is howsever not obligated o
remunerate s NEDs,

Pocuniary relationship or transactions of the Non
Executive Directors vis-&-vis the Company:»

The Comipany has not cartied ool any transactions, whether
reaierial in nature or not, with the Non Executive Directors of the
Company, Accordingly, ro remunaration has been paid to Nan
Executive Directors during the year

Gritgria for payment to Executive Diractors (EDs)

All elements of remuneration package of individual Director:-

The rernuneration pahd to Fxecutive Directors are recommended
by the Nomination and Remuneration Committee and approved
by the Board in the Bowrd Meeting, subject to the subsequant
approval oy the sharehoiders at the General Meeting and such
authgrities, @5 the case rmay be. The remunceration is fixed
considering the various factors such as qualification, expenence,
expertise, prevading remuneration in the industry and financial
position of the Company. All the Executive Directors have been
patd by way of remuneration on the basis of Company's palicy in
rgspect of payment of remuneiation which involves the following
elements of remuneration package:

. Salary:

{:onsolidated monthly romunaration of ¥4,00,000/- per month to
Four Execitive Directors and ¥1,30,0004 per month to
Sh. Ashok Kumar as an Executive Diractor,

Perquisites: '

In addition to the aforesaid salary, Executive Directors are also
entitied to perguisites like fumished accommodation, gas,
electricity, watar and furnishings, madical reimburaement and
lsave travel concession for sell in aceordance with the rules of
the Company. However, the manetary valuge of such perguisites
being limited to the Monthly remungration of T4,00,000/- and
T 1,10.000/ respectively.

Parquisites are ovaluated as per income Tax Act Rules, 1962
wherever appficable, and fn Lhe absence of any such nilgs,
perquisitas are evaluated at actual cost;

And Uze of chauffer driven car for official purpose and telephone
at residence (including payment for tocal calls and fong distance
calls on telephone} and use of car for private purpose are billed
by the Company 1o the Executive Directors,

Company's contribution to the providant fund and
superannuation fund in accordance with the rules of the
Company.

Accordingly, during the finangial year 2015-16, the following
remuneration was paid to the Executive Direclors of the
Company:-




5. No. | Name of the Director Designation Salary Perquisites | Others | Sitting Fees
. {In T} {in%) {In T} Paid {In T}
1 5h. Adesh Kumar Gupta CLG & Dxecwtive Diroctor 48,00,000 NIL NIL NIL
2 Sh. Shamimi Bansal Executive Directar 4 8,00,000 NIL NIL NIL
3. Sh. Sunil Bangal Executive Director i 48,00,000 NiL NIL NIL
4, Sh. Adsesh Kumar Gupta Executive Director 48,00,000 Ml N NI
o, Sh, AshUkKumdr "H‘Exec:uliw Direcloy 11.00,0C0 il ' ‘Nll.' Nll.'
6. Sh, Adarsh Gupta® | Exacutive Diractor NIL NIL NL | N

Ny tetinarniedlion has et deaan by Sh. Atlarsh Gupte, Exeoutive Diroctar of the Company during the finaneinl yoar 201516 fup w 16 August, 2015, e, date of
rusipnalion),

Notes: in Companies Act, 2013 and Listing Regulations inchading

»  No incentives, whether fixed or performance linked,
were (fiven to the Cxecutive Directors during the year
under considiration,

« The Company has 50 far not offered Equity Shares ander
stock option scheme 1o its Directar(s) Employes.

«  Nome of the Non - Exgcttive Directors of the Company
helds any Eguity Shares in the Company except
Sh. Rarnesh Chandra Palhan who are holding 200 {joimly
with his wife).

Service Gontracts, Severance Fes and Notice period

The: appaintrment of the execitive dirgctor is governed by the
resolutions passed by the Board and the sharebolders of the
Company, which cover the terms and conditions of such
appoimment. The Nominations and Remuneration Committes
salisly itself with regard 10 the experience, qualification, past
relationship/association  with  tha  Company etz The
Committee also ensures that tho candidates identified for
appointmerd as Direclors ere not disqualified for appointment
under Section 164 and other applicable provisions of the
Companies Act, 2013, (Gn the recommendation of Commillee,
the Board and sharehnlders appove the appeintment of the
Qirectors, At the time of appaintiernt of Director, the
Company executes 4 separale sesvice agreement defining the
remunaration, tenure, roles, respohsibilities, dities, functions,
obfigations and olher lerms and conditions of service of
Dirstors.
In case of appointrment of Independent Director, the
Normination and Remuneration Committee and Board ensures
he below attribuies/ criteria, while recommending/appointing
the Independsnt Directors;
«  Qualification, expertise and experience of the directors in
1heir respective figlds,
= Parsonal, professional or business standing
+  Diversity of the Beard
The Committes/Board, while recommending/appointing an
Intlependerd Director also ensures the criteria and tanure for
which the Independent Qirector may be appeinted as stated

&)

independent relationshsp of the Dirgctors vis-avis  the
Cormpany so as to enable the Board (o discharge s funcliong
and duties effectively, At the time of appointment of
Independent  Director, the  Comipary  issues  leller of
appointment to the Indepandent Direclors, incorporating
their roles, cuties, responsibilities ete.
Irr ease of re-appointmont of the Direclors, the Committee/
Board, besides above, alsp takes in to consideration the
perfermance  evaluation of the  directors and  their
engagement (evel,
Each of our Cxecutive OQirectors has signed  service
agreement containing the terms af their employment. There
is no separate provisian for payment of severance fee wnder
the tesolution and service agreement goveming  the
sppoiniment of Executive Directors, The slatutary provisions
will however apply, With respect to nolice pered of
direciors, besides the provisions of service agreement, the
statutory provigions will also apply. The Service agreement
may be termingled by either party after giving three months’
notice in writing duly served on the other party.
Stakeholders Relationship Gommittes
Stakeholders Relationship Cormittes had been constituted
by the Board of Directors and was delegated with the
powers to handle all the shares refated issues including
timely redressal of sharsholders' and investors complaints
like non-receipt of batance shect, non-receipt of declared
dividends etc, The Commitiee performs all s dities and
discharges its responsbititics a5 per ity charter fixed by the
Board, which includes roview of the performance of the
Registrar and Share Transfer Agent of the Company and
racommand measuras 1¢ the Board for overalk impravements
in the quality of investors' services wherever required.
The terms of reference of the Stakeholders Rebationship
Committes 14 in fines with the provisions of Regulatton 20 (4}
read with Part-0 of the Schedule NI of SEBI (Listing
Reguiations and Disclosure Hequirsments) Requlatians, 2015
and the briet of the same is as under:
ta) to congider and resolve the grievances of the securily
holders:




bl to consider and resolve the complaints/guenes of the
secwity holders including complaints refated 1o transfer
of shares, non-receipt of annuat report and non-receipt
of declared dividends gte,

During the yesr, the Commillee met Fow times on
20t May, 14" August and 6" November 2015 and
11" February, 2016,

Composition & Name of Nor-Exetutive Direclor heading the Commitier as of now is as under;

§r. No Name of the Committes Membaer({s) Position Catagory Moatings Held
(Attended)
1. Sh. Bamesh Chandra Palhar Chairman NED() 4(4)
2, Sh, Adarsh Gupta® Mamber LD 4(1)
5 Sh. Adeash Kumar Gupta™* Mermber £0 4(2)
4, Sh. Sunil Bangal Member ED 4(4)

*Resigned  weel TEORMNNS
** Appointed wef. 06.11.2015

Name and designation of Compliance Officer

Sh. Munish Kakra, CFQ § Company Secretary is the Compliance
Officer of the Company and he acts =8 Secratary of the
Coramittee. He was present in all the mestings of the Committee

held during the year under congideration.
Status of investor referance/complaints/ieguests received by the

Company during the year ending 37st March, 2016 stood as
undar;

Nature of Referonces / Requests No, of Griavancos/ | No. of Grievances/ | No, of Grievaneas/ | No. of Grievances/
Reguests/Complaints | Requests/Complaints | Requests/Complaints | Reguests Pending
Received Resolved not resolved to the
satisfaction of
shovuholdors
Mon receipt of Sharn Gertificate(s) & Non rageipt Ni. NHl. i MIL
N teceips of Bons, Dividand § Ard Repon NIL NiL NiL NIL
Issue of duplicate / |.oss of Cortificate g 8 NI NIL
Revalidation of Dividend ¢ 10 AIL MIL
lssue of Physical Annual Repon 3 3 NIL NIL
Change of address, Name correction Transmission 3 3 NIL NIL
b others
Received from reguintory bodics such ag Ministry 1 ¥ Al NiL
o Carporate Affairs, S ISCOAES) andd Slock
Exchanges slc.
Transfer/ Trunsmission of Shares 2 7 NIL ML
Dividend Through £CS NIL Il nIL NI,
Non- recespt of Dividend 7 7 Ml NH.
Total 30 30 NI NIL

All the references/Complaints recaived from the shareholders ar
from regulatory bodies during the year under review wers resoived
to their enlire satisfaction, Apart from these queries/complaints,
there is one pending case relating 10 dispute over Ulte 1o shares in
which the Compary has been made 2 party, However the aforesaid
case is not material in nature, There are 7 {Seven) cases (involving
900 Equily Shares) conceming dispule over titles to Sharps, are
pending with the Company as on 37t March, 2018,

(d) Managoment Committe

For facilitation of various decisions relating to day to-day
operational matlers and matters relating 0 finance the
Managerment Commitlze of the Board was constituted by
the Buoard of Daeclors in the year 2007 and has heen
reconstituted  from time to time depending upon the
requitements of the Cormpany.




During the year, the Committee met Thiee times on The following i5 the constitution of the Commitiee as of now:-
31" August. 14" Dacember 2015 and 28" March, 2016,
5r. No Name of the {:ummlttna Member Position ‘E;Htagury Meetings Held
(Attended)

1. Sh. Adesh Kumar Gupta Mamber b 33

2 Sh. Adarsh Gupta' llllllllllllllllllllllllllllllll Member Fﬂ 3

3, Sh Adfﬁ’,‘f’??hﬁ!f"m" Gupta*® Member Ef) 312)

4, Sh, Slual;r“l.:;ﬁ‘ﬁa‘nsal Member ED 33

5. $h. Raghubar Dy Member NED( af3)

3 Sh. amesh Chandra Pathan T Mernber NED) R

* Resigned wed 18.08.2015
»* Appointed wed. 06.11.2015

{e) Corporate Social Responsibility Committes » formulating and recommending to the Board, Comorate
Pussuant 1o the provisions of Section 135 of the Companies Secial Responsibility Fulicy and the activlies 1o be
Acl, 2013 and rufes made there under, the Corporate Social urdertaken by the Company as specified in Schedula Vit
Hesponsivility Committee constituted by the Board of of the Companies Act, 2013;

Diractors in their meeting held on 28th May, 2014 which

C ‘ o g . « recommending the amount of expenditure to be incusred
cormptised Four Directors viz, Sh, Shammi Bansal (ED) as the .

Chaitman and $h. Adeesh Kurmar Gupta, (ED) Sh. Raghubar on the activities undartaken;
Dayal B Sh. Ramesh Chanda Pathan {{NED}I} as members « reviewing the performance of the Company in the area of
of the Committee, The Board of Directors in thelr meeting Corporate Social Respansibility;

hatd on 30" May, 2016 reconstituted the composition of C8R . . - .
i b « monitoring Corporate Sonial Responsibility policy of the

Committee by inducting Smi. Lovelena Mody {{NCO}I)} as Company from tirme 10 time;
its membes, '

The Board has defined the terms of referonce of the + - such other functions as the Board may deem fit

Corporate Social Besponsibifity Sommitles as undgr The foliowing is the constitution of the Commitiee:
Sr. No Nama of tha Committes Member Positich Gatagory Mastings Held
{Attended]

1, Sh, Shammi Bansal Chairman Executive {irector RIUN

2. Sh. Adeesh Kumar Gupla Member Executive Director 11}

3 Sh. Raghubar Dayal Member Non-Executive 11}
Independent Directar

4, Sh. Ramesh Chandra Palhan Member Non-Executive 11}
Indepandent Director

5. Smt, Lovelena Mody Mermnber Non-Executive H-*
[ndependent Director

" dppomted as mamber wiel 30.05.2016

[uring the year, one mesting of the CSA Commitiee was held on Committee as approved the CSR policy of the Company during
31" March, 2016, the financial yaar 201415, The detailed CSA policy is available on
CSR Policy the website of the Company viz. www liberlyshoes.com

The Board of Directers on the recommendation of the CSR




4,

Governance through Manapement process

Name of the palicy

(otle of Conduct

Brief description

Web link

The Board of Direciors bag adopted Codi of

Conduct for &l the Board Members and designatiad
members of Senior Management of the Company,

hitp:invastottibertyshoes.com/doc/Code_of
conduct_ot_Romd_Maembers_and_senior_
Muragemen_Patsanme pul

Codefor pravention of Insiden Trading

They Company hag adopted a code of contduat to
requfiste, mokitor and reper tading by insiders
undar the SERE (Probibition of Insider Tading)
Regulations, 2014, This code of conduct also
includes code for practices and procedures for
fair disclosure of unpublished price senstive
infarmation and ks been made available on the
Company's wizbsite,

hitp:/finvestor libertyshoes.com/don/CCDE_OF _
FRACTICES AND PROCEDURES FOR FAIR_
DISCLOSURE. prf

Whistleblower Falicy
(Policy on vigil mechanism)

The Company has adopted the Whistleblower
machanizm Tor directors snd employees to repart
congetmz ahoul nethicsd bebavicr,  actual o
suspeeted fraud, or violation of the Canpany ¢oda
of conduct. The Board amended the palicy 10 make
it consistent during fiscal year 2016,

hitp:/finvesterlibertyshoes. com/don/Whistle_
Fower_ Palicy.pdf

Nomiration and Remuneration Policy

This policy fornsulates the critera for detemmining
gualifications, cempetencies, positve attrixies
and indopendonce for the sppoimment of a
digctor fexacilive Aan-gxecutive Diractor) and
algo the criteda for determining the remineration
of the direclors, key managenial posonnel and
other smployses,

hll:J?//trlvetalor.Iibea‘fys}wes.com/duc/
NOMINATION _AND _BEMUNERATION
POLICY.pol

Corporate 5ocial Responsibility Folicy

The poficy outlines the Company's strategy 1o
bring about & positive impact on society through
programs nfisting to hunger Povarty, education,
health care, environmest ang loweiing ils iesaurce
footprirt,

hip:/finvestorlibertyshoes.com/doc/CSR
Folicy.pdf

Refated Pty Transactions Pofiay

The pofloy requlstes all ransactions betwaen the
Compuny and its relzled parties

Rttpe/Anvaston ibantyshoes, com/doc/Ruliled_
parly_trangaction, pf

Website Archival Poficy

I'olicy on determination of materiality of events

The poficy applies to discloswres matenal svams
offecting the Gompany. Thia pahcy is in addition to
the Company’s comarate policy statezment or in
itwastor relations, which denls with the dissemination
af uripuiblizied, nive-sonsitiv informati

hup/finvestonlibertyshoes, com/doc/Liberty
Palicy on_Determination of Materighty_of
Events,paf

The Policy deals with the arclivit of Corporate
facords of (ke Company.

ntpi/finvestonlibartyshoes.com/doc/Libarty_
Archival_Policy.pri

fligk Manigamd Policy

Thig palicy is approved by the Beard 1o Dl and
establish the process and procedure fo identifying,
as5es5ing, quantifying, minimizing, mitigatng and
managirg the associated risk. [t aims 1o develop an
approach to make assessmoent and management
of tigks in financial, operational and project bascd
ateas in imely manni,

htp/finvestorietyshoas.com/doe/Hisk_Manage
roent_Policy.pof

Falicy far proservation of Docignants

Policy on Prevention, Prohibition § Redressal of

Seoaal Hinassmgnt of Wormen ot warkpleoe

This policy obligates the Company or |:resuwatiun
ol documents i order o prevent flom baing
altered, d dlest

mip:/investor libertyshoes.cor/doc/l raervation_
of_Trangaction_Poficyndf

The Company always cndeavors to oreate and
provide  an envirentent  that g fine Trom
diserivinatipn and - havagsment  incloding  sexuab
haraggmant, The Company always provide an eaual
employment  opportunily 10 erployees and 5
commilted 1o provide 3 safe and Soadusive wok
environment thi enabies employess to wotk withoul
fear of prejudice, gender bigs and sexual Karassimenl,

nttp:/investarlibertyshoes.com/doc/Sexualtarras
semantPalicy_LibertyShaest td el




% Subsidiary Monitoring Framewaork

At present, the Company s having only 1 {one) wholly owned
subsidiary Company namely Liberty Foot Fashion Middle Lost
26 which is overseas unlisted Company. As required under
Listing
franagement praclices adopled by the Cornpany and iy
subsidiary Gornpany, the Cormpany monitors e perfoimance
of its subsidiary Company, inter glia, by the {a) Financial
slatements (o) Minutes of the Board Mertings and/or requisite

the applicable  provisions  of

AT TNy
S

Reguiations  and 5.

infgrmation of the subsidiaty Company (c) Periodic review by
the Audit Commitlee af the statement of &l significent
transactions & an anangemant entered into by the subsidiary
Campany.

Goneral Body Mestings
i, General Meating

a. Annual General Meeting : Location and time, where the
fast thres Arnual General Meetings were beld as under:

Maeting Year Vanue Day & Date . Ti
29th Annual General Meeting 2015 Registered Office Tuesday, 29th Semambmi,?ﬂh 11,00 AM
281h Annual General Meeting 2014 Reqlistered Office Maonday, 25th September, 2014 11,00 AM
27tk Annuat Genersl Meeting 203 Registered Office ‘ﬁidav, 20th September, 2013 11.00 AM

b. Extracrdinary general meeting:

No extraordinary general meeting of the members was held during the year 2015-16.
fi. Special Resolutions: Special Resofutions ransacted at the fast three Annual General Meetings ave as under

. 29 : Annual (‘;;na"rai Mﬂétinu
on 20" Saptembar, 2015

28" Annual Genoral Muating
on 28" Segtember, 2014

27" Annual General Meeting
on 20" September, 2013

Nos. of Spacial Business: B

Nos. of Special Business: 11

Nos, of Special Businass: 11

. fAe-appointment  of

. Agpointment of Smi. Lovelena Mody {DIN: 012759148)

a5 i ndepandoat Diteeton

. Agpeintmens ol Sh, Ashaok Kumar (DIN: 0BHE3514)

as & Direciot

. Appointment of Bh, Ashok Kumar (DIN: 0GB33514)

as i Executivi Diracion

. Resappointmemt of Sk Adesh Kumar Gupia ©IN;

(0143152) o5 CEQ 4 Execonivi Dicto:

. Resappointment of Sh, Adarsh Gupta (DIN: 00161193}

{5 i Exocitive Divector

Sh. Sharnmi
00Y387492) a5 an Cxatutive Diraciar

Bunast  (OIN:

. Re-appointment af Sh, Sunil Bansst {QIN. DB1421217)
i Exetotivi: Dueclor of thi Comipxany
2. Appointment of Sh, Saghubar Dayat (DIN; D0461803)
as an dndependont Oiectal of he Company far a
pering of 5 years
3. Appointmant of Sh. Vivak Bansal {OIN: 00939232} a5
an Indeprncant Direcior of the Company fot a peaiod
of b ysars
. Appaimiment af Sh. Amilabh Taneja (N2 G0031257)
as &0 Indepandent Dinactor of the Company for a
Pisticnes of 5 yems
. Appodmment of Sh. Ramesh Chandin Palhan {(IN;
0B241018) o an Indupendent Director of the
Company for & penarl of 3 yaars
G, Appoistimant of Sh. Pushpindet Singh Growal {DIN:
NBIBAA7S) as an Independem Dirgctor of he
Company for & period of % yaars
7. Appoirtment and fication of Remynaration of Cost
Auditors M/s K. L. Jaisingh & Co,, for the EY 2014-15
in compliance to o Companios Act, 2013
8. Appioval and adoption of Articles of Association of
thiz Company incompliance of e privislons of the
Comipanigs A, 2013
0 Apmoval ol oxercising  bonowing  powars  undo
Section 180 (1) (o) of the Companies Act, 2013
10. Approval for axatcising powars in ralaticn 10 montgage
/ crente sacurity on the Assets of the Company unde
Section 180 (1) (3] of the Comgpanies Act, 2013
11, Appoval for keaping Register of Membas with the
Begistar M/s Link Intinae India P, L3,

=

o

1. Increage in Ramuneration of $h. Adesh Kumar Guats,
CEO & Exacytiva litecior

2. Increase in Hemunetstion of Sh, Adarsh Gupa,
Exacutive Diractor

4, Ingrease in Bomuteation of Sh. Shamm Bansal,
Exeputive Dirgutor

A Ineiease i Remuneration of  Sh. Sl Bunsat,
Expgutive Dirnctor

8. Increaso in Remunciation of Sh, Adeesh Kumar Gupta,
Cxrucntiviz Diracton

6. Increase in Remuneration of Sh. Raman Gonsal,
Huat) Bales & Distritiution

7. Increase in Remuneration of Sk, Vivek Bansal,
Head-Fraduction

#t. Appointmant of 3h, Anupam Bansal as Head-Retail 6
fixtion of his remuneration

A, Fost facte approval in terms of the Gentral Geverament
appioval no, 448/T-1/2013/DA141, doted 3° April, 2013
for antering i 10 contiael by the Company wilh
Mg Litsarly Footwair Co. [LFC) for avasibng services for
use of their reqistered Trade Murk “Liberly” and other
marks & logos

10.Fost facio approval in erms of the Ceniraf Government

approval no, 4/80/T-1/2013/0/142, dated 3" April, 2013

for ameling in to condtact by Company with M/ Liinny

Ctstrrptisa(LE} for use of services of theit Fixed Assats

for manglaciating of foswwar and Expon Sales

Netveark for sals ot footwear by he Gompany

.Pos facte appraval intenms of tiz Cantal Grvernment

approval no, A07/-1/2013MA43, daied 3" Amil,

2013 for entering in to contract by the Compsny with

M7s Liberty Group Marketing Division (LGMD) for use of

sonvices of thelr Fixed Assets Tor manalaciuing of

footwaar and ogistansd radamarks and Domastic

Salus neatworks for sale of footwear by tha Company




*Nue to resignation of Sh. Adarsh Gupta from the position of
Diractorship weed 18.08.2075, agenda ftam na, 8 to the Notice of
AGM was not transacted apd an resolution was passed for bis re.
appointment as Executive Director.

sh,

Sukesh Gupta, Charternd Accountant was appoinied as

sorutinizer by the Board and present st the shove 29" Annuat
General Meeting Tor supenvising and maonitoring the voting through
batlot facilities on the above agenda items ard to issue kg report on
the same.

inerest of the Cornpany at large. During the financial year
2014-15 the Board has approved and adoptéd a policy on
related party tansactions 1o regulate the transactions
of the Company with its related parties. The policy has
begti uploaded on the website of the Corpany
wwwlibertyshoes. com.

As per the policy, afl the related party transactions requine

prior approval of the Audit Commitles and Board of
Directors of the Company. Prior approval of the

iit. Detail of special resolution passed by the Company shareholders of the Company is also reguired Tor certain
through postal ballot exercise, the persons who refated party transactions g¢ prescribed onder Companies
conducted the postal ballot exercise and detail of the Art, 2013 and listing agreement/SERI Regulitions.
voting pattern, detall of special resclution propesed to All related party transactions thal were enlered in 1o
be conducted through pestal ballet and procedure for dhuring the financial year were on aim's length basis. There
postal ballot were no taterial individual tansactions with related
During the year under revigw, no special reselition has been parties which may have a potentisl conflict with the
passed through the exercise of postal ballol. Noog of the interest of the Company at large, The tansactions that
ftems to be transacted at the ensuing meeting is required to eniered in 1o with the telated parties during the year
b passed by posial ballot exercise. under review were in the normal course of busingss, Al
Further there 35 no special resolution proposed 1o be the details of related party transactions carried out by the
canducted through postal batlot in the Annual General Company during the year under review can be observed
Metting, tram the disclosures made in Notes on Accounts to the
iv. Group As on 315t March, 2016: financiaf stataments for tha year onded 31st M?rch, 2016
Sh. 0. K. Gupta, D. K. Gupla (Karta), Sh. Arpan Gupta, a; ‘s!necﬂlled g\ Ac(;:ruglmrrnigistalyggg 18 of the Companies
Sh, Adesh Kumar Gupta, Adesh Kumar Gupta (Karta), (Accounting Standards) Rutes., 20C6.
8h, Adarsh Gupta, $h. Anmol Gupta, Sh. Adoesh Kumar ii) Detail of non-compliances, penalties, stricturgs by
Gupta, Adeesh Kumar Gupla (Karta), Sh. Pranav Gupta, Stock Exchanges/SEBI/Statutary Authotitias on any
Sh. Akshat Gupta, Smt Kamiavat, Sh. Sunil Bangal, matter related to captain markets during the last
Smt. Relti Devi, Sh, Ayush Bansal, Sh. Shammi Bansal, three years
Sh. Manan Bangal, Sh, Vaibhav Bansat, Sh, Haman Banaal, The Compsny has complied with the fequirements of
Sh. Ruchir Baznsal, Sh. Vivek Bansal, Sh, Pulikit Bansal, Steck Exchangsls), SEBI other statutory authorities during
Sh. Anuparm Bansal and Geofin Investiments Pt, Ltd, the preceding three financial year(s) on all matters 1elated
B, Disclozures o Capital Market and ng penalty / stictres have been
il Disclosure on matorially significant related party impnsed on the Company in any matter.
transactions iii} Inter-se relationships betweoen Directors and Key
The Campany did not have any material sigrificant related Managerial Personnal of the Company
party transaction baving a potenttal conflict with the i) Rirectors;
5. No. Name of Diroctor Relationship with other Directors/KMPs
1. 8h. Adesh Kumar Gupta None
2. . &h. Sharami Bansed 4 Brother of Sh. Sunil Bansal
3. Sh. Sunil Bansal Srothor of Sh, Shammi Bansal
4. Sh, Adeesh Kumar Gupla None
B, Sh. Ashok Kumar None
B. Sh, Raghubar Dayal None
7. Sh. Amitabh Taneja None
B, Sh. Vivek Bansal None
g, Sh. Ramash Chandia Palhan None
10 Sh. Pushpinder Singh Grewat Nong
. Smi. Lovelena Mody Nore




Key Managerial Personnel:

Sr. No.

Namae of Key Managarial Puln;;'t'rlwnbl

Rplationship with other Directors/KMPs

1, Sh. Munish Kakra

Nona

iv) Detal of establishmant of Vigil mechanism and

v)

vi)

Whistle Blower Policy

The Company his adopted a Whistle Blower Policy (Vigi
Mechanism) and  has  established the necessary  vigl
mochanism for employees and dirgctors to report congerns
about unethical hehavior, No parson has been denied access
to the Chairman of the audit committee, The said policy has
been also put up on the website of the Company at the link
wwwilibertyshoes.com. No personnel in the Company have
been denied access 1o the Audit Comimittee,

Compliance with Mandatory requirements

The Company has cornplied with all the mandatory corporate
governance requirerments under Listing Regulations. Specificaly,
your Cormpany confitrng compfiance with corporate governance
requirernents specified in tegulation 17 1o 27 ang clauses (b} o
it of subwregulation (2) of segulation 46 of the Usting
Regulations.

Compliance Report on Non-mandatory requiremonts
under Regulation 27 (1) of the SEBI {Listing Dbligations
and Disclosure Roquiraments) Ragutations, 2015

1. The Board

As per pars A of Part E of schedule 1t of the Lsting
Regulations, 4 non-execulive Chairman of the Board
may be enlitied 1o maintain a Chairman's Office al the
Company's expgnse and also allowed reirbussernent of
expanses incurred in performance of his duties. The
Chairman of the Company is an Executive Dipector
honce this provision is not applicable on us,
2, Sharaholding Rights

We display aur quarterly, half yearly and annually results
on our website www.libertyshoes.com and also gublish
our results in widely circulatod newspapers, We have
communicaied the payment of dividend through e-mail
10 shareholders in addition to dispatch of letters to all
sharehotders,  We publish the voting  results  of
sharehofders meetings and make it available on our
wabsite wwwlbertyshoes.com and report the same 1o
Stock Exchianges in tenms of regulation 44 of the Listing
Repulations. Significant evenls are also posted on this
website undet "investor Belations” seclion. Cormplete
Annwual Report is senl to every shargholder thiough &
mail whose Fmail D Ras bier updated with the
depositaries/Company/RTA and alse {o those who make
request for providing the same. Notice of General
Merting along voting instructions is sent 1o all the
sharcholders and makes it available on the websile of
the Company under Section “lnvestor Relations”™ in

addition to submission of the same with Stock
Lxchanges, Shareholders' grievances/complaints/quenins
have bean addressed and resolved at maost priorities to
the satisfaction of the shareholders,

3. Modified opinion(s) in audit report
It has always been the Company's endeavor (o present
financial statements with unmodified audit report, The
Statutory Avditors have issued an unmadified opinion
on the financial statements of the Company for the
financial year anded 31" March, 2016.

4, Separate Posts of
Exacitive Officer
The Chairman of the Company is the Crecutive Directar,
Wiz believie that senior leadership should have in-depth
knowledge and understanding of the functioning of the
Company and trage 1o which the Company belongs, so
as 1o enhance the value- generating capacily of he
arganization and contrbute significantly to stakeholders'
agpirations  and  societal  expectations. The  Chief
Executive (Higer of the Company is therefore generalty
chosan from smongst the Execitive Management of
tha Company. The current Chiel Executive Officer and
[xecutive Director of the Company is also the Chairman
ol the Bowd, The Company's Board consists of
Independent [irectars not less than 50 percent of the
total strength of the Board and all policy and strategic
decisions af the Company are laken through reguired
frigjority decisions of the Board, The interested directors
does not pericipates and castes their votes in the
matters in which they and their relatives are having
interest.

5. Reporting of Internal Auditor

The Internal Auditor of the Company reports dircctly to
the Audit Committee and is @ permanent invitee to all
the Audit Committee Meetings.

Means of Communication
Financial Rosults

Pursuant to Regulation 33 of the SEB (Listing Obligations and
Disclosure Requirements) Regulation, 2015 the Company has
regularly Turnished Quarterly and half - yearly unaudited and
anhual audited results of the Company to hoth the Stock
Exchanges Le, BSE and NSE where the Eruity Shares of the
Cornpany are listed. The above resulls are also published in
lpading English and vernacular newspapers viz. Business
Standard, Financial Express English daily and in Janasata,
Hindi Daity.

Chairperson  and  Chief




Additionally, the Company from time to time also furnished
the required dacumems and intormation o both the stock
exchangals) NSE and BSE in temns of the applicable
provisions of Listing Regulations. All ow financial results,
news refeases and presentation made, if any, al investor
conferences and to analysts are posied on the Company's
wehsite at wwwlibertyshoes.com

Woahsite

Pursuant to Regulation 46 of the SEB (Listing Obigations
and Disclosure  Feguirements) Regulations, 2015 the
Company's  websile  wwwliberlyshoss.com  containg &
dedicated functional segment called “Investor Relations”
where all the information needed by the shareholders is
avdilable incloding Results, Fress Releases, Shareholding
pattern,  Managemenl  Information,  Arncuncements &
General Meeting's fesults & informatian ete.

NSE Electronic  Application Processing  System
{NEAPS) & BSE Listing Centre

The Company also files information through NEARS-a web
based application provided by NSE & on BSE Listing Centre
which facifitates online fiting of Corporate Governance Aeport
Shareholding Pattern and other Reports and Statements ete,
by Companies.

Extensive Businass Reporting Language (XBRL)

XBRL is a language for olectronic communication of business
ang financial data, It offers major benefits 1o all those who
have to create, transmit, use or analyze such information
which aids better analysis and decision making.

General Sharehalder information:
. Annual General Mesting:
Day, Date & Time

S
g

Ministry of Corporate Affairs {MCA) vide Hs circulat No.
3701 dated June 7, 2011 had mandmed certain
conpanies 1o file their Annual Accounts vide this mode. The
Company, in compliance, has filed its Annual Accounts on
MEA through XBRL for the previous Tinanciat year erded on
31" March, 2015,

Minigtry of Corporate Affairs (MCA)

The Company has periodically fled afl the necessary
docurments wilh e MOA.

SEB1 Complaints Redress System (SCORES)

A contralized wab based complaints redress system which
serves as a centralized database of afl complaints recaived,
enables uploading of Action Taken Beports [ATRs} by Lhe
cangemed Companies and arding viewing by the invostors of
action taken on the complaint and its current status.

Annual Repon

The Anngal Beporl  comtaining  interalin  the  Audited
Accounts, Consolidated Financial Staternents, Cash Flow
Gtatement, Oirectors' Reporl, Auditors' Report and other
irnporiant information is circulated to the investors.

Pursuant to the green initiative faunched by the MCA, the
Cormpany also sends c-copies of the Annual Report to
Members who have regislered for the same, The Annual
Reports are also available in the Investor Relations section on
the Cormpany's website www libertyshoes,.com,

Monday, 19" September, 2096 at 11.00AM.

Venue ; liberypuram, 13th Milestone, G.1, Karnal Road, Kutail, B0, Bastara,
Dist, Kamal-132 114 {Haryana)

Books Closure Date ,
Financial Year & Financial Calendar (Tentative):

Financial Hesults for the Quarter ended 30th June, 2016
Finanicial Results {or th Quarler ended 30th September, 2016
Firahcial Results for tha Quarter ended 318t Deceamber, 2016
Financial Besults for the Quarter ended 31st March, 2017
Annual Genaral Meeting for the year ended 31st March, 2017

The {inancial year of the Company starts on 1% day of April
and ands an 31" day of March of next year,

Commeodity Price Risk or Foreign Exchange Risk and
hodging activities and Disclosure:

Please refer 1o Management Discussion and Analysts Beport
for details,

Dividend Payment Date:

Considering the financizl reguirement of the Gompany, the

Tuesday, 13" September, 2016 to Monday, 18" September, 2016

By 14" August, 2016
By 14"Novemher, 2016
By 14" February, 2017
[3y 30th May, 2017

By August / Sept. 2017,

Board of Directors have not recommended / approved
payment of Dividend for the financial year ended 31"
March, 2G16.

Listing on Stock Exchanpes with their Trading Codes:
At present the Lguity Shares of the Company ate listed on
Lhe following Stock Lxchangeds):




National Stack Exchange of India Ltd., ISIN of Couity Shares of the Company:
Exchange Plaza, Bandra Kwls Complex Bandra {East), INESE7E03019
Mumbai- 460 (51 The Annual Listing fee for the financial year 2016-17 has
NSE: LIBERTSHOE. singe been paid 1o both the Stock Exchange(s).
BSE Limited, Phivoze JeeJeebhoy Towers, Dalad Street, vi. Stock Market Data:
Murmbai-400 001 The Comparison of the share price of the Company with the
BSE: 526596 broad based indices arg provided herein under:
Performance in Comparison to § & P Nifty
Index vs. Share Prige Liberty Share Price on NSE Vs. NSE Nifty
AL 1060000
. No. YEAR &P CNX SHARE
(2015-16) Nifty PRICE {IN T) P s W
1 Anril-15 B844.80 794,80
2 May-15 B489.55 256.00 e R e
3 Junge15 8467.15 247.80 B 0 |t N
4 July-15 BB54.75 261,70 \ﬂ_ﬁ._,__._m\\ - 20i50.00 £
5 August-15 B621.55 28325 E K \ ﬁ
6 September-15 B055.00 213.60 ey | B0
7 Octaber15 B336.30 219.30 e
8 Novarnber15 8116.10 219.90 10000 - 500000
q Decembir-35 7978.30 224.00
10 Janvary-16 747256 205.00 A A A N A A L
1" Fehruary-16 760045 171.95 5 ,1 $ 3 % 8 5 E 558D
L March-15 7777.60 158.50 e SHARE PRIGE fn ) e CRX NFTY
Performance in Comparison to Sensex
Sensex vs. Share Price Liberty Share Price an BSE Vs, BSE SENSEX
‘ 06,00 00,00
5. No. YEAR HSE SENSEX SHARE
(2015-16) PRICE (IN %} il
1 Aprit-15 2409461 284,40 - 30000.00
2 May-15 280116 256,720 300.00
3 June-15 27868.75 247.40 N '\—_./A - 2800000
4 Juy-15 wes3s | o100 | & O N g
5 August-15 28417.59 2B4.0¢ g 06,00 “omon 8
& September-15 26471.82 213.50
7 Detabar-15 27618.14 218.70 Vi
B | Novembee15 | 25824.30 219.60 - O
4 December-15 26256.42 222,00
10 Januzry-16 26197.27 21120 s e o I AL
11 February-16 2500232 171.60 P é _'s_;‘ % é- 5 o8 .‘.i‘ ﬁ & % _;;
12 March-16 2h474 652 1h0.60
rera— SHARE PRIGE {tn °} wosspsss BSE SENSEX
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The monthly high fow gutations a3 well as the valume of shares taded al National Stock Exchange of India Ltd, (NSE} and BSE L. {BSE) Tor
the financial year ended 317 March, 2016 are as undor;

KEY INDICATORS:
EQUITY SHARE PRICE MOVEMENT ON NSE & BSE (April 2015« March 2016)

{Price in T} Valume {in No. of Shares)
High Low
Year {2015-16] NSE 8SE NSE BSE NSE BSE
April 294.80 294.40 234.00 234.70 2615629 408704
May 756,00 256.20 20708 227.60 1630514 400428
June 247.80 247.40 206.35 208.40 1584577 425889
July 261.70 261.00 2000 27330 3490117 Ba3B14
August 283.25 284.00 187.00 187.60 4916560 1262275
September 213,50 213.50 187.35 188 1735843 251144
Qclaber 219.30 218.70 191.50 192.00 2472397 618781
November 218.890 219,60 182.95 183.10 1702453 AHIDI
December 224.00 27200 190.00 191.00 1795217 463974
January 211.80 211.20 161.15 161.00 983640 264098
February 171,95 171.60 125,00 125.00 1096297 323518
March 158,50 158.60 132.00 133,30 1412612 3749466
Total 25436046 6909606

vii. Registrar and Shara Transfor Agent:

tink Inime India Private Limited
44, Community Gantre,
Naraing Industiial Area Phase- |
Mew Dafhi - 110 28

Ted: (81) - 11- 41410682 -54
Faw: [91) - 11- 41410597
E-migl; dethigalinktime.co.n

viti. Share Transfer System and Redressal of Investor

Griavances/complaints and queries:

The Company has made arrsngements with M/s Link intime india
Private Limited, Registrar and Share Transfer Agent (RTA}. After
completion  of  preliminaty  formalities  and  venfication  of
penumeness of the Shareholders, documerts lodged by them
and authsntication of signatures on the documents with the
speciman signatues available in their records, RTA sent the
documents along with Share Certificates 10 the Company for
approval/endorsement of transfers Airansmissions.

Howavar, the objertions/deficiencias in the documants lodged
by shargheldars are sent 1o them immediately within a
reasonahle time pariod, With a view o expedite the process of
Share Tansfer/ tanstission ele, on Tagt track basis, the Boad
hag empowered the CFO & Company Secretary of the Company
for approval/fendorsement of the Share cetificates ete, The

dotails of the transfer/transmission of shares arn placed before
the Board and Stakeholdars Ralationship Commities periodically,
Confirmations in respect of the requests for dematerialization
of shares are being sonl o the respective deposilonies e,
NSDL & €051 expediivusty.

The Company oddresses Al complaints,  suggestions,
grievances  and other  carrespondence  axpaditiously  and
replies ore sent to the Shargholders usually within 7 -10 days
gxcept in case of legal impadiments and  non-availability
of documents. The Compsny  endeavors (o implement
suggestions as and when received from the Shareholders,

Thie Company/ATA takes adoquatz steps for expoditiously
redress  the  investors'  complaits/grievances/quenies.  [n
compliance with Whe provisions of Listing Regulations, the
Company has been registered on the SCORES platform and
monitors and handies the investor complaints electronically.
A statement giving rumber of investor complaints pending at
the boginning of the quarter, those received during the
quartgr, disposed of during the quarer and those remaining
urrasolvad a1 the end of the quarter have boen filed on
fquartarly hasis with the Stock Fxchanges in complianco with
the Regulation 13 of the listing Begulations, These
slatements are also avallable on the websita of the Company
viz, wwwliberlyshoes.corn,




Pursuant to the Regulation 7 (3) of the Listing Regulations,
Certificata{s) on balt yeady basiz have heen issued by
M/ Sanjay  Giover 8 Associgles,  Praclicing  Company
Secretay of New Delhi for due Compliance of Share Transfel
formafities by the Compony. As per SEGI (Depositories &
Participants)  Regulations, 1998, certificate(s) have  been

received from Mfs Sanjay Grover & Associates, Practicing
Gompany Secretary of New Delhi for timely demateriglization
of shares and in respect of Seorctarial Audit on quarterly
hisgis for recenciliztion ot the Share Gapital of the Company.
ix. Distribution of Shareholding:
Distribution Summary as on 315t March, 2016

Shareholding of Number of Shargholders Nutmber of Shares Amount
nominal value of Nomber % of total Nembar % of total {in T}
Up to 500 17346 94119 1868180 10.9694 18691800
511000 516 3.333 491275 7.8B28 4812250
1001-2000 244 1,320 369998 21n3 3698980
200%-3000 74 0.400 187884 1.1026 1878840
30014000 2t 0,114 13747 0.4328 137470
40601-5L000 28 0.152 133040 0.7808 1330400
5001-10000 39 0.21% 273250 1.6036 2732580
10001-50000 34 0.184 601035 3.5277 BO10350
500G1-100000 b 0.027 339718 1.9804 3392480
Abave 100001 26 0.4 12741384 14,5306 127G13840
Total 18483 0000 | 17040000 160 170400000
Category wise List of Shareholders 2% on 31" March, 2016
Catagory No. of Shares held Voting Strangth (%)
Promoters Holding:
A, Individual Promoters B0A7,679 39,49
8. Bodies Carporate(s) 44,72517 76.25
Total promoters holding 1,05,20,146 61.14
i Holding
._FI's, NAI's & Banks eic, 11,008 0.06
R. Indian public including Private corporate bodigs 65.08.846 38.20
Total Public Holding §5,19,8%4 38.26
Grand Total 1,70,40,000 100.00

Xx. Shares held in physical and dematerialized form and

systert of hoth NSDE and COSL through their depoesitory

Liquidity:
The Companys Shares  are  lraded  compolsorly  in
dematerialized form and are available for trading in depository

participants, As on 31st March, 2016, tha status of Shares in
physical and dematerialized form stood as under;

5 No Moda of Equity Share Holding(s) Number of Sharas Parcantage of 1otal capital
1 Demat 1,67,40,432 98.75
? Physical 209 h68 1.75
Tatal 1,10,40,000 100.00




Hi.

Xir,

i

Hiv.

XV,

i,

)

The Company has complied with the requirements as laid down i
the SEB (listing Obligations and Discloswre  Requiremants)
Regulations, 2036 ffram Decembee 1, 2015 (o March 31, 2016}
and Clause 49 of the erstwhile Listing Agreement with the Stock
Exchangos (from April 1, 2015 2o Novembar 30, 2115) for the
patpuse of ensuing Corporate Governance, A centificate to this
offect oblained from M/ Pardeep Tayad &8 Co., Chsrened
Arcountants, the Statutory Auditors of the Company, has been
arached o this Arpual Repont,

The Lompsny's shares are among the liquid and sclively Lraded
shares on Indizn Stock Exchanges.

Plant Locations:

The Company's plants are located ol Kamal in Haryana, at
Debradun @nd Roorkes in Uttrakhand ond st Ponta Sahike in
Himachal fradesh.

Quistanding Global doposits receipts or  American

depository receipts or warrants or any convertible

instruments, conversion date and likely impact on equity:

The: Company does not have outslanding Global deposils receipts

or American depository receipts or warrants ar any convertible

ingtrurnents, therefore the above provisions are rot applicable in

Gl CRise.

Paolicy for determination of a material subsidiary:

There i no matetal subsidiary of the Company; therelore the

Company Bas not adopted the Policy so fax

Policy on Related Party Transactions:

The Policy may be accessed on he Company's websile al

www libertyshoss.com.

Disclosure with respect to demmat suspense account/

unclaimed suspense account (unclaimed shares):

Pursusnt 10 Regulation 39 of the listing Regulations, ramindars

leiters have been sent (o shaseholders whose shares nemain

unclaimed from the Cormpany. Based on response, such shares wil

be transfarred to “unclaimed suspense account” as per the

provisions of schedule VI of the Listing Regulations, The disclosure

as required under schedole Voof the Listing Regulations is given

below:

{@) Aggregate number of sharsholders and the oulstanding shares
in 1he suspense account lying al the beginning of 1he year- Nil

(L) Mumber of shareholders who approached fisted entity for
transler of shares from suspense sccount during the year- Nil

{c) Nurber of sharghnolders to whom sharas were wangtened

AT

T
Liberty Shoes Ltd

fromm suspenss sceount during the yoar-Nil
{dl Aggregate rumber of shareholders and the outstanding shares
i the suspense accownt lying at the end of the year- Nit
(e) Voting rights on these shares shall remain frozen ll the righful
owner of such shares claims the shares-NA
xvii, Gode for prevention of Insider Trading
As on dute, the Company has also in place code based on SER)
(Profbition of fnsider Tradingl Regulations, 2015, This code is
applieable to af Directors, designated employees and  other
connected parson. The code ensures prevention of dealing in
shares by persons having sccess 10 orgublished pice sensitive
information. The Code has been circulated 1o all the members of
ther Board and Senior Management and they have affirmed
compliance with the code, The code lays down guidalings, which
advise them on proceduies W be followed and disclosures to be
made, while deafing with shares of Company and cautioning them
of Ui consaauences of vinlations. The code clrarly spreifies that
he Directors and designated smployees of the Company can
trada in the shares of the Company oy duting the petiod when
‘tearding window' is open. The trading window, amongst oibers, is
closed duing the time of declaration of financial rosults and
necurrente of any material avents as per the code,
Thi above Codes were also adopied by the Board of Directors of
the Company and thorgaftor the same have heen posted on
Company's webgile wwwlibanyshoes.com and also submitted
with the Stock Exchanges for their records in corplisnce with the
SEBI quidglings,
xiti. Transfar of unclaimed amoumt to Invastor Education and
Protection Fund {IEPF)
Pursuarl 10 (he provisions of Saction 205A, 2050 and other
relevant rules of the Companies Act, 1956, the dividend declared
by the Company which rersain unclaimed for 8 penod of seven
years shall be transterred by the Cornpany to Invester Education
and Protection Fund (ERF) estabiishad by the Gentral Governmeant,
The Company has transfered all unclaimed/ unpad amount of
dividand 10 [EPE During the vear under review, the Cumpany was
ol required to transfer #ny amoun of unclaimed/unpaid dividond
to lERR
¥ix. CIN: L18Z01HR1986PLCG33185
xix. Address for Correspondence:
Fot any query ralated 10 Annual report, transfer/dematerialization
of shares, dividend, and any other ratier related to shares,
please contact at either of the following address

Link Intime India Put, Ltd,

{Registrar and Share Transfer Agent}
44, Comrnunity Centre,

Narainz Industrial Area Phase- |

Now Delhi = 110 028

Tel : (91) 11-41410592---94

Fax . (81) 11-41410591

Ernail: delhigPlinkintime.ca.in

Liberty Shaes Ltd.

Departrent of Investors' Relations
2nd Floor, Towar 8, Building No; 8

[LF Cyher City, Phase-ll

Gurgaon « 122 (122

Teb: (91} 124-4616200

Fax . (91} 124-4616222

Lmail; investorcare@libartyshoes.corm




To,

Certificate on Compliance with Conditions of Corporate Governance

Independent Auditor's Certificate

The Members of,
Liberty Shows Ltd.

B

3

3

We hava examingd the compliance of eonditions of Corporate
Governance by Liberty Shoes Lid.("the Company”), for the
year ended on 375t March, 2016, as stipulated in:

» Claose 49 (excluding clouse A90VRNED of the Listing
Agreements of the Company with stock sxchanges for the
period from 15t Apnl, Z015 to 30th Novembar, 2015,

o Clugse 49 (VH)E] of the Listing Agreements of the
Company with the stock exchanges for the period from 15!
April, 2015 to 15t September, 2015

« Regulation 23(4] of the SEBI (Listing Obligations and
Disclosure Requirernents) Regulations, 2015 {"the iisting
Regulations”) for the period from Znd September, 2015
to 31st March, 2016 and

« Regulations 17 to 27 {excluding regufation 23(4)} and
clauses {b) to ) of requiation 46(2) and para G, ) and E of
Schedule V of the Listing Regulations {or the period from
151 Decernber, 2015 16 315t March, 2016,

The compliance of conditions of Corporate Governance is the
responsibility of (e Managemenl.

Our  examiration  was  limited  to  progedurgs  and
implementation thereo!, adopled by the Company fol ensuring
complianice with the conditions of the Corporate Governance.
It is neither an audit nor an expression of apinion on the
firancial stalerments of the Company.

Wa have oxamined the retevand records of the Company in
actordance with the Generally Accepted Auditing Standards
in India, 10 the extent relevant, and as per the Guidance Note
on Certiftcation of Corporate Governance issued by the
Institute of the Chartered Accountants of India,

cn

In cur apinion and to the best of our information and according
to our exsmination of the relevanl records and the
explanations givan to us, we cerlify that the Company has
complied with the conditions of Corporate Governance as
stipulated in Clause 48 of the Listing Agresment and
regulation 17 1n 27 and clauges (b) to {i) of regulation 46(2)
and para G, D and € of Schedule V of the Listing Regulations
for the respective perinds of applicability as specified undet
paragraph Tabove, during the year ended 31st March, 2018,

We state that such compliance is neither an agsurance as to
the future viability of the Company nor the efficiency o
eflectivenass with which the Management has conducted the
affairg of the Company.

For Pardeep Tayal & Co.
Firrn Registration No. 002733N
Chartered Accountants

Pardeep Tayal
Patiner
Membership No. 081643

Place: Gurugram, Haryana
{atad; Monday, 30" May, 2016
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CEQ/CFO Certification Pursuant to Listing Agreement/SEBI
{Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015

To the Board of Directors
Liberty Shoes Ltd.

W, the undeisigned, in the representative capacity of Chief
Execative Officer and CFQ & Company Soecrelary respectively,
hereby certify to the best of our knowledgs and belief that ;

a. We have reviewead the financial stalements and the
cash flow statement for the financial year ended 315t
Mtrch, 2016 and that :

i these statemens do not contain any materially
untrug statement or ol any matensl fact or
contain statements that might be misleading,

il. these statements together present a true and fair
view of the Company's affairs and are in compliance
with existing Accounting Standards, applicsble laws
and regulations,

b. During the year, ne transactions were entered into by
the Cormpany, which are fraudulent, illegal or violative of
the Cormpany's Code of Conduct,

c. We accept respongibility for  establishing  and
maintaining internal contrals for financial reporting and
wt have evaluated the eftectiveness of internal controd
systems  of the Company pertaining 1o financial
reporling and we have disclosed to the Auditors ard
the Audit Committee, deficiencies in the design or
operation of such internal controls, if any, of which we
are aware and the sleps we have taken or propose to
take to reclify these deficiencies in the design or
operation of such internal controls, if any. of which we
are aware and the steps we have taken or propose to
take to rectify these deficiencies,

d. We have indicated toc the Auditors and the Audit

Commitiee that

i. there have not been any significant changes in
internal contsol over financial reporting during the
yaar under reference;

ii. there have not been any significant changes in
accounting policies as disclosed in the finangial
statements of the Company; and

there are rio instances of significant fraud of which
we had become awarg and the involvement therein,
if any, of the management or an empioyee having a
significant role in the Company's internal contral

system aver financial reporting.

Adesh Kumar Gupta Munish Kakra
Chiefl Exerutive Officer Gron
DIN-00t43182 Comparny Sacritty

M. No. ACS otz

Place : Gurugram, Haryana
Dated: Monday, 30" May, 2016




Management Biscussion and Analysis Report

Econnmy and.markes stirok

The: Econerny of India is the seventh-largest ecanemy in the world
maasurad by nominal GOP and the third-largest by purchasing
power patity. The country is clossified a5 o newly industiiatized
codntry, omng of the 8-20 major econamies, a membar of BRICS
ang a developing economy with an average growth rate of
approximately 7% over the last two decades. India’s economy
became the world's fastest growing major eeonnmy in the lasl
couple of years, replacing the People's Republic of China, The
overall export of India has recorded a major decling due to variaus
glabal factors including steep fall in ol prices. Domestic
consumption though has impraved but confined 1p the specilic
seclar mairdy due Lo poor consecutive mongoan for twa yaars and
lack of tnorease in rural detrarnd.

The long-term growth prospective of the Indian ecanomy is
positive due to its young population, coresponding low
dependency ratio, healthy savings and investment rates, and
increasing integration inte the giobal economy. The Indian
econamy has the polential 10 bocome the world's 3rd-largest
econoiny by the next decade, and ona of the largest egonomies
by mid-century, The Indian economy is the "bright spot” in tho
giohat landscape. Indig also topped the World Bank's growth
autlook for 201516 for ke first time with the economy having
grown 7.6% in 201516 and expected 10 grow 8.0%-+ in 2016-17.

The Gavernment f1as taken a nurber of measures to put in place a
simplified, progressive and  non-adversarial tax regime by
incorporating internationally prevalent best practices in tax
admintstration. Hesides this the Gavernment is engaged in
teforming  institutions,  simplifving  procodures and  repealing
obsolete laws, apart from unlocking infrastucture develapment
opportunities and cutting subsidy leakages. Employment is haing
generated through initintives lke Make in India, Starl-up Ingia,
Mudra Scheme Skifl India and the introduction of special package
for specilic seclor,

{Ovarall, 2098, in view of the slowdown in plobal and factors
prevailing in domestic econamy, remained challesging Tor the
Company.

Liberty's performance for 2016 ix to be seen in this above given
sConamic environment,

At retail level, where Linerty dominantly operatas, i seems that
Company will take some more time to perform according to its
percention and strong brand equity,

The Indian Footwear Industry-Structure and Davalopment,
Opportunities/Threats, Risk and Concern,

India is the 2" largest producer of footwaar globally, aceounting
for 13 per cent of the global footwear production, next to China,
which dominates the global footwear industry accounling for close
10 67 percent of the market, The Country produces 2.2 billion pairs
of footwear annually in different cotegorizs of footwesr and
gxports about 180 million pairs, This industry has shown its

potential thraugh its consistency in high export eamings and its
ratking amangs! most foreign exchange eamers for the country
cantinuously in the past several ysars,

Indian Footwear sector due 10 its inherent strengths 8% deseribed
below has Tound ity place ay thrust area under 'Make in India!
initiative of 1he Central Government and showcased as the Top
Priority Sector amongst the other 25 sectors chasen for “Make in
tndia workshop” chaired by Hon'ble Prime Minister of India. Few of
the strangth of Footwear seclor are as under:

» Footwear industry has growth potential o be a § 80 Billion
intdustry by 2030, which means a CAGR of approximately, 20%
in the next 15 years with great potentiat for exports and a
huge dumestic market,

« Footwear Industry is a Green industry having no water, air,
noise, industrial pollution, therefore, fits into the slegan of
"ZER0 DEFECT ZERD EFFECT" perfectly. Adl resources required
for the industry ara indigennusly available in abundance,

« Foolwear industry has tremendous potertial te create 20 lakh
new jobs al the grass root level primarily for waaker section of
society, wornen, SC/8T, poor and needy in the next b years,
meetling the agenda of the Central Government in job creation,

o Faotwsar industry needs very low intensity of elactricity, No
major water requirernent for marwfacturing being dry process
and moreaver Lang requirernent for footwear industry is very
low as compared ter other manufacturing industries hence no
pressure on natural resourges also,

The identified chaltenges and threats before the Indian Foutwear
and Leather Industry are India's competitiveness cheap and under
invoiced imports, inadequate infrastructure, largest unorganized
seelor in comparison 1o organized, multiplicity of tax incidence and
trace regulations, lack of branding, capacity inadegquacy, lack of
skiled Jabour & labou wages, emironmantal issues  ang
inadnpuate investment.

{Owing 1o weak seonomic conditions in India since the past few
vears, domastic footwaar companies in to high product value
segment have witnessed moderale sales growth mainly due to
pressure on their volumes, However, companies in 1o branded low
value footwear continue to report headthy sales growth for more
than 20% with increasing shift in demand for branded footwesr
and ingreasing retail presence in TierH and Tierdll cities. Despite
growth witnessed by the overalt fashion industry being robust,
expangion of the footwear market remained moderate during the
financial year 2015-16. On-lina retails have emerged as a popular
medium for shopping specifically women's and sports footwear.
The exclusive range of products available on-line are often
available a1 a discount prices which makes on-line retail a lucrative
channel of sale of fostwear. Furthermors increasing demand for
innovatian in design and technology of footwaar products is likaly
to craate & growth opporunity for the giobal footwear market;
howevor development of imitated footwear products by local
manufacturers is expected to hinder the growth of the market.




The profitability for most of the companies has been under
pressure in the recent guarters due to subdued sales growth,
increasing raw materdal prices and adverse foreign curency
MOVEMENLS.

Acknowledging the impertance of footwear ingustry, the Indian
Gavernment hag takan various measures and inftiatives in order 1o
support its growth, which has led to structural changes in the
footwear industry. Recently, in order to address Industry issuas,
under Indian Leather Develepment Programme ({LDP) 11 sub-
schemes have been approved for implernentation duing the 11th
five Year Plan penod by Cendral Government. The emphasis of
schemes is mainly on infrastructuie  development, capacity
builing, humar resource development, investment promation and
addressing environmental issues for the Foolwear and |eather
industry. in addition to this Ministry of Commerce and Industry,
Governmient of Indiz has given recognition to the Industry players
10 form asseciation and pon-profit organization under Section 8 of
the: Companies Act, 2013 with the objectives inter-alia 1o facilitatle
both Industry and Government for the development of the entire
segment of the Industry, Government in consultation with BB has
also reintroduced interest subvention scheme lor promoling
footwear exports by increasing competitiveness of Indian industry
in the plobal markets. Foreign Direct Investment through
astomatic foute has already been allowed by the  Indian
Government and 1o boost the footwear industry, the Government
is reducing excise duty on certain category of Toolwes, besides it
has implemented reduction in excise duty for rubber sheet for
soles and heels from 12.5% (0 6% and an increase of abaternent
from 20% to 30%.

Far footwear sector to grow rapidly going forward and compete
aggrossively with the other Jow cost producing nations, strong
push is required in various aspects including favourable policies
which would help in rationalizing 1ax  structure, providing
infrastructural support in capacity buiiding, reducing transactional
costs and increasing the avaitability of skilled labour ir: the County.
With the Governirent initiatives and overall devetoprient including
advancernent of production processes, Lhe Industry will see the
luerative opporiunities Lo gain from in the forthcoming years.

Liberty enjoyad its presence in the indian Footwear Industry for
more than six decades and has established a strong brand equity
which is being continvously augmented to strengthen its PAN
India presence and 0 add more satisfied consumers in all
categories of footwear,

Internal Gontrol System and its Adequacy

Liberty's internat financial controls are adenuate and operate
effectively and ensure orderly and efffcient condust of its business
including adherence to its policies, saleguard its assets, prevent
and detect frauds  and  errors,  maintain accuracy  and
compleleness of its accounting records and furlher emable it in
timely preparation of reliable financial infonmation. These comrols
have been integrated with the Company's risk management policy
to ensure thal contral measures for the effective mitigation of

risks identified are in place, During the year, such contrafs were
tested and no reportable materal weakness in the design or
pperation was obsarved,

Tha Company has in place a strang and independent Intarmal Audit
Departmant which (s responsile for assossing and improving the
eftectiveness of internal financial contral and povernance, To
maintain its objectivity and independence, the Internsl Audit
function reports to the Chairman of the Audit Committee,

Liberty bas an indapendent Audit committoe which acts in
accordance with the terms of reference specified in writing by the
Board including evaluation of intesnal financial controls and risk
ranagement system,

The Audit Commitiee, on benalf of the Poard, assesses the
adequacy and effectiveness of tho intermal contral system in
detecting fraud, tregularties of infringament of laws, sules and
regulations of material control faifures on & regular basis by
reviewing the work and findings of Internal Audit Department,

The CEO/CFO certification prowded slsewhere in the Annual
Report confers the adequacy of intemal control systems and
prosedures followed by the Company.

Financial Performance:

The highlights of the financial parformance of the Company during
the year ended 3181 March, 2016 have been stated in the
Direetors' Report for the yvear ended 315t March, 2018, which
appears separately in the Annual Report. The briefl details of the
peormance of 1he Company duting the year under consideration
are given as under:

Capital Strocture: During the year, there has beer no change in
the Capital Structure of the Company and Paid up Capital of the
Company wag ¥1,704 Lakh as on 315t March, 2016,

Reservas & Surplus: The Company's raserves and surplus has
increased from T12,791.13 Lakh 10 T13,811.87 Lakh in 2015-16.

fong Torm Borrowings: During the year under roview, the
Company availed Term fLoan of $242.69 Lakh a5 against provious
year's TH70.32 Lakh, The outstanding amouni of the Term Loan
(Non Currant and Current maturities) as on 315t March, 2016 was
¥1,322.45 Lakh as against previous year's ¥1,768.31 Lakh.

Othor Long Term Borrowings; During the year under review,
the other long term horrowings, which consists of saecurities
received from channel partners, increased by £21.40 Lakh and
stood at T597.61 Lakh (Provious year TH76.21 Lakh),

Short Term Borrowings: The amount of working Capital loan
secred through the Company's curert agsets stood of
¥11,747.66 lakh as compared to ¥12,103.25 Lakh in the provious
el The decrense in borrowings is because of better control over
the receivables and reduction of inventory. Further, {or short torm
raquiremonts, the Gompsny has availed unsecured short term
loans from the related party and the outstanding halance as on
st March 2016 remained st ¥419.55 Lakh (Previous year




¥13.35 Lakh).

Trado Payables: The Trade Fayable of £7,379.42 Lakh (Previous
yeur T9,083.69 Lakh} included an amount of ¥10 Lakh (as against
the previeus year's ¥20.96Lakh due towards Mfe Liberty
Emerprises, Liberty Group Marketing Division, Liborty Footwear
Ca., the partnership firms in which few of the Directors and thedr
relstives are interested, under the terms of the respeclive
agreements dated 3rd April, 2013,

Othor Current Liabilities & Provisions: Dther current liabilities
& provisions amounting to 2232063 Lakh (Previous year
T2,807.80 Lakh) consists of long term debts from banks and
olhers due within 12 months from the date of raporting, advances
from custorers, expenses payables, othor labilities, Proposed
Dividend, provision for dividend distiibution tax, provision for
taxation {nel of MAT credit entitlement) and provision for exgise
duty.

Fixed Assets: In the year 2015-14, Liberty's Fixed Assets Black
(including tangible and intangible assets) mcreased by ¥1,655.02
Lakh. The said increase was mainly hecause of purchase of
furnitura & fixtures for new retail stores, new moulds &1 plants and
towards normal capital expenditure in furtherance o the business
operalions of the Company.

Non-Cuorrent lovestments: At the vear end, Liberty's non-
currant investments in its only overseas Subsidiary stood al
$121.93 lakh {previous year $121.93 Lakh). The said ovaerseas
Subsidiary has not yet commenced ils business operations;
therefore, no further investments have been made in this
subsidiary.

Long Term Loans & Advaneos: Long term loans & advances
amounting 10 ¥1.853.22 Lakh {Previcus year ¥9,826.60 Lakh)
consigts of security deposits of ¥651.48 Lakh (Provious year
$544 97 Lakk}, Share Application Money {pending alloiment) paid
to overseas Wholly Owned Subsidiary of ¥180.49 Lakh (Provious
vaar $180.49 Lakh) and MAT Credit Entitlement T1,085.40 Lakh
{Pravious year ¥1,117.63 Lakh). During the year, the Company has
made a provision of ¥NIL (Previous year T NIL Lakb) for the
security deposits considared ag doubiful,

Inventorfas:  Inventores, comprising  finished  goods, raw
materials, work in process etc. as at 31st March, 2016, stawd at
¥14,108.30 Lakh a5 against previous year's 214,320.96 Lakh, The
inventory of the Company has remained almost same as of last
yoar, The Inventory turnover ratio for the year ended 31st March,
2016 was 108 days as against 96 days in the previous year due to
lessor sales as envisaped in the beginning of the year.

Trade Receivablos: Tradec Receivables, with an average
realization period of 74 days (77 days in the provious vear) stood
at T9.548.80 Lakh in 2015-16 as against the previous year's
£11.481.32 Lakh. Out of the trade receivabies, ¥1,526.48 Lakh as
against lhe previous years ¥9,472.68 lakh were due fiom
HVEISEHS CUSIDMErs,

Thae Company after considering the collection process has made a
provision of ¥1.23 Lakh against pravious year's T47.04 for doubtful
dabts, Nuring the yuar, the Company has written off its book debts
of €27.24 Lakh as sgainst previous year's T111.96 Lakh, Further,
the Company has recovered its Bad Debts of #78.43 Lakh as
against previous year's ¥77.84 Lakh,

Short Term Loans B Advances: The Short Term Loans and
Advancas given by the Company included an advance Incame Tax
(including Minimum Altemate Tax} of 296,23 Lakh in 201516 as
againsl the previous year's ¥27377 Lakh, export benefit
receivables of $124.69 Llakh as against the previous year's
¥151.22 Lakh and prepaid expenses of $181.60 Lakh a8 against
the previous year's 136,23 Lakh.

Revenue from Opaorations and Profits: Liberty's total Income,
comprising sales and other Inconse, decreased from T54,874.47
Lzkh 10 T47,268.48 Lakh in 2015-16. Profit afler 1ax, after making
a pravision for depreciation, decreased from T1,500.03 Lakh to
F1.238.21 lakh m 201516, The Company's net profit, after
considering a lax provision of ¥258.70 Lakh as against the
provious year's ¥285.83 Lakh, MAT Credit Entitlement of NIL Lakh
{Previous year's 127.35 Lakh), a deferrod tax assels of ¥6{.81
|.akh as against previous year's ¥265.89 and priar period expense
o accounl of fncorne tax tor earlier years of ¥18.57 Lakh as
against prior period income on account of Income (x for eatlier
yeais of ¥108.85 Lakh stood at ¥1020.74 lakh in 201516 as
against the Previous year's $1,706.20 Lakh.

Finance Gosts: Libery's finance costs steod al ¥1,638.21 Lakh
in 2015-16 {Provious year's 21 G06.68 Lakh), comprising interest
on term oans, working capilal loans, other loans and hank
charges,

Human Resource Developments: Liberty has o formulated
uniform HR Policies for afl employess/watkers to defing the HA
functions and to make Liberty such & place or ingtitulion where
thie peeple working has defined role and respongibiitiss with &
sense of belongingness amongst themn, During the year under
consideration, HR function implemented various initiatives 1o
support 1his.

Duning the year under consideration, several initiatives thraugh
training & motivational programmes were taken to improve
employess' knowledge, skills and effectiveness to improve
oroductivity and 10 establish better inter se relations amongst
themselves, The relationship with the employees has been corgial
and thay have extended their support to the financial performance
of thiz Company.

As on 31st March, 2015, the total employees' strength of the
Company stood al 2355 as compared to previous year's 2418,

Cautionary Statement: Statements in the Management's
digcussion and analysis, describing the Company's abjectives,
expectations and industrial outlook, may constiete forward
looking statemant within the meaning of applicable laws. The
actual results might differ materially from those either expressed
ar imptied,




independent Auditors' Report

To
Thi Members of
Libenty Shows L1d,

Repaort on the Financial Statemeants
We have sudited the accompanying standatonn financial statercns of
Liberty Shoes Limited {"the Company"}, which comprises the Balance
Sheel ag at March 31, 2016, and the Staiement of Profit and Loss anig
Cash Flow Stalement for the year then ended, and & summary of
significant aceourding pelicias and cthi explamtoy informition,

Management's Responsibiity for the Stendalone Financial

Statements
The Company's Board of Diraetars is responsible for the mattars stated
in Section 134(5) of the Companies Act, 213 (the Act) with respect
o the preparation gnd presentation of these standslone financial
stalerments Hhat give a true and far view of the financial position,
Tinangizt pedormance and cish flows of the Company in scconfaney
with the accounting grinciples genatally acoapted in india, incluging thi:
Accounting Standards specitied under Soction 133 of the Act, read with
Rute 7 of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014, This responsibility aso
includes maintersnce of adequate accourting records in accordance
with the provigions of e At [ safepearding the assets ol the
Company and & prevanting and  detesting  Tragds  and - othe
irregularities; setection and application of appropriate  accounting
policies; making judgments and estimates that are reasonable and
pwdent; and dasign, implemematian and maintenance of adequate
internal fnanciat comtecls, that ware opaating effgctivaly for ensoting
the accuracy and completencss of the accounting records, telovant 1o
the preparatien and presentation of the financial statements that pive &
tue and far view and are free from metedal misstatemen,
whiisthe dus Lo faid ot et

Auditor's Responsibility

Qur respansibility 15 to express an apinion on these slandakong finangial
slalemans based on our audil. We have taken in 10 account the
provisions of the Act, the accounting and auditing standards and
mallers which are sequired (o be included in the audit report ander the
prroviginnz of the Act and Bules triads thenegnder,
We conducted o audit in accordance with the Standards on Auditing,
issund by the Institute of Charlered Accoumans o India, &5 specilied
unden Section 143010) of the Act, Those Standards requirs tial we
comply with athizal mouirements s plan and perdam the audit to
obtain reasonablo assurance about whethar th financind statements arg
free from materis misstatoment,
An it involves performing precadures 1o obisin sudi evidance about
the: amounts and the disclosuies in the financial ststgments.
The procedures selesled depend on (he Auditor's judgment, including
the assessroent of the sisks of matenial mrsstalement of (ke foancial
statoments, whother due o faud or aron Inomaking those risk
assegoments, the auditor congiders intemal financial control relevant to
the company's preparation of the firancial stalements that give a
lrug and fair view in order 1o design audit procedures that are
appropriate in the circumelances, An audil sso includes evaluating the
approptintenass of the aceounting policies usead and the ipasonnbleness
of the accounting estimatas made by the Company's Board of Diractors,
a5 well as evaluating the overall presentation of the financisl
slatemants, Wa believe thel the audit evidence we have ohiamed is
sufficient and appropriate to provide i bagig for our audil opinion on e
standalone financial statamants.

Dpinian
Ir our apinior and to the best ot our information and accerding to the
axplanations given to us, the aforeswd standalone financial statementy
gliver th infarmation reauired Hy tha Actin the mannar so regutard and

give a tiee and fain view in conformity with the accounting principles

gergrally aceepted in budia:

{a) in the case of e Balsnce Sheet, of the state of affairs of the
Comgany az &t March 31, 2016,

(b} in the case of the Statament of Prafit and Loss, of the profit for the
vear ended on that date; and

(c) in the case of the Cagh Flow Statemant, of the cagh lows fo) the
it ended on that date.

Repart on Oiher Legat and Regulatory Requirements
As roquirgd by the Companics |Auditor's Reporth Order, 2016 ("the
Ordr”) ssued by the Central Government of India in terms of sub
soction {11) ot section 143 of the Act, we give in the “Annexure A" a
statement on the matiers specifisd in paregraphs 3 and 4 of the Order,
Ay raquitid by section 143 (3) of the Act, wi1opon that:

8] We heve sought and alitaned all the mlomation and explanations
which 1 e bast of ou knowledge and beliel werg necessary R
he pipess of our audic;

i Inour opinion proper baaks of account as required hy law have heen
kept by the Company so ar as il appears lrom ol examinalion of
thasi hooks:

¢l The Balsnce Sheet, Statement of Frofit and Loss and Cash Flow
Statement dealt with by this Hepart e i agrasment with the
bsoks of aecount;

I our opinion, the aforesaid standatans financis! statements comply

with the Aveounting Stardards spevified under sgction 133 of the

Act, tand with fule 7 of the Companies (Accounts) Rulgs, 2014;

gl On the hasis of whitlan representations received from the directors
gy on March 31, 2016, and taken oo cecord by the Rowd of
Dirgctors, none of the directars is disqualified as on Mach 31,
2016, from beirg sppointed 4s a director in terms section 164 (2) of
the Act,

) Wilh raspect 1o the adoguacy of the intemal financial cantrpls over
financial reporting of the Gompany and the operating cffectivencss
of such controls, reler 1o ow separate Report in “Anrexure 8",

g} With respect 1o the othar matters 1o ba included in tha Auditor's
Report in aceordence with Rute 11 of the Companies (Audit and
Auditors) Rules, 2074, in owr opiion and to the best of ow
information ani acearding 1o the explanations given To us:

i. The Company has disclosed the impact of pending litigations on

itz financial position In ils financial stetements as referrod in
Note 7.27.11 10 the firancial statesments,

ii. The Gompany didn't have any longdarm contragts including
derivative contracts for which there were any  matesiat
foreseasble losses:;

There hias baen no delay i transforting amounts, required 1 bi

transferred, to the Investor Education and Protection Fund Ly

the Company.

d

For Pardeep Tayal 8 Co.
Firm Registration No, 0077330
Charterad Accountants

Pardeep Tayal
Partner
Membarship No. 081643

Place; Gurugram, Haryana
Dated: Monday, 30" May, 2014
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Annexure -A to Independent Auditors’ Report

(Referred to in paragraph 1 under the heading of 'eport on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements' of our report of aven date]
Reg.: Liberty Shoos Limited {the Company}

1

3

4)

)

a) The Company has maintained proper records shawing
full particulars including  quantitative  detalls  and
siluation of fixed assets,

b} All fixed assets have naot been physicallty verified by
the management during the year hut there axists a
regular programme of veiification of fixed assels
which, in our opinion, is reasonable having regard 1o
the size of the Company and rature of its assets. No
material discrepancies were noticed on  such
verification,

¢]  Actording to the information and explanalion given by
the management, the title deeds of the immovable
properties included in the property, plant and
equipment/ffixed assets are held in the name of the
Company,

The management has conducted the physical verfication
of inventory at reasonable intervals during the year and no
material discrepancies were noticed or such physical
verification.

According to information ant explanations given to us, the
Cormpany has not grarded any loans, scoUred of unsecured
to Companies, firms, Limited Liability partnerships or other
parties covered in the Register maintained under section
189 of the Act, Accordingly, the provisions of clause 3 {it)
() 10 (¢) of the Order are not applicable to the Company
and hence not commented Lpan,

In our opinion and according to the information and
explanations given to us, there are no loans, investments,
guarantess, and securites granted in regpect of which
provisions of section 185 and 186 of the Companies Act,
2013 are applicable and hence not commented upon.

The Company has not accepted any deposits from the
public.

To the best of our knowledge and as explained, the Gentral
Government has pot specified the maintenance of Cost
Records under sub-section {1) of Section 148 of the

Companies Acl, 2013, for the produsts of the Cempany,

7} a) The Comypany is regular in depositing the undisputed

statutory thes including Provident  Fund,  Employees
State Insurance, Income Tax, Sales Tax, Sewice Tax,
Duty of Customs, Duty of Extise, Value Added Tax,
Cess and other material statutory dues applicahle to it
with appropriate autharities,

b} According to the information and explanations given 1o
us, no undisputed amounis payable i respect of
Provident Fund, Employees’ Slate Insurance, Income
Tax, Sales tax, Service Tax, Duty of Customs, Outy of
Excise, Value added Tax, Cess and  other  material
statutory duss were putstanding, at the year end, for a
period of mare than gix months from the date they
became payable.

1) According to the records of the Company, the dues
outstanding of income tax, sales tax, service tax, duty
of customs, duty of excise, valie added tax and cess
on account of any dispute, are as follows:




T A N
R e

Naturg of Statote

Nature of dugs

The Central Excise Act,

Excisa Duty
1944

Amount (in?] |

Forum where the
dizpute is pending

Periad 10 which the
amount rolatas

Novernber 2004 1o June 2005

Custeins, Excise and Service
Tax Appeliate Tabunal,
Naw Dothi

and May 2006 to June 2006

GTA Services

Funjab Value Added Tax,

Value Added Tax on
ateount of clagstication
of poods at different rate

of tax

2005

Service Tax Act, 1994 Service Tax on 233,486 January 2005 to March 2007 | Customs, Excise and Service
GTA Servicas Tax Appellate Trbunal,
Chandigarh
Service Tax Acl, 1994 Service Tax an 285,112 April 2005 to Margh 2007 Cusloms, Excise and

Service Tax Aprellate
Tribural, Chandigarh

9.13.016

Financial Year 2006-07 Deputy Caromissioner

(Appeals)

8l

8)

10)

11)

17

13)

Punjah Valug Added Tax,

Value Added Tax an

2005 accourt of classification

of goods at different rate
nf tax

22,30998

Financial Year 2007-08 Bepuly Commissioner

{Appeils)

In our opinion and accarding to the information anc
gxplanations given to us, the Company has not defaulied in
the repaymen of dues 0 hanks. The Company has not
taken any loan either from financial institutions or from the
governmen?t and has not issued any debentures.

According to the information and explanations given by the
managerent, the Company has not raised any monay by
way of initial public offar/ further public offer/ dabt
instruments excoept by way of term Loans from the bank
and the same were applied for the purposes for which il
was rased,

Based upon the aucit procedures perormed for the
purpose of reporting the true and fair view of the financial
statements  and  according 1o the information  and
explanations given by the management, we repont that no
fraud by the: Company of ne matetial frsud on the Company
by the officers and employess of the Company has been
noticed or reported during the year,

Aceording to the information and explanations given by the
managernent, the managenial rermunerstion has been jaid/
provided in accordsnce with the requisite approvals
mandated by the provisions of section 197 read with
Schodule V 1o the Companies Act,

tn pwr opinion, the Company ig not & Nidhi Cormpany,
Therefore, tha provisions of clause 3 (xil) of the Order are
not appticable to the Company and henco Aot comnented
Upon,

In our opinion, all transactions with the related panies are
in compfiange with section 177 and 188 of Companies Act,
203 wherever applicable and the detaifs have been

14)

18]

disclosed it the notes to the Financial Statements as
required by the applicable accounting standards,

According 1o information and exptanations given 1o us and
on an ovesall examination of tho balance shest, the
Company has not made any preferential allotmant or
privale placement of shares or fully or partly convertible
debentures during the year under review and hence,
reparting requirements under clause 3 (xiv) of the Deder are
not applicable to the Company and not commented upon,

Agcarding o the information and explanatians given by the
maragernent, the Company has not entered inta any non
cash tranzaclions with dirgelors or persons connected with
him,

According Lo the informatian and explanations given o us,
the Company is not required 1o be registered undes section
45 1A of the Reserve Bank of India Act, 1934 and
accordingly, the provisians of cladse 3 (xvi) of the Crder are
not applicable to the Compary snd hence nol commented
upon,
For Pardeep Tayal § Co,
Firrn Registration No. 002733N
Chartered Ancountants

Fardeop Tayal
Partrer
Membership No. 081643

Place; Gurugram, Haryans
Dated: Monday, 30" May, 2018




Annexure - B to Independent Auditors' Repert

(Referred 1o in paragraph 2{f) under the heading "Report on other legal and requlatory requirements” af our reporl of even date on the

Standalone Finanvial Slalements of Liberty Shoes L1d.)

Report on the Internal Financial Gontrols under Clavse (i) of
Suh Section 3 of Section 143 of the Companies Act, 2013
{"the Act")

We have audited the infernal fmancial controls over financial reporting
of Libarty Shoes Limited (“the Company®) as of March 31, 2016 in
carjunction with our audit of the standalone financial statoments of
the Company for the year ended on that date.

Management's Responsibility for Internal Financizf Controls

The Company's management is responsible for establishing and
maintaining interal financisl controts based on the mermal control
ovel  financiai  reporting  orilenia established by tha Company
considering the essential components of internal control stated in the
tiuidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Qvar Financial
fepatting issued by the fnstitite of Chartered  Accountants  of
india. These responsibifities include the design, implemenlation and
rmaintenance of adequate internal finangial controls that were
uperating effectively for ersuving the orderly and efficient conduct of
it business, including adberence o company's  policies, the
safeguarding of its assets, the prevention and delection of frauds and
arrors, the acouracy and completencss of the accounting records, and
this timely preparation of relialie financial informadion, as requirgd
urider the Companies Act, 2013,

Auditor's Responsibility

Our responsibility is 1o exprass an opinion on the Cormpany's imlernal
finangial controls over finangial reparting based on owr audit. We
conductad our audit in accordance with the Guidance Nete on Audit
of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting (the "Guidance
Nolg”) and the Standards on Auditing as specified under seclion
143000} of the Companies Act, 2{13, to the extent applcable to an
audit of intermal Hnancie? Contrals, hoth applicalie 1o an augdil of
tmernsl Financial Contraly and, both issued by the nstitule of
Chartered Acceuntants of India. Those Standards and the Guidance
Note require that wir cormply with ethical requivemants and plan and
perform the audit 1o oblain ressonabie assurance about wheather
afdequate internal financial controls over financial reporting was
pataklished and maintained and it such controls operated effactively in
all matenal respects,

Our audit involves petforming procedures to obigin audit evidence
about the adequagy of the internal financial contrals system aver
financial reporting and their operating effectiveness, Qur audit of
internal fimancial controls over financeal reporting included ablaining an
understanding of internal financial controls over financial reporting,
pssessing the sk thal o materisl wanakness exists, and testing and
evaluating the design and opetating efectivensss of intemal control
based on the assessed risk, The procedures selected depend on the
auditor's judgement, including the assessment of the risks of malenisl
migstatemant of the firancial stataments, whether due to fraud or
eHor,

We balieva that the audit evidence we have obtaingd is sutficiam and
appropriate lo provide & basis for our audit opinicn on the Company's
internal financial controfs system over financial reporting.

Maaning of Ieternal Financial Controls over Financial
Reporting

A Company's internal financisl contred over financi reporting is &
piocess designed $o provide reasonsble assurance regatding the
reliabiity of financial reporting and the proparation of financiaf
statements for extemal purposes in accordance with generally
accepted accounting principles. A company's internal financial control
over Baancial reporting isciudes 1hose poticies and procadures that 1)
pertain to the maintensnce of records that, in reasonable detall,
accurately and faity refleet the transactions and dispositions of the
assets of the company; (7) provide reasonablp assursnce that
{ransactions @re recorded @3 necessary o permil prepration of
fingncial  statements i accordance  with  penerally  accepted
gecounting principles, and thal receipts and expenditures of the
Company ate leing made only in accordance with authorigations of
management and direclors of he company; and (3] provide
reasonalle pssutance regarding prevention or timely detection of
unsuthorised acguisition, use, o disposition of the company's assats
{hat coutd have & matesial elfect on the fnancial stalaments,

Iaherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls over
Financial Raparting

Becayse of the inharent fimitations of irdernal financial controls over
financial reporting, including the possibility of collusion ar improper
mignagement override of controls, matenal misstalements due to
arror o fraud may occur and not be delected. Alsa, projections of any
evalaation of the intemal financial controls over financiad reporting to
{uture periods are subject 1o the risk that the internal financil control
aver financiat reporling may become inadoguate hecause of changes
in conditiong, or thas the degree of compliance with the policies or
proceduras may detaricrate.

Opinion

tn aur ppinion, the Company has, in all material raspecss, an adaguate
interngl finangisl contiols system over financial reporting and such
intarnal financial cortrafs aver financisl reporting were operating
effectively a3 at March 31, 2016, based nn the internal control over
financia! reporting crileria established by the Company considering the
essential components of interaal control stated i the Guidance Note
o Audit of Intemal Financial Gontrals Ovar Financial Reporting issued
by the Institute of Chatlered Accountants of India,

For Pardeep Tayal & Co.
Firm Registration No, 002733N
Chartered Accountants

Pardeep Tayal
Partrer
Membership No. 081643

Flace: Guregram, Haryana
Oated: Monday, 30" May, 2016




Balance Sheet

as at 31" March, 2016
[Amount in ¥)
PARTICULARS NOTE ND, 31.03.2M6 .03.201%
Equity ¥ Liahilitios
Sharaholdors' Furds
Shine Capital 21 17,04,00,000 17.04,00,000
Meserves  Surplus 2.2 138,11.87511 | 155158761 | 1274108136 | 1449513134
Non-correat Liabilitias
Loy Tetm Borawings 7. 7,76.00,548 11,35,87,384
Diferred Tax Liakility (Net) 44 1.46,30,500 407,11,830
Other Long Term Linttities 24 4.87,60,579
Long Term Provisions 2.6 : 14,44,26,377 19,47,26,523
Curront Liabilities
Ehart Term Borrowings 27 1L257,21,777 1,21,16,50,324
Triae Payabies 2B 73,79,42.557 0,63,64,984
Dthet Currand Lishilitiss 9 19,34,64,435 72,08.46.710
Short Term Fiowsions 210 3.65,88,787 208,677,556 b 48,83, 207 2,40,08,04,784
Total 3,89,27,41,444 4,04,50,43,9H1
Non-current Azsats
fixed Assets
Tangivle Assets 21 87.34,18,256 9%,61,85,236
Intangible Asscts 2.1 74,57 437 9891988
Capital Work in Prograss 211 1,28,25,322 1,07,00,212
Non-current Investments 217 1,22,38,0m 1,22,38.001
fong torm Loans  Advantes 203 15322215 18.26,69.323
il Mon-cytrant Asgefs 24 o o +AB.52.61,821 . 1,17,16,84,860
Current Assets
lnvertories 2.15 1,41,08,30,110 1,43,20,96,213
Trade Recrivables 2.16 05,48,46,832 1,14,81,31,767
Cash and Bank Balsncas AN 7.52 86,578 §.43.91,537
Shot 1 Loang B Advancey 718 26,606,06,103 2,60,74,78,624 220734575 2,87,33,58,007
Total
Significant Accounting Policias 1
Notes on Fimancials Stalements 7 1o 2.27
The notes are an integral part of these
Financial Statements

Signad in tarma af oun Audit Roport of avan data,
For Pardaeh Tayad & Co,,
Fitm Regr, No, 0022330
Charleted Acgountanty
for aned on baball of the Board

Parduap Tayal Adush Kumar Gupta Shammi Bangal Raghubar Dayal Munish Kakra
Farinet CEO & Executive Dircetor Crocolive Directon Diector CFO & Gompany Seoretary
Mambizrship Ni. 081643 DIN-G01443 42 [N - M 287492 DIN-DEARTBO4 M. N ACS 262

Place: Guragram, Haryana
Diatod: Monday, 30" May, 2016




Statement of Profit and Loss
for the year ended 31 March, 2016

{Amount n ¥}

PARTICULARS

31.03.2016

Raevenue from Oporations
Saley
(ther Operating Revenues
Loss,
Excisa Duty

Diher lncome
Tatal Aavenua

Exponsas
Cost of Raw Materisls Consumed § Finished
Goody Purchased
Chinge in nventonies of Finished Gaods,
Gonds in Process and Stock-n-Trade
Emploves Benefit Expanses
Finance Cost
[hypraciation B Amortigations
Diher Expensos
Excise Duty

Tota! Exponses

Profit before exceptional and extraordinary
itemns and tax

Expeptiong Herng
Profit hafore Tax

Tax Exjanse
Curmnt 1%
MAI Giedit Entitlement
fncoma e lof varlier yess
Defarred Tax

Net Prafit for the yoar

Eatring Per Sharg of T10/4 each
Basi & Diluted
Basic & Diluted (Before Exceptional ems)

Significant Accounting Policies
Notes on Financials Statements

The notes are an intepral part of these
Financial Stmemens

NOTE NO.

219

2.0

2.22
20
2,24
an
2.25

2.26

1
ozt

4,70,65,85,657
1,66.41,954

18,17,74,685

2,07,33,18.883

4,19,20,067
64,65.75.307
16,39,21,455
13,48, 78,655
1,34, 75,54,285
(7.32.820]

4,54,16,52,956
34,20.769

4,54,50,73,225

b AB 46, 16,663
1,78.82.138

25715331

3.00,34,14,842

(27,35,20,108)
G2.87,44,205%
16,06,67,715
12,42.37,869

1.46,44,02,303

(28,53,329)

31.03.2015

5,25,50,63,470
S8, 706
5,26,17.31,73

2,59,69,881

16,572,957
(60,871,430}

4,40,94,83,835

13,55,89,390

117,068,625
12,38,20,76%

217.46,346

0,74,377

2.48
6.68

2,85,92 830
4,97,45,490)
(1,08,85, 262)
(2,55, 4B,950)

C15,71,38,146

71,34,887
15,00,03,259

17,06.20,137

100
10.43

Signed in terms of our Audit Reporl of gven date,
Far Pardeep Tayst & Co.,

Fittn Raggn, Noy, 002733N

Chartered Accountants

for and on hehall of the Board

Munish Kakra
CFD & Company Secretary
M. Nuo. ACE 6262

Shammi Banzal
Exacitive Dirctor
0N - 00138782

Raghubar Dayal
Director
DIN-DOAR1BII

Adnsh Kamar Gupta
CED & Exccutive Direcior
DIN-001431452

Pardeep Tayal
Partna
Membership No, 081643

Mace: Gurogram, Haryana
Datar: Maonday, 3" May, 20106




Cash Flow Statement
for the year ended 31 March, 2016

{Amount in T)

| PARTICULARS ” #1.02.2016 31.03.2015
A, CASH FLOW FROM OPCHRATING ACTIVITIES
Net Profit before 13, Intevest and extia ardinaty ilems 213352747 258,452,000
Adjustments for:
Umeslised Foreign Exchange Difforence {71,544} (36,94.524)
Dagrgriation 13,49,78,G656 12,4257 868
Loss/(Gain) on sale/amortisation of Fxad Assets (et 1,4Y7.RR.G7G 71,34 887
Bank & Mher Interast £34,20,269) (4B.AB,266)
frovigien fot doubiful ditts (33,63,092) {1,36,37,243)
Opesating Profit belore working copital chinges A4,0,61.52120 40,62.44,637
Adjustments for
Trado & Other Reccivoblos VO56.A8,027 7,20,90,810
Inviem ories 2,12,66,303 (HLH0,47,034)
Loang i Advancos {37.86.804) (4,745,447
Trade & Other Payaliles {19, B8,85,492) 31.00,86,7482
Cash generaterd from Gperations 42,13,63,853 308,28,78,313
[(irect Taxes Paid [RREN: VX 14,14,33,551)
Cash Flow befors extea oidinary items 36,98,03,360 38,12,44,762
Cxtra Didinary Bems - -
Nat Caeh Flow from Oparating Activitios 36,99,03,380 36,12.44,762
B CASH FLOW FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Purghase of Fived Asgets [17,16,26,793) (19,67,95,049}
Sulo of Fixnd Assats 78,56,432 1,66,51,477
Bank and Other Interost —_— ‘ ‘ 342[!26‘3 A8,4B,767
Net Cazh usad in Invazting Activities {16,02,61,092) (17.52,35.305}
C CASH FLOW FROM FINANGING ACTMTIES o
Progegds from long term borowings .42 60,690 5,704,000 :
Repayment of lox) Wi borowings (6.58.5%,17%) 16,78,35,834] ,
inerast paid {14,065,31,943) (14,61,48,750) !
Divitlesnd prasicd (7,55,60,000} {2,55,60,000)
Dividend Distribution Tax (52,33 326} M3.43.027)
“an Cash used in Finanging Activities {#2.49.11,796) {18,76,26,506)
Net Incroase/{Decresse) in Gosh & Cagh Equivalents q1,A0,482 (1.16,77,049)
Garh & Gesh Equivalents {Opening Balance) 6,33,91,537 1.14,74,062
Unroalizod Foraign Exchango Diforance 1,64,549 35,943,624
Cosh & Cash Equivalents (Closing Balapgey | Lep 9688 £.33.91,537
Compenants of Cash & Cash Equivalents
Cash inhand inciuding daprast 1,36,08,747 1,19,94,878
Balange with Scheduled Banks
Current Accounts 1,42.49,267 1.18,72,022
Chegques en hand 2,54.20,402 29,48 51
fixed Diposis 2.30,37,166 3,65,76,060
Total 1,62,96,518 AL

Notes: 1) Purchase of Fixed Assets include imovemonts of copital work it fitaghess bitwisai thee baginning & of the ond of the year 2) Thy Cash Flaw Statemnnt bog been
prograred i the incieent metho ay set gul in AS -3 on Cash Fow Statemant issued by The Institite of Chartered Accountants of Indig.

Signed in terms of ou Audit Report of avan datn,
For Pardeap Tayal & Co.,
Firrn Ragn. No, 002733N
Chartered Avcountants
for and an behatf of the Board

Pardeep Tayal Adesh Kumar Gupta Shanmi Bansal Raghubar Dayal Munizh Kakra
Partnoy CED b Exprutive Director Executive Director Diteclor CFO B Company Socretaty
Membership No, DE1543 QIN-00143192 [IN - Q0130792 OiN-00481803 M. N, ACS B62

Plaga: Guragiam, Hagyana
[rited: Montay, 307 May, 2016
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Notes to the Financial Statements for the year ended 31" March, 2016

CORPDRATE INFORMATION
Lilwry Shoes Ltd i & public company domiciled in India and

inGoraotated under the movisions of the Companies Act, 1856 on 3

1

Septembar, 1986, The shares of the Company are listed on two
stock exchanges in India 1.6 Nalional Stock Exchange (NSE) and
Bombay Stock Exchange (BSE). The Company it engaged in the
busingss of manutactuling and trading of foolwear and accessorics
thovgh its retail and wholesale retwork, The Registoresd (Offier of
the Company is situated at Libertypuram, Karnal, Haryana.

Note 1,

a)

b)

c)

SIGNIFIGANT ACCOUNTING POLIGIES

Busis of proparation of Financial Statements

The finsncial staternests of e Company have boeen preparod
in accodance with the Generally Accepted Atcounting
Frinciples in India {ndian GAAR} under the historical cost
convention on acerual basis of accounting,

Pursuant Lo section 133 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with
Rule 7 of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014, till the
standards of #ccounting or any addendum thereto are
pioscribed by Cenbial Government m consulation  and
reeommsndation of the Natienal Financial Reporting Authority,
the existing Accounting  Standards notfied  under  the
Companies Act, 1966 shall continue to apply. Consaquently,
sz Tinarcial staterments have bean prapated to comply in al
matarial aspects with the Acoaunting Standards notified under
Section 21143C) [Companies (Accounting Standards) Aules,
2006, a5 amended) and other relpvant provisions of the
Companies Act, 2013 {The “Act™)].

All assets and fiabilities have been classdied as currem and
non-cursent as per the Cormpany's nanmal operating oycle and
ther ciitetia ag se1 out in Schedulis 10 to the Gorpanies
Act, 2013,

Revenus Recognitien

Salgs revenue is recognized when the significant risks and
rewards of ownership of goods have passed (o Lhe buyer
on dispateh or delivery of goods, net of sales returns, trade
diseoun and VAT/Salas 1ax but inclusive of excise duty and
go not include the cost of mstedals used for captive
consurstion,

«  Export Ingertives are accounted on accrual basie and
incluge the sstimated valug of incentives recaivable
under the DEPB Scheme, the Duly Drawback Scheme,
the Focus Froduct Scheme and the Maichandise
Expart from Indis Scherme, Any diffsmnce a1 the time
of acleat racoipt is accounted for in the vesr of receipt.
The amouni of export incentives has been adjusted
with the cost of raw materials congsumsd,

v Gainfloss on tansfer of Dty Credit Gntitlements
raciived under thi DEPB Schame is accounted fer in
the year of transfer.

Inventory Valuation

Invertorics are valued at the lower of cost and net
jeabisable  value, Cost of inventoties, othet than tor
manytactured finished goods and goods W process, 14
detarmined on Weigitted  Average Cost Method  (net of
CENVAY gradit availed) of stock accounting. Cost of
manlaclured finished goods and goods in process inchade
cogl of raw materials consumred on weighted average basis

d}

B)

)

and appropriate portien of allecabln overheads and Excise
Culy wnd Txas, wherever applicable. Scrap, if any, at the
vear-erd does not form part of the dositg inventony,

Fixad Assets and Capital wark in progress

Fixed assels are stoted al origingl cogl et of CENVAT il
availied, whergwir gligible] bt inchuding freight inward, duties,
taxes ang other incidental expenses refating 1 auquisition and
instaltation thersof, Capital work in progress includes cost of
liser! asgels ungds nstollation and ather incidents) expenses,
ltems of fixed sssets that have been retired from active use
and are held for disposal are slated at the lower of their net
ook valie and nat realizable value and are shown separately
in the financial stalemants, Any expected loss is racognized
immediately in the Statement of Profit and Loss.

Losses mising fom the retiement of, and gaing and lnsses
arising from disposal of fixed assels which are carried at
cosl pre lecagnizad in the Statement of Profit and Loss.
Dopractation

The usefdl lives of the assets are based on technical
estimates approved by the Management and lowe than o
the game as thi uselul fives prescribed under schedule 11 of
the Companies Acl, 2013 in crder 10 rellect the period over
which depreciabla assets are expected to be used by the
Company. Depreciation is provided on & po tala basis on
the Straight Ling Methad {SLM) on the estimated wschyl
livos of the assets ay stated below:

Assats Usaful Lifa
factory Building 30 Yemsg
Plant & Equipment 15 Years
Digs & Moulds 15 Yoarg
Electic Installation & Equipmants 1) Yaurs
Furniture & Fixtties 10 Ynars
Difise Eouipment 5 Yoars
Computars 3 Years
Setvars i Notworks B Years
Matar Gars it Buses 8 Years
Motar Cycles 10 Years

Assats individually costing less Uen 5,000/ are fally
depreciated in the year of acquisition,

Impairmont of Assots

Usually the Company revicws the carrying value of assets tor
any possible impainment &l each balance sheel date,
However, the assets that am subject of amartization are
raviewed for impatement whenever events or changes in
cicurnstances indicate thal the camying mmount may not be
racoverable. An impairment loss is recogniced when the
carying  amount of an o assel exceeds s rgoovarahle
amgunt, In assessing the recoverabla amount, higher of the
assets' foir value less cost to s and value in use s
chigide s,

Opurating Lease

Leases where the [essor effectively retains substantially all
the rigk and henefits of ownarship of the lense torm are
rlassitiedl as operaiing leases, Operating lease paymenty
Bre recoghized s an expensg in the Statement of Profit A
Loss an streight fne basis over the lease e,




Notes to the Financial Statements for the year ended 317 March, 2016

h)

k)

]

Valuation of Investmants

Long terr Invastrents are valued at cosl and Short Term

Imvestments are valued at fower of cost and fair value,

calcitated individually tor each imvestmant.

Excisa Duty

Excise Duty, wherevar applicable, is accounted for at the

time of menutaciure of finished goods,

Provisionz and Contingent Liahilities

The Company recognizes o provision where therg is i

presond abligntion s & rosult of past cvent that probably

reguires an outflow of resouces and 8 reliable gstimale can

b made of ther ampunt of the obligation and acoodingly all

known lisbifties wherever matenal aie prowded Ton A

dizclosure for o contingent liability is mads when thene is &

possibte obligation or a present obfigation that may, bt
rrhably will nod, requirs an outllow of resources,

Employae Banafits

i} Shortderm goployer benefts me meognized as an
gxpense in the Statement of Frofil & Loss of the yew in
whicd the tefated service is endeed,

(i) Gratuiry liability is defiepd bonefit obligation and is
provided for on the basis of an acluaral valuation on
projected method mada 51 the and of the financial year.
The Company has created a trust under the Group
Gratuity Sehame with she Life Insurance Corporation of
Indig (LIC} and amoum paid/payable in respect of the
present valug of fiahility for past services is chargod to
the Stalement of Profit B Loss every yvear. The difference,
it any, betwaen the actuarial valuation of the gratuity of
employees at the year end and the bafance of funds with
LIG 18 provided for ag liability in the books,

Borrawing Costs

Borowing costs thel arg attributable to the acquisition or

construction of gualifving assels are capitalized as parl of

m}

n)

)

the cosl of such asseds. Al othar bomowing costs are

charged 1o rovenue in the period in which they are incurred,

Foreign Exchange Transactions

i} Assets and Gabilities relaling o foreign currency
ransaclions remaining unselllsd at the yeatend arg
gonverted into Indian rupees al closing rates and any
gain of loss anisen % adusted in Statemant of Profit
and Loss.

li} GaingAosses arising out of fluctustions in foreign
exchange rates between he transaction dale and
saltlernand date are recognized in the Statement of Frofit
and Loss under the head "Exchange Rate Mustuation”,

(i The gifference between the forwaerd rale and the
exchange rate on date of incoption of a forward contract
in regpect of torward contracls with underlying assets or
liabilities js tecognized as income o expense and i
amprtized over the life of the contrast,

liv)] Forward exchange conlracts entered 10 bedge the
forgign curtency risk are marked to markot as at the
yoa end and the resullant exchanpe gan o foss s
recognised in the Statement of Pofit & Loss,

[v) Nom menstary foreign currency toms aee cariad at cost
and accordingly the investment in loreign subsidiary 15
gxpressed in Indian Curgngy a1 the michange ratg
prevailing at the date of the transaction,

Provigion for Taxation

Provision for {exation is made laking into consideration the

provisiens of lncome Tax Act, 1961 and Wealth Tax Act, 1957,

Adgustment, if any, anging oul of the agsessment s made in

the year the assessment is completed.

Proviglon for Deferrad Taxation

Defarer tax has been provided for all liming differonces as

required under the provisions of Actounting Standards issuad

by thi [ngtitte of Chartered Accountants of india,

[Amount in )

As st 31st March, 2016

As at 315t March, 2015

Note 2.1 Share Capital

Authorised Share Capital
63500000 (Previous year 63500000 Eguity Shares)
of T14 each

Issuad, Subscribed & Fully Paid Up Gapital
17040000 (Previous year 17040000} Lquity Shares
of 10 each fully paid up.

63,50,00,000

17.04,00,009

_..5330,00,000

17.04,00,000

of 10 each fully paid up.
Add: Shares issued during 1he year
Equity Shares at the ond of the year

2141 Reconciliation of Number of Shares
As at 3‘lst March, 2016 As at 31st March, 2015
Equity Shares
Belance ot the beginning of the year
17040000 [Previous yaar 17040000) Equity Shares 17,04,00,000 17.04,03,000

.. 17,04,00,000




Notes to the Financial Statements for the year ended 31" March, 2016

212 Terms/Rights attached to Equity Shares

{Amount in ¥

their sharehatding,

The Company has one class of equily shares having a par value of $10/~ gach. Lach shargholder is eligible for one vote per share beld i
the Company, The dividend proposed by the Board of Dirgctors of the Coempany, if any, is subject o approval of the members in the
ensuing general meeting, excepl in the case of inteim dividend, if declared. In the even! of liquidation of the Company, squity
sharekolders shail be antitled to receiva the remaining assets, after the distribution to preferred shareholders, if any, in proportionate of

21.3 Dotail of shares held by shareholders holding more than 5% of the aggregate shares in the Company

Name of Equity Sharehaldars

As at 315t March, 2016

As at 31st March, 201%

No, of Shares | % of sharchalding

Na. of Shares | % of shareholding

Ralance at the end of the year

2,24 Surplus in the Statement of Profit & Loss
Balance at the beginning of the year
Add; Profit for the year

Less: Appropriations/Adjustments

Transter to General Reserve

Proposed Dividend on Equity Shares (Dividend per
share ¥1.50/- (Previous vest $1.50/-}

Provision for Dividend Distribution Tax
Adjustments on account of Depreciation as per
Schedule 1l of Companies Act, 2013

Balance at the end of the year

Total Reserves B Surplug

Geolin lovestments Private Limited 44,72 517 26.75 4472517 26,75
Satish Kurmar Gupta (Karta) #.88.584 5.2t B,38,581 5.21
As at 315t March, 2016 As at 315t March, 2015
Note 2.2 Reserves & Surplus
221  Capital Reserve 3,99.500 3,995,500
222  Securities Premium Account
Balance at the beginning of the year 11,27,20,644 11,27.20,644
Add: Additions/(Lilisations) during the year -
Balahce at the end of the year 11,27,20 644 11.27.20,644
2.2.3  Genoral Reserve
Balance at the beginning of the year 1,04,70,08,364 88,70,09,364
Add: Transfer from surplus in the Statement of Profid b Loss f,00,00,000 6.00,60,000

1,10,70,09,364

1.04.70,09,364

11,89,83,676 10,50.88.082
. M620.74377 17.06,20,137
22,10,58,003 27.67,08,224
6,00,0C,000 6,00,00,000
2,56,60,000
52,33.326
6,59.32.277

16.10,58,003 B T
1,38,11,87,511 1,27,91,13,134
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Notes to the Financial Statements for the year ended 31" March, 2016

Note 2.3 Long Term Borrowings

{Amauntin )

Particwlars

As at 31st March, 2016

As at 115t March, 2015

234 Securad
Term Loans

(i} from Banks:

Non Gurrant | Curront Maturities | |

Non Gurrant | Currant Maturitios

Rupee Term Loans 7.45.61.830 5,21 62,281 11.12,95,487 5.11,02,711%
{ii} from Others:
Rupee Term Loans 3[‘] 38,768 28,8215 22.91,8497 21.4 41ﬂ
‘ “7 76 00,598 5,46,44,432| 11,35,87,384 6,32,44, 133
Less: Amount disclosad under other

Cunrent Liabifities (Refer Note 2.9.1) o BAGA4A32 6,32,44,143
Mat Long Term Borrowings 7,76,00.598 -l 11,35,87,384 "
{Amount in ¥)

Particitlars of Laan Datail of Sacurity Outstanding Balance | Rapaymant Torms

A5 At 310382006

JHHEI;‘}mln BﬂIlkSWM”hwmv

Term Loan from HOFC Bank

Exclusive charge on the assets finenced wnder
larm Loan and Equitable mortgage of land &
Dusitding including hypathegation of plam i
machinay stunted o Village Bhagwisnpur,
Rovekizes, ttasaakbisd and Eguitiatdi Mortgige
of Land & Distl-Sirmaur, Pantasabity and
Langha Road, Sahaspur, Oehradun and 2nd
Charge on Current Assets of the Company.

9,26,93,722

8 Quarterly nstaliments of $27.78 Lakh each
12 Quarterly nstalments of 30,70 Lakh each
14 Quanterly instalments of T16.25 Lakh each
14 Quarterly inssalmems of 7.77 Lakh aach

Vehigle Losns from HOFC Bank

Hynathication of Viehiches

22050373

52% in Monthly nstatbnent in 2016-17
3% i Monthly Instaliment in 2017-18
8% i Monthly Installment in 2018-19
1% in Monthly Installment in 2018-20

Vahigle Loang Trom (CIC] Bank

Hypothecation of Vehiclas

11200016

G5% in Monthly installment in 201617
26% m Monthly installment in 201718
6% in Monthly Installment in 2018-18

Total

12672411

(ii) from Others

Viehicke Loans from BMW
Financial Services

Hypothecation of Vehickes

4,29.382

1008 in Maorthly Installment in 2(16-17

Vehicls Loans from

Hypolhscation of Vehicle

6,230,543

50% in Monthly dnstallment in 2016-17

Financial Sevices India L.

Tatir Capilal Ld. H0% in Monthly tnstallment in 2017-18
Vahicle: Loans fram Datile Hypthacation of Vebicly 32.20,342 | 46% in Manthly instaliment in 2006-37
Finangial Srvicas B0% in Marhly fnstallnant in 2017-18
A% ih hMarthly stallment in 2018-149
Vehicle loan from Toyota Hypatheation of Yehiclg 12.35,662 { 22% in Morthly Installment in 201516

34% in Morthly Installrent in 2016-17
35% in Monthly stallmnont in 201718

Total

§5,20,919




Notes to the Financial Statements for the year ended 31" March, 2016

(Amount in ¥)

As at 315t March, 2016 | As at 31st March, 2015
Nole 2.4 Deferred Tax Liahility (Net)
Balance 1 the begioning of the yoa 2,071,930 4,63,00,880
Addfortheyear b (60.81.430 L A255.88850)
Balance al the end 6l the year 1,46,30,500 2,07,11,930
2.5 Other Long Term Liabililies
Security Deposits 5,87.60,579 57820879
Total Othar Long Term Liabilities 5,97,60 579 __5.76,20,879
2.6 Long Term Provisions
Provision fon Gratuily e 24,34.700 o 2806830
Tatal Other Long Term Provisions 24,34,700 28,056,330
27 Short Term Borrowings
2 Socured
Loans repayable on demand
from Banks: 1.17.47 66,483 1,21,013,24, 756
(Socured againgt hypothecation of Company's entile stack of raw
materials, stock in process, finished goods, consumables, stores
and spares, finished goeds i stares, i iransit and with shippars
at port awaiting shipment for exports, receivables, chegues, bank
drafts and all other cunient assets and 2nd partpassy charge on
Pmnl & Machmely') . F N,
Total Secured Loans 1,17.47,66,483 1,21,03,24,756
272 Unsecured
Lians and Advances trom Related Parties
Shon Tetm Loans 4,149,55,794 13,34, 568
from Others - -
Tatal Unsecured Loans ;ﬂ_______ 4,19,55,294 13.34.558
Total Short Tetm Borrowings 121,671,777 1,21,16,59,324
2.8 Trade Payablos
Trade Pavables Tor goods B seivices 13,79.42,507 90),83,64,984
{laciudas Sundry Creditors) T
Total Trade Payables 73,78,42,5417 90,8364 089
24 Othar Gurrent LiabHities
2.8.1 Corrant Maturitios of Long Torm Debts (rofer Nate 2,3.1)
from Banks 9.21,62.281 6,11,02,7115
from Others 2482151 2141418
Total _ 546,44,432
2.8.7 Other Payables
Advances from Customers 3.42.16,058 2.50,40,061
Expenses Fayable B,66,57,211 £,94,61,354
Other Linbifities 3,796,734 it 242
Total ..13,88,20.003 L
Total Other Gurrent Linbilities 19,34,64,435 22 08,965,770
210 Short Term Provision
Pravision for taxation (Net of MAT Credit Entitlernent) 2,549,69,861 158,657,334
Pravision for Gratuity 810,737 7.81.533
Provision for Excise Duty 1,47,18,194 1,.44.01.014
Proposed Dividand - 2.55,60,000
Provision Jor Dividend (istribution Tax - 5233076
Total Short Tarm Provisions 3,85,08,787 595,83, 207
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Note 2,11 FIXED ASSETS

GROSS BLOCK DEPHECIATION NET BLOCK
Particutars Total | Additions | Soles/Adi, | Total Total Forthe | Soles/Ad]. | Total Az on ason
ak on tuging the | during tha % on % on period during the s on 31.03.2016 | 31.03.2015
01.04.2M5 perind pericd 31.03.2016 | 01.04.2015 pariod 31.03.2016

SN S

Lang 14,68,74.906 - 438,786 1 126455340 - - - o 126465148 [ 126874 908
Building* 23,7382.842 37,36/606 -1 MNA9528)  B237948 1RA3H68 - 0292097 50BN T 15003403
Flant & 796292743 1.58,64,760 347,722 1 BL3G09.781] 494956405 50747654 ZO0.206 1 BALANLINE| AHINMLO0R | 30.33,3638
Leipments

Fumiture & Finlure | 3230300460 629178307 285057200 | 36140600 148035417 33042482 18583862 | 1624938947 188997604 174095629
Vighittas 16,72,00005)  315./56061 TALAVGHY | WWIGHLEZE|  BEZA3E] 23201146 6317896 781886101 106486018 101431344
Office Equipments | TAEGIS1200 23282816 AN | 86502 B3986069]) 13517050 w066 | 106502853 41421721 364409

Mol LIAGO00E 26h 12 PR ARV B (1 W A RE RN Fe 56,358,070 63| 716065040 61144733 6280147

Total Tangibla | 2,05,41,B7.540] 168945840 49819410 {2.17,32,16A76(1,04,80,02,304| 13,39.91,769 |  3,04,95853 14,19,97,96,220; 97,34,18,256 | 95,61,85236
Asgots

4,06,19,966 (2.0541,87.540] 92,74.28,817| 12,14,74,832 | (4,90,68,655) |1,00,80,02304| 45,61,85,256 | 884810215

Previous Year  [1,61,22,38,032 18,25,68,494

{ntanqible Assets
Patents 15,500 - - 15,560 3.h38 - . 3838 1,662 11, it
Soltwares 1,67 ha.ba? 552637 - 1, 48,05.359 83,772,106 T - 1,13,59,084 7446275 4R 80,526

1,86,20,850 B3L7603[ 2085888 1,13,62922|  14,57.857 f8,81,988

Taval imtangible 1,82,68,022 552,837
Agzols

B3.76034| 9891008 §7,99.209

Provious Year 143,72,286)  38,95,736 1,62.68,022 56,12,997|  27,63,037

Gaplital work

in progress:

al Bullding under 82.05,633 39,64 468 1183832 1.10.36.460 - - - - 1,30,36,468% B2 55 633
constriction

b} Assets unde 24 44579 17 48 853 24,44 574 17,068,853 - - - . 17, 88.853 Mmansn
trstallation

Tutal Capltal 1,02,00,212 51,513,522 1628412 1,28,25,322 - - - -1 1,26,25322 | 10700212
work in

propress

Pravious year 3,60,303) 1,07,00212 3,684,303 1,67,00.212 - . 3 <1 1,0000,12 169,363

Grand Total 208,31,65,774] 175256205 5,35,48322 (2,70,88,62,657)1,10,63,78,338} 1340, 74,657 |  3.01,06853 |1,21,11,61,142 90,32,01 515 | 97,67,71430

Provigus year  |1,82,6980,11} 197164442 { 40069379 |2,08,31566.774) 03,30.41,814} 124297860 | (4,00,08,655) (1,10,63,78,338| B7.67,77,436 | 98,30,36,867
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(Amount in T)

As ut 315t March, 2016 | As at 315t March, 2015

Nots 2,12 Nan-ctirrant Investmonts (Non-Tradu)
Investments in Government Securitias (Valued at Cost)
{6 Yuars National Saving Centifizates VI lssue) 44,834 44,834
Liverty Fout faghion Middle Gast F2E

1 (Previous Year 1) Equity Share of UAE Ohirae 10,00,000 1ufly paid AR oY
Total Nen-current Investments Y_m_‘m_w‘!_.m{%,_:.’iﬂ.ﬂﬂ1“ 1,22,38,091
Agmregate amount of Queted Investments Tmm——— -
Agpregste amount of Unguoted Investments 1.22,38,00 1.22,38,091
Aguoregnle Markat Valug of Quoted Investments - .
243 Long tove Loans B Advances
(Unsecured and considered good unless staled olherwise)
Capital Advance 13,56,838 21,32,492
Security Depusits
to Related Parties - .
1o Ctheys 6,51.48,280 5,44,97,148
Sharg Applicatian Monay paid 1o Subsidiaries (Pending Allatment) 1,801,48,696 1,80.44,6496
MAT et Entiomern _0mais | s
18,30,94,420 1R.64,41,128
Less: Provision for doubtful security deposits to others LAl _ 37,711,805
‘Totat Long term Loan & Advances 1&.93.22%"!3 1&%.69.323
214 Other Non-current Assets
(Unsecured and considered good unass stated otherwise
Total Other Non-curcont Assots N I . -
215 Inventories (As valued and certified by the Management)
Raw Matirials 32,33.96,478 30,42,18,527
Goods in Process 1H12,18,904 17.37.01,289
Finished Gonds
Manufactured 78,80,1G,862 18,95,76,335
Tiaded 0.57,66,255 10,45,54 455
Packing Materiais 1,48,08,815 1,72,70,353
Stores & Spares 3.01,57.42% 3,22,20,333
0l & Lubrigants 1465268 _ 144,926
Yot Inventrios mmain | ismsan
216 Trade Receivables

[Unsecured and considered good unfizss stated othorwise)
Debts oulstanding for & paiiod axcasding st manths friom the doe date

Considered good 14,54.07,667 8,25,14,030
Considerad doubthd 1,30,73,489 1,64,36,581
Other Dabts
Gansidered good _.jopagazes 1 N09.56,12.737
96,79,20,911 1,16.45,68,348
Less: Provision for doubtiul debts 1,30.73.489 1.64,36,581
Total Trade Receivables 85,48,46,832 114,813,767
211 Cash and Bank Balances
Cash and Cash equivalents
Batances with banks:
tn Current Accounts* 1,32,49,762 1,18,72,022
Cheques on hand 2,54,20,403 948,576
Cashin hand including imprest 1,36,00,747 1.19,94.879
fixed Deposits with Banks (Margin Money depasit for LG/Bank Guarantess)* 23017166 384760860
Total Cash and Bank Balances 151,965,578 6,33,91,637

LT PR ST P ) D T T e

* Includes Unclaimed Dividend of £7.4% Lakb (Previous year ¥4.61 Lakh)
** Includes Fixad Deposits for £3,78 Lakh {Previous yaar 212,37 Lakh) having maturity of more than 17 months




Notes to the Financial Statements for the year ended 31" March, 2016

(Armount in ¥}

31.03.2016 31.03.2015
Note 2,18 Short-iarm Loans & Advances
{Unsecwred and considered good unless stated olherwise)
Advances recoverable in eash or in kind o for the value 1o e received 14,454,711, 768 +2.80,63,653
Security Deposit for fess than 12 Months
10 Related Parlies &60,00.000 60,00,000
1o Others 280,82, 167 3,74,82,618
Batance with Cxeiso and other Statutory Autharitios 4,56,03.510 3,36.90.427
{including service 1ax, VAT recovoralile and taxes paid under protest)
[repaid Expenses 1.81,65,968 1,36,23,497
Loans and advances to employees 1,20,62,090 1,08,77,440
Total Short-term Loans & Advancas 25,65,06,103 22,97,38,51%
FA L] Other Qparating lncome
F{ﬁi]}l!l 410,772 AG,AbD
Miscellanegus Income hg 22017 45,A0,809
Gain on Cechange Rate Foctualions 87,61,200 4, 10,886
Badf Dabts Recovargd 1E,43,000 77,83,493
Total Oparating Income 1,68.41.984 1,78,62,138
220 Other Income
Bank and Other Interest (Tax deducted a1 Source T2.63 Lakly 34,20,769 48,48,268
[Prizvious Year 23,57 Lakhl)
Total Other income 34,20,269 45,48,266
2.2t Cost of Matorials consumag and Firishod Goods Purghasod

a) Raw Materiale (Refor ta Note 2.27.21)
Stock al the beginning of the year
Add; Purchases

TG4 7T s
Luss: Slock at the end of the yew S 2 s B¢ X 4 e SU AL B 2T
Raw Mareriale Consumed 1,61,30,75,816 2.07,17,66,196
b) Finishad Goods Purchased 45,32,41,067 93,16,48,646
Total Gost of Materials eonsumed and Fivished Goods Purchosod [a-+b) 2,07,63,16,883 3.00,34,14,842
2,22 Change in Invendartas of Finished Goods, Gonds in Progoss and
Stock-In-Trady
a)  Mvenlonins at the end of 1he year
Finished Goods/Slock-in-Trade i 32,83.117 90,31,30,790
Goods in Proness 15,12,18.906 17.37,41,240
Tota 1,03,60,02,023 1,07,69,22,080
) Inventories at the beginning of tho year
Finished Goods/Stock-in-Trade 906,31,30,790 64,43,94,409
Goods in Process 17,37.91,290 15,80,07.486
Tatal 1.07,69,22,080 00,34,01,97%
{ncraasol/Dacrease in Inventorias {h - a) 4.19.20.057 {27,35.20,105)
2.23 Employae Benefite Exponse
Silarigs, Wages snd Bonus 60,15, 77,354 b7.45,70,488
Cortribution 1 Providenl and Other funds (Refer to Note 2.27.18) 3,19,62,399 4.56,46,308
Stafl Wallare Expenses 1,198,540 1.30.27.408
Total Employee Benefits Expense b4, 55,25,307 62,82,44,295
224 Finance Cost
Imerest Expense
to Banky 14,79,40,443 14.61,24,958
Lo athers {Refer 1o Note 2.27.7) 15,3,760 18,723,792
Bank Charges 1.43.89.472 L IAL R

Total Finance Cost T 16,39,21,088 160687115
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(Amaunl In T)

3.03.2016 N.03.201%
Noto 2.25  Other Expensos
a}  Manufacturing Exponses
Freight fnwasts 98,491,012 1,16,38,5h85
Upper froduction Charges 10.00,68,608 14,28,25,017
0il B Lubricams 1.04,68,447 1,48,05,13%
Electicity Charges B,452,31,650 §,57.08,207
fepairs 1o Machinery 3.63,47,88% 4.05.49.427
Land Lease Henl 1,98.851 1.80,776
Franchise Feg 1,26,06,000 1,25,00,000
Tatal TIEATIAAT IB8301,147
h)  Adwministration, Selling and Other Expensas
Facking Maierials Cottgumned 14,88,03,625 12.37.03 126
Printing & Stationery nagna M ABGIG
Dircctars' Remunes ation 2.02,18,000 1.92,00,000
Claing 2.47157,615 3.92,64,678
Tow, Travelfng and Conveyants 7.98,34,162 7.87.28.584
Inswrance Charges 78,431,376 B4 5b, 2406
Focs and Taxes 4,47.74.118 5,06,21,421
Postage, Tologram, Trlophone and Tiex 1.51,48,354 1,21,24,601
Subscriptions 9,31.017 12,3357
Advertisements 7.08,80,0446 12.90,60,613
Rent 16,10,88,706 13,01,87,B46
Donationg 32,50,968 15.40,536
Export CIF Expunses 1,30,71.520 2.56.97.041
Freight Quiward B, 71,892,009 4,06,21,836
Samples 2,25.0¢4 3,68, 84t
Auditors' Reimuneration:
Statutery Audit Fos 0,056,000 10,490,000
Tax Audit Fee 0,000 Be000
Cerdication Fee 20,000 20,000
Mizcellansous Expenses 3.63.23.734 3.11,12.002
Royalty 16,83,00,000 17.27,23.000
Entertainment Fxpeansas 71,382,008 A0.A0,187
Commigsion 3.83,08,B55 4.08,78517
Salas Fromotion Expenses 7.80,20.915 7.845,89,420
Mewspapers b Parigicals 2,165,194 2,686,017
[ebls writtan off 2124435 1.11.86,347
Provision far doubtful debts (refer 1 Nt 2,27.13) 133,63.092) (1,36,37.243}
Consultancy B Professional Charges 2,34,50,353 21485393
Regpads & Maintgnance Expenses-Building 2.26,22,469 3.24,60,854
Pepuis b Maintenanca Fxpangss-0thees 2,857,088 1,92,17.042
Loss on transfer of Duly Credit - 14,145,876
Total 1,08,88,49, 822 ;. .13,59,95,15}
Total Other Expanses (8 + b} 35 15,44,02,30%
2.26 Exceptional htems:
Frafit on Sale of Fixed Assets {474,683)
Loss on sala of Fixed Assets 7,614,570
Total Excyptionat Itams
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Note 2.27 NOTES ON FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 315T MARCH, 2016

2011

Details of Managerial Remuneration:

{!\ aunt ind

" Particulars " 31.03.2016 31.03.2015
“zyment and provision for remunaration 1g:

Executive Dirgetorns) 7,03,00,000 1,92,00,000
GComputation of Net Profit in accordance with Section 198 of the Companies Act, 2013, for caleulation of commission paid/payable to
directors; )

(Ampunt in )
Particulars 31.03.2016 31.03.2015
Prafit hefore tax as por Statoment of Profit § Loss 12,38,20,7865 oo s0003259
Add:
Niractors’ Rermuneration 7,03,00.000 1.92,00,000
(Profit)/Loss an sale of Fixed Assets (Net) 117,768,625 71,34,887
Direcios’ Sitting Feos 2,77.600 2,.70.000
(Profit)/Loss on sale of Investments L
Not Profit as par Section 198 of the Companies Act, 2013 15.61,76,880 17.66,08,146
Commission paid/payable to Directors - -

Durting the year under consideration, ra remunerstion has been paid o Non-Execolive Directors except profassional senices Tees of ¥1.80,000/
{Previgus year ¥2 20,0000} te Sh. Ashok Kumar (il the date of his becoming Oirector on the Board of Company) and sitting fees of 2,772,500/
(Previous vesr T2,70.0000-) to Independent Direclors, Sh, Ashok Kumer has been appoiated as an Executive Dirsctor waad, 1" June, 2015,

2212

2.21.3

I the apinion of the Beard and to the best of its knowfedge,
the value of realization of current assats, loans and advances
i ihe ordinary course of Dusiness woukd nel e less than the
amount al which they have been stated in the Balance
Sheet,

The Corrpany has taken vanous relail stores and warehouses
under pperating lease arrangernents. The lease agreements
gengrally have an escalation clouse and thare are no

subleases. These leases are generally notl non cancellable
and are renpwable by mulual congent on mutinlly agrasd
terrng, Therg are oo resticlions imposed by lease
apreements, The agoreqale lease rentals payables are
vharged as Bant inaote 2.25.

The Tuttre minimum lease paymants under non cangelfable
operatng leases are o5 follows:

{Amaount in T)

{oaso Rontals 3032006 3.03.20M5%
Not later than one year 24,94,687 1,71,45,281
Later than one yveat snd nol fater than b years 3,656,232 15,81.422
Later than five years - -
|.ease Payment recognized in Statement of Profit and Loss are shown ay 16,10,88,706 13.01,87,846
Rent under Other Expenses in Note 2.25

2214 Derivative tnstruments and Unhadgod Foraigh Currency Exposure, which are not intended for Trading or Spaculation Purpose:;
Forward Gontract sutstanding as at batanco Shaot date

Particulars of Currancy March 2016 March 2015 Purposo
Forward Contracts
Purchase Ush 8,145.33 To hedge the Trade Payable
Silles Ush 4,22.050 B4 m54 To hedge the Trade
GRP i 30,000 Receivables
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Particulars of Unhedged Foreign Currency Exposure as &t the balance sheat dato

RTY

Particutars of Unhedged Amount in Foreign Currency Amaount in India Currency
Foreign Currency Exposure {Rs, in Lakh)
Currency ﬁ;rcia e March 2118 March 2016 March 2015
Trade Fayahles usn 42696795 | 20538030 | 28472 128.08
EURD 22,153 85 15,000.00 16.65 10.05
Advance for import Putchages uso 3,706.00 246
Advance fram Customers LS 6494345 | 7366287 39.40 42.5%
EURD bAdz00 | - 6.32 :
GAP 5,437.99 15,143.50 | 5.50 14,77
Trade Receivabies UsH 194166667 | 16,331 24,30 1,180,687 984 45
EURO 23,644,060 48,307.00 16.29 32.20
5P 86,891.75 51,102.82 82.39 48.30

2215

2716

The asseesment of the Company in respect of Ingome Tax
& Wealth Tax s completed up 1o Assessment Yesr
201314,

tn terms of the renewed agreements deted Apil 3, 2013
with Liberty Enterprises (L) and Libary Sroup Marketing
Civision (LAMD), the two partnership firms of the goup,
far further period of two veses from April 1, 2012 onwards,
the exclusive use of their manufagturing facifities and fixed
assets, trademarks & distibution networks was available
with tha Company till March 31, 2015,

In futtherance 1o e Company's ealier communication,
considering the snduring  benefits of unlocking  the
shareholders’ value Uvough sequisition of the tangible and
intangibls asse1s inctuding busingss rights of LE & LGMG,
on March 31, 201% the Company had entered inlo &
Memorandum of Undarstanding {MOU) with thase two
Partnership firms for actuisition of their respective
business of foolwesl, In tetms of the said MOU the
Company had paid a sum of T10 Lakh & T50 Lakh 10 LE
b LGMO respectively a8 sn advance and the refated
transactions were to be completad, a5 per the mnde/
structure to be recommended by the consullants, on o
pefore March 31, 2016 but with ratrospective effect from
April 1, 20145,

liv continuation to the said MOL, considering the fact of
non-formalization of terms and  corditions  for  such
takeaver by 31" March, 2036 due to cerain \echnical
reasung, parties to the above said MOU have emared
imo g fresh agreement for continuing  the  existing
arrargements S further periodis) as may be mutually
agrend and accordingly has  extended the  said
arrangerments initially 1o further pariod of 12 months
comemencing from 1" April, 2016 onwards.

Further duting the vear the Comipany has paid/provided o
franchise fees of T115 Lokh (Provipus year €115 Lakh)

2207

2.27.8

2218

22110

o LE and ¥858
10 LGMD,

Lakhs (Previous vear T881.67 Lakh)

Alsn during the year, in terms of the renewed agreement
dated Aprit 3, 2013 with Liberty Footwear Ca. {LFC),
anolher parinership firm of the group and cwner of
trademark “LBERTY", for granting exclusive rights of use
of trademark "LIBERTY" 1o the Company for further period
of flleen years from April 1, 2013 onwards and in
conformity with the requisits approvals of the Central
Government oblgined by the Company in this regard, the
Company has paid/provided for tradematk license fee of
T824 Lakh {Pravinus yoar 855,56 Lakh) to LFC,

Intgrest to others include ¥8.67,473/. {(Previous year
11,82.934/) against short term doan from M/s Geofin
hwvestiments Privite Lid @ 12% pa,

Quiing the year, the Company has capitalized theg
borrowing cost of € Nil (Previous veast ¥ Nil] as part of the
cost of the guakfyng assets,

Thie Company has paid the oxcise duty amounting 1o
T18,17, 74,685, (Previous year ¥22,57,15.331/) against
the sales execuled duting the year,

Also, the Company has made the provision of excise duty
of ¥1,17,18.194/ (Previous Year 1,24 51,014/} againgt
finighed gonds lying in stocks as or 31" March, 2016 and
the difference of two has been recognized separately in
the Statersent of Prolit & Loss,

The Company has not received any memorandum (as
required to be filed by the sopphers with the notified
authority under the Micra, Small & Medium Enterprise
Development Act, 2006) claiming their status as on 317
March, 2016 as Micro, Small or Medium Enterprise,
Gonsequently the amourd paid/pavable 1o these parties
during 1he yoar ig nil,
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22701 Contingont Liabilitios
- (Ampum in<)
Particulars 201516 2014-15
I} Bark Guaraniees issucd or behalf of the Company submitted with various 4,29,96,583 056,22, 601
institutional customars in 1erms to theit orders.
Il Letter of Credits 1,01,71.418 11,90,31,607
) Onaccount of disallowance of legitimate credit of CENVAT against Excise Duty/ 3.38,75,448 3.36,75.448
Education Cess' for the period from Nevember 2004 (o June 2005, May 2006 10
Jura 2008, financial year 2002-03 and 2004-05. CESTAT while admitting
Compary's appeal dirscies {0 deposit ¥39 Lakh undor protest and has
granted slay,
V) Value Added Tax’ for the financial year 2005-06, 200607, 2007-08 & 2008-09 an hh,69,829 55,569,829
aveount of classification of gonds at different rate of tax
V) Service Tax on GTA Services {or the pariod fram January 2005 to March 2007 5,268,698 5.28,508
Vi) On accourt of compliance relating to obligations under EPCE lcenses 4,42,00,783 4.42,00,783
VII} Third Party claims dug to dispute relating 1o contracts - 44,37.479
VIll)  On aceount of fpw Jabour mattars perlsining to e lier years in which Company has 2,10,00,000 -
prefered an appesl before the Hon'ble High Court and has been grantod stay,

"inchading amount deposited under protost ¥39,00,000/ (Provigus yeis £35,00,000/).
‘neluding amount deposited under protest $14,25,81%/ (Frevious year 114,25,0154),

22037 Capitel commigments not provided for are estimated at
35 Lakh {Previous year 330 Lakh),
22705 Provigion for doubtful deits; Guring the year, the Company

has considered oghts for §1,23,142~ {Previous year
£47.08,560/4) as doubtul debts/secwitios and also has
withgrawn 734,858,734/ (Frevious year $1,83,46,833/) out

Statement of Profit & Loss

of the provisions made in the eatier years for te same and
wiitten off as bad debts ¥7,10,788~ {Provious year
¥561,77,632/-). Further the differential of the provision made
and amount withdrawn during the yaar, detailed a8 under,
haas been charged to Statement of Profit & Loss for the year
and the balance has been camied i the halance sheet:

{Amount in )

Particulars 2015-16 201415
Provision for the yesr 1,23.143 47,09,590‘ ‘
Less: Amount withdiswn from the provision made for goutettl debts in the earlisr years 34,86,234 1,83,46,[:]33””
Net debited/(credited) to Statemnnt of Profit & {055 (33,63,087) 11.36,37,243}
Ralance Sheet {Amount in T)
Particulars 2015-16 201415
Opening Balance 2,02,08,386 3.38.45.679
Add: Frovision for the year T 23042 47,00,500
fotal o 20331528 3,855,219
Less: Amourt withdraﬁ;i";fiaring the year 34,86,734 1,83.46,833
Closing halance 1,68.45,294 2.07.08,386
Trade Raceivablos (Refer 1o Note No, 7.16) 1,30,73,489 1.64.36.581
Secutity Deposits 1o Dthers (Refer to Note No. 2.13) 37.71.805 37.71,805

22714 Duning the yesr, considering the non-recoverability of
some of the debty/advances, the Gompany has wiitign
of the debts amounting to T20,13.848~ (Previous year

T45,38,0717.),

22115

The Board of Dimctors of the Company considers snd
maintaing “Footwoat™ ag 1he only buginess segment of the
Garmpany,
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2.21.16  Basic and Diluted Earning per share: The Basic and diluled eaming per shate of the Company is a5 undet: -
{Amourit in T)

Duscription 201816 2014-15
Basic & Diluted

Proflt afier Tacallon (A) 10,20.74,377 17,06,20,137
Welghted average number of Equity Shares (B) 1‘?0,4{].0(“]‘[} 1,70,40,000
Norninal value per Equity Share " 16.00 10.00
Basic & Difuted Carnings per share (A/B) 499 10.01

lransactions between the Company and related
parties and the stdlus of oulstanding halances as
at 31" March, 2016:

22117 Related Party Tranzactions A)
The Company has made the following transactions with
related parlies as defined under the provisions of
Accounting Standard 18 issued by institute of Charlered
Accourtards of India,

{Amount in T)

Description Subsidiary Entities where Key Marugoment Relatives of Total
Key Managemaent Porsonnal Key
Parsonnel/Relative of Managsment
Koy Matagomant Persannel
Parsonnnl has
significant influence
Transactions
Aecaiving of Sovices - B4, 79,877 6,722,539 156,512 87,568,728
i) (1.82.81,774) (21,38.677) {1.42,104) (2,04, 62, 550)
Yalo of Goods - 9,18.01,040 - . 9,19,01,040
(-] {5,25,25,479) i 3] 5,#5,25,470)
Furchase of Assels - - - - -
-l {1.85,00,000) ) [-) (1.85,00,000)
Licenss Agieamants . #0.50,25,250 . - 20,50,26,250
{Franchise Fee & Licensing - (20,81,16.562) { [+ {20,81,16,562}
Faa including Srivige Tax)
Payman of Salary, Wages . - 7,36,00,000 98.,30,000 3,32.30,000
anid pthir benefits to - [} {2,25,00,000) [96,30,000) {3.21,30.000
amployess
Loans 1aken - 31,79,64.128 - ! 31,79,84,128
{-) (75,43,86,0060) 3] -} {15,43,98,000)
Repayment of Loang . 27.82,10,87% - - 271.82,10,874
-l (17,21,20.000) ) i) [17.21,20,000}
Imergst Paid/Payable 867,423 : - 847473
| {11,83.834) -] ) 111,83 8534}
Advanca for Business 17anster - - - - .
I} {60,00,000) - (-] (60,00,000)
Dutstanding b R
Trade Recrivable: - 1,99,43,454 - . 1,80,43 45
[+) (1,10.42,414) { ¢ {11042 414)
Irade Payables . 10,583,128 249,635 . 13,42,763
8] 130,40,507) {2,07,096) N (32,47.603)
Shott Taro Loang . 4,18,5%,201 . - 4,149,55,484
-] {13.34.586) {-) {+) (13,34,566)
l.oans b Advances - G0.060.000 - . 6(,00,000
) (60,060,000} i) () {B0.00.000Mm

Previous yoar figures are in brackets
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1) [etaif of Releled Parties and description of relaticnship: 3] Sk Sunil Bangal 4} b, Adersh Gupta (1l 18th
] Subsidiary Company: Augusl, 2015) %) Sh. Adeesh Kumar Guplz 6)
Libesty Foot Fashion Middle East FZE Sh, Satish Kumer Geet (il 28" May, 2015)
i) Intities wihere Key Managerment Personnel/fielative 7 ‘Sh. Ashok Kumar w10 Juee, 2015)
of Key Management Parsonngl has  significent H} &h. Munish Kakra
irdlusnie; iv)  Helatives of Key Management Personnel:
Geofin dnvagtmants Private Lid, Lberty Group S/8h, Harish Kumar Gupta, Raman Bansal, Vivek
Marketing Division, Liberty Entetprises,  Liberty Baneal, Anupam Bansal (Brothers of Dircctors)
Footweat Co., Senjeey Bansal Chatlable Trust, Sh, Ayush Bansal, Sh, Manan Bansaf, Sh. Pranav
Liberty Innovative  Quifits Lrd,  Litthe  Wilg Gupta [Sans of Girectors)
Congtractions el Lid.,. Note: Recaiving the services from Key Manapement
i} Key Managemant Parsonnel; Personnel and their refativas includes rent and land
1) Sh. Adesh Kumar Gupta 2} Sh. Shammi Bansal lense charges,
) Distlosure of sigmificant lransamtuns{u\ili\..".l}‘ll.r"ﬂa}ﬁff pal't|g§: lAmount in 2
Type of Relationship Type of Transactio Name of the Entity/ Nature Firancial Year (T)
Person 201516 201415
Receiving of Services GGeofin invezimants Private Rant for Office Premises 1991,9941 15231190
Limited
Littie Wotld Construgtions Rent 5,723,633 501,249
Private Limitad
Liberty Faotwear Co. Rent for Office Premises 10,498,800 11,058,620
Sanjeev Bansal Charitably Rent for Office Premises 4,50,000 4.50,000
Trust e s et
Madlical facilities Tor 8,17,450 8,931,675
) amployess
Enlitles where —

Key Management , Kpenses 19,0000
Personnel / Relative Sh. Harigh Kumar Gupta [ens 166,317 1,42.104
o T%’:S’;“F?Qaﬂfmﬂ”' Sl of Gonds Librty nnovative Oufits Sale of Goods 9.19.01.040] 5.25.25.473
sioniticant &Ill?psnrp Limited manutactured and deal

& A in by the Corpany

Purchase of Assets Geafin lavestmants Purchase of Fixed Assats -1 1.85.60,000
Private Lirnitad

License Agraements Liberty Enterprises Franchise Fee TAAG000] 1,20,21,400

{including service tax)
liberty Group Franchise Fes 0,79,59,7501 980,684,441

Marketing Division {including service Lax)
Liberly Footwear Co. Licensa Fee 93055500 9,671,307

(inchuding Service Tax)
e Loans Taken GGeofin Invastments Unsecurad Short Termy Loans | 31,70.64,128 | 15,43,96,000

Kt”w!'ﬁs where Frivate Limited

gy Management : —
Parsonnel / Relalive Repayrent of Loans 27.82,10,875( 17,21,20,000
0f Key Managemen Interest paid/payable 8,67.473 11,93,934
i I}Pﬁ:g;;:;‘ ﬁ]lﬁl:;j;n e Advance for twansfor Libirty Entetptises Advance 10,00,000
s of Busingss
Liberty Group Advanca - 50,00,000
Marketing Division
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Payment of Salary, Sh. Adosh Kumar Gupta | Salary, Wages and 48,00,000]  48,00,000
Wanes and othar benefils other benefits
to employees/Receiving Rem 47 534 3R.67Y
of Services A—" Salary, Wagas and 46000001 48,00.000
Key Management nther benafits
Personncl Sh, Shammi Bansal Salary, Wages and 48,00,000 48,00,000
other benefits - -
sh, Adeesh Gupta Salary, Wages and 48,00,000 48,800,000
nther henefils
Sh. Satish Kumar Goet Professional Services 4,040,000 21,00,000
&h, Ashok Kumar Salary, Wages and 11,040,000 -
other benefits
Sk Munigh Kakra Salary, Wapes and 33.00,000 33.00,000
nther hf:np:{i!ﬂ
Relatives of Key I'ayment of Salary, Sh. Raman Bansal Salary, Wagns and 30.00,000 30.00,000
Mg:agﬂf"ﬂlﬂl Wages and gther banafits othar banefits
SN . - S St
’ to amplayees $h. Vivek Bansal Salaty, Wages and 30,00,000]  30,00,000
ofher benefits o
Sh, Arypars Bansal Salary, Wages and 30,600,000 30,00,000
other benefits
Sh, Ayush Bangal Salary, Wages and 2,10,000 210,000
- other benefits
Sh. Manan Bansal Salary, Wages ang 210,000 2104104
ather banefits
Sh. Pranav Gupta Salaty, Wagus andg 2,10,000 410,000
olhet benefits
Outstanding halanpqs S N
Type of Rolationship Typo of Transaction Neme of the Niture Financiafl Your (T)
Entity/Person 2015416 maas
frade Regeivables Liberty Innovative Agaings sala of 199434511 1.30,42,414
Qutfits Lirnited iods manufactured aad
deal in by the Company
- Loans & Advances Libenty Enteypises 10,060,000 16,00,000
Entities where Advance for transfer
Key Management ; of Business :
Fersannet has Librty Group S §0,00,000 50,00,060
significan influence Matketing Cvisian
Trade Payables Libarty Footwenr Co. License Fee 10,00,000 23,96,640
{including Service Tax)
Sanjeav Bangal Medical Facilities 0 22,478 23,558
Charitable Trust employees
Little World Constructiong Rem. 70,650 20,308
[rivate Limited
Short Term Loans Geafin Investments Unsecured Shert Term Loans | 4,19,55,284 13,341,560
Private Limited
Expensey Payable St Adesh Kumar Gupta 249,635 207,086

Key Manapemenl Persanngl

Rent
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Dotail of Employes Benofits - Gratuity

The Company has a defined gratuity pan {Defined Bertefit).
Every employee, on completion of continuaus service of five
years or marg with the Sompany, is antitld o gat the
ratuily or 15 days saly, on thi basts of last tawn salary,
for esch completed vear of service. The scheme 15 funded

Statement Profit and Loss
a)  Net Employee Benefit Exponse (recopnized in Employee Cost):

with Life swance Sorporation of India (LIG) in the form of
qualifying insurance palicy,

The foltowing tabde summaizes the components of nat
banefit expanse recngnized in the Statement of Profit § Loss
and the funded statug and amounts recognized in he

Batance Sheet for the respective plans:

(Amaunt in )

Sr. No. | Particulars Gratuit ('Fundnd)‘"
Lot Service Cost ... A78732 7435460,
2 Inerest Cost on hengfit bbligmiﬁn 34644)6 28,79,644
3. Exprected return on Plan Assets (32.76,366) {37.33.174)
A, Actuarial Loss/{Gain) (38,84.838) 19,717,396
Ncat Benelit Expenses | 467,004 fi4,qq,’32b

Balance Sheet

b}y Details of Provision for Gratuity

{Amountin T)

Sr. No. | Particulars Gratuity (Funded)
31.03.2016 31.03.201%5
1. Piesent Value of Gefined Benefit Gbligation 458,84 402 4,56,96,0t1
2, Fair value of Man Assets 4,30,53,381 3.82.93,225
3 Surplus/(Deficit) {28,31,021) (64,02, 786}
4, Net Assat/[Linbility) {28,31,021) (64,02, 786}

c}  Changes in Present Valuw of the Defined Beaefit Obligation are as follows:

{Amount in ¥)

d}  Changas in Fair Vajue of Plan Assets are as follows:

Sr.No.  Particulars Gratuity {Fundad)

31.03.2016 31.03.2015
1, Dafined Benefit Obligation at the beginning of the year 4,56,86,011 3.95,84,735
2, Current Service Cost 41,78,732 74,35,460
3. Interest Cost 34,654,476 28,789,644
4. Actuarial (Gain)/Loss on obligations (38,94 838} 19,17,496
5, Benefits patd (35.49.979} (61,20,724}
B. Defined benefit obligation a1 the end of the periad 4,58,84,402 4.,56,96,011

JAmauit in 2)

St. No. | Particulars Gratuity {Funded}

NH3I2016 31.03.201%
1. Opening Fair Valua of Plan Assets 3,92,93,275 3,49,64,906
g Expected Return 32,76,366 3133174
3 Contributions by employer 36,956,723 63,70,091
4, [3@nafits paid (32,11,833) (57,74,946)
5, Actuarial Gains/(l.osses) - -
6. Closing Fair Vatue of Plan Assets 4,30,53,381 3,92,93,225
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8)  The principle assumptions vsed in determining Gratuity obligationz are as follows:

{Amount in )

o o | Fortodars Gratuity (Funded)

31.03.2016 31.03.2015
Discount rate 8.00%
Expected rate of relurn on Plan Assets 8.00%

Salary escalation rate ‘ o - B.005% 8.00%
1% to 3% depending upon age 1% to 3% depending upon age

DL R —

Attrition rate

1)  Amount for the current and pravious periods are as follows:

{Amourd in ¥}

Sr. No, | Particulars Gratllltv {Funded)
31.03.2016 31.03.2015
1. [Yefined Benedit Obligation (4,58,84,402) {4,56,86,011}
2 | Plan Assers 43083481 T 2,92,93.225
3. | Suplus/(Deficit ©(2831,001) (64,02.786)
4, Experience adjustments on p|Hr||lth1l!|E‘s (38.94,838) 18,17,3496
b. Experience adjustmants cn plan assets .

22020 Thore are no dues payable 1o the nvestor Educatian
and Frotection Fund as at 31" March, 7016,

22719 for the cunent year, Delened Tax liabilty has been
caleulated after considering the cumulative  timing
differences of  ¥4,42,50,356/-  (Previous  year
¥6,38,37,055/+} mainly on account of depreciation.

2.22.21  Detail of Materials Consumed

(Amourt in %)

Description . 2015416 2014415
PVE Comprung 11,11.61,398 16,0%,43 324
" Laminated Leather Fabric 21,02,35.081 22.31,53,878
PU Chemicals 21,56,14,338 23,87,08,846
LPdlhel """ 17,36,42,305 18.53.64,893
PU Soles 61074025 | TI21G8916
EVA Ressin 31513008 | 37289256
Shoe Uppers/Components 40,97,59,333 58.77.66,922
Dthers 47,04,17,669 56,08,93,782
Total 1.63,83,17.272 2.10.58,58 818
Less: Amount of Expart incentives 2,221 456 3.40,83.627
Net Gorsumption | 1,61,30,75,016 2,07,17,56,196




Notes to the Financial Statements for the year ended 31" March, 2016

22722 Consumption/Purchase of tmported and Indigenous Materials and percentage thereof

{Amount in T)

Description 2015-16 ) 201848
Value %agoww """ o Valua Y%ayge
Rew Materials Consumed ’
Imported 4,55,080,893 2.83 5,85,46,545 2.87
Indigenous 1,56,74,81,923 87.17 2,01,22,19,651 9793
Total 1,61,30,75,816 100.00 2,07,17,66,196 10000 |
Finished Goods Purchased
Imported 9,75,85,880 21.07 21,97.82,3495 20.90
Indigentus 36,56,41,187 78,93 71,18,66,251 79.10
Total 46,32,41,067 100,00 93,16,48,646 100.00
Conzumahle Stores & Slﬁars """"""
Impnrted (3,655,835 1751 bb,29,285 1364
Indigenous 249982000 8249 3.50.20.142 46 36
Total 3,6347885 | 100.00 4,05,49,427 10000 |
2.27.23  Expenditure & Larnings In Foreign Currency
e (Amoum in ¥}
Description 2015-16 201415
"8 CIF Value of Imports:
Raw Materials & Others 13.22‘22,924 22,92,10,350
Cagital Goods ) 1,52,52,356 3,16,95, 164
Stores & Spares 32.84.504 36,410,333
bt Expanditure in Foreign Currency
Traveling Expenses 1,00,94,538 52 .67,155
Commission 70,25,805 1931165
Business Promotion 25,57.499 60,60,114
Customer Claims 448,963
Ret 11,49.670
Tachnical Cansullanu\fl 288,401 247576
¢| FOB Valve of Exports of :
Finished Goods 36,03.74.416 48,50,72,902

220,24 In accordance with provisions of Section 135 of the Companies Act, 2013, the Company has incurred oxpenses lowards Corporate
Social Responsitility (GSR) aggregating to T2B.10 Lakh for CSR activities out of which 224.90 Lakh has been considered in donation
a3 mentioned in note no, 2.2% and 73,20 Lakh has been incuned by way of supply of Shogs on complementary basis to needy people.

s (T in Lakh)
Particuiars For the year anded For the yaar endad
315t March, 2016 | 31st March, 2015
a} Gross amount required to be spent by the Company during the year 27.86 o 21.28
bl Amount spent during the year on the following in gash |
(i) Construction/ acquisition of any asset NIL NIL
{il  On purpase other than {i) above 28.10 2.82

22125

The currant year and previous year figures have been rounded off to the nearest rupees.

The Company has regrouped/ieclassified the previous year figures in accordance with the requitements apglicabile in th current year,




independent Auditor's Report on Consclidated Financial Statements

To
The Members of
Liberty Shoes Ltd.

Report on the Gonsolidated Financial Statements

We have oudited the accompanying consolidited financial
statements of Liberty Shoes Limited {kercinafter refered ta
as “the Holding Company™) and its subsidiary {the Holding
Company and its Subsidiary togather referred as "the Group™},
comprising of the Consolidated Balance Sheet as ot Margh 31,
2018, the Consclidated Statement of Profit and Loss, the
Consolidated Cash Flaw Staterment for the year then ended,
and & summary of significant accounting policies and pther
explanatory information  (hereinaftcr referred to o “the
consolidated financial staterments),

Management's Responsibility for the Consolidated Financial
Statemeants

The Holding Compary's Board of Directors is responsitde for the
matters stated in Section 134(5) of the Companies Act, 2013
(the Act) wilh respect 10 the preparation and presentation of
these consolidated financial statements that giva & true and fair
view of the consolidated financial position, consolidated
financial performance and consolidated cash flows of the Group
in accordance with the accounling  principles  grrerally
accepted it India, including the Accounting Standards specified
undar Section 133 of the Act read with Rule 7 of the
Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014, The respective Board of
irectors of the Group are responsible for maintenance of
adequate accounting recards in aceordance with the provisions
of the Act for safeguarding the assets of the Group and for
preventing and deteeting frauds and  other iregulanties,
seiection  and  applicetion  of  appropriste  accounting
pobcies; making judgments and estimates that are reasonable
and prudent; and design, implementation and maintenance of
adequate imtermal financial controls, that wede  operating
effectively for ensuring the accurasy and completeness of the
accounting  records, relovant o the  pweparation  and
presentation of 1he financial staterments that give a true and fair
view and arg free from material migstaternent, whether due 1o
fraud or aror,

Auditor's Responsthility

Our responsibility is to mpress an opinign on these
consolidated financial statemoents based on our audil. W have
taken in to account the provisions of the Act, the accounting
and auditing standards and matters which are required o be
ingluded in the audit report under the provisions of the Act and
Rules made thergunder,

We conducted our sudit in acenrdance with the Standards on
Auditing, fssued by the Institule of Charteied Accountants of

Incia, as specified under Section 143{10] of the Act, Those
Standards require thet we cormply with ethical reguirements
and plan and perform the audit 1o oblain reasonable assurance
about whether the consolidsted financial statements are free
frorm matarial misstatement,

An audit involves performing procedures o obtain audit
evidence about the amounts and the disclosures in the
cansolidated finsncial statements. The procedures selected
depend on the Auditar's judgment, including the assessment of
the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated financia
slatements, whether due to fraud or error bn making those risk
assessments, the auditor considers internal financizl controt
relevant 1o the Holding Company's preparation of . the
consolidated financial statements that give a tree and fair view
i order to dasign Audis procedures thal are appropriate in the
circumstances,  An o audit alsn Gncludes  evalugting  the
appropriatenass of the accounting policies used and the
reasonaldeness of the accounling estimales made by the
Holding Company's Board of Directors, a5 well a3 evaluating the
overalt presentation of the consalidated financial statements,

We befiove that the audit evidence obtained by us and the
audit evidence obtained by the other auditors refested to in
other mattor below, is sufficient and appropriate to provide a
basis for our audit opinion on the consolidaled {inancial
slatements.

Opinion

in our apinion and to the bast of our infanmation and according
10 the explanations given ta us, the aftresaid consohdated
financial statements give the information reguired by the Agt in
the manner so required and pive & true and fair view in
confarmity with the accounting pringiples generally aceepted in
India of the consolidisted slate of affairs of the Greup as at
March 31, 2016 and their vonsolidaled profit and their
consclidated cash flows for the year ended on that date.

Other Matter

We did not audit the financial stmements of subsidiary
Mfs Liberty Foot Fashion Middie East FZE, & Company
registered in the United Arab Cmirates, for the yoar ended
March 31, 2016 who has not yet commenced s operations
whose financial staternents reflect olal assels of T136.10 Lakh
as at March 31, 2018 and net loss of ¥15.21 Lakh for the year
ended on that date, as congiderad in the consolidated financial
statements, This financial statements have been audited by
other auditors whose report has been furnished o us by the
Management and we are presented wilh these linancil




staternents in Indian Rupees prepared on the basis of the financial position of the Group in its consolidsted

aforesaid audited accounts. Our epinion on the consclidatod tinancial statements as 1eferrad in Note 2.27.9 1o the

financial slatements, and our reporl on Other Legal and consolidated financial siaterents,

Regulatory chuirﬂmunts hefow, 18 not mm:Jiiied in respect of i, The Group didnt have any long-term contracts

the above matters with respect 10 our .rehance an lh_e wu.rk including derivative contracts for which there were any

done and the reports of the other Auditor and the financl material foresesable lossas:

statements.

. ii. There has been no delay in transferring amounts,

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements required 1o be transierred, to the Investor dugation

As required by section 143 (3] of the Act, we report that; and Protection Fund by the Helding Company,

a}  We have seught and obtained all the information and
explanations which to the best of our knowledge and belie!
were necesssry for the purpose of our audit of the
aloresaid consolidated financial statements;

bl in owr opinion proper books of account ag required by law
relating to preparation of the aforesaid consolidated
financial statements have been kepl so {ar as it appears
from our examination of those books and reparts of the
oiher auditor

For Pardeep Tayal & Co.,
Firm Registration No. 0027330
Chartared Accountunls

, . . Pardeap Tayal
¢} The Consolidated Balance Sheet, the Consoldated Part':ler v
Statement of Profit and Loss and the Consolidated Cash Membership No. [81643

Fow Statement dealt with by this Reporl aie in agreement
with the books of account mainlained for the purpnse of
preparation of the consolidated financial statements;

Place: Gurogram, Haryana
Dated: Manday, 30" May, 2016

dl In our opinion, the aferesaid consolidated financial
statements comply with the Accounting Standards
specified under section 133 of the Acl, as applicatile.

£} Or the basis of wiillen represcntations seceived from the
direetors of the Holding Company as on March 31, 2016,
and taken on record by the Board of Directors of the
Halding Company, none of the directars is disqualified as
on Marck 31, 20186, from being appointed as a directer in
terms section 164 (2] of the AcL

fI With respoct to the adequacy of the internal financial
contigls over financial reporting and the operating
etfactiveness of such controls, refer to our separate Report
in “Annexure A", which is based on the Auditors' repart of
Holding Company incorporaled in India, Que report
expresses an unrmodified apinion on tho adequacy and
pperating effectiveness of the Holding Company's internal
financial controls over financial reporting

gl With respect to the other matters 1o be included in the
Auditor's Report in accordance with Bulg 11 of the
Comipanies {Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, in our gpinion
and to the best of our information and according to the
explanations given to us:

. The consolidated financizl stalements disclose the
impact of pending litigations on the consolidated
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Annexure - A to the Independent Auditor's Report

(Referred 10 in paragraph %(f) under the heading “Repaort on other
legal and regulatory requirements” of our report of even date)

Report on the Internal Financial Controls under Clause (i} of
Sub Section 3 of Section 143 of the Companios Act, 2013
(“tha Act")

We bave audited the intermal finangial controls over financial
seporting of Liberty Shoes Livated (“the Holding Company®} as of
March 31, 2016 in conjunction with aur audit of the consofidated
financiol statements of the Company for the year ended on that
dnte.

Management's Responsibility for internal Financial Contrals

The Holding Cotnpary's mansgement is responsible for establishing
and maintaining internal financial controls based on the internal
control over financial seporting criteria established by the Sompany
considering the essential camponents of internal control slated
i the Guidance Nole on Audit of Internal Financial Conteols
Over Financia? Reporling issued by the Ingtitule of Charered
Accountants of India. These respensibilities include the design,
implementation and maintenance of acequate intemnal financial
controls that were cperating effectively far ensuring the orderly and
efficient gonduct of its business, ingluding adherence Lo company's
policies, the sateguarding of its asgets, the prevention and detection
ol frauds and erors, the accwacy and completeness of the
accounting records, and the timely preparation of reliable financial
infermation, as required under the Companies Act, 2013.

Auditor's Responsibility

Our responsibility is 10 express an opinion on the Hatding Company's
intemnal financial controls aver tinancial reporting hased on aw audit,
We conducted our audit in accordance with the Guidance Nete o
Auddit of nternal Financisl Gontrols OQuer Financial Repusting (the
"Guidance Note") and Lhe Standards on Auditing as specified under
section 14310) of the Companies Act, 2013, to the extent
applicable to an audit of Internal Financia! Controls, both applicabls
0 an audit of Intemal Financial Controls and, both wsued by the
Ingtilule of Charlered Accountants of India. Those Standards
and the Guidance Note require thal we comply with ethical
reguirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable
assuranca about whether adequate internal financial contrals over
financial reporting was established and maintzined and 1T suen
controls operated effectively in al matedat respects,

Our audi involves performing pracedures to obtain audit evidence
about 1he adequacy of the internal financial controls system over
financial reporting and their operating effectiveness. Our audit of
internal financial controls over financial reporting included chtaining
an understanding of internal fingncial controfs over financial
reporling, assessing the risk that a material weskness exists, and
testing and evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of
internal control based on the assessed tisk. The procedures
selected depend on the auditor's judgemont, including the
assessment of the risks of maeral misstaternent of the financil
statements, whether dog (o fraud of grror,

Wa believe that the audit evidence we have ehitained & sofficient
and approptiste 10 provide a bagis for our audit opinion on the

Company's internal financial contrets system over Tinancial reporting.

Meaning of internal Financial Controls over Financgial
Reporting

A Halding Cornpany's internal financial control over financial
teporling i 4 process designed 1o rovido reasonable assurance
regarding the refiability of finangial reporting and the preparation of
financial staiements for exlemnal puiposes in sceordance with
genarally accepted accounting principtes. A Holding Company's
inlernal finsncial cortrol over firancial reparting includes those
policies and procedures that (1} pertain to the maintenance of
records that, in reasonable detall, accurately and fairly reflect the
transactions and dispositions of the assels of the company, (2)
provide 1easonable assurance 1hal transaclions are recorded as
necessary to permit preparation of financial statements in
aceordance with generally accepted accounting principles, and that
receipts and expenditures of the Company are heing made only in
accordance with autharisations of mansgerent and diectors of the
company, and (3} provide ressonable assurance  regarding
prevention or timely detection of unauthorised acquisition, use, or
disposition of the company's assets ihal could have a material
effect on the financial statemants

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial CGontrols ovar
Financial Reporting

Because of the inherent limitations of internat financial controls over
financial reporting, including 1he possibility of collusion or improper
management ovarride of controls, material misstatements due 1o
arror o fraud may ocour and not be detected. Also, projections of
sny evaluation of the internal financial controls over financial
feporling to future periods are subject 10 the risk that 1he inlernal
financial control over financial reporting may become inadequats
because of changes in condilions, o that the degree of complisnce
with the poficies of pracedures may detariorate.

Opinion

In our opinion, the Bolding Company has, in all material respects, an
sdequate internal financial contrals system over financial reportling
ani such internal financial controls over financial reporting wereg
operating effactively as a1 March 31, 2016, based on the intemal
control over financial reporting criteria established by the Company
considering the essential components of internal contrel stated in
the Guidance Naote on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over
Financial Reparting issued by the Institule of Chartered Actountanls
of India,

For Pardeep Tayal & Co.,
Firm Registration No, 002733N
Charlered Accountants

Pardeep Tayal
Fartnar
Membershin No, 081643

Place; Gurugram, Haryana
Dated: Munday, 30" May, 2016
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Consolidated Balance Sheet

{Consofidated)

as at 31" March, 2016
[Arnount i %)
PARTICULARS NOTE NO. 31.03.2016 31.03.2015
Enuity & Linbilitios
Shareholders' Funds
Shate Capitai 21 17.04,60,000 17,04,00,000
Reserves B Surplus 2.2 C33BBAATIAN I 1568041041 | 1208802718 | 1456202718
Non-currant Liahilities
Lony Term Botrowings 2.3 1,76,00,598 11,35,87,304
Daterred Tax Liability (Net) 7.4 1,46,30,500 2.07.11.830
Gther Long Term Liakilities 25 5,97.60.579 5,76,20,874
Lo Term Provisions 26 2434700 15,44,26377 [ 2806330 18.47,26,523
Current Liabilities
Short Term Borrowings 2.1 1.21.680.20.711 1.21,16,6%,324
Trade Payables 28 73,79,42,557 0,83,64,984
Other Cureant Liahilities 29 18,93,79,085 22.53.83.45¢
Shon Term Frovisions 230 3,80.58,7487 5,86,83,207 2.40, .:2 Q{J 9!3
Tatal
Aszets
Nen-ctrrant Assots
Fixnd Assets
Tangibie Assets 21 97,34,18,256 95,61,80,236
fntannible Asgots 21 74,597,937 95,381,988
Capital Wark in Progress 211 1,28,25.322 1,07.00,212
Nan-current invesiments 22 44,834 44,831
Lang term Loans & Advances 2.13 21,18,83,752 20.60,38.857
Other Non-rurrant Assols 214 . 1,20,66,30,101 1.18,28,61,12%
Currant Assets
[nvgntories 216 1,41,08,30,110 1.43,20.86.213
Trade Recevahles 2.16 9%,48,46,832 1.14,81.31,767
Cash and Bank Balances 217 7.62,86,570 6,33,81,537
Shert werm Loans & Advances 2.18 ~ 25,65,06108 7,68,74,79.623 | 22@?‘#_‘1 2 87 1"1.59 092
Total "3,90,61,08,724 " 4,05,62.20,213
Signiticant Accounting Policies 1
Notes on Financials Statements 210 2.27
The notes are an integral pan of these
hnanml Slammnma
&.1gnmj in tmmﬁ of aur Augit Beport of gvan date,
For Pardaep Tayal & Ca,,
Firrt Reeggn. No, 0(12‘/33[\'
Chartered Accountants
for and on behalf of the Board
Pardeep Tayal Adesh Kumar Gupta Shanmi Bansal Raghubar Dayal Munish Kakra
Paringr CED & Executive Directar Executive Directer Dhactor CFO B Sompany Seoratary
Mambership Ne, 081643 DiN-001437 &2 DIN « D0t3n792 DIN-004871803 W, No, ADS 6262

Pligeses: Bunagran, Harysnis
Nated: Monday, 30" May, 7016
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Consolidated Statement of Profit and Loss
for the year ended 31" March, 2016

PARTICULARS

NOTE MO,

31.03.2016

91.03.2018

{Consolidated)

(Amount in )

Ravanue from Dparations
Sates
Other Operating Revenues
Loy
Excise Duty

Other ncome

Tatal Revenua

Expenses
Cost of Raw Matarials Consumad & Finigher
Goods Purchased
Change in tnventonies of Finished Gonds,
Goods in Process and Stock-in-Trade
Employee Benafit Expenses
linance Cost
Depreciation & Amortisations

Othar Expensas
Excise Duty
Total Expenses

Profit hetore axcaptional and
axtraordinary items and tax

Exceptional Hers
Profit before Tax

Tax Expense
Currant tax
MAT Credit Entitlement
{ncorme lax for eatlicr yaars
Deferted Tax
Profit for the year
Add/(Less):

Minority Interast

Profit for the year
Earning Pet Share of 10/~ each
Basic b Giluted
Basic & Gilmed {Before Exceptional hems)

Significant Actounting Policies

Noles on Financials Statements

The notes are &n integral par of thase
Financial Stalements

219

2.20

2.1
2.2
223
2.24
21
2.25

276

20207

4,70,65,85,657
1.66,41,934

2,07,63,16,883
A,19,20,057
{i4,55,25,407
16,39,21,465
13,49,78,658
1.34,90,75,34%
{7,32.820)

454,168,562 956
34,20.264

4.46,4b, 16,663
1,78,82138

e FE2T, 15,381

3.00,34,14,842
(27,35,20,708)

BZ.R2,44,294
167,172,686
12,42,37,869
1.46,57,60,432
{28,53,329)

5,25,G8,83,470

266

2,5%,69,861

18.57.957
(50,81,430)

4,41,10,04,885

©12,22,98,715

13,40,68,340

1,17.68,625

217,486,388

2.85,92,830
(1,27.35,456)
(1,08,85,262)
(2.55,88,850)

5.10,5
15,57.45,046

71,34,887

14,86,10,159

(2.06.16,878)

_.10.85,53327

10,0%,53,327

540
G6.59

16.92,27,037

16,92,21,031

8.9
10,35

Jigned in terms of our Audit Report of even date,

For PFardeep Tayal & Co.,
Firm Regn. No. G02733N
Chartered Accountants

Pardeep Tayal
Pt
Momborship No, OB1643

Plaviz: Gurugram, Hayana
Nated; Monday, 30" May, 2016

Adesh Kumar Gupia
CEQ & Exucutivi Ditgtot
DIN-001431872

Shammi Bansal
Exgrcutive Dicectol
{3 - 00138792

far wid on hehalt of thi: Board

Raghubar Dayal

Director

Munish Kakra

CFI} & Company Secretary

[HIN-DOFBIRO3

M. No. ACS 6262

(o)




(Cansnlidatad)

Consolidated Cash Flow Statemem
for the year ended 31" March, 2016

{Arrsount in ¥)

PARTICULARS 1.0, 31,03,2615
A, CASH FLOW FROM ODFLRAYING ACTIVHICS
Not Prefit Seforo Tax, Intesest and oxtra ordinary items 27.14.50.450 28,53,64,690
Adiustimenys o,
Unraalisad Foruign Sxchange Difference 171,134,548} [3%5,94,524)
[agaracinion 13,49,78,650 12,42,47,66%
Losg/AGain} on safefsmaontisation of Fiked Assets (net) 1,17.68,67% 71,314,887
Rank f Other Interest {44, 20, 2541} 114,48, 768)
Provigian for doubtiol detns (33,63,082 {1,36,47,244)
Qperating Profit bofone wotking capital changes 40,42,49,873 40,46,77,312
Adjustments Tor:
frate b Other Becewvahlies 111,66,48,027 2.20,80,91¢
Inventvios 2,1266,103 (30,80,47,034)
Loans 6 Advances (59,488,912 (4,93,47,425)
frade b (her Payahlus (10,724,687 531) A1,14,15, B1%
Gagh ganeratgd from Qperations 41,8717 509 3B,12,B9,654
Ditect Taxes Paid 13,14,80,473) (3,16,33,551)
{ash Flow hefore exira ordinary items 38,72.37,036 34.96,56,108
l:xtra Qeinary lpms . -
~ Net Gasb Ftow from Gperating Activities 38,72,57,036 34,96,50, 108
B GASH FLOW FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Purchase nf Fixid Assots 117,16,26,793) (19,67,45,044)
Sale of Fixed Assets 79,655,437 1,66,51,477
Hank and Other Inferest 34,20,260 4R.A8, 266
Net Cash vsad in Investing Activities (16.02.51.082) {17.52.05,306)
£ CASH FLDW FROM FINAMNCING ACTIVATIES
Proceeds from dong wim bonowings ‘ 2,42.GB,688 5,70,32,000
Repayment af lorg term bonowings (5,RR, 45,1745} {6,7R,05,834)
Irdarust paid (14,95,31,983) (14,44,48,750)
Dividitnd paic (Z,55,60,000) [2,55,60,000)
Dividend Listributian Ta 152,34, 3265} 4343920
Net Cash used in Finnnninu Activities - - o (22,48,11,798} (18,7626, 506}
Not Ineroase/|Decrease) in Cash & Gosh Equivalents 20,74,188 {1,32,65,703}
Cash & Cagh Equivalents {Opening Batence) 5.33.81.537 114,88.203
Unraalizod Fareign Exchango Diffaronco 98,30,693 51,60,038
Cash & Gash Equivalente {Ciosing Balanca) 1.52,96,578 6,331,537
Gomponame of GCagh & Cogh Equivatants
Cash in hand mcluding imprest 1,46,09,747 1,18,94. 478
Bianco with Schoduted Banks
Current Accounts 1.32.448,262 LIRV2027
Chanuas on hand 2.54,20,403 28,48,576
lixnd Duposits 2,A0,17,166 3,65,76,060
Total 1.52,96,5768 6,33,91,537

Notes: ¥} Purchase ol Fixad Assets include movements of capilal work in progress betwaen tha beginning & at e and ol 1he yeiar 2) Yhe Cash Fow Statensnt has bean prepared under 1ha
indireet method g5 setout in AS -2 on Gash Fow Statement issued by The lnstitute of Chanered Accountanty of dndia,

Signed in terms of ow Audit Report of ven date,
For PFardeep Tayal & Co.,
Firm Regn. No. 00Z733N

Chartored Accountanty for and an behalf of the Board

Pardonp Tayal Adnsh Kumar Gupta Shammi Bansal Raghubar Dayat Munish Kakra
Parine) CEC b Executive Direetor Executive Director Director DFR & Company Secretary
Matmharshi Mo, DR16A3 DIN-t0143182 [N - Ot 38792 DIN-DBAS1BO3 M. No. ACS 6262

Plsce; Gurigram, Haryana
Dt Monday, 30" May, 2016




{Consoiiduted)

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements for the yoar ended 31" March, 2016

Note 1: SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

a)

b)

Basizs of preparation of Conselidated Financial
Statomants

In case of Parent Company;

The firancial statemants of the Company have been
prepared i accordance with the Generally Accepted
Accounting Principles in India {Indian GAAP] undel the
historical cost convention on acerual basis of accounting,

Pursuart 1o section 133 of the Companigs Act, 2013
read with Aule 7 of the Companies (Accounts) Rules,
2014, 1l the slandards of accounting or any addendum
therste  are prescribed by Central Government in
consultation and recommandation of the Natienal Firancial
Reporting Authority, the existing Accounting Standards
notified under the Companies Ack, 1956 shall contifue 10
apply. Conseguently, thase finarcial stateraents have betn
prepared to comply in all material aspocts with the
Accounting Standards notified under Section 211(3C) |
Companies (Accounting Standards) Rules, 2006, as
amended) and other relevant provisions of the Companies
Act, 2013 {The "Act”),

All assets and liabdites have been classified 85 ourrent
and non- current as per the Company's normal aperating
cycle and other criteriz as set out in Schadule #H to the
Companies Act, 2013

In case of Subsidiary Company

Financial statements have been prepared in accordance
with Intermational Financial Reporting Standards (MFRSs")
and interpratations issuad by the Interationsl Accounting
Standards RBoard (“IASB"). The financial statements have
been prepared on acciual basis of accounting under the
histarical cost convention,

Principles of congolidation

The consafidated financisl staterneants have been prepared
in seoordance with Accounting Standard 21" Cansolidated
Financial Staterments” issued by The Institiic  of
Charterad Accourtants of India. The consolidated financial
slatements have been prepared on the following basis:

Investiments in subsidiary

« The financial statements of the Liberly Shoes L.
{The Parent Gormpany) and its Subsidiary Cornpany
have been combinad on a ling-by-line basis by adiing
together the book volues of Hke items of assets,
liabilities, profit and loss atter fully eliminating intra
prtsup balanges,

» Goodwill on congofidation 1 tecognized in the
vonsolidated financial statemenls a5 cost to the Parent
Company of its investments in the Subsidiary is i

6}

d)

e

excess 10 the Parent Company's porticn of equity in the
Subsidiary Company.

The financiat statements of the Subsidiary used in the
gonsalidation are drawn up 10 the same iepotting date
55 that of the parent company ie. vear ended 31"
March, 2016,

» The Subsidiary considered in the preparation of these
consofidated financial statements is Uberty Fonl
Fashion Middle East FZE (LFF) in which parent
company holds 100% [Previeus yaar 100%) of Equity
Shares, L has presented its financial statements in
AED (Dirhams) which has been converted i to Indi
rupres Al 4 rale prevaling 21 the end of the financial
yoar while consolidating the financial statemants, LM
has not commenced its operations yet therefore, in
1his report, wherever notes 1efated to LFF, it has been
specifically refetred as Subsidiary Company; otherwise
the nodes given are related 10 Parent Company only,

Revenue Recopgnition

« Sales revenue is recognized when the significart risks
and rewards of ownership of goods have passed to the
buyer on dispateh or delivery of goods, net of sales
returns, trade discount and VAT/Sakes tax but inclusive
of excise duty and do not include the cost of materials
used 1o captive consumption,

« [xport Incentives are aceounted on accrunl basis and
include the estirmated value of incentives receivable
under the DEPB Scheme, the Duty Drawback Scheme
and the Focus Produst Scheme and the Merchandise
Fxport from India Scheme, Any difference at the time
of actual recaspt is accounted for in the year of receipt.
The amount of expont incentives has been adjusted
with the cost of raw materiais consumed.

« Gain/loss on transfes of Duty Credit Entitlernents
received under the DEPB Scheme s aceounted for in
the year of transfer,

Invantory Valuation

lnventories are valued at the fowsr of cost and net
fealisable value, Cost of inventories, olher than for
maritfactused finished goads snd goods i process, s
dotermined on Weighted Avarage Cost Method {nat of
CENVAT credit availed) of stock accaunting, Cost of
manufactured finished (oods and geods in process include
cost of rsw materials consumed on weighted average
hasis and appropriate portion of allecable overheads and
Excise Duty and Taxes, wherover applicable. Scrap, if any,
at the year-end does not farm part of the closing inventory.

Fixed Assets and Gapital work in progress
Fixed assets are stated av arigingl cost {het of CENVAT
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{Consoliduted)

Motes to the Consolidated Financial Statements for the year ended 31" March, 2016

f}

o

credit availed, wherever aligile) bt including fraight
inward, dulics, taxes oand other incidentaf expenses
redating 1o acquisition and installation theyeo!, Capital work
in progress ncludes cost of fixed assels under installation
and other incidental expenses. ltems of fixed assets that
have heen retired from active use and are hald for disposal
arg stated at the lower of their net book value and net
reatizable value and are shown separately in the finangial
statements. Any expected loss is rocognized immadiately
in the Statement of Frofit and Loss,

Losses avising from the retiemem of, and gaing and
losses arising from disposal of fixed assets which arg
carried at cost ae recognized in the Statement of Puotit
and Loss,

Dapreciation

The useful hves of the assels are hased on technical
estimates approvad by the Management and lower than
or the same as the useful lives prescribed under scheduke
Il of the Companies Act, 2013 in arder to reflect the pericd
over which depreciable sssets are expected o be used by
the Company. Depragiation is provided on a pro rata basis
an the Straight Line Methad (SLM) on the estimated
usafut livas of the assets as stated below:

Aszety Useful Life
Factory Building 30 Years
Plant & Equipment 15 Years
Dies & Moulds 15 Yoars
Flectric Installation & Equipments 10 Years
Furniture & Fixtures 10 Years
Office Equipment 4 Yeors
Computers 3 Years
Servers B Networks B Years
Mutor Cars & Buses 8 Years
Motor Cycles 10 Years

Assels individually costing lass than #6000/ are fully
depreciated in the year of acquisition,

impairment of Assets

Usually the Paremt Company reviews the carrying value of
assets tor any possible impairment a8l gach balance sheet
gate. However, the assets that are subject of smottization
are reviewed for impairment whenever evants or changes
in circwmstances indicata that the camying amount may
not be racoverable. An impairment loss is recognized
wher the carying amount of an asset exceeds its
recoverable amaount. In assessing the recoverable amount,
higher of the assets' fair value less cost 1o sell and value in
use is considered.

h}

i

k)

m

In case of Subsidiary Conpany, the carying amounts of
the Campany's assets aro reviewed at each balanee sheet
date to determing whether Where is any indication of
impairment, [Foany such indication exists, the asset's
recoverable amount is estimated. An impatiment loss is
ecngmized whenever the carying amount of the asset
pxcends its recoveralde amount, tmpairmant losses, if any,
are recogrized in the income statement.

Dpaerating Lease

Leases where the lessor effectively retaing substantially al
the risk and benefits of ownership of the lnase torm are
classified as operating leases. Uperating lesse payments
are recognized as an expense in the Statement of Profil &
Loss an straight line basis over the lease term,

Valuation of Investmonts

Long teim Investrnents are valued at cost and Short Term
invostmicnts are vatued at lower of cost and fair value,
caleutated individually for each investment.

Excise Duty,

Excise Duly, wherever applicable, is accounted for ot the
time of manufacture of firished goods.

Provisions and Gontingent Liabilities

The Company fecogrizes & provision where therg is a
present obligation 35 a result of past oven? that probably
requires an outflow of resources and a reliable estimate
can be made of the amount of the obligalion and
accordingly all krown liabilities wherever material are
provided for, A disciosure for a contingent liabifity fs made
when there ig a possible obligation or a present obligation
that may, but probably will not, require an outflow of
TESOLITES,

Employes Benalits

{ii Shortdenn employen benefits are recognized as an
gxpense in the Statement of Profit & Loss of the year
it which the relaled service & rendered.

fitl Grawity fiability is defined benefit obligation and is
provided for on the basis of an actuasial valuation on
prajected method made &t the end of the financial
yaar. The Company has created a trust under the
Group Gratuity Schems with the Lile Insurance
Corporation of Indiz (LIC) and amount paid/payable in
sespeet of the present value of liability for past
services is charged to the Statement of Profit & Loss
every year. The difference, il any, between the
actuarial valuation of 1he gratuity of smployees at the
year end and the balance of funds with UC is
provided for as liability in the baoks.

Borrowing Gosts

Borrowing costs that are attributabite 1o the acgusition of
construction of gualilying assels are capitslized as part of
the cost of such assets. AR other horowing costs are




{Consalidated)

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements for the vear ended 31" March, 2016

n)

charged 1o tevenue in the period in which they are
ngurred.

Foreign Exchange Transactions

Inase of Paront Gompany

{il  Assets and lishilties relating 1o foreign curency
transactions remaining unsettled at the yearend are
converled inlo ladian rupees at closing rates and any
gain or foss ansen is adjusted in Statement of Profil
and Loss,

{il  QainsAosses arising out of fuclustions in foreign
exchange rates between the transaction date and

farpign currency sk are marked to miarket as 8 the
year end and the resultant exchanga gain of loss s
recognised in the Slatement of Profil & Loss.

v} Non monetary foreign currency ilems are cardied at
cost and accordingly the ivestrment in foreign
subsidiary is expressed in Indian Currency at the
pxchange rale prevaling at the dae of the
tranzaction,

In case of Subsidisry Company, the transactions in foreign

cwrency entered during the year are rocorded at the

axchange ratas prevailing on the date of transaction.

seu!emam date are recognized in the Statement of o) Provision for Taxation

Proftt and loss under the head “Exchange Rate - ‘ o L _—

Fuctuation” Frovision for 1axation is made taking inte consideration the
' ' provisions of Income Tax Act, 1961 and Wealth Tax Act,

T i 3 C n iy F i ia y o .\ . .. .

(i) Thc| dlffercl_'mr, bcw;c:ran tlfﬁ._ furwlard n;u, :;nd th; 1957, Adjustment, if any, arising out of the assessmant is

excquge‘lmaﬂon ate o u.1captmn o @ sbrwar made in the year the assessment is completed.

contracl in respect of forward contracts with o .

underlying assels or lisbilities is recognized as income p} Provision for Deferred Taxation

or expense and is amortized over the hfe of the
contact

{v) Forward exchange contracls entered to hodge the

Deferred tax has been provided for all tining differances as
required under the provisions of Accounting Standards
issued hy the institute of Chantered Accountants of India.

{Amount in T)

As at 315t March, 2016 As at 315t March, 2015

Nota 2.1 Shara Capital
Authorised Share Capital

63500000 {Pravious year 63500000 Equity Shires) ) 63,50,00,000 ~ 63,50,00000
of 210 each

Issuad, Subscribed & Fully Paid Up Capital
17040000 (Previous year 17040000 Equity Shares of 17.04,00,000 17,04,00,000

T10 pach fully paict up,

17,00,00,000
FAR Reconcifintion of Number of Shares ‘
{Amount in ¥)
As at 31st March, 2016 As at 31st March, 2015
Balance at the beginning of the year
17040000 (Previous yeas 170400001 Louity Shares of 17.04,00,000 17,04,0¢,000

10 each fully paid up.
Add: Shares issued during the yem -

17,040,000 170000000

Equity Shares at the end of the year

2.z Torme/Rights attached to Equity Shares

The Company has one class of equity shares having a par
value of 10/~ vaeh, Each shareholder is eligiile for one
vole per share held in the Company. The dividend
proposad by the Beard of Directors of the Company, if any,

is subjact to approval of e mambers in thi ensuing

general meating, except in the case of interim dividend, if
dectared, In the event of liquidation of ths Company, equily
sharcholders shall be entitied 1o receive the temairing
assels, after the distribution to preferred shargholdess, if
any, in propartionate of their sharebolding.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements for the year ended 31" March, 2016

243

Datail of shares held by shareholders holding more than 5% of the aggregate shares in the Company

(Arnount in !:l

Name of Equity Shares As at 31t March, 2016 As at 3tst March, 2015
No. of Bhares | % of shareholding No. of Shares | % of 5hareholdmu
(Geofin Investrents Private Limited 44,1251 26.74% 44,11 817 26,75
Satish Komar Gupta (Kara) 11,868,584 b4 RB.BR.6R b2
AS 8t 3151 March, 2016 As at 315t March, 2015

Note 2.2 Reserves & Surplus

2.2.1
207

223

225

Capital Ressrve

Socuritivs Promium Account

Halanco at the heginnirg of the year

Adu: Additions/{Utilisations) daring the year
Balance at the end of thi year

Gieneral Reserve

Balance at the beginning of the year

fudd: Transfer from surplus in the Statemant of Profit b Loss
Balance at the end of the year

Foreign Currency Translation Reserve on Consolidation
Batance at the beginting of the yea:

Add: Additions/ftilisations) during the year

Balance o2 the end of the year

Surplus in the Statement of Profit & Loss
Halanca at the beginning of the year
Add: Profit for the year

Lass: Appropriations/Adjustments

Tranglot (o General Reserve

Proposed Dividend on Equily Shares

{Dividend per shate NIL (Previous year $1.50/-))

Provision for Dividend Distribution Tax

Adiustments on aceount of Foreign Currency Translation
Mezarve

Adjustrents on account of Deprecialion as per Schedube 11
of Companies Act, 2013

atance a1 the end of the year

Total Reserves & Surplus

IECTTN

11.27.20,644

11,27,20,644

1,04,70,08,364
60,00,000

1.28.51,256

26,66,344

11,28.21,952
100553827

21,33,75.278

8,60,00,000

3.81.248

L3S0
11,27.20.644

B _1_12720544

98,70,09,364
500008000
04,20,09,364

1.12,76.845

. 1% /4 413____””_
1 JH .31 .Z.JH
10,04,84,737

1692.27.087
26.97,21,774

fi,64,00,000

2,55,60,000
0233328
1,714,218

6.59.32.217

121,952

08,02

'
B A P




i 'g\\
i

b

[Conzalicated)

Notes to the Consolidated Financiat Statements for the year ended 31" March, 2016

Note 2.3 Long Torm Botrowings

tAmount in ¢}

Term Loans Ar ab 315t March, 2016 As at 315t March, 2015
Nan Currant Currant Maturities | Non Guirent  [Gurront Maturitios
231 Securod
(it from Hanks:
Rupee Term Loans 7,45,61,830 5,21,62,281 11,12.65,487 6,11,02, 7116
(i} from Glhers:
[fupee Tenn Loans 30,38,768 2482701 ‘ ‘7.‘2‘.‘9),(197 Haan
1,76,00,598 5,46,44,432 11,35,87,384 5.32.44133
Less: Amount disclosed undsr othar
Current Liabilities (Refer Note 2.0.3) - 5,46,44,432 6,32.44,133
Net Long Term Borrowings 7,76,00,598 - 11,35,87,384
Particulars of Lean Details of Security Butstanding Repayment term
Ralance as at
31" March, 2016

{i} from Banks

Exclusive charge on the assets linanead under

Financial Sarvices India Lid,

1erm Loan from HOFC Bonk 9,76,93.722 B Quarterly mstallments of €27,78 Lacy each
Term Loan and Equitable mortgage of land & 12 Quararly instaliments of ¥30.70 Lacs each
buitding inciuding hypothesation of plant f 14 Quanerly instabments of 236,74 Lavs vach
rmzchinery situatod at Village Bhagwanpur, 14 Quanierly instafiments of 7.77 Lacs oach
Roorkes, Uttarakhand and Fguitabla Morgige
of Land at Distt-Sirmaur, Pontasahibt and
Langha Road, Sahasgpu, Dehradun ang 2nd
Charge on Current Assets of the Company.
Vohiclo Losns fipm Hypothecation of Vehicles 2,28,30,373 | 52% in Monthly Installment in 2016-17
HOFC Bank 30% in Monthly Instaliment in 2017-14
fi% in Monthiy Installment in 2018189
1% in Momthiy Installment iy 2018-20"
Vebichs Loans from Hypothiation of Vishicles 11200016 | 69% in Monthly Instaliraped in 2016-17
ICICI Bank 28% in Monthly Insteilment in 2017-18
(i% in Montbly Installment in 2018-19
Total 12,867,241
{ii} from Others
Viehichs |oang from Hypotheeation of Vehicles 4,29.382 | 100% in Monthly mstallment in 2016.17
BMW Financial Services
Vehicle Logns fram Hyputhetalion of Vishicle 630,543 | 0% in Monthly Installment in 2016-17
Tata Canital Ltd. &0% in Monthly Installment in 261718
Vehicie Loans from Hypothecation of Vehicle 32,25342 | 46%in Monthly Installment in 2016-17
{raimler Financial Services S0% in Moty Instaliment i 2017-18
A% in Monthly Insteflment in 2018-19
Vehicie loan from Toyota Hypothecation of Vishicle 12,35,6%2 | 22% in Monthly Installment i 2015-16

4%, in Monthly Installmont in 2016-17
35% in Monthly Instalimen in 2017-18

Yotal

55,2019




Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements for the year ended 31" March, 2016

e

ICunsulidened}

[Amount in ¥}

At at 315t March, 2016 | As a1 315t March, 2015
Note 2.4 Daferred Tax Liability {Net)
Bulanca at the beginning of the year 207,117,930 4,63,00,B60
Adt: for the year o l6O81,430) (2, 55,08,950)
Balance at the and of tha year 1,46,30,500 2,.07,11,830
2.5 Dther Long Yarm Liabilities
security Deposits 59760579 h,76, 20,870
Total Gthar Long Term Liabilitios 5.97.60,57% 5,76,20,879
2.6 Lohy Tarm Pravisions
Prowigion for Grajuity 24,34, 100 28,06,330
Total Other Long Term Provisions 24,34,700 " 28,06,336
2.7 Short Term Borrowings
271 Securpd
Loans repayable on demand
from Banks: 1,17.47.66,483 1,2%,03,24,756
(Secured against hypothecation of Company's entire stock of raw materials, stock
in procass, finished goods, consurmibbes, stores and s, finished goods in
slores, in transit and with shippers at port awaiting slipment tor exports, receivables,
chegues, bank drafts and all eter currant agsels and 2nd paripassu charge on
Plant & Machinary.)
Total Secured Loans 1,17,42,66,483 1,21,03,24,756
2.7.2 Unzecured
Loans and Advancez from Relatod Parties
Shart Term Loans 4,19,55,294 13,34 bl
fram Dthary - .
Total Unsacured Loans 4,19,58,294 13
Totel Short Term Borrowings 1,21,67,21,777 1,21,16,59,324
28 Trade Payablos
Trado Payaties for goods i sevices 13,7942 557 10,83,64,984
(includes Sundry Creditors)
Total Trade Payables 73,79,42,557 90,83.64,984
2.9 Other Curront Liahilitias
2.0 Current Maturitias of Long Torm Debts {rofer Nota 2.3.1)
from Banks 5.21,62,281 6.11.02.715
from Dthars 44,8215 241418
Total TE 86,4442 6,32,44,133
248.2 Other Payahles
Advancey fraom Customos 342,156,068 2.50,40,061
Erpenses Payable 7.25,71,86% 9.39.48.043
Dt Liabilitics 379,465,734 4,31,61,2¢2
Total 14,47,34,654 16,21,39.376
Total Other Gurrent Liabilitios 19,93,79,085 22,53,83,459
210 Short Term Provisions
frovision for taxation [Net of MAT Cradit Ealitlament) 2049 6% 861 1.58,57,334
Provision for Gratuity 910,737 7.81,633
[rovision for Excise Duty 11718184 1,24,57,014
Praposed Dividend - 2,55,60,000
[*rovision for Dividend Distribution Tax 52,338,376
Total Short Term Provisions 3.85.08,787 596,83, 207
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Note 241 FIXED ASSEYS

{Conzolidated)

(Amount in ¥)

DEPRECIATION

GRO%S BLOCK NET BLOCK
Partieulirs Total Additions Sales/Adj, Totat Totu! for thae Salas/Adj. Total As on Az on
a% on turitig tho during tha 45 an % tn poriod during the a5 0n 03206 | 303205
0M.04,201% perind period 3032016 | D1.04.2015 poriod 31.03.2016
Tongibte Assats. (N under Loase)

Lanl 17,08,24.906 4,590,760 12,64.56,140) 126455140 1 126874 906

Builcing* FANAE PR TV 32,36.806 20110952 82378429 78,13 566 D0ZHZ990 AB0RZESI | 155003493

et & NE292M3| 1664760 342,770 1 BLIROS TR AUARSBADG]  H074765 ZH0286 | B45A53773 2603580061 30,33.36,338

Equignignits

Fumiture: f PAN0E 6797830 28552275 | 649,601 1480354017 33042482 1H82057 [ 162483847 19BUHT60 | 17489564

Fixtyen

Vehiches 162707205  31575606| 1,5587683 16,36,85628) 66470361 21231145 43,17.80% AALBAGI[  105A86IME ] 10.4,41.304

(e 124i6,38,120 23282 816 12,7581 14,8G,45,02% 0,38.55,06% 1,35,17.850 10,11,066 10.65,02,053 42142172 3,26,42 051

LCouipments

Wioudds 224160008 2657228 222653 | 298006778 21358,623 4%,30,070 32653 NBOESLDA0| 81447330 BaBaArs
Totat Tungithe | 2,05,41,62.540 16,60,48,846 |  4,9939,0910 | 217,3L96,476; 1,00.00,02,304) 13,1991,768 | 3,01.95853 ;110,07 98,220( 92,34,18,256 | 95,61,85236
Atz
Provious Yoar  11,41,22,39,032) 162568494 | 4,00,19,986 | 2,0641,67540; 92,74,28817| 1214,74.832 | (4.90.98.655) [1.00.80.02.304) 856185236 | 0R4BID.NG
Intangilde Assets

Farleits 15,500 5,500 KRS 1638 114562 11,567

Spftwarns 18257522 5A2 037 1,88,04,359 R4,72,198 79,56 488 1,13,59464 446,275 48 00,326
Total Intangible 1,82,68,022 552,637 - 1,88,20,859 83,276,034 29,66.600 - 11362022 74,517,037 08.01,988
Asgats
Privvious Year 1,458,712, 286 38.95,136 - 1,82,68,022 56,12,991 71,63,037 n B3,76,004 08.81.088 87,50,289
Capital work
in prograts.

1) Building #2,55,633 39,684,669 11,683,833 1,10,36.469 - -b o 1,10,36,469 RZ55,G33

unifer

congliuetion

1) Assets 2444570 1788.853 AT 17,688,853 17,684,653 HALLT

uricdar

inatallation
| otal Gapital 1,07,00,212 52,953,522 36,28.412 1,28,25.322 - = 12826322 1,00,00212
work in progress
Provious yoar 350,993, 10200212 3,68,303 1,07,00,242 - - = 10706212 3,69,393
Grand Total 208,31,55774] 176256206 | 53548322 | 2.20.48.62.657( 1.10,63,78,338| 13.40,78,657 | 3,01,95,853 |1,21,91,61,142} 99,32.01515 | 97,67,72,430
Provious yoar  |1.92.69,80.711) 19,71,64,442 | 4,09.89,579 |2,08,91,56, 70| 93,30,41,814| 12,42,57,860 | {4,90,08,656) {1,10,63,78,338 [ B7.67,77,036 | 00,3038 847




Notes to the Consolidated Finangial Statements for the year ended 31" March, 2016
Y

(Consliclises)

(Amaunt in T)

Total Non-current nvastonents

Agnregita amount of Quotad Investinants
Aggregate amount of Unquoted Investments
Agpregite Market Vidug of Duoted Invesiments

214 Lang torm Loans & Advarcos
{Unsecured and considered good unless stated otherwise}
Gapita) Advanca
Security Deposits
10 Retotod Parting
1o Others
Share Application Moty paid o Subsidiaries (Peoding Alliment)

MAT Crisdit Entitfrmant

Lags: Provision for doubiful seciity deposits 1o othaty
Tatal Long torm Loan & Advancas

214 Othar Non-currant Assots
{Unsecured srd considered good unless siated otherwise)

Total Other Non-current Assets

2.15 Inventories (As valued and certified by the Manapement)
Raw Matorials
Goods in Procoss
Fnished Goods
Manufactured
Traded
Faiking Malerints
Stores b Spares
Oil & Lutwicants
Tatal Inventorins

216 Trade Hocelvahlos
{Unsecured and considered gond unless stated othenwisel
Dabityg outstanding for a patiod exceeding gix months from e dus date
Consigerad good
Congiderad doubtiul
Uther Debts
Consicered good

f sy Provigion for thoutithid dibis
Total Trada Resnivables
217 Caxh and Bank Balances
CGash and Cash equivalents
[atances with banks;,
In Currert Accounts”®
Chrgias nn hind
Gash in hand including imprest
Fixed Deposits with Barks (Margin Money deposit for LG/Bank Guarantees) ™"
Total Cash and Bank Balances

As at 315t March, 2016 | As at 3ist March, 2015
Notg 2.12 Non-curreat nvestments (Non-Trade)
[vestments in Government Secutities (Valued at Cost
(G Yooy Nattonal Saving Cetificates VI lssoe ) 44 534

A48 67171

b,$1,48,280)

21,86.55.557
7780

21,48,83,752

32,93.96,479
15,12,18,006

76,80,16,862
9.57 66,264
1.44.08.518
3,01,57,82
14,65,2668

1.41,08,30,110

14,54,07 567
1,30,73,489

10,94,38,265

£6,70,20,323

13246262
2.94,20,403
1.36,0%,747

¥ inhudes Unitatoadd Dividend ol T7.45 Lakh (Pravious year TR Lakly)
" " Inchuchos Fived Deposits for T3.78 Lakh (Previvas yeat T12.37 Lokh) Raving matasty of imore tan 12 months

1,35,60,717

b,44,47,148

______ 111762782
20,96,10,657
BELZARLN

-20' 60,38,852

30.42.18,522
17,3741, 284

79,95.76.435
10,35,54,455
1,72,70,353
3,22,20,433
14,564,926

9,26,19,030
1.64,36.581

L 0356,12747
1,16.45,68,348

1,18,72,022
29.48,576
1,19,94,879

3.65,76,060
6.39,91.587




{Corsolidated)

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements for the year ended 31" March, 2016
{Amount in ¥)

31.03.2016 31.03.2015
Note 2.18  Short-term Loans & Advances
{Ungecored and consideed good unless stated otherwise)
Advances recoverible in cash or in kind or for the value to be received 14.55,71,768 12.80.63.5493
Security Deposit for Tess than 12 Monthg
10 Relitad Partivs 60,00,000 0,00,000
1o Othors 200,82,787 374,82 618
Balange with Excise and othe Statulory Authorities 456,08 510 336,498,427
{inchuding service 18x, VAT recoveralile and taxes paid under protest)
Frepaid Expensey 1.81,65,968 1,36,73,497
Loang s advances 1o amployaes 120,874,080 1,08,71,440
Total Short-tarm Loans & Advances 25,65,06,103 22,91,39,575
2,19 Othor Oparating Incong
Freight 410,712 45,450
Miscellaneoug Income uB,22,017 48,40,809
Gain on Exghange Rate Fluctuations B7.61.200 53.10,886
Bad Debts Recovered 1R8.43,000 77.83.583
Total Dperating Income o 1.63.41,93‘1” mw&l&gﬂﬂ?&
2.20 Othor Ineorin
Bank and Other Interest {Tax deducted at Source T2.63 Lacs (Previous Year T3.81 Lacs]} 34.20.268 ABA8, 766
Total Othar Ineann 34,20,269 48,148,266
r | Cost of Materials conzumed and Finighod Goods Parchasod
#} Raw Matorials
Stock 81 the begirning of the yaar 304218527 271018924
Add: Purchases 1,63,82.53.713 2.10.48 65,7839
1,94,24,72 295 2.37.09.84.118
Lorss, Slak ot U aned of e yeat A mapare Loau4a2 a8
Raw Materials Consumed 1,61,30,75,816 207,17,66,196
b) Finishad Goods Purchazed 46,32,41.067 93,16,48,646
Total Cost of Materials consumed and Finishad Geods Purchased {a+b) 2,07,63,16,B83 3,00,34,14,842
.22 Change in inventories of Finished Goods, Goods in Process and Stock-in-Trado
4] Invenories al the end of the year
Finighad Goods/Stock-in-Trage BR.37,83,117 90,31,30,760
{inods in (Mocess 15,12,18,906 17.37.91.250
Teak 1,03,50,07,023 1.0%,68,22 080
b) Inventories at the beginning of the year
Finishad Goods/Stock-in-Trade 80,41,30,740 (4,43,94,482
Goods in Frocess 17.37.91.290 16,50,07.486
Tonal 1,07,69,22,080 B0,34,01.97%
{Incraasel/Decrease in lnventories (b - &} 4.19.2ﬂ.057 {2738, 20,168)
223 Employos Benafits Expansa
Salaries, Wages and Bonus 60,15,77,350 77.95.70,489
Canuibution 1o Provident and Other Funds (Refar 10 Nots 2.27.16) 3,19,62,334 3.56.,46,398
Slall Welfare Expinsos T,149,85.549 1,30,27,408
Total Emplayes Banafits Expenge _ B4,55,25,307 62,82,44,295
.24 Finance Cost
Infgrest Expense
to Banks 14.79.40, 653 451,274,054
to others (Refer to Note 2.27.0) 15,81,280 18,23,792
Bank Charges 1.43.80,472 1,37.63.936
Total Finance Cost 16,39,21,455 16,07,12,686




(Consolidaed)

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements for the year ended 31" March, 2016
(Amount in ¥

Nn.03.2016 31.03.2015
Note 2.25 Other Exponsos
(a} Manutacturing Exponsas
Freighl Inwards 98,81.032 1,16,38,58%
Uppar Froduction Charges 10,00,66,608 12,28,25,017
Oif & Lubricants 1.04,68,447 1.68,20,982
Electricity Charges 8,92.31,650 9,16,88,472
Repairs to Machinary 3.63,47,885 4,05,49,427
Lang Lease Rent 1,988,851 1,80,776
Franchise [ eg 1.25,00,000 1,25,00,000
Total ’ 25,87.04,473 29.62,03.2‘_5‘_?“
t) Administration, Selling and Other Exponsos
Packing Materialy Consumed 14,89,03,625% 17,32,03,126
Printing & Stationgry 71,19.218 74,480,690
Directors' Remuneration 2,02,16,000 1.82.06,000
Clsing 22057615 3,972,64,678
Tour, Travelling and Conveyance 7,98,34,192 1.87.28,864
Ingurance Chisrges 78.43,376 84,565,246
Fees and Taxes 44774118 5,06,21.41
Postaye, Telegram, Telephone snd Telex 1,51,49,354 1,51,24.801
Subscriptions 931,512 12,33.519
Adventisements 7.08,80.4155 12.94,60,613
Rent 16,10,98,706 13,01.R7,B46
Donations 32,50,968 156,40,536
Export CIF Expensas 1,30,71,5249 2,56,97,041
Freight Quiward B,77,92,023 8,08,21,836
Samplas 2.05,024 3,68,846G
Auditors' Remuneration:
Statutory Audit Fee 877,680 11,657,880
Tax Audit Foe 80,000 80,000
Centification Few 20,000 20,000
Miscotlaneous Expensas 3.G4.81,893 2,32,38,484
Royalty 16,43,00,000 17.27,23.000
Entarainmant Expenses 77.22,049 80.40,187
Commission 3,83,58,855 4,08,78,912
Salns Promotion Expenses 7.80,20,415 7,85,89,520
Newspapers & Perindicals 2,10,194 266,017
[ebits written off 27.24.445 1,11,86,347
Provision tor doutitful debts (refer 1o Nete 2.27.11) {33,63.002) (1.36,37,243)
Consuftancy & Professional Charges 2,34 58,353 2,14,85,393
Repairs & Maintenance Expanses-Building 2.38,12,780 33718500
fepairs & Maintenance Expenses: Others 2.85,75,008 1.52.17.042
Loss on transter of Duty Credit . 14,15,976
Total 1,08,08,70,872 1169647173
Total Other Expenses (a + b) "'1,34,90,75,345 1,46,57,50,432
2.26 Exceptional Hems:
{ofit on Sala of Fixed Assets (3,06,501) (4.79.683)
Luss on sale of Fixed Assets 1,20,75,126 76,14 570
Total Exceptional Items 1.17,68,62%
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¥

C R AR

{Consofidaled)

Note 2.27 NOTES ON THE CONSOLIDATED FINANGIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31" MARCH, 2016

2171

stated in the: Balance Sheet,

2.27.2

It the opinicn of the Board and to the best of its
knowledge, in case of the Farent Company b Subsidiary,
the value of realization of corert assets, loans and
advances in the ardinary couse of business would not
he lpss than the amourt al which they have been

The Parant Company has taken various retail stores and
warehouses under operating lease amangements. The
lease agreements generally have an escalztion clauge

and there are no subleases. These leases are penerally
net non cancellable and are renewable by nulyal
consert on mutuatly agreed terms, Therw are no
restrictions  imposed by lease  agreoments. The
aggragale lease rentals poayabiles are charged as Hent in

nole 2,25,

The future minimum  lease  payments  under  non
canceliable cnerating leases are as follows:

{Amdunt in T)

Laase Rentals 31.03.20146 31.03.2015
Not later than one year 24,594,687 1,21,45, 281
Later than one year and nat later than b years 355,237 15,81,422

Later than five years

Lease h’.tﬂfnmnT recognized in Statemert of Profit and Loss are shown
a5 Rent under Other Expenses in Note 2.2%

16,10,48,706

2.21.3

for Trading or Speculation Purpose:

Forward Goniract outstanding as at balance Sheet date

in case of Parent Company Derivative Instruments and Unhedged Foreign Gurrency Exposure, which are not intended

Particutars of Gurrency March 2016 March 2015 Purpose
Forward Contracts
Purghase uso 8,166.33 Ta hesdpe the Trade Payable
Sales t150 3.3?.050 74,559 To hedge the Trade
Ggr 30,000 Receivables

Particulurs of Unhedgod Foreign Currancy Exposure as at the balance shest date

Particulars of Unhedged Amount in Foraign Currency Amount in India Currency
Foreign Currency Exposure {Rs. in Lakh)

Currency March 2016 March 2015 March 2016 March 2015
Trade Payables ) 4,728,987 .95 2,05,380.39 284.72 126.08
FURG 72,153.85 15,000.00 16.65 10,05
Advance for Impart Purchases LsD 3,705.00 2.46 -
" Advance from Customers U0 £4,843.45 73,662.87 39.40 A2.59
EURO 8,442.00 - 6.37 -
- GRP 5,437.99 15,143.50 5.59 14.77
Trade Receivabies Uso 194166667 | 16,33124.30 1,198.87 984,45
EURO T 7abad00 48,307.00 16,20 32.20
08P B6.891.75 51,102.82 82,39 48.30




{Consolidated|

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements for the year ended 31" March, 2016

22714 The assessment of the Parent Company in léspeut of perind of 17 months commencing from 17 April, 2016
[ncome Tax & Weslth Tax iz completed up to Assassmant onwards,
Yoar 2013.14. Furthes, during the year, the Company has paid/provided
22015 uring the yem, the Parent Company, in terms of the {or franchise fees of 3115 Lakh (Previous year 115 Lakhy
renewed agreements dated Aprdl 3, 2003 with Liberly 10 LE and TREB Lakh {Mrevious vear TAB1.67 Lakh] 1o
Enterprises (LE) and lberty Group Marketing Division {GMD.
(LGMD). the twn p'a!-l.nurshlp firms of lfm group, !‘ur l_ur‘llwr Afso during the year, in terms of the renewed agreament
per_llud._ U\f t\fvo \ffﬁdl_:h. fmlrn i;[ml 1 2?1‘% 9'1W"irdh'f.‘l1z dated Aprl 3, 2013 with Libarly Footwear Co. (LFC), anothar
ex US_WETL::» Dk‘l Eﬂ" manufaciing saciilies I-’!‘d' ‘Ifml\ partnarship firm of the group and owner of ademark
d:’.“’jm'l" tademarks B distribution nretwmk:a was avallable “LIBERTY", fur granting exclusive rights of use of trademark
with th Company tilt March 31, 205, "LIBERTY" 10 the Company for further period of fifteen yoars
In furtherance to the Company's eailier communication, from April 1, 7013 onwards and in conformity with the
tonsideting the  enduring - benefits of unlogking - the requisite approvals of the Central Governiment obtained by
sharcholders' value through acadsition of He tangible and the Company in this regard, the Company has paig/provided
intangible sssets including business myhts of LE & LGMD, for wrademark license fee of TR24 Lakh {Provious yeat
on March 31, 201% the Company had entered into & ¥855.56 Lakh} to [T,
l\,ﬁ'ﬁ[r:”:“'".d”".'? ff' U'?['f’rs.T?{.'(l'"gf ::wf-)-w, ,W“!:. Tl‘f}s?.[‘:"f‘? 2216 In ocase of Parent Company interest to others include
of oot A I\]IILEJIIUI(;?1':3%:3\::;pa?1$:n|[1';; ¥8,67.473/- [Frevious year T11,93,934/) against short tarm
. i " lnan i s Geofi sstments Private L1d 69 12% p.a.
piid & sum of 210 Lakhs & €50 Lakhs 1o LE & LGMD oan from Ws Goofin [miestments frivate Ltd @0 12% 2
respectively as an advance and the related tansactions 2271 Duing the yoar thy Parent Gompany has capitaized the
ware o be completed, as per the mode/structure to be *’0”0""{”‘9 eost D'_‘_N'I. (_Ff'e“””“&' yesr ¥ Nilj as part of
recommended by the consultants, on or before Mareh 31, the cost of the gualifying assets.
2016 but with retrospacttva affect fiom April 1, 2015, 2218 The Parent Company has psid the excise duty ampunting
In continuation 1 the said MOL, considering the act of to TIBV7, 74 BBY/- (Frevious year ¥22,57,15,331/-) agains!
ron-formalizasion of terms and  conditions for such the sales precuied during the year,
takeover by 31" March, 2016 dug to certain tochnical Adso, tha Parent Company has made the provision of excise
reasons, parties to tha ahove said MOL have emered into & duty of ¥117,18.194/ (Previous Year #1.2451,014%)
fresh agresmam for comtinuing the existing arrangaments Wl againgt finished goods fying in stocks a5 an 317 March,
further pariod(s) as may ba muolually agreed and acoordingly 2016 and the difference of two has been recogniced
has extended the said arrangements initiafly for further separatedy in the Staternent of Profit & Loss,
2.22.9  Contingant Liabilities
In case of Parent Company: o
{Amount in )
Particulars 252016 2014-2015
I [Bank Guarantess issued on behall of the Company submitted with vatious 4,29 96,543 b5.56,22.601
inslitutional customers in terms to thair ordors,
i Letter of Credits 1.01.71.418 11,80,31.607
i) D aceount of disallowance of Jagitionate credit of CENVAT against Excise Duty/ 3,38,75,448 3.38,75,444
Education Cess' for tha period from November 2004 to Jung 2005, May 7006 1o
June 2008, financial year 2002-03 and 2004-05. CESTAT while admitting
Sompany's appeal directad 10 daposit T38 Lakh under protest and has aranted stay.
1) Value Added Tax' for the financial year 200506, 2006-07, 2007-08 & 55,68,5249 56,69,524
2008-D8 on account of classification of guods at different rate of tax
Vi Servite Tax on GTA Services for tho pariod from Janvary 2005 to March 2007 5,726,508 5,268,598
Vi) On aceount of compliance relating to EPCE licences. 4,42 00,783 4,42,00,723
vil) Third Parly claima dun 1o dispute relating 1o contracis - 4437479
wvilll On account of few ksbour matters pertaining to earier years i which Company has 2.10,00,000
prefersed an appeal before tha Hon'bla Migh Court and has Been granted stay,

" Including amount deposited urder protest 73900000/ (Provious yoae F35,00 000/
“ctutding aioount deposted under profest T1 4,258,815/ (Previous year T14,25,8157).




Motes to the Consolidated Financial Statements for the year ended 31" March, 2016

22730 In case of Parent Company, Capital commitments not
pravided for are estimaled at T35 Lacs (Mrevious year
30 Lans).

2.27.11  Povision for doubtiul debts; During the year, 1he

Parent Company has considered debts for T1,73,%47/
{Previous  year ¥4709590/-) as doubtfd  debts/
securities and  also has  withdrawn  34,86,234/
{Pravipus yesr ¥1,8346 8334 out of the provisions

Statamant of Profit & Loss

{Consalicatad)

made in the earlier years for the same and writien off
as bad debts T7,10,788/- Frevieus year $61,77.832/4),
Further the differential of the provision made and
amount withdrawn duding the year, detaited as under,
has been charged Lo Staterment of Profit & Logs for the
vaar and the hatance has been carried in the balance
sheet;

Partelars 0152016
h Frovision far the year 1.23.142 47,098,580
Less: Amount withdraw from the provision made for doubtiul debls in the earlier years 34,086,234 1,83.46,833
Net debited/(credited) to Statement of Profit & Loss (33,563,092} {1,36,37,243)
Balance Shoet (Amount in %)
CPatigulars 2015-2016 2014.2015
Opening Balancs 2.02,08,386 3,38,45,629
Add; Pravision for the year 1,23.142 47,09,580
Tow 2.03,31,528 3,86.55,219
Less: Amount withdraw during the year 34,86.234 1,83,16,833
Closing balance 1,68,45,204 2,02,08386
Trade Receivaldes (Refer to Note No. 215] 1.30,5‘33.489 1,64,36,581 |
""""""" Securily Deposits to Others (Hefer to Nete No. 2.13) 37,71,80% 37,711,806

22917 Puiing the year, considering the non-recoverability of
soma of the debts, the Parent Company has written of
the debts amounting to ¥20,13,647/ (Previous year
745,39,071/-)

22113 The Board of Diractors of the Parent Company

consioers and maintams  “Foolwear” as the only
busingss segment of the Company.

Baslic and Diluted Earning por share: The Basic and
dituted eaming per share of the Company is as undet: -

22044

(Arnount in )
Description 2015-2016 20142015
Basic & Dilutod .
Profit after Taxation (A) 10,05,63,327 16.92.27,037
Weighted average number of Eguity Shﬂre.sl ‘(B] 1.7 (Hl‘i.{)O_QW
Nominal value por Lquity Share 10.00
Basic E‘I‘M{jﬂutﬁd farnings per share (A/B) 5490 9.93

2.27.1%  Related Party Transactions
The Parent and the Subsidiary Compiny has made the
following transactions with related parties as defined

under the provisions of Accounting Standart 18 issued

by Institute of Chartered Accountants af India,

A} Transactions hetween the Company and related
parties and the slalus of outstanding balsnges
as at 31" March, 2016:




(Cangolicdated)

{Amount in ¥)

Deseription Entities where Koy Mkey Management | Relatives of Total
Managempnt Personnel/ Perzonnel Key
Relative of Key Management
Managemuoent Parsonnel Parsonnal
hax significant influence
Receiving of Sorvices B9,79,377 B,22.539 1,566,312 97 58,728
(1,82,81,774) (21,38,672} {1.42.104} {2,05,62,550
Sale of Gonds 9,19,01,040 - . 4,19,01,040
{5,25,75,478) {-) -} (5,25,725,178)
Purchasg of Assets - - . }
(1,85,00,000) [} i} {1,85,00,000)
livense Agreemands (Franchise Fee & 20,650,25,250 - - 20.50,25,250
Livensing Fee incuding Sarvice Tax) (20,81,16,56) ) () (20,51,16,567)
Fayment of Salary, Wages and other . 2.36.00,000 86,30.000 3,32,30,000
benefilts 1o enwployess =] (2,25,00,000) (96,30,000) {3,21,30,000)
Laang taken 31,79.64,128 - . 31,79,6,178
{15,43,96.000) {-) [-) 11%.43,96,000)
Repayment of Loans 27 82,10 875 - - 218210874
{17.21,20,000) (=} I} {17.21,20,000)
interest Paic/Payshie R.67.473 . - 867473
(31.93.934} {-) (-) (11,93.934)
Advance Tor Business Transfor - . . .
{50,00,000) I} {) {50,00,000)
Outstanding Balances
Trace Receivables 1,99.43 454 - - 1,80.43.454
(1,10,42.414) {-) =) {1.10,42.414)
Loans & Advances 60.00,000 " . 60,00.000
{60,00,000) [-) {+) (60,00,000)
Trade Payabies 10,93.128 2.49,63% . 13.42,763
(30.40,507 (2,07,098) - (32,47,603)
Short Term Loans 4,18,55,284 . “ 4,19,55,294
{13,34,568] ) (] {13,34,568)

Fravius yaar figuias ara in hackets.

Rl

Detail of Related Parties and description of relatianship:

1)

ii}

Entitins where Key Management Personnel/Belative of
Key Management Personnet has significant influgnce;

Goofin Invastments Private Ltd., Liberty Group Markating
[Oivision, Liberly Enterprises, Liberty Footwear (o,
Sanjeey Bansat Charilable Trust, Uberty Innovative Outfits
Ltd., Litthe Wotld Constructions Pt Ltd. ,

Key Maragerant Parsonrsl;

1) Sho Adesh Kumar Gupta 20 Sh. Sharmd Bansal
3) Sh. Suril Bansal 4] Sh, Adarsh Gupts (Ll 18th August,
2015} H) Sh. Adersh Kumar Gupta G) Sh, Salish Kumar

i)

final (6l 29" May, 2015) 7) Sh, Ashok Kumar {w.ef,
1" June, 2015} 8) Sb. Muzish Kakra

Retatives of Kay Managerment Personne;

5/5h. Harish Kumar Gupta, Raman Bansal, Vivek Bansal,
Anupam Bansal (Brothers of Directors)

Sh, Ayush Bansal, Sh. Manan Bansal, Sh, Panav Gupta
{sons of Directors)

Naote: Roceiving the services from Key Management
Personnel and their relstives includes rem and land lease
oharges. ’
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C) Disclosure of significant transactions with related parties:

Mmuunl m Q‘]

Typa of Relationship Type of Transaction Namo of the Entity/ Nature Fmanclal Year (?)
Person 2015-16 201415
Ruceiving of Services Geofin Investments Frivate | Rant {or Office Premises 499,884 1,52.39,190
I )
{rttl World Construclions Rent 5,423,633 501,289
Private Limited _
Libarty Footwear Co. Rent for Office Pramises 196,800 11,05,620
Sanjeeyv Bangal Charitable Hant for Office Premises 450,000 4,50,000
Trust
Merical frcilitios fo 6,17.450 993,675
employees
nori CSH Expensns 10,00,000
Enlities where | e e ot s
Key Managemen Sh, Harigh KUJT'I-. (‘ll]’)hl Rt 1.36.31? 1 4? HM
Fersonnel / Relative Salg of Goods Liberty Innovative Oulfits Sal of Goods 9.19,01.040f &, ?o ?J a7’
of Key Management Lirnited manufoctured and desl
Personngl has ins by the Company
significant influence Parchase of Assels Geofin Investments Purchase of Fixed Assets -l 1,85,00,000
Private: imitad
Liberly Enterprises Franchise Fee 1,31,30,0001  1,29.21,400
{including service tax)
Liberty Group Franchise Fre 9,79.58,700;  9.,90,64,41
Marketing Division (inchiding service Lax)
Liberly Foulwear Co, License Foe 9,30,55,500] 9.61.30.721
lincluding Setvice Tax] S
Loans Takon 31,79,64,328) 15.43,96,000
Gaofin lnveslments Ursecured Short Term Loans
Repayment of l.oans Private Limited 27.82,1087% 17, 21 .20,000
Interest paid/payable RE7.473 11.93.934
Advance for transfer Libuztty Entenpriges Advance 10,00,000
of Business
Libeerly Grotp Advance 50,00,000
Markating Division
Key Management Payment of Salary, St Adesh Kumar Gupta Salary, Wages and 48,00,600 48,00,000
Personnel Wages and other benefits other benefits
10 employnes/Receiving tent 42 534 38.672
of Services Sh, Sunit Bansal Salary, Wages and 400,000 48,00,000
mhﬂr hnnefits
Sh, Shammi Bansal Saldly Wages and 48,006,000 48,00,000
viher henafits
8h, Adeesh Gupta Sulary, Wages and 48,006,000 48,00,000
_ other hanafits
Sh. Satigh Kumar Gogt Professional Services 4,00,000 21,060,000
Sh. Ashok Kumar Salary, Wages and 11,00,000 -
other benefity
Sh, Munish Kakra Satary, Wages and 33,0000 33,00,000
other bonefits
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Sh. Raman Bansal

(Consolidatad)

Relatives of Payment of Salary, Salary, Wanes and 30,00,000(  20,70,000
Key Management Wagas and other benefits other benefits
Personnel to employees
Sh, Vivek Bansal Salary, Wages and 30000000 20,70,000
other henefits
Sh. Anupam Bansal Sulary, Wages and 30,06,0001 20,970,000
othar henefits
Sh. Ayush Bansai Safary, Wages and 210,000 210,000
olher henefits
Sh, Manan Bansal Salary, Wanes and 2,10.000 2,10,000
oitrer tenefils
Sh. Franav Gupta Salary, Wages and 2,10,0G0 2.10,600
other benefits
Buistanding halances
Entilies whare Trade Receivahlos Liherty innovative Against sale of 1,99,43.4541 11042414
Key Managemant Qufits Limited goods manufactured and
Personnel/ Relativa of deat in by the Company
KEY MENBEEMENE Lo esemsmmensenmmmmnsn s o s s s s s o s s s
 Personnel has Loans & Advances Libarty Lrtterprises Advance for transfet 10,00,000  10,00,000
significant infliznce of Business
Liberty Group 50,00,000 50,00,060
Matketing Division
Tiade Payables Lierly Foolwear Co. License Fee 10,00,000 29,956,840
linciuding Service Tax)
Sanjeev Bangal Medical Fagilities 1o 22478 23,560
Charitable Trust employaes
Little Warld Constructions Ren 70,650 20,309
Private Limited
Short Term Loans Geofin Investments Short Tewrn Loans 4,19,50,294 13.34.568
Private Limited
Key Manasgement Personnel Expenses Payable Sh, Adesh Xumar Gupta Rent 2,48 535 2,07.096

2,716 Detail of Employee Benefits - Gratuity

The Parent Compary has a defined gratuity plan
{Defined Benefit). In case of Parent Company every
empdovee, on completion of continueus sevice of five
years or more with the Company, 15 entitled (o get
the gratuity on 15 days salary, on the basis of last
drawn salary, for each completed vear of sevice, The

scheme is funded with Lile Insurance Corporation of
India {LIE] in the form of qualifying insurance policy.

The followirg table summatizes the components of
nel henefil expense recognized in Lhe Statement of
Frafit & Loss and the funded stalug and amoumis
recognized in the Balance Sheel for 1he respective

plang:
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Hi

Statement of Profit and Loss

(Consoficaled)

a)  Net Employee Benefit Expense (racognized in Employese Cost):
[Amount in T
Sr. No. | Particulars Gratu’ﬂw;unﬂud)
T 31.03.2016 31,03.2015
.| Curront SericeCost 41,718,732 74,35,460
2 Interest Cost on benefit obligation 3454476 28,79,644
3 Expected relurn on Plan Assets (32,76,366) (37.33.174)
4. Actyarial Loss/(Gain) (38,64,838) 18,17.396
5. Net Benefit Expenses 4,62.004 84,899,326
Balance Sheet
b} Details of Provision for Gratuity
. {Amount in ¥]
§t. No. | Particulars ‘Gratuiw {Funded)
,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,, 31.03.2016 LRI
1. Present Value of Defined Benefit Obligation 4,58,84,402 4.56,96,0%1 o
2. Fair value of Plan Assets 4,30,53.381 3.92,93,225
k4 Surplos/(Deficity {28,31,021) (84,02,786)
4. Net Asset/{Liability) {28,31,021) {64,02,786)
¢} Changes in Present Value of the Defined Banefit Obligation are as follows:
{Amaunt in ¥
Sr. No. | Particulars Gratuity (Fundaed)
31,03.2016 31.03.2015
1. Detined Benefit Oblination al the beginning of 1he year 4,56 86,011 3.95,84,235
2. Currant Service Cost 41,78,732 74,349,460
3. Interest Cost 34,654,476 28,79,644
1, Actuarial [Gainl/lL.oss on ebligations (38,94,838) 18,17.396
5, Benefits paid (35,49,979) (61,20,724)
B. Detined benefit oblination at the end of the period 4,58,84,402 4,56,96,011
d}  Changes in Fair Valog of Plan Assets are as follows:
(Amaunt in ¥)
‘ Sr.No. | Particolars Gratuity {Funded)
-  31.03.2016 31.03.2015
1 Gpening Fair Valug of Plan Assets 3.92.83,22% 3.49,64 906
2 Expected Beturn 32,76.366 3733174
3 Contrihutions oy employer 38,95,773 63,70,09
4, Benefits paid (32,11,933) {57,74.946)
a Actusrial Gaing/{Lnsses) - .
6. Closing Fair Value of Plan Assets 4,30,53,381 3.92,03,22%
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e)

The principle assumptions used in determining Gratuity obligations are as follows:

{Amount in T)

Sr. No, Fartlcu ars Gratuity (Funded) o
31.03.2016 31.03.2015
1, Discount rate 8.00% B.00%
2 Expecied rate of return on Plan Agsets B.00% §.00%
3. Salary escalation rate 8,00% 8.00%
4, Attrition rate 1% o 3% 1% to 3%
tepending depending
upeh age upan age
fi  Amount for the current and previous periods are as foliows:
(Amaount in )
Sr. No. | Particulars Gratuity {Funided)
EARR1) L 31,03.2015
1. Oefined Benefit Odigation (4,58.84,402) (4.56.95.011)
2. Man Assets 4,30,53.381 3.92,93,225
3, Surplus/ADeficit) (78,31,021) {64,02,786)
A, Expetience adjustments on plan liabilitics (38,94,838) 19,172,396
o Experignge adjustrments on plan assets -

2.27.17  In case of the Parent Company, for the current year 22199 dn accordance with povisions of Section 135 of the
Deferred Tax fHability hay heen caleulated after Companies Act, 2013, the Farent Company has incuired
constdering the cumulative timing  differences of axponses towatds Cosporate Social Responsitility {CER)
T4,42,50,356/- (Previpus year T6,38,37 055/ agyregating 1w TZ8.10 lakh for CER activities out of
mainky on account of depreciation, which 724,90 Lakh has besn considered in donation as

22718 Inuase of the Parent Company, there are no dues payable f‘nemmned in note no. 2.25 and ¥3.20 Lakh has been
to the Investor Fducation and Protection Fund as at incurred by way of supply of Shaes on complemontary
31" March. 2016, hasis tr needy people.

{% in Lakh)
Particulars For the year ended Fot the year ended
115t March, 2016 31st March, 2015
a)  Gross amount sequired 1o be spent by the Company during the year 27.86 21.78
b Amaum spent during the year on the Tollswing in cash
(i} Construction/ scguisition of any assel NIL NI,
(i} On purpose ather than §i] shove 28.10 2.87
2.22.20  The previous year figures in the Consolidated Financial current year, The current year and previous year figures

Statement have been iegroupedfreclassified in
accordance with the requirements applicable in the

have been roundad off to the nearest rupees.
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CIN: L19201HR1386PLGCO33185
E-mail: investorcare@libertyshogz.com  www libertyshoes.com
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I cenify that | arm a Member/Proxy for the Member(s) of the Company.

| hershy record my presence at the 30" Annual General Meeting of the Company an Monday, the 18" September, 2016 at 11:00 AM. at
Libertypuram, 13" Milestane, G.T. Kamal Road, Kutail, RO, Bastara, Distt, Karnal - 132 114, Haryana,

Name of the Member/Praxy Signature of Member/Proxy

Notes:

1. A Membar or his duly appointed Proxy wishing to attend the meeting must complete this Attendance Slip and hard it over at the
REGISTRATION COUNTER at the time of entry.

2. Name of tha Proxy m BIock [BUES. ..o e {in case of the Proxy attends the Meeting).

3, Electronic copy of the Annual Report 2015-36 and Notice of the Asmual general Meeting (AGM) along with Attendance Slip and Proxy
Form has been sent 10 all the members whase emait address is registered with the Cormpany/ Depository Participant unless any member

has requested for a hard copy of the same,

4. Physical copy of the Annual Report 2015-16 and Notice of the Annual General Maeting {AGM) along with Attendance Slip ard Proxy
Form has been sent in the petmitted made(s] 1o all the members whose email are not registared or have requested for a haed copy.
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FORM NO. MGT -11

PROXY FORM
30" Annuai General Meeting Monday, 19" September, 2016 at 11.00 a.m.

{Fursuant to the provisions of Section 106(6} of the Companies Act, 2013 and Rube 18(3) of the Companies (Management end Adiministration} Rubes, 2014)

1. Narme of Marnber(s)
7. PRepistered Address
3 E-Mailin

4. Folic No. #/ 0P i) No, & Client I} No,

tWe being the Membier(s) halding. ... Uity shares of T104 sach of Libarty Shoss Ltd., hereby appoint:
1. Name
Address

Or failing him/her

2. Name
Address O ORI
E-mail 10 ! e SANATUTE L
Or failing him/her
3. Name
Addross
E-mail 10 ; O S1 1111 111 1 S SR

As mmy/our proxy 1o attend and vote {on a pell) for me/us and on my/our behalf at the 30" (thirtieth) Annual General
Meeting of the Company. to be held on Monday, 19" September, 2016 at the registered office of the Company and at
any adjournment {s) thereof in respect of the businesses as set out in the Notice dated 30" May, 2016 and indicated

overleaf:




i No. Description of the businesses as set out in the Notice dated 30" May, 2016

ORDINARY BUSINESS

1 To receive, consider and adopt:

(&) The Audited Financial Statement of the Company for the Financial vear ended March 31, 2016 together with the
Repors of the Board of Directors and the Auditors theraon,

bl The Autited Consclidated Financial Statements of the Company for the Financial year ended March 31, 2015
together with the Reports of the Auditors thereon.

2 {al Toappoint & Nitector in place of Sh. Adeesh Kumar Gupta (OIN - 0037612), who retires by rotation and being eligible
offers himself for re-appointment.

(b} To appaint a Oirectar in place of Sh. Ashok Kumar (DIN- 06883514), who retires by rotation and being eligible offers
himsel {or re-appoiniment.

3 To yatify the appointment of auditors of the Company, and 1o Tix their remumneration
SPECIAL BUSINESS
4 Re-appointment of Sh. Adweesh Kumar Gupta (00137612) as an Executive Dirgotor for a further pericd of 2 years wel.

1" Octaber, 2018

IO TRIE covvenvrries s s s e e QY OF 1o e L2016

Aftix
fevenug
Slarp

Signature of the Member{s) .o i

Signature ot the Proxy Holder{s) ..o

Place;

Date:
# E-mail Addrass:
# To be provided by the Member(s) holding equity shares in physical form.

Note:

(@) This form of proxy in order to be effective should be duly completed and deposited at the Registered Dffice of the Company, not
less than 48 hours bafore the commencement of the Meeting.

{b) AMambher/shareholder may vote either “fur” or “against” each business as set outin the Notice dated 30™ May, 2016.
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BALLOT FORM
{To be returned to the Scrutinizer appointed by the Company)

1, Name of Mermbe {s)
2. Hegistered Address
3. Folo No. #/DP 1D No. § Chent 30 No.
4. Number of Equity Shares hefd
5. I/ Wa herehy mxproise myfour vote in tespect of the following resolutions to be passed at 30" Annual General Meeting of the Company, to b held on
Muonday, 18" September, 2016 at 13" Mifestune, G.T. Karnat Road, PO, Bastara, Distt. Karrol- 182 114, Haryana {Indial in rospect of the businesses @ sel
aut in the in the Notice dated 30" May, 2016 by conveying my/our assent or dissent to the said resolution(s) by placing the tick (7] mark at she bex against
Lhe respective matters:
S, 1 Description of the business &s set ol in the Notice dated 30th May, 2016 No. of Type of I/ Wa assant | 1/ Wao dissent
No. Shares Resolution ta the to the
Resolution Resolution
{FOR) {AGAINST)
ORDINARY BUSINESS

1. To receive, consider and adopt:

a)  the Audited Financial Ststement of the Company for the Finangial yesr
ended Margh 31, 2016 together wilh the Reparts of the Board of Directors
ana the Auditors thernon.

b the Audited Consolidsted Financial Statements of the Company for thg
Financial yeat ended March 31, 2016 tegether with the Reports of the
Auditors thereon.

2 {al To appoint & Dizector in place of Sh. Adeesh Kumar Gupta (DIN - 00137812),
who ratites by rotation and being eligible offers himself for re-appointment.

(b} Yo zppaint a Direetor in place of $h, Ashok Komar (DIN- 06883514), who
felives by rotation and being eligible offers himself for re-appeintmant,

3 To ratily the appointmant of Auditors of the Company, and to fix their remungration

SPECIAL BUSINESS

4 Re-appointment of 5h, Adresh Kumnar Gupta (001376172) as an Executive Dirsctor
{or & further period of 2 years w.e.l, 15t October, 2016

Place:
Data:
# E-mail Address: {Siguature of the Shareholder/Beneticial Owner)

# 1o be provided by the Member(s) holding equity shares in physical farm,

. EVSN (EVoting Sequence Nymbar)

Natz: Kindly read the instractions printed overteal hefore filling the form and in the Notice dated 30th May, 2016 carefully before exercise your vote.
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Thizs Raffol Foms piovidisd for the benifit of memborg whi do nol iave dccess 10 1emote e-voting Tagilty, to enable then to send Duzil assent o diggent by post.

Shareholder desiting to exercise vote by postal ballat fotm may complete and sign the ballal farm printee ovelleaf and send it to Mr, Sukesh Gupta, Chanered
Accountants, Thes Serutitizar, Libety Shops Limited, 442, Punjabi Bagh, New Celli-110026 in the attached sualed sell-adiesged pre-paid envelops. Postage
will he borne by the Company. However envelopes containing postal ballod, il seet by any other modr at the expense of the registered shaeholder will slso by
acpepled, The Postal Ballot{s) may alsy be dupostted posonally.

Voting Rights: Sharcholders halding equity shates shall have one vole per sharg as stown againgt their holding snd the shercholders can vote fer their entie
voting rights as per their discretion,

The sell addressed pre-paid envelope contains the sddress of the scrulinizer sppointed by the Board of Dirgctors 1or the above Arnual Genersl Meeting.

This form should be completed and signed by the sharealdor, In case of jeint holding, tis form should be completed and signed (s per the spaeimen signaturg
ragisterar with the Company} by the fiist named shareholder and in his absence, by the nest natned sharghalde:.

Unzigned Balled Foom or incomplete Batiot Form will be rejactod.

Dty sigred Ballot Farra should reach the Serutinizer not laver than the close of warking hows of Satufay, 171h September, 2016 a1 5.00 p.m. All Baliot Forms
secevid after this date will be stricily treated as i sy from gueh shargholden bas net been received,

A sharoholder may requaest tor o duplicate Ballot Form, if 5o required, However, U duly fillad in duplicate Gatlot Forn should reach the Scrsdtinizer not later than
the date specified af item 7 above,

Voting rights shall be reckoned on the paid up value of the shies registaed, In the nama of the sharcholder as on the cut-off date ie. Monday,
1éth September, 2016,

In case of shares hedd by Conapanies, Trusis, Societies et the duly filled in Baltot Form should be accompanied by a certified true copy of the appropriate
Fesalulion,

In case of the Ballot Form is signed by the holder of power of altomey referance to the power of attomey registration with the Company should be menticned in
the: Baliot Form. In cage a Ballot Form hag been signad by sn authorized representative of & body corporale, 4 centified copy of the relevant authorization te vote
on the: Rasolutions a5 mantianed in the Notice to the 30" Annual General Mesting through Ballst Farm facility should accompany the Battot Form, Where the
Batiol Form fhas been signed by  representative of the Prasident of India or of the Governor of a State, a cerlified copy of 1he nomination should aceompany the
Batint Form.

Shareholders aro requested nol Lo sand any othet papet along with the Ballat Form in the enclosed sel-sddressed postage popaitd snvelope i as musch s ol
such envalopes will be sent 10 the Serutinizer and any extransous paper faund in such envelaps would be destroyad by the Serutinizer,

In compliance with the provisinns of Soction 108 of the Companies Act, 2013, read with Companias (Manajoment and Administration) Rulos,
2014 as substituted by the Companies (Management and Administration] Amaondment Rules, 2015 snd Regulation 44 of the SEBI (Listing
Chligations and Pisclosura Reguiraments) Rogilations, 2015 and such other applicable provigions, if any, tha Company s also ofters Remots
e-veting to all the members. For this purpose, the Company has signed 4 agresmant with GOSL for facilitating Rentote e-voting and is pleased
to offer Kemote e-voting facility for the membuors to anable them to cast their votes electronically. Mambars have option to vate aithar theaugh
Runioto g-voting or theouph Balot Form printad overleaf. If & member has opted for Romote g-voting, ther he/she should not vote by Ballot
Form also and vice-a-versa. However, in the svent mombar casts his votas through both the processes i.e. Bemote a-vating and Ballot Form,
tha vatas In the olectronic system would be considered and the Ballet Form would be ignored,

The: detailod instisetions and procoss for Bemote e-voting has been aiven in te notes 10 the Notice dated 307 May, 20186,

Membiers who haves registered thair g-mail ids for receipt of documents in electronic mode under the Green [nitiative of MCA hivva Deor sent Balot Form by o
mail and tha merbers who have not registered their e-mail s with RTA/Depository Participants o wguested for Physical copy of Annual Report have been
sent Babiol Form in printed mode, Membsas who wish to vate through 3allot Form can slso obtaein the Ballot Forim from Begistrar asd Shate Transtar Agant
(RTA), %5, Link Intime India Private Limited, 44, Commurity Centre, Naraina Industiial Arga Phase-l, New DBelhi-110028 or from the Company at its Registered
Dffice and fill in the details and send e same to the Scrtinizer by Post 8t the address piven at above,

Ther Resolotions, if assentad by tequisite majority, shall be considered as passed on the dale of 30" Anousl Geneal Meeting, schedue to be hefd on Monday,
19" dfay of September, 2016.




LIBERTY

Liberty Shoes Ltd,
Regd. Office : Libertypuram, 13" Milestone, G.7. Karnal Road, Kutail, 0. Bastara, Distt. Karnal-132 114 (Haryana).
Tel.: {91} - 1748 - 251101 — 03, Fax; (91) - 1748 - 257100
CIN; ET19201HR1986PLCO33185
Estnnil: investorcare@libertyshoes.com  www.libertyshoes.com

E-COMMUNICATION REGISTRATION FORM
30" ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING - MONDAY, 19™ SEPTEMBER, 2016 AT 11.00 A.M.

Folio No. {Far Physicat Shares) e e AR bbb Vorverensesrns
Name of 1" Registerad Haldet L A bbb et
Nume(s) of Joint Holder{s) et T RSO L LSS et s s e R b e be et sens
Registered Address 0 SOOI
E=mail I (Lo be registerad) L e e r e e a et T YRR A raRS AR e A st Pt ne R bR e e E et A s ee Rt ettt e ene e

I, shareholder of Liberty Shoes Limited agree to receive communication from the Company in electronic mode. Please regisier my above o-

mail in your records tar sending communication through e-mail,

PAE! Signature: ..., et e b
(First Holder!
Notes:
1, Shareholder(s) is/are requesied 1o keep the Company informed as and when there is any change in the e-mail address.

2. Incase, shares are in etectronic formy/ kingly register your e-mail panticulars with yous Depository Participant,

To,

Link Intirng India Pvt, Ltd,

44, Commurity Cantrg,
Naraina Industrial Area Phase-|
New [lalhi 110 028

Tel . (87) - 11- 41410592 -94
Fax : {47) - 11+ 4147959
E-mail ; delhi@linktime.co.in
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¥ Venue of AGM

Registared Otfice of the Company:

Libertypuram, 13th Milestons, G, T, Karnal Road, Kutail Shalimar Bngl
PO, Bastara, Distt, Kaenal - 132114, Harvana \

Rohini

‘O Azadpur
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